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The Intesa Sanpaolo Group: presence in Italy
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The Intesa Sanpaolo Group: international presence
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Letter from the Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

Moments of tension were not lacking in 2017. However, nationalist drives with reflections on elections, in
Europe, hotbeds of war and nuclear threats in other areas did not prevent the acceleration of global
growth, at 3.7% according to the International Monetary Fund.

After years of monetary easing, the Federal Reserve and the Bank of England adopted restrictive
approaches in response to a possible future overheating of the US economy and the effects on prices of
the depreciation of the pound sterling. The ECB recorded an improvement in economic conditions in the
Euro area, but in the absence of significant inflationary pressures, limited its action to the gradual reduction
of the Quantitative Easing.

The Italian GDP grew by 1.5%, the highest rate since 2010, outperforming expectations. The main
contribution came from domestic demand, especially investments, and net foreign demand, a sign of
increased competitiveness: exports actually grew by 7.4% despite the strengthening of the euro.
Unemployment remains high, especially among young people: this is a problem that must be dealt with,
and a resource to mobilise for growth.

The refinement of the one-tier corporate governance model, adopted by your Bank in 2016, simplified and
increased the efficiency of decision-making processes, at a time when the move to the Single Supervisory
Mechanism (SSM) required commitment and attention to satisfy the expectations of the new Supervisor.
Another change is the “Non- financial Statement”, in which the issuer documents its environmental, social
and governance conduct. Our commitment to culture, environmental sustainability, charity initiatives in
favour of those in need and inclusion and financial education is thus illustrated according to internationally
recognised methods.

Your Bank was called upon to provide significant support to the stability of the entire Italian banking
system: the contributions to the Resolution Funds, Interbank Deposit Guarantee Scheme, the Voluntary
Fund, the Atlante Fund and the Italian Recovery Fund (former Atlante Il), resulted in a total outlay of almost
2 billion euro over the last two years. Moreover, in June 2017, as part of a complex transaction involving
the government in the forms illustrated in detail in the report on operations, we acquired certain assets,
liabilities and legal relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca: we took on 50 billion
euro in payables, of which 24 billion euro due to deposit holders and 10 billion euro guaranteed by the
government. We ensured the continuity of 28 billion euro in outstanding loans with customers and
businesses in the local areas. Only your Bank was capable of carrying out this essential operation for the
Italian economic and social system, without incurring damages. Through all of these measures, we
avoided additional resolution proceedings, which would have resulted in greater immediate mandatory
outlays, also on our part, greater charges for the government, the collapse of the economic system, and
additional, greater future burdens for all sound banks.

The pro-active management of credit and the recovery of non-performing loans, assigned to our personnel
as top priority, characterised our method of handling the issue of non-performing loans. Thus, just in 2017
we have facilitated the return to performing status of 21,000 companies.

Excluding the public contribution of 3,500 million euro relating to the Venetian banks to offset the impacts
on capital ratios, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group ended 2017 with consolidated net income of 3,816 million
euro, up 23% compared to 2016. The achievement of this result, the highest since 2007, was primarily due



to trading and the decrease in operating costs (with a cost-income ratio of 50.9%, among the best in the
European banking scenario). A significant contribution was also provided by the excellent results of the
Private Banking and Asset Management Divisions, along with those of the International Subsidiary Banks
Division.

The year 2017 successfully completed the 2014-2017 Business Plan, in a challenging macroeconomic
scenario marked by interest rates at record lows and a slower-than-expected recovery in the GDP, due to
product innovation, improvement in customer service and permanent development of the Group’s human
resources. The development of multi-channel services continued, with the establishment of Banca 5®
(following the acquisition of Banca ITB), with additional investments in mobile banking services, with the
growth on online branches and their integration with the physical network. The process of simplifying the
corporate structure of the Group continued, along with rationalising the bank’s geographical presence, with
clear reductions in costs.

Intesa Sanpaolo has developed an efficient, resilient business model, with a low risk profile, while
maintaining high liquidity (already in line with the Basel 3 requirements for 2018) and capitalisation at the
top end of the sector, fulfilling the commitment to distribute a total of 10 billion euro in cash dividends over
the timeframe of the Plan. The Group’s contribution to the real economy grew: in 2017, your Bank granted
about 50 billion euro in medium-long term loans to fund the investments of Italian households and
businesses, continuing the positive trend that marked the last four years. The economic value generated in
2017 - 21 billion euro - was distributed as follows: 76.6% to stakeholders, of which 37.3% to the people
that work for us, 17.3% to Shareholders, and the remainder to suppliers, the government, entities,
institutions and communities.

Starting from these results, the new 2018-2021 Business Plan aims to maximise the value of the Bank,
based on three pillars: significant de-risking at no cost to shareholders, cost reduction through further
simplification of the operating model, and growth in revenues. Revenues are expected to grow in P&C
insurance, private banking, asset management, corporate banking and the strengthening of the network of
the international subsidiary banks: these initiatives will be supported by development of personnel and
digitalisation processes. With the new Business Plan, your Bank aims to become a leader in Europe, also
through new instruments specifically aimed at generating a positive impact on the society in which it
operates.

This year Intesa Sanpaolo will participate in the EBA EU-Wide Stress Test 2018, which will include the
effects of the adoption of the new financial reporting standard IFRS 9. Based on the results of the
simulations, which will only be published at year-end, we expect a positive result. With a fully loaded pro-
forma CET 1 at 14% (13% after the First-Time Adoption of IFRS 9), Intesa Sanpaolo was - already at the
end of 2017 - considerably above the regulatory requirement at consolidated level starting from the year
that has just begun.

Considering Group consolidated net income of 7,316 million euro (3,816 million euro net of the
aforementioned public contribution) and Parent Company net income of 4,882 million euro, a proposal has
been made to the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting to distribute cash dividends amounting to 3,419 million
euro, equal to 20.3 eurocents per ordinary share and 21.4 eurocents per savings share, before tax.

Gian Maria Gros-Pietro
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Introduction

As set forth by Legislative Decree 38 of 28 February 2005, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s Consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in compliance with the IAS/IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the
related interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), endorsed by the European
Commission as provided for by EC Regulation 1606 of 19 July 2002.

The Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2017 have been prepared based on the “Instructions for the
preparation of the separate and consolidated financial statements of banks and financial companies, which are parent
companies of banking groups” issued by the Bank of Italy, in the exercise of powers set forth by Art. 43 of Legislative Decree
136/2015, with Regulation of 22 December 2005, which issued Circular 262/05, and subsequent updates. These Instructions
set out compulsory financial statement forms, as well as the contents of the Notes to the financial statements.

The Consolidated financial statements are made up of the Balance sheet, the Income statement, the Statement of
comprehensive income, the Changes in shareholders’ equity, the Statement of cash flows and the Notes to the financial
statements and the related comparative information; the Report on operations on the economic results achieved and on the
Group’s balance sheet and financial position has also been included.

In support of the comments on the results for the year, the Report on operations also presents and illustrates reclassified
income statement and balance sheet schedules. The reconciliation with the financial statements, as required by Consob in its
communication 6064293 of 28 July 2006, is included in the Attachments. The Report on operations contains financial
information taken from or attributable to the Consolidated financial statements, as well as other information — for example,
figures on quarterly trends, and other alternative performance measures — not taken from or directly attributable to the
Consolidated financial statements.

Information on corporate governance and ownership structures required by Art. 123 bis of the Consolidated Law on Finance
is set forth, as permitted, in a separate report, approved by the Board of Directors and published together with these financial
statements, which can be viewed in the Governance section of the Intesa Sanpaolo website, at
www.group.intesasanpaolo.com.

The Consolidated Non-financial Statement pursuant to Legislative Decree 254 of 30 December 2016, which describes
the environmental, social and personnel-related matters, has been published — as permitted — as a separate report together
with these financial statements and is available for consultation in the Sustainability section of the same website.

The information on remuneration required by Art. 123 of the Consolidated Law on Finance and the disclosure required by
Basel Pillar 3 are also published and made available on the website in accordance with the related approval processes.







Report on operations







Overview of 2017




Income statement figures and alternative
performance measures
Changes

. = q P (Net of the
Consolidated income statement figures (millions of euro) Aggregate Set)

amount %

153
183 25

Net interest income

7,294
Net fee and commission income 404 55
7,331
. . 933
Income from insurance business 58 -62 -6.2
) ) -30
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1,190
Operating income 202 1.2
-471
Operating costs 37 0.4
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Operating margin 8273 165 2.0
Net adjustments to loans -455  -12.3
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Income (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations = 952 -952

3
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Quarterly development of main consolidated income statement figures (millions of euro)
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Main income statement figures by business area (millions of euro)

Operating income

8,625

3,385

2,002

1879 [
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1,067 | N

1,172

Operating margin
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Net income (loss)
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1,812

o

1,448

H s
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357

| R
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Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca
Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have temporarily been allocated to the Corporate Centre and have not been restated.

2017 (Consolidated figure net of
the Aggregate Set)

2016 (Consolidated figure)



Balance sheet figures and alternative
performance measures

Changes

. . - (Net of the
Consolidated balance sheet figures (millions of euro) Aggregate Set)

amount %

Financial assets I 055,302 -4,862 -1.9
255,411
of which: Insurance Companies 152,578 10,035 7.0
142,543
_ 410,746

g 11,4 A

Loans to customers 364.713 ,459 3
796,861
Total assets 725138 21,716 3.0
. . . . I 423,474
Direct deposits from banking business 393.805 -6,410 -1.6
Direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves F 11‘&2;:; 8,305 5.8
. . 518,443
Indirect deposits: 468,855 34,057 7.3
. 337,998
of which: Assets under management 314,081 22,987 7.3
' f 56,205
Shareholders' equity F 48911 5,159 10.5
Main balance sheet figures by business area (millions of euro)
Loans to customers Direct deposits from banking business
196,814 . o 175,277
188317 Banca dei Territori 173,599
109,399 Corporate ar}d 111,940
98,183 Invest. Banking 112,661

International 35,538
Subsidiary Banks 32978
Private Bani 30,581
rivate Banking 27,540

Asset Management

Insurance

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations. The figures
concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have temporarily been allocated to the Corporate Centre and have not been restated.

31.12.2017

(Consolidated figure including the Aggregate Set) _

31.12.2016 (Consolidated figure)




Alternative performance measures and other measures

Consolidated capital ratios (%)

— 13.3

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) net of regulatory adjustments/Risk-

weighted assets (Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio)

12.7

TIER 1 Capital / Risk-weighted assets

I 5.2

13.9

Total own funds / Risk-weighted assets

17.0

I (7.9

Risk-weighted assets (millions of euro)

I 286,825

283,918

Absorbed capital (millions of euro)

Risk-weighted assets by sector
(millions of euro)

86,063 I

84,165
78,510 N
103,744
30,926 [N
30,013
10,138 R
9,727

1,130

Information on the stock

Number of ordinary shares (thousands)

Share price at period-end - ordinary share (euro)
Average share price for the period - ordinary share (euro)
Average market capitalisation (million)

Shareholders' equity (million)

Book value per share (euro) @
Long-term rating

Moody's

Standard & Poor's
Fitch

DBRS

Banca dei Territori

Corporate and
Invest. Banking

International
Subsidiary Banks

Private Banking

Asset Management

Insurance

I 31,294
30,865

Absorbed capital by sector
(millions of euro)

2017

15,859,787
2.770
2.678

44,820
56,205

3.376

2017

Baa1
BBB
BBB
BBB (high)

8,044
7,785

7,264
9,597

2016

15,859,787
2.426
2.220

37,152
48,911

2.941

2016

Baa1
BBB-
BBB+
A(low)

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations. The figures concerning
the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have temporarily been allocated to the Corporate Centre and have not been restated.

a
@ Book value per share does not consider treasury shares.

31.12.2017
(Consolidated figure including the Aggregate Set)

31.12.2016 (Consolidated figure)



Consolidated profitability ratios (%)

I 5O
Cost / Income @ 509
51.3
| - o ——RE
Net income / Shareholders' equity (ROE) 74
) © | 05
Net income / Total assets (ROA) 04

Earnings per share (euro)

Basic earnings per share (basic EPS) @) 018 044

Diluted earnings per share (diluted EPS) € 018 0.44
Consolidated risk ratios (%)

Net bad loans / Loans to customers u 3:1

Cumulated adjustments on bad loans / 63.1

Gross bad loans to customers 60.6

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the
Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

@ For 2017, the figure is net of the Aggregate Set.

® Ratio of net income to shareholders' equity at the end of the period. Net income for 2017 does not take account of the government contribution to
cover the impacts on the ratios of the acquisition of the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca. Shareholders' equity does not
take account of AT 1 capital instruments or the income for the period. In 2017 the previously mentioned government contribution is included. The figure
for 2016 was recalculated on a like-for-like basis.

()

@ Net income (loss) attributable to holders of ordinary shares compared to the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares. The figure for
comparison is not restated.

(e)

Ratio between net income and total assets.

The dilutive effect is calculated with reference to the programmed issues of new ordinary shares.

Operating structure 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
amount

Number of employees © 96,892 88,884 8,008
Italy 72,741 64,080 8,661
Abroad 24,151 24,804 -653
Number of financial advisors © 5,136 5,032 104
Number of branches 5,843 5,163 680
Italy 4,694 3,978 716
Abroad 1,149 1,185 -36

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

(e)The figures as at 31.12.2017 include the personnel of the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca (8,661 employees in Italy, 216
abroad and no financial advisor). The figures for comparison have not been restated.

® Including Retail Branches, SME Branches and Corporate Branches. The figures as at 31.12.2017 include the branches of the Aggregate Set of Banca

Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca (783 in Italy and 40 abroad). The figures for comparison have not been restated.

31.12.2017 (Consolidated figure including the Aggregate Set _
w here not specified otherw ise)

31.12.2016 (Consolidated figure)




Executive summary

Intesa Sanpaolo in 2017

Economic trends in 2017

In 2017, world economic growth strengthened its pace and became more widespread. Growth in international trade
intensified. Inflation rebounded, partly driven by the strong recovery in oil prices, but was still moderate. In the US, the
economy picked up again, pushing the unemployment rate below 4%. In addition, a tax reform was approved at the end of the
year, which could fuel stronger growth in domestic demand. In response to the increasing risk of the economy overheating,
the Federal Reserve tightened its monetary policy stance. Growth in the emerging economies also picked up pace, with Asia
continuing to be the most dynamic region. The recovery in oil and other commodity prices supported economic activity in Latin
America, which has come out of recession. In Central and South-Eastern Europe, GDP growth is estimated to have
accelerated, particularly in the Czech Republic, Hungary, Slovenia and Romania. The Eurozone witnessed stunning growth
during the year, far above the standards of recent years and the forecasts. Recoveries in exports and fixed investments more
than offset the marginal slowdown in consumption. Economic growth across all countries in the Eurozone drove employment
figures up and the unemployment rate down. Italy has also fully participated in the improved European economic climate and
the recovery underway. Increased confidence in the demand outlook has started to generate a recovery in investment. Year-
on-year GDP growth reached 1.7% in the third quarter and the consensus estimates for 2017 and 2018 have been revised
upwards. Employment growth continues to be sufficient to drive down the unemployment rate. In terms of public finances,
accelerating recovery in the primary budget surplus was insufficient to significantly lower the debt-to-GDP ratio, which is
practically unchanged according to the European Commission estimates.

The European Central Bank began to adapt its monetary policy stance to improvements in economic conditions and the
balance of risks. After an initial reduction in securities purchases from 80 to 60 billion euro, the ECB extended its purchase
programme to the period January-September 2018, though with a halved monthly volume. The ECB continues to forecast a
rise in official rates only once the asset purchase programme has been wound up. The monetary policy led to a strengthening
of the exchange rate and a rise in medium/long-term interest rates. The ten-year BTP yield rose slightly, ending the year at
2.0%, just above the level at the end of 2016 (1.83%). The spread with German bonds came under pressure for a short time
during the French electoral campaign, after which it fell to a low of 133 bps in December, ending 2017 at 157 bps. The
euro/dollar exchange rate rose between January and September, gaining 14% to end the year at 1.20.

In the ltalian banking system, bank interest rates continued to fall slightly. The average interest rate on new loans to
businesses remained stable until the summer and then fell moderately in the fourth quarter. Rates on mortgage loans to
households also reached new lows in the fourth quarter. In this context, lending rates continued to fall, although at a slower
pace than in the previous year. The cost of funding also continued to fall, due in part to the reduced weight of bonds.
However, the spread between lending and funding rates fell slightly in terms of annual averages.

Loans continued their moderate growth, again driven by mortgage loans to households for home purchase and consumer
credit. However, mortgage lending, despite remaining high, was down year-on-year. This trend was consistent with the more
moderate pace of residential property trading. Despite favourable credit conditions, loans to businesses remained
disappointing, slowed down by low financing requirements, partly satisfied through bond issues, with an improvement only
seen towards the end of the year. Non-performing loans decreased, thanks to the more favourable economic situation and the
sales and securitisations carried out by the banks. From the end of 2016 to November 2017, the stock of net bad loans fell by
21 billion euro, or 24%, and by over 1.2 percentage points in relation to total loans, to 3.7%. The formation rate for new non-
performing loans fell below pre-crisis levels. As regards funding, 2017 confirmed the previous trends of growth in deposits,
driven by current accounts, and fall in bonds, which are feeling the effects of investor portfolio reallocations. On the whole,
customer deposits remained stable compared to 2016. For assets under management, 2017 was a very good year for mutual
funds, whose inflows more than doubled compared to 2016, also thanks to the introduction of the individual savings plan
funds (Piani Individuali di Risparmio - PIR), which achieved considerable success.
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The results for 2017

The consolidated results for 2017 reflected the effects of the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities and certain legal
relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca. The figures and comments below refer to the components net
of the effects of the “Aggregate Set”, unless otherwise specified.

The income statement for the year closed with net income of 7,316 million euro (7,313 million euro net of the effects of the
acquired Aggregate Set).

The significant net income figure was in part due to the recognition, in June 2017, of the 3.5 billion euro public contribution
assigned by the Italian government to offset the impact on the Group's capital ratios of the acquisition of certain assets and
liabilities and certain legal relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca. The contribution will ensure a
phased-in Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio of 12.5% to the risk-weighted assets (RWA) of the Aggregate Set.

Net of the above public contribution, the consolidated net income for 2017 would have been 3,816 million euro, up by around
23% compared to 2016. This was despite the significant charges incurred to support the stability of the banking industry,
which in 2017 totalled 637 million euro (935 million before tax), compared to 559 million euro in 2016 (820 million before tax).
On the other hand, the recognition of the gain from the sale of Allfunds Bank had a positive impact of 802 million euro (811
million euro before tax).

Looking at the breakdown of the cost and revenue items —

Operating income without considering the contributions of the Aggregate Set

(milions of euro) — the income statement shows net interest income of 7,111

million euro (excluding 153 million euro relating to the

2017 2016 Aggregate Set), down on 2016 (-2.5%), essentially due to
the sharp fall in the differentials on hedging transactions

and lower interest on financial assets, which fully offset the

Fy I 777 Fy 16,975 positive performance of interest income on customer
dealing.

The contribution of net fee and commission income, which

4 I 4543 4Q 4184 makes up around 45% of operating income, increased

30 [ 4077 significantly (+5.5% to 7,735 million euro, excluding 108

g 3Q 4,150 million euro deriving from the Aggregate Set), thanks to the

20 [l 4348 2q 4464 positive performance of management, dealing, and

consultancy activities (+12%), attributable to the positive
performance of the various operations: dealing and
placement of securities (approximately +36%), portfolio
management (approximately +12%) and distribution of

o I 4200 1Q 4177

insurance products (approximately +9%).

Income from insurance business, which includes the cost and revenue captions of the insurance business of the Group’s life
and non-life companies, showed a decrease (approximately -6.2%, to 933 million euro), especially due to a lower contribution
from the net investment resuilt.

Profits on trading activities yielded an increase (approximately +13% to 1,341 million euro, excluding losses of 30 million euro
relating to the Aggregate Set) compared to the corresponding figure for 2016. This was primarily due to trading profits, partly
as a result of the gains on the sale of units of UCls (Undertakings for Collective Investment) and AFS securities and despite
the lower dividend received on the stake held in the Bank of Italy (from 121 million euro for 2016 to 10 million euro for 2017).

Other operating income (57 million euro, excluding

Operating margin 35 million euro relating to the Aggregate Set, compared to
(millions of euro) 165 million euro for 2016), was down due to the lower
contribution of investments carried at equity, which are
included in this caption together with other income and

2017 2016 expenses from continuing operations.
In relation to the above dynamics, operating income
Fy I /35 FY 8273 amounted to 17,177 milion euro, up 1.2% compared
to 2016.
Operating costs (8,739 million euro, excluding 471 million
s« I 2140 4Q 1,820 euro deriving from the Aggregate Set) were essentially
s N 1955 . stable (+0.4%), as a result of a slight increase in personnel
: 2,027 expenses (+1.2%) and a reduction in administrative
20 Il 2180 2Q 2,303 expenses (-2.4%), mainly due to the savings achieved on
general structure costs and other costs.
10 Il 215 1Q 2123 Conversely, amortisation and depreciation increased

(+4.9%), due to amortisation of intangible assets as a
result of investments made.

The cost/income ratio for the year, excluding the contribution of the Aggregate Set, was 50.9% compared to 51.3% for 2016.
As a result of the revenue and cost performance, the operating margin amounted to 8,438 million euro (excluding the negative
contribution of 205 million euro deriving from the Aggregate Set), up 2% on the previous year.

Net adjustments to loans decreased (approximately -12.3%, to 3,253 million euro, excluding 51 million euro relating to the
Aggregate Set), primarily due to lower net adjustments on unlikely-to-pay loans. The annualised cost of credit — expressed as
the ratio of net adjustments to net loans — decreased (80 bps) and was much lower than the value at the end of 2016
(102 bps).
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Net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets decreased significantly overall compared to 2016 (215 million euro
compared to 422 million euro). More specifically, there was a decrease in net provisions (around -16% to 148 million euro) as
well as in net impairment losses on assets other than loans (67 million euro compared to 245 million euro).

Other income includes realised gains and losses on investments and income and expenses not strictly correlated to
continuing operation and amounted to 4,746 million euro (355 million euro in 2016). As reported above, the figure includes the
3.5 billion euro public contribution assigned by the Italian government to offset the impact on the Group's capital ratios of the
acquisition of certain assets and liabilities and certain legal relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca.
The contribution will ensure a phased-in Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio of 12.5% to the risk-weighted assets (RWA) of the
Aggregate Set. Net of that contribution, the amount of this caption is 1,246 million euro and includes the gain on the sale of
Allfunds Bank (811 million euro) and the positive effect from the disposal of a stake in NTV (Nuovo Trasporto Viaggiatori) and
the fair value measurement of the remaining stake (109 million euro) and the investment in Bank of Qingdao (190 million
euro), no longer included under entities subject to significant influence.

During the year, there was no profit or loss from discontinued operations, compared to the profit of 952 million euro realised in
2016 and related to Setefi and ISP Card.

As a result of the trends described above, gross income amounted to 9,716 million euro (excluding the negative contribution
of 259 million euro deriving from the Aggregate Set) compared to 5,450 million euro for 2016, up by around 14% excluding
the above-mentioned public contribution and the contribution of the Aggregate Set.

Taxes on income came to 1,553 million euro, with a tax rate of 16% (25% excluding the public contribution received, as
reported above).

Charges for integration and exit incentives were recorded in a specific caption for a total of 121 million euro (150 million euro
in 2016), excluding charges of 179 million euro deriving from the Aggregate Set and relating to the amount by which the
estimated integration costs exceeded the public contribution received, as well as from a fund created for Group customers
who lost part of their savings on their investments in the shares of the former Venetian banks.

This reclassified income statement caption also includes,
Net income (loss) net of tax, the 1,285 million euro public contribution
(arilIions et assigned by the ltalian government to cover integration
and rationalisation charges in relation to the Aggregate Set
2017 2016 of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca, as well
as the provisions allocated to cover the related charges.
Fy I 313 Fy 3111 The economic effects of price purchase allocation
’ amounted to -51 million euro in 2017 compared to -112
million euro in 2016 (327 million euro taking into account

4Q I 1344 4Q 776 the positive effect of 378 million euro relating to the
3 W 731 3Q 1 es recognition of badwill of million euro 363 million euro,
following the Purchase Price Allocation (PPA) required by

20 I 4, g ;
i Q| oo IFRS 3 on the assets and liabilities acquired from the
10 W 901 1Q 806 Venetian banks, and the effects pertaining to the second

half of 2017 (15 million euro) connected to the amortisation
of the differences between the fair value and the book
value identified as a result of the aforementioned PPA.

As previously indicated, and also excluding the effects of the Aggregate Set (12 million euro), the charges aimed at
maintaining the stability of the banking industry had an extensive impact. These amounted to 637 million euro for the Group,
net of tax (935 million euro before tax) compared to 559 million euro in 2016 (820 million before tax), and consisted of
charges for ordinary contributions to resolution and deposit guarantee funds (198 million euro net of tax, equal to 284 million
euro before tax), charges deriving from the further impairment of the Atlante Fund investment (301 million euro net of tax,
equal to 449 million euro before tax), as well as charges relating to Cassa di Risparmio di Cesena, Cassa di Risparmio di
Rimini and Cassa di Risparmio di San Miniato, whose restructuring was approved by the Management Board of the Voluntary
Scheme for the purpose of their subsequent sale to Cariparma (103 million euro net of tax, equal to 154 million euro before
tax).

After recording minority interests of 41 million euro, the income statement for 2017 closed with net income of 7,313 million
euro (7,316 million euro including the effect of the Aggregate Set), compared to 3,111 million euro for 2016.

The income statement for the fourth quarter of 2017, in comparison to the previous quarter, and net of the effect of the
Aggregate Set, shows an increase in operating income (+11.4% to 4,543 million euro). In detail, net interest income for the
fourth quarter was substantially in line with the third quarter (-0.4%), essentially due to the positive performance of customer
dealing which more than offset the fall in interest on financial assets and non-performing assets, while net fee and
commission income showed significant growth (approximately +11%) largely attributable to higher commissions on
management, dealing and consulting activities, but also due to higher contributions from commercial banking activities and
other net fee and commission income.

Income from insurance business in the fourth quarter of 2017 showed a decline compared to the third quarter (approximately -
19%), and was driven down by the lower technical margin, which was only partially offset by an improved net
investment result.

As regards trading, the figure for the fourth quarter (542 million euro) showed a significant increase compared to the third
quarter (208 million euro) partly related to the sale of several AFS securities.

Operating costs for the fourth quarter were up compared to the third quarter (approximately +13%) with increases in
personnel expenses (around +11%, mainly attributable to the variable component), as well as administrative expenses
(approximately +18%, related to seasonality effects)

In relation to revenue and cost trends, the operating margin for the fourth quarter was higher than the margin in the third

quarter (approximately +10% to 2,140 million euro).



Report on operations — Executive Summary

Net adjustments to loans in the fourth quarter were significantly higher than in the third quarter (1,175 million euro compared
to 646 million euro). Net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets increased as well.

Other income in the fourth quarter amounted to 861 million euro compared to 72 million euro for the third quarter, essentially
attributable to the gain recognised on the sale of Allfunds Bank (811 million euro).

After the recognition of taxes on income (290 million euro), charges for integration and exit incentives (48 million euro), the
effects of purchase price allocation (14 million euro), levies and other net charges concerning the banking industry (+2 million
euro), as well as minority interests (2 million euro), the income statement for the fourth quarter closed with net income of
1,344 million euro (1,428 million euro including the effect of the Aggregate Set, which was positive by 84 million euro),
compared to 731 million euro for the previous quarter.

Loans to customers
(millions of euro)

31.12.2017

311247 | 0,745 311216

(%) 30917 NN 390818 30916
* 30617 NN 303517 306.16
(*) 31317 I 306648 31316

(*) Consolidated figure including the Aggregate Set

31.12.2016

364,713

364,836

360,240

358,478

and liabilities.

Direct deposits from banking business

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017

31.12.201

311247 I - 2: 474 31.12.16
*) 30917 NG i s,207 30.9.16
(*) s06.17 NN /12067 306.16
* 31317 [N :::3:0 31346

(*) Consolidated figure including the Aggregate Set

6

393,805
379,631
386,769

379,996

Direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017

311217 [ 152403 311216
30.9.17 |G 140955 30.9.16
306.17 NN 1:7755 306.16
31317 | 1295 31.3.16

31.12.2016

144,098
143,063
139,535

136,056

With regard to balance sheet aggregates, as at
31 December 2017, loans to customers of the Group —
including the amounts related to the Aggregate Set of the
former Venetian Banks — reached 411 billion euro, up 3.1%
on a like-for-like basis (i.e. excluding the Aggregate Set).
This was due to the positive performance of commercial
banking loans (+16.5 billion euro, or +5.7%) and reverse
repurchase agreements (+1.5 billion euro), only partly
offset by the decline in loans represented by securities
(-1.6 billion euro) and non-performing loans (-4.9 billion
euro). Commercial banking loans also benefited from the
inclusion within this caption of the loan granted by Intesa
Sanpaolo to the former Venetian Banks in compulsory
administrative liquidation for a total amount of 6.4 billion
euro, to cover the imbalance between the acquired assets

Total direct deposits from banking business — including the
amounts deriving from the Aggregate Set of the former
Venetian Banks — amounted to 423 billion euro: on a like-
for-like basis (i.e. excluding the Aggregate Set), direct
deposits were down by 6.4 billion euro (-1.6%) compared
to the end of December 2016, with varying performance
among the main deposit types. In particular, there were
decreases in bonds (-22.2%) and in repurchase
agreements (-23.8%). In contrast, there were increases in
current accounts and deposits (+5.3%) and, albeit on
smaller absolute values, in other deposits (around +22%)
and certificates of deposit (around +24%).

Direct deposits from insurance business, which include
technical reserves, were also up and amounted to 152
billion euro at the end of December 2017 (+5.8%
compared to 31 December 2016). The more performing
component is represented by the financial liabilities of the
insurance business designated at fair value, which grew by
11 billion euro (+19.2%), entirely as a result of the
contribution from unit-linked products. Conversely,
technical reserves, which constitute the amounts owed to
customers subscribing to traditional policies or policies with
significant insurance risk, decreased by 3.1% since the
beginning of the year, due to the decrease in mathematical
reserves and other reserves of the life insurance business.
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As at 31 December 2017, indirect deposits — including the contribution of the former Venetian banks — amounted to 518 billion
euro, up by 34.1 billion euro (+7.3%) compared to the end of 2016 on a like-for-like basis (i.e. excluding the Aggregate Set).
Given the favourable conditions of the financial markets, the performance was determined by the increase in both assets
under management, mainly driven by mutual funds and insurance segment products, and assets under administration.

Assets under management increased (annual change of +7.3%, excluding the Aggregate Set), mainly due to the performance
of net inflows.

In particular, mutual funds increased (excluding the Aggregate Set, +12.7 billion euro, or 12%). Insurance products posted an
increase of 7.8 billion euro (+5.9%). In 2017, the new life business of Intesa Sanpaolo Vita (including Intesa Sanpaolo Life)
and Fideuram Vita, including pension products, amounted to 22.3 billion euro.

Portfolio management schemes and pension funds also posted growth (+1.9 billion euro and +0.7 billion euro, respectively).
Dealings with institutional customers were essentially stable.

Assets under administration recorded an increase of 11.1 billion euro net of the Aggregate Set (+7.2%), attributable to
securities and third-party products in customer portfolios and dealings with institutional customers.

Results of the Business Units

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group organisational structure is based on six business segments: Banca dei Territori, Corporate and
Investment Banking, International Subsidiary Banks, Asset Management, Private Banking and Insurance. In addition, there is
the Corporate Centre - which is responsible for guidance, coordination and control of the entire Group - as well as for the
Capital Light Bank (CLB) business unit, and the Treasury and ALM operations.

The share of operating income attributable to each business area confirms that commercial banking activities in Italy continue
to account for the majority (approximately 50% of the operating income of the business areas), although significant
contributions were also provided by corporate and investment banking (approximately 19%), commercial banking activity
abroad (approximately 11%), private banking activity (10%), insurance activity (approximately 6%) and asset management
(approximately 4%).

Division figures for the comparative periods have been restated to reflect the changes in scope of the Business Units,
where necessary. With regard to the former Venetian banks, the income statement contribution for the second half of 2017
and the balance sheet balances as at 31 December 2017 are temporarily allocated in full to the “Corporate Centre (Aggregate
Set)” and will be broken down into the various divisions once the processes are integrated starting from 2018.

Operating income:
Breakdow n by business area ()

B Asset
Management, Insurance
4.4% ’
B Private ’ 6.0%
Banking,
10.4%
¥ International
Subsidiary
Banks, 10.9%
Corporate
and
Investment
Banking,
18.7%
° Banca dei
Of which Capital Market Territori,
and InvestmentBarking 49.6%

7.2%

(1) Excluding Corporate Centre
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(millions of euro)
In 2017, Banca dei Territori — which oversees the

traditional lending and deposit collecting activities in ltaly
and related financial services — reported operating income
of 8,884 million euro, which represents over half the
I s ss4 Group’s consolidated revenues, up 3% compared to the
8,625 previous year. In further detail, there was an increase in
net fee and commission income (+8.7%), mostly on those
coming from the asset management segment and
I o7 protection products.
3,681 Net interest income recorded a decline (-2.1%) driven by
the lower contribution from the hedging of core deposits.
Among the other revenue components, other net operating
Net income (loss) [ 1,371 income showed positive performance, while profits on
1,812 trading were essentially stable (-1.4%). Operating costs,
equal to 4,907 million euro, were down slightly on 2016
(-0.7%) due to the savings on administrative expenses and
m2017 m2016 on personnel expenses. The operating margin amounted
to 3,977 million euro (+8%). In contrast, gross income, at
2,328 million euro, was down (-10%), despite lower
adjustments to loans, due to the lack of extraordinary
income recognised in 2016 related to the sale of the investment in VISA Europe and the sale of Setefi. After taxes of 909
million euro, charges for integration of 45 million euro and the effects of purchase price allocation for 3 million euro, the
Division's net income was 1,371 million euro (-24.3%).
Loans to customers of the Banca dei Territori Division came to 196,814 million euro at the end of 2017, up (+8.5 billion euro,
or 4.5%) essentially as a result of the increase in medium/long-term loans.
Direct deposits from banking business, equal to 175,277 million euro, were up 1% on the end of December 2016 thanks to the
increase in amounts due to customers, mainly in the personal and corporate segments, which more than offset the fall in
bonds.

Operating income

Operating mamgin

(millions of euro)  In 2017, the Corporate and Investment Banking Division —
which deals with corporate banking, investment banking
and public finance in Italy and abroad — posted a slight fall
in operating income compared to 2016 (-1.3% to 3,341

million euro).
[ _ 3,341 In detail, net interest income was up (+10% to 1,592 million
Operating income 3,385 euro), mainly due to the greater contribution from customer

dealing. Net fee and commission income was down

(-16.7% to 925 million euro) mainly due to the performance

: . _ 2,357 of the commercial banking and investment banking

Operating margin 2,428 segment. Profits on trading (805 million euro) were

substantially stable. Operating costs were up (+2.8% to

984 million euro), primarily due to higher personnel

B s expenses as a result of the increase in the average

1,448 workforce.

As a result of the revenue and cost dynamics described,

the operating margin came to 2,357 million euro (-2.9%).

However, gross income, equal to 2,287 million euro, was

up (+8%), due to lower adjustments to loans, as well as the

proceeds from the partial disposal of the stake in NTV and

the fair value measurement of the remaining equity

investment following its reclassification under companies not subject to significant influence. The Division’s income statement

closed with net income of 1,615 million euro (+11.5%).

With regard to intermediated volumes, loans to customers, totalling 109,399 million euro at the end of December 2017, were

up by 11.2 billion euro (+11.4%) year-on-year, partly due to increased levels of repo transactions by Banca IMI, while direct
deposits from banking business, at 111,940 million euro, remained essentially stable (-0.6%).

Net income (loss)

w2017 = 2016
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The International Subsidiary Banks Division is responsible
(millions of euro)  for the Group’s activities in foreign markets through

. - commercial banking subsidiaries and associates, mainly
International SubS|d|ary Banks active in retail banking. In 2017, the operating income
came to 1,948 million euro, down 2.7% compared to the
previous year, attributable to the effects of the devaluation
I 1,948 of the Egyptian pound. In detail, net interest income came
2,002 to 1,346 million euro, representing a fall (-5.7%), while net
fee and commission income, at 493 million euro, was up
(+2.1%). Profits on trading, amounting to 177 million euro,
Operating margin - 1,010 were up significantly (+63..9.%).
1,040 Operating costs of 938 million euro were down (-2.5%). As
a result of the above revenue and cost trends, the
operating margin came to 1,010 million euro (-2.9%). Gross
Net income (loss) B s income, amounting to 1,006 million euro, increased
703 (+10.2%), benefiting from the positive effect deriving from
the measurement at fair value of the investment in Bank of
Qingdao as a consequence of the reclassification of the
investment, no longer included among the entities subject
to significant influence.
The Division closed 2017 with net income of 827 million
euro, up compared to 703 million euro for 2016 (+17.6%).
The Division’s intermediated volumes grew compared to the end of December 2016 (+7.9%) owing to positive performance of
loans to customers (+8.1%) and direct deposits from banking business (+7.8%), in both amounts due to customers and
securities issued.

Operating income

w2017 22016

(millions of euro) The Private Banking Division serves the top customer

. . segment (Private and High Net Worth Individuals), creating

Private Banklng value by offering excellent products and services. The

Division coordinates the operations of Fideuram, Fideuram

Investimenti, Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking, Sirefid,

[ ] 1,879 Fideuram Fiduciaria, Intesa Sanpaolo Private Bank

1,740 (Suisse) and Fideuram Asset Management Ireland.

In 2017, gross income amounted to 1,308 million euro, an

increase (+12%) on the previous year, mainly as a result of

Operating margin - 1,328 higher operating income, particularly net fee and

1,206 commission income, as well as lower provisions.

Operating costs moved in the opposite direction

(approximately +3%), due to the increase in personnel

Net income (loss) Bl s expenses related to the strengthening of the workforce,

710 only partially offset by a reduction in administrative

expenses. Net income was 879 million euro (+169 million

euro, or +23.8%).

As at 31 December 2017, assets under administration,

which also include the contribution of the trust mandates

for Sirefid, amounted to 182.7 billion euro (+16.7 billion

euro compared to the end of 2016). That performance was

due to higher net inflows and, to a lesser extent, the effect of performance on assets. The assets under management
component amounted to 114.7 billion euro, up by 10.5 billion euro (+10.1%) compared to 31 December 2016.

Operating income

w2017 22016
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The Asset Management Division — whose mission is to
(millions of euro) develop asset management solutions aimed at the Group’s
customers and its presence on the open market segment
Asset Management through the subsidiary Eurizon Capital and its investees —
posted operating income of 785 million euro in 2017, up on
2016 (+21.3%) thanks to the strong performance of net fee
Operating income B s and commission income (+26.6%).
647 Operating costs rose (+11.3%) due to personnel and
administrative expenses, as a result of the change in the
operational structures triggered by the increase in volumes
Operating margin Bl o under management, as set out in the Division's
506 development plan.

As a result of the revenue and cost trends, the operating

margin came to 628 million euro, up 24.1%. The Division
Net income (loss) - 493 closed the income statement for 2017 with net income of

357 493 million euro (+38.1%).

The assets managed by the Division totalled 253 billion
euro at the end of 2017, an increase (+6%) on the end of
2016, mainly as a result of net inflows (+10.2 billion euro),
especially in the mutual funds component (+9.8 billion
euro), which more than offset the outflows relating to the
retail sale of portfolio management schemes (-1.2 billion

w2017 22016

euro).

The Insurance Division oversees management of the
(millions of euro) subsidiaries of the insurance group Intesa Sanpaolo Vita,
and Fideuram Vita, with the mission of further developing

the insurance product mix targeting Group customers.
In 2017, the Division reported income from insurance
business of 1,077 million euro, showing a decline (-8.7%)
Operating income I 1 067 compared to the previous year, primarily due to the lower

1,172 contribution of the financial component.
In the presence of an increase in operating costs, due to
personnel expenses as a result of the higher average
Operating margin B sso workforce associated with business development, income
999 before tax from continuing operations stood at 887 million
euro, a decrease of 121 million euro (-12%) compared to
2016. The income statement closed with net income of 613
Net income (loss) L GE million euro (-8.4%).

669 Direct deposits from insurance business, amounting to
152,691 million euro, increased by 8.4 billion euro (+5.8%)
compared to the end of December 2016, as a result of
higher financial liabilities for the insurance segment

W2017 m2016 designated at fair value.

Highlights

Acquisition of certain assets, liabilities and relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza in compulsory administrative
liquidation and Veneto Banca in compulsory administrative liquidation

Description of the transaction

Effective as of 26 June 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo (ISP) signed a business sale contract with the liquidators of Banca Popolare di
Vicenza (BPVi) and Veneto Banca (VB) - the “Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation” - concerning the acquisition, for
a token price of one euro, of certain assets and liabilities and certain legal relationships (hereinafter also the Aggregate Set)
of the two Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation (the “Contract”). On 25 June 2017, the two banks had been placed
under the compulsory administrative liquidation proceedings, as envisaged by the Consolidated Law on Banking in
accordance with Decree Law 99 of 25 June 2017 concerning “Urgent provisions for the compulsory administrative liquidation
proceedings of Banca Popolare di Vicenza S.p.A. and Veneto Banca S.p.A.” (Venetian Banks Decree), converted into Law
121 of 31 July 2017.

ISP was awarded the contract through an open and transparent procedure involving several potential buyers. The outcome of
the competitive procedure was announced on 21 June 2017. The process led to the submission of two bindingoffers. Intesa
Sanpaolo’s offer proved the better of the two in its ability to ensure business continuity and minimise the components left with
the two banks in compulsory administrative liquidation.

Under the terms of the Contract — which require the existence of several essential elements, also after its execution, including
the regulatory framework forming the basis of the transaction — ISP acquired an Aggregate Set, which does not include the
liabilities indicated in Article 52, paragraph 1, letter a), points i), ii), iii), and iv) of Legislative Decree 180/2015, the non-
performing loans (bad loans, unlikely-to-pay loans and past-due exposures), the amounts payable to the shareholders and
the subordinate bondholders of the former Venetian banks resulting from the sale of those financial instruments, as well as all
the shareholdings (except for some specifically identified holdings), the negative effects arising after the sale originating from
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disputes related to events or circumstances that occurred prior to the sale, and the other assets and liabilities and legal
relationships not identified in the Contract as “Included Assets” and “Included Liabilities”. With specific regard to the
investments, the Aggregate Set, subject to receipt of the related authorisations, includes the investmentsin Banca Apulia
S.p.A. (excluding its investments in Apulia Pronto Prestito S.p.A. and Apulia Previdenza S.p.A.), in Banca Nuova S.p.A,, in
SEC Servizi S.c.p.a., in Servizi Bancari S.c.p.a., and in the former subsidiary banks of Veneto Banca based in Moldova,
Croatia and Albania.
The Aggregate Set also includes high-risk performing loans of around 3.7 billion euro. However, ISP will have the right to give
these back to the banks in compulsory administrative liquidation, should conditions occur, during the period up to the approval
of the financial statements as at 31 December 2020, requiring that these loans be classified as bad loans or unlikely-to-pay
loans. As mentioned, the Aggregate Set does not include the entire portfolio of non-performing loans (bad loans, unlikely-to-
pay loans, and past due exposures) of the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation and of the investees acquired
by ISP.

Given that the Aggregate Set does not include the entire shareholders' equity of the Banks in compulsory administrative

liquidation, the accounting recognition of the assets and liabilities transferred included a “balancing” entry in the form of a

receivable from the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation (referred to as the “Imbalance of the Aggregate Set”),

which was later converted into a loan secured by the government up to a maximum amount of 6,351 million euro (to be repaid
over 5 years at an interest rate of 1%) granted by ISP to the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation.

The terms and conditions of the contract, in the framework set by the Decree Law and the ministerial decrees issued in

relation to the transaction, require that the acquisition by ISP must be fully neutral in terms of the ISP Group’s Common Equity

Tier 1 ratio and dividend policy. Specifically, they provide for:

a public cash contribution to cover the impact on the capital ratios, leading to a phased-in Common Equity Tier 1 ratio of
12.5% to risk-weighted assets (RWA) acquired. This contribution, which amounts to 3,500 million euro not subject to
taxation, was recorded as income in the income statement, in accordance with IAS 20, and was assigned to ISP on
26 June 2017;

— an additional public cash contribution to cover integration and rationalisation charges in relation to the acquisition. These
charges include, in line with the commitments undertaken by ISP with the Directorate-General for Competition of the
European Commission, those relating to the closure of around 600 branches and the use of the solidarity allowance
mechanism in relation to the exit, on a voluntary basis, of around 3,900 people of the Group resulting from the
acquisition. These charges also relate to other actions to be taken to safeguard jobs, such as redeploying and retraining
people. Also this contribution, which amounts to 1,285 million euro not subject to taxation, was recorded as income in the
income statement, in accordance with IAS 20, and was assigned on 26 June 2017. This amount was set aside in a
specific fund, considering the tax effects related to its use, and is therefore neutral for the year’s net income;

—  public guarantees, for a maximum amount equal to the sum of 1,500 million euro plus the result of the difference
between the value of the past disputes of the entities in liquidation, as indicated in the case documents, and the related
risk provision, up to a maximum of 491 million euro, aimed at neutralising the risks, obligations and commitments
resulting from the breach of the representations and warranties made by the Banks in compulsory administrative
liquidation. Under the Contract, the transfer to ISP does not include the disputes and the liability in relation to the sale of
shares or subordinated and/or convertible bonds, including those brought by parties who participated/did not participate
in, or were excluded from the so-called “Offers for Settlement” and from the “Welfare Incentives”.

Decree Law 99/2017 introduced specific tax rules governing the transfer to ISP of the assets and liabilities of BPVi and VB.
The rules are substantially designed to ensure for the acquiring bank a limited “continuity” in the tax treatment of the
subjective positions of the sellers (as regard tax credits from the conversion of Deferred Tax Assets (DTAs), the tax value of
the assets, liabilities, and rights included in the sets acquired, income components with deferred taxation, tax losses, and the
guarantee fees for non-eligible DTAs), and the “neutrality” of transfers and public contributions, as a result of which they will
not generate tax liabilities for the acquiring bank. Specifically:

— assets and liabilities, including tax assets and tax liabilities, are transferred to the acquirer at the tax value they had for
the sellers (in practice, at the effective date of the transfer, the acquirer is assigned the same tax position held by
the sellers);

— the DTAs of the selling banks are also transferred to the acquirer, except for those strictly and specifically connected to
assets/liabilities not included in the Aggregate Set, along with the tax credits resulting from converted DTAs;

— similarly, the tax losses of the sellers are transferred to the acquirer;

— the transfer of the assets and liabilities is not subject to VAT and subject to a fixed registration, mortgage and cadastral
tax of 200 euro;

— the contributions paid to the acquirer by the Ministry for the Economy and Finance to cover the capital requirement
generated by the acquisition and support corporate restructuring measures are non-taxable for IRES and IRAP
purposes, whereas the expenses incurred by the acquiring bank for the aforementioned restructuring will be deductible
for tax purposes.

As regards anti-trust authorisations, on 10 July 2017 the Italian Competition Authority announced its decision not to
investigate the arrangement, thereby authorising the deal.

With regard to the investments included in the Aggregate Set, it should be noted that the timing for the formulation of the offer
and the execution of the Contract did not allow the Parties to request and obtain the necessary authorisations from the
European Central Bank for the transfer of control by the execution date. As at 31 December 2017, authorisations had been
received for all the subsidiaries included in the Aggregate Set, except for Eximbank (Moldova): a local legislative measure
aimed at facilitating the sale of the NPLs of that subsidiary to VB in compulsory administrative liquidation came into force in
January 2018; in the absence of the sale of the NPLs (which is still subject to the satisfaction of several conditions precedent)
the change of ownership cannot be registered, which under the local legislation would allow the new owner to exercise the
rights as shareholder and therefore of control over the company.

Accordingly, as at 31 December 2017, Eximbank was recognised under the investments that are not consolidated on a line-

by-line basis.
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To determine the final imbalance of the Aggregate Set and definitively calculate the amount of the public contribution paid by
the government, the Ministry for the Economy and Finance and ISP appointed a board of three independent experts, selected
in accordance with the Venetian Banks Decree, which conducted the due diligence envisaged by the Decree and the Contract
of 26 June 2017.

Law 121 of 31 July 2017 converted the Venetian Banks Decree, without any substantial amendments. As a result, the
termination clause was cancelled, according to which the contract would have been ineffective and the assets/liabilities/legal
relationships acquired would have needed to be returned to the banks in compulsory administrative liquidation, if the Venetian
Banks Decree had not been converted into law, or it was converted with amendments and/or integrations that made the
transaction more onerous for ISP, and was not fully enacted within the time limits set by law.

Due diligence in accordance with the Contract and Acknowledgement Agreements

As mentioned above, the Contract signed on 26 June 2017 provided for the appointment, by the Banks in compulsory
administrative liquidation jointly with ISP, of a board of three independent experts (the “Panel of Experts”), engaged to
conduct a specific due diligence review for the purpose of producing a precise inventory of the assets and liabilities included
in the Aggregate Set transferred to ISP, and determining the final Imbalance and therefore the amount of the Loan from ISP
to the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation.

The Panel of Experts, whose work should have been completed by 30 September (deadline later extended to 15 November
2017), was established at the beginning of September 2017.

Due to the complexity of the survey and analysis work for the due diligence by the Panel of Experts, a longer period of time
was needed for its completion. Specifically, the Panel of Experts completed its work and notified the Parties of the
determination of the Imbalance of the Aggregate Set on 21 December 2017.

On 4 February 2018, the Panel of Experts issued its final report on the due diligence review, which, as envisaged by the
Contract, contained the precise and detailed inventory of the entries constituting the final accounting position of the assets
and liabilities included in the Aggregate Set at the date of execution. The content of the report confirmed the information
already provided to the Parties on 21 December 2017.

During the course of its work, the Panel of Experts submitted to the Parties several queries and possible interpretations of the
Contract in relation to aspects that had arisen during the due diligence review.

In order to clarify these aspects between the Parties, an Acknowledgement Agreement of the Contract (the “First
Acknowledgement Agreement”) was signed on 19 December 2017.

In view of the fact that the Liquidators of the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation are required to submit the deeds
of sale of assets and liabilities (and any subsequent amendments to those deeds) and, in any case, the deeds of special
administration referred to in Article 35 of the Bankruptcy Law (including any settlement-related deeds) to prior authorisation by
the Bank of Italy, with the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the First Acknowledgement Agreement was subject to the
condition precedent of obtaining the related necessary opinions, consents and authorisations on or before 10 January 2018.
This condition was satisfied on 10 January 2018 and the First Acknowledgement Agreement thus became fully effective.

The Imbalance, determined following the due diligence, amounted to 6,403 million euro, and, after the additional subsequent
transfer of several marginal entries to the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation, the final Imbalance came to 6,400
million euro, as shown in the overall statement of financial position for the Aggregate Set presented below:

(millions of euro)

ASSETS LIABILITIES

Financial assets held for trading 2,079 Due to banks 10,386

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss 2 Due to customers and securities issued 36,050

Financial assets available for sale 4,579 Financial liabilities held for trading 1,476

Investments held to maturity 1,103 Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit 184
and loss

Due from banks 3,795 Tax liabilities 108

Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale
Loans to customers 28,583 . . X 0
and discontinued operations

Investments in associates and companies subject to joint control 2 Other liabilities 1,815
Property, equipment and intangible assets 349 Technical reserves 0
Tax assets 1,982 Allowances for specific purpose 147
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations 0 Investees shareholders' equity items 9
Other assets 1,300

Total assets (A) 43,774 Total liabilities (B) 50,174
Final Imbalance (B) - (A) 6,400

The amounts shown above do not take account of the adjustments and reclassifications made upon the Purchase Price
Allocation (PPA) in accordance with IFRS 3, details of which are provided below.

In addition, compared to the figures shown in the table above, the assets and liabilities of the Aggregate Set included in ISP’s
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2017 include accounting figures, for a total amount of 14 million euro,
which the due diligence had established as belonging to the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation, for which the
related transfers had not yet become effective at the year end.

These accounting figures, largely related to NPLs of the international subsidiaries in the Group’s financial statements as at
31 December 2017, were reclassified to “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” in accordance with
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guidelines provided in IFRS 5, because they were transferred to the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation after the
year end.

In addition, as specified above, the Aggregate Set consolidated as at 31 December 2017 did not take account of the transfer
of the assets and liabilities of Eximbank (Moldova), which the due diligence had allocated to the Bank in compulsory
administrative liquidation for a net book value of 33 million euro, because the authorisation process was still underway at the
end of the year. As at 31 December 2017, Eximbank was recognised under the investments not consolidated on a line-by-line
basis.

The tables below show the reconciliation between the assets and liabilities of the Aggregate Set, based on the results of the
due diligence conducted by the Panel of Experts, and the assets and liabilities of the former Venetian banks considered as

the “Aggregate Set” for the reclassified balance sheet presented in the Report on operations.
(millions of euro)

Assets Aggregate Loan ification of ification ifications Aggregate
Set to the banks in contribution  assets/liabilities of high-risk for Set
post compulsory Eximbank to be transferred loans accounting/repor Figure
due diligence ini: i ( ) back (A ting standards
liquidation alignment
(to offset the
Imbalance)
Financial assets held for trading 2,079 - - - - -6 2,073
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss 2 - - - 2
Financial assets available for sale 4,579 - -4 - - 1,103 5,678
Investments held to maturity 1,103 - - - - -1,103 -
Due from banks 3,795 - -26 - - - 3,769
Loans to customers 28,583 6,400 -81 -14 -314 - 34,574
Investments in associates and companies subject to joint control 2 - 62 - - - 64
Property, equipment and intangible assets 349 - -19 - - - 330
Tax assets 1,982 - - - - - 1,982
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations - - - 14 314 - 328
Other assets 1,300 - -99 - - 6 1,207
Imbalance 6,400 -6,400 - - - - -
Total Assets 50,174 - -167 - - - 50,007
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity Aggregate Loan Ri ification of ificati ificati Aggregate
Set to the banks in contribution  assets/liabilities of high-risk for Set
post compulsory Eximbank to be transferred loans accounting/repor Figure
due diligence ini: i back (A ting standards
liquidation alignment
(to offset the
Imbalance)
Due to banks 10,386 - -10 - 10,376
Due to customers and securities issued 36,050 - -155 - - 184 36,079
Financial liabilities held for trading 1,476 - - - - 65 1,541
Fil ial liabilities designated at fair value th h profit and
inancial liabilities designated at fair value through profit ani 184 R : } ) 184 R
loss
Tax liabilities 108 - -1 - - - 107

Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

Other liabilities 1,814 - -1 - - -65 1,748
Technical reserves - - - - - - -

Allowances for specific purpose 147 - - - - - 147
Investees shareholders' equity items 9 - - - - - 9
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 50,174 - -167 - - - 50,007

The figures shown in the tables above do not take account of the adjustments made during the PPA in accordance with
guidelines provided in IFRS 3.

For completeness, you are reminded that the first accounting recognition of the Aggregate Set transferred to ISP took place in
the Group Half-yearly Report at 30 June 2017. At that time, it was noted that the values of the assets and liabilities acquired,
together with the amount of the contribution to cover the impacts on the capital ratios, were to be considered as provisional,
because the verification of the balance sheet figures transferred to ISP was still underway as at that date. In addition, as at
30 June 2017, the figures referring to the former Venetian banks recognised in the accounts did not include the transfer of the
subsidiaries of BPVi and VB included in the Aggregate Set, because ISP had not yet received the necessary authorisations
from the competent authorities as at that date.

The high-risk loans

The Contract identifies high-risk loans as the positions that at the date of execution were classified or classifiable, by the
former Venetian banks, as “Retail and SME loans” with a PD of over 4.25% and “Corporate loans” with a PD of over 8.50%.
Without prejudice to the inclusion within the high-risk loans of the positions already classified as such by the Banks in
compulsory administrative liquidation or by the subsidiaries at the date of execution, additional performing loans included in
the Aggregate Set were identified, based on particular criteria, that were classifiable as high-risk loans. These related to
positions that did not have a rating or required a downgrade of the rating assigned, because the level of risk of certain
counterparties had not been fully recorded and/or updated due to the incomplete implementation of the rating systems and
processes.

The Panel of Experts completed the checks on the loans classifiable as high-risk on 21 December 2017 and identified an
overall scope of high-risk loans with a net value of 3,692 million euro.

Please note that, under the terms of the Contract, ISP has the right to transfer the high-risk loans reclassified as “bad loans”
and “unlikely-to-pay loans” back to the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation (with a specific guarantee from the
government), up to the date of approval of the financial statements at 31 December 2020, for an amount equal to the gross
book value of the reclassified high risk-loans, net of (i) provisions at the date of execution and (ii) 50% of the value
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adjustments that, based on the IAS/IFRS, ISP would have been required to make if the obligation for the purchase of the
related loans by the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation had not existed.

The high-risk loans reclassified as “bad loans” and/or “unlikely-to-pay loans” by the end of 2017, which will be transferred
back during the contractually agreed time windows, have been reclassified to discontinued operations in accordance with
IFRS 5 in the financial statements at 31 December 2017.

Determination of the Public Contribution

As already reported, ISP has been awarded a public contribution to cover the capital absorption resulting from the acquisition
of the Aggregate Set, which is accompanied by the estimated effects of the application of the new IFRS 9 in relation to the
Aggregate Set.

This Contribution was quantified at a maximum amount of 3,500 million euro to cover the impact on the capital ratios, which
will lead to a phased-in Common Equity Tier 1 ratio of 12.5% to the risk-weighted assets (RWA) acquired.

The Panel of Experts quantified the amount of the public contribution to cover the capital absorption by the Aggregate Set at
3,660 million euro. However, the contribution awarded to ISP has a maximum limit of 3,500 million euro, based on the
provisions of Article 4 of Decree Law 99/2017.

The loan offsetting the Imbalance granted to the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation

As already reported above, the accounting imbalance (the “Imbalance”) between the assets and liabilities transferred was
offset by the inclusion within the Aggregate Set of a “balancing” entry in the form of a receivable from the Banks in
compulsory administrative liquidation. This receivable was subsequently converted into an interest-bearing loan granted by
ISP to the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation (at a fixed interest rate of 1% per annum and with a maximum
duration of 5 years and an option for early repayment based on the collection of the loans excluded from the Aggregate Set
and repayment in full at maturity) for an overall amount equal to the Imbalance of the Aggregate Set. The obligations of the
Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation resulting from the above-mentioned loan are secured by an independent, first
demand government guarantee, for a maximum total amount of 6,351 million euro. The credit claims for principal and interest
resulting from the above loans, for the part covered by the government guarantee, are subordinate to the preferential claims,
have equal standing to the corresponding government recourse claim and have priority over all the other claims. For the part
not covered by the government guarantee, ISP's claim is included at a lower level in the payments waterfall envisaged by
Article 4, paragraph 3, of Decree Law 99/2017.

Based on the final amount of the Imbalance, the total loan commitment is 6,400 million euro, of which 3,203 million euro to
BPVi in compulsory administrative liquidation and 3,197 million euro to VB in compulsory administrative liquidation. On
31 December 2017, the loan was disbursed for a total of 6,352 million euro (3,202 million euro to BPVi in compulsory
administrative liquidation and 3,150 million euro to VB in compulsory administrative liquidation), because, at the year end, the
transfers had not yet become effective for several assets and liabilities, for a total net amount of 48 million euro, that were
transferred back in January 2018 and mainly related to the NPLs of the international subsidiaries and the assets and liabilities
of Eximbank, which the due diligence had allocated to the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation.

As agreed between the Parties in the Second Acknowledgement Agreement, from 26 June 2016 until 31 December 2017,
interest accrued at a rate of 1% of around 33 million euro that was not added to the principal amount of the loan, but will be
repaid on a preferential basis.

With regard to the government guarantee for 6,351 million euro, the Decree of the Ministry for the Economy and Finance
issuing the guarantee was enacted on 17 January 2018. The Decree envisages that the guarantee will remain in place until
the principal and interest payment obligations have been completely fulfilled and that its amount will be progressively reduced
as the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation fulfil those obligations. Given that the amount of the loan and the related
interest not covered by the guarantee can only be repaid if the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation have available
liquidity (resulting from the realisation of the assets) after having paid the preferential claims and repaid several debts due to
the government, the determination of the fair value on initial recognition of the loan took account of the future cash flows that
are expected to be received, discounted at an appropriate market rate, as required by IFRS 13. With regard to the estimate of
the repayment of the principal on maturity, the guaranteed amount (6,351 million euro) was considered, net of the sums
received as interest that will reduce that amount.

Based on the calculations made, a write-down of the principal amount of the loan of 245 million euro was determined, which
was recognised within the PPA process.

Accounting treatment of the acquisition

The acquisition of certain assets and liabilities of BPVi and VB qualifies, solely for accounting purposes, as a business
combination and has been recognised based on the provisions provided in IFRS 3. This standard requires each business
combination to be accounted for using the “acquisition method” whereby the identifiable assets acquired (including any
intangible assets which had not been previously recognised by the acquired company) or liabilities assumed (including
contingent liabilities) are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

The “acquisition method” involves the Purchase Price Allocation (PPA) process, whereby the excess between the
consideration trasferred for the acquisition (represented by the fair value of the transferred assets, the liabilities assumed or
the equity instruments issued by the acquirer) and the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired must be recognised as
goodwill. Conversely, if the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired is higher than the consideration trasferred, the
acquirer will measure a gain on a bargain purchase (badwill) that shall be recognised in the income statement. With regard to
the PPA process, first of all, it should be noted that, based on the provisions of the Contract, the consideration trasferred by
ISP for the acquisition is a total of 1 euro in exchange for the transfer to ISP of a “balanced” Aggregate Set (net assets equal
to zero), without corresponding equity component, including a “balancing entry” in the form of a loan to the Banks in
compulsory administrative liquidation.

You are reminded that this transaction, following the acquisition, was recognised on a provisional basis for the Half-yearly
Report at 30 June 2017 and the Interim Statement at 30 September 2017, as permitted by IFRS 3, which gives the acquirer a
period of 12 months to determine the final fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired. In the 2017 financial statements, the
transaction has been recognised on a final basis following the completion of the PPA process.
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The assets and liabilities included in the Aggregate Set transferred to ISP, in relation to which the PPA process identified
differences between the fair values at the acquisition date and the previous book values, as stated in the due diligence
conducted by the Panel of Experts, mainly consisted of:

- loans to customers and banks;

- loans represented by securities;

- investments;

- property and other assets;

- amounts due to banks and customers;

- debts consisting of bonds issued;

- allowances for risks and charges.

As reported above, the PPA process also included the write-down of the Loan granted to the Banks in compulsory
administrative liquidation as an offset to the Imbalance.

In addition, as required by IFRS 3, DTAs were recognised on previoustax losses of the former Venetian banks, which had not
already been accounted for in the Aggregate Set transferred to ISP, also considering that the Decree Law 99/2017, converted
by Law 121/2017, introduced specific tax provisions aimed at transferring the tax losses of the sellers to the acquiring bank.
The DTAs were recognised within the PPA up to the limit of the available estimated future taxable income. Intangible assets
were also recognised relating to the asset management relationships, which had not been previously recognised by the
former Venetian banks.

In determining the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired, maximum use was made, where possible, of parameters
observed on markets and, for some measurements, of fairness opinions prepared by independent experts.

As reported above, the contractual terms for this transaction involved the transfer to ISP, at a price of 1 euro, of a “balanced”
Aggregate Set (net assets equal to zero), with the use of a “balancing figure” in the form of a loan to the Banks in compulsory
administrative liquidation (converted on 31 December 2017 into a 5-year loan at an interest rate of 1%).

Consequently, the fair value differences emerging during the PPA are automatically reflected as badwill (overallgains higher
than overall losses) or goodwill (overall losses higher than overall gains). Based on the calculations carried out, an overall net
gain was identified for the assets and liabilities acquired, with the consequent recognition of a badwill amount of 363 million
euro. The badwill was recognised in the income statement, as required by IFRS 3, under the caption 220 “Other operating
income (expenses)” of the official Bank of Italy consolidated format (Circular 262) and the caption “Effect of purchase price
allocation (net of tax)” of the reclassified income statement.

The table below provides more details regarding the PPA process and the determination of the badwiill:
(millions of euro)

Purchase cost (" -
Shareholders' equity @ -
Difference to be allocated (A) - (B) -

Fair value differences of assets acquired and liabilities assumed

Loans to customers and banks 322
Other financial assets -2
Investments in associates and companies subject to joint control -31
Property, equipment and intangible assets 40
DTAs on tax losses 423
Discontinued operations (high-risk loans) -33
Due to banks -43
Due to customers and securities issued -294
Allowance for risks and charges -17
Total fair value difference recognised at acquisition date (before tax) 365
Tax effects, minority interests and consolidation adjustments -2
Total net capital gain on assets and liabilities acquired 363
Badwill recognised in income statement 363

™" Amounting to 1 euro based on the provisions of the Sale Contract
@ The Aggregate Set was “balanced off’ (net assets at zero)

In 2017, starting from the date of acquisition, the effects for the period connected to the amortisation of the differences
between the fair value and book values identified during the PPA were transferred to the income statement. The impact on
the 2017 income statement was positive by an amount, net of the related tax effect, of 15 million euro.

As required by IFRS 3 in the event of the recognition of badwill in the income statement, a reassessment was conducted of
the measurement process already carried out, aimed at verifying the completeness and correctness of the process of
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identification and measurement of all the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. The analyses confirmed the correctness
and reasonableness of the conclusions reached.
For more details about the PPA process, see Part G of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Lastly, it should be noted that the transaction for the acquisition of the Aggregate Set also resulted in a charge that, in
compliance with the IFRS 3, was not recognised within the PPA, but should nevertheless be considered jointly with the
badwill as an effect of the transaction on the Group’s income statement. Specifically, these consisted of the integration
charges exceeding the government contribution.

In this regard, it is specified that, within the transaction for the acquisition of the former Venetian Banks, ISP was awarded a
public cash contribution to cover the integration and rationalisation charges related to the acquisition. This contribution,
accounted for based on IAS 20, amounted to 1,285 million euro, not subject to tax, and was paid to ISP on 26 June 2017. ISP
simultaneously established an allowance for integration charges to which the amount received as the contribution was
allocated, before tax, also taking account of the results of the queries submitted. The amount allocated was 1,894 million
euro. Based on the correlation with the Contract, the charges covered by the government contribution were identified and
among these a component exceeding the amount of the public contribution also emerged. In addition, other charges
connected to the transaction were identified that, due to their nature, were not included in those covered by the contribution.
The charges not covered by the contribution, amounting to a total of 106 million euro net of the tax effect, were recognised in
the 2017 income statement.

Lastly, in the press release of 10 October 2017, a commercial initiative was announced aimed at customers that meet
particular requirements and were shareholders of the Venetian banks. The offer to these customers consists of the
assignment of units in a mutual fund, with a ceiling of 100 million euro allocated in 5 annual tranches in the period 2018-2022.
This is an initiative of a purely charitable nature (which ISP is not obliged to carry out) aimed at strengthening confidence in
the banking system among people within particular income brackets who lost their savings as a result of the past events
involving the former Venetian banks, which ISP is not in any way involved in and for which it is not (nor cannot be held) liable.
The outlay for this commercial offer has been recognised as a charge in income statement in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 37, through the establishment of a specific Allowance for Risks and Charges for the entire amount
allocated. Taking into account the related tax effect, the total net charge in the 2017 income statement amounts to
73 million euro.

Other highlights

In January 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo launched a 1.25 billion euro Additional Tier 1 issue targeted at professional investors and
international financial intermediaries, with characteristics in line with the CRD IV regulation. It is listed on the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange as well as the usual Over-the-Counter market.

The Additional Tier 1 issue is perpetual (with a maturity date tied to the duration of Intesa Sanpaolo, as set in its articles of
association) and may be early redeemed by the issuer after ten years from the issue date and on every coupon payment date
thereafter. The issuer will pay a fixed rate coupon of 7.75% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears every 11 January
and 11 July of each year, with the first coupon payment on 11 July 2017. The compounded vyield to maturity is 7.90% per
annum, equivalent to the 5-year Mid Swap Rate in Euro reckoned at the moment of issuance, plus a spread equal to 719.2
basis points. In the event that the early redemption rights are not utilised on 11 January 2027, a new coupon at fixed rate will
be determined by adding the original spread to the 5-year Mid Swap Rate reckoned at the reset date. Such new annual
coupon will be fixed for the following 5 years (until the next reset date). As envisaged in the regulations applicable to
Additional Tier 1, coupon payment is discretionary and subject to certain limitations. The trigger of 5.125% of Common Equity
Tier 1 (CET1) provides that, if the CET1 ratio of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group or Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. falls below such trigger,
the nominal value of AT1 will be temporarily reduced for the amount needed to restore the trigger level, taking into account
also the other instruments with similar characteristics.

Also in January, based on the ranking created by Corporate Knights, a Canadian magazine specialising in sustainable
capitalism, Intesa Sanpaolo was ranked among the top 20 most sustainable companies in the world and the only ltalian
banking group in the classification, thanks to the implementation and further development of the best strategies for managing
risks and opportunities in the environmental, social and governance areas. This recognition is the result of Intesa Sanpaolo's
now consolidated commitment in the field of sustainability, which obtained further significant confirmation with the share’s
inclusion in the leading sustainability indices, including the Dow Jones Sustainability Indices (World and Europe), the CDP A-
List and the FTSE4Good (Global and Europe).

As regards the stake in the Bank of Italy’s share capital, in 2017 further stakes equal to a total of approximately 5.80% of the
capital of the Bank of Italy were sold - at nominal value, coinciding with the carrying value - for a price of approximately
435 million euro. Following the completion of the transaction, the Group’s stake in the Bank of Italy's share capital decreased
to 27.04%. In this regard, following the end of the year, further stakes equal to a total of approximately 1.51% of the capital of
the Bank of Italy were sold - at nominal value, coinciding with the carrying value - for a price of approximately 113 million
euro. Following the completion of the transaction, the Group’s stake in the Bank of Italy's share capital decreased to 25.53%.

For some time Intesa Sanpaolo has held an investment of 15.37% in the capital of the Chinese Bank of Qingdao (BQD).
This was Intesa Sanpaolo's first investment on the Chinese market (2007), and was followed by additional investments in
asset management through Eurizon Capital, which owns 49% of Penghua Fund Management, and the establishment in 2016
of its own operating company in wealth management, Qingdao Yicai Wealth Management Co. Ltd. (Yi-Tsai), whose
shareholders are the parent company, Fideuram — Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking and Eurizon Capital.

Intesa Sanpaolo has strongly contributed to developing the Chinese bank's business through a Framework Agreement and a
Co-operation Agreement concerning reciprocal consulting and coordination on matters pertaining to appointments of
managers, transactions on capital and/or extraordinary transactions, strategic plans and limits to investments by
Intesa Sanpaolo in other Chinese commercial banks, while granting an exclusive as foreign banking investor in the capital of
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BQD. Cooperation has also been developed through direct appointment by Intesa Sanpaolo of several top managers of the
bank.

In 2015 the Chinese bank began the process for listing on the Hong Kong stock exchange, which was completed with the IPO
reserved for new shareholders, carried out in December 2015.

Following the listing and the dilution of Intesa Sanpaolo’s equity interest, Intesa Sanpaolo and BQD were compelled to
significantly revise the previous Co-operation Agreements and align them with the limits permitted by local laws on listed
companies. In March the two banks signed a new Co-operation Agreement which, different to the previous one, which had set
out precise commitments for the counterparties, exclusively envisages a type of commercial co-operation, without binding
obligations of the parties, mainly between BQD and the recently established newco set up by Intesa Sanpaolo (Yi-Tsai).
The managers appointed by Intesa Sanpaolo, in the meantime, were also re-assigned to other positions as part of the
Group's business relating to the Chinese market.

As a result of the changed relationship between Intesa Sanpaolo and BQD, the investment, which was previously classified
under investments subject to significant influence, was reclassified to financial instruments available for sale, as the
requirements of IAS 28 to classify the investment under associates ceased to exist. As a result of that reclassification, the
investment was designated at fair value (equal to the stock exchange price) at the time of the reclassification, resulting in the
recognition of a positive effect on the income statement of 131 million euro gross (128 million euro net of taxes), to which the
release of reserves for foreign exchange differences accrued since the start of the investment (equal to 58 million euro) and
AFS reserves for 1 million euro must be added.

In 2008 Intesa Sanpaolo invested in the Nuovo Trasporto Viaggiatori (NTV), acquiring an initial stake of 20%, which was later
raised, through the subscription of new rights issues, to 24.46%, for a total amount of 92 million euro. NTV was established in
December 2006 as an alternative rail transport provider to Trenitalia, offering services on the country’s high-speed rail
network. The economic and financial difficulties faced by the company in its first few years of business led, over the years, to
the need to write down the investment in the consolidated financial statements of Intesa Sanpaolo. As at 31 March 2017, the
investment was carried at equity for a value of approximately 13 million euro and was classified as an investment subject to
significant influence in accordance with IAS 28.

On 29 June 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo sold a 4.74% stake in NTV to the Luxembourg fund Peninsula Investments Il S.C.A. for
approximately 24 million euro. The disposal generated a net gain of approximately 21 million euro. More recently, thanks to its
positive business performance, NTV had the opportunity to optimise its capital structure through the refinancing of its debt,
most of which was held with the Intesa Sanpaolo Group. The refinancing initiative primarily involved the placement of a 550
million-euro bond, which enabled NTV to close its finance lease exposure with the Group, thereby reducing the share of NTV
debt held by the Intesa Sanpaolo Group significantly from 86% to 21%.

Following the disposal of the 4.74% stake in NTV, which reduced the stake held by Intesa Sanpaolo in NTV to 19.72%, and
the new structure of the company’s financial exposure, the investment was reclassified to financial instruments available for
sale (AFS), given that the conditions envisaged by IAS 28 for the classification of the investment as subject to significant
influence no longer held. The original NTV shareholder’'s agreement initially signed by the shareholders, under which Intesa
Sanpaolo enjoyed veto rights, expired in 2013 and has since not be renewed. As required by IAS/IFRS, the remaining equity
investment in NTV was remeasured at its fair value upon reclassification (corresponding to the pro-rata share held of the
comprehensive value of the company as at the date the stake was sold), which resulted in the recognition of an additional
gain of 87 million, net of tax, in the income statement. Overall, the partial disposal of the stake in NTV and the reclassification
of the remaining equity investment to the AFS portfolio had a positive impact of 108 million euro, net of tax, on the
consolidated income statement of Intesa Sanpaolo.

Intesa Sanpaolo holds 19.89% of the Atlante Fund, a closed-end alternative investment fund managed by the asset
management company (SGR) Quaestio Capital Management. The purpose of the fund is to invest in banks with capital ratios
lower than the minimums set by the SREP which, thus, on request by the Supervisory Authorities, carry out capital
strengthening measures through capital increases and enhancement of Non-Performing Loans (NPLs). The Atlante Fund has
collected commitments totalling 4.249 billion euro, 845 million euro of which refers to Intesa Sanpaolo. As at 31 December
2017, Intesa Sanpaolo had paid in a total of 779 million euro, corresponding to 92% of the total commitment, and had a
residual commitment to the Atlante Fund of 66 million euro. However, the carrying amount of the units of the fund in Intesa
Sanpaolo's 2017 Financial Statements is around 103 million euro, as a result of the impairment loss of 449 million euro
recognised on the fair value of the units in 2017, due to the events involving the Venetian banks, in which the fund had
invested. Considering the 227 million-euro impairment loss posted in the bank’s income statement for 2016, the Atlante Fund
generated a comprehensive charge of 676 million euro in Intesa Sanpaolo financial statements, gross of the tax effect
(i.e. 87% of the total amount paid in to date) and 454 million euro net of the tax effect.

In July 2016, the asset management company Quaestio Capital Management launched another closed-end alternative
investment fund named lItalian Recovery Fund (former Atlante Il Fund), reserved exclusively for professional investors for the
purpose of investing in NPL transactions made by lItalian banks, which raised a total of 2,480 million euro. The Atlante Fund
subscribed a total commitment in the Italian Recovery Fund initially amounting to 800 million euro and subsequently
increased by an additional 45 million euro, for a stake of 34.1%. Intesa Sanpaolo has also invested directly in the fund, with
an initial payment commitment of 155 million euro, which was increased, in 2017, by a further 40 million euro, reaching a
stake of 7.9%. Also considering the stake held indirectly through the Atlante Fund, Intesa Sanpaolo holds a total of 14.6% of
the Italian Recovery Fund. In 2017, the Italian Recovery Fund carried out three different investment transactions through the
purchase of senior and mezzanine notes originating from securitisations of non-performing loans (“Project Cube”, “Project
Este” and “Project Berenice”) and, in January 2018, it made a commitment to purchase 95% of the mezzanine tranche of the
securitisation of Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena's bad loans. As a result, the Italian Recovery Fund has become the largest
investor in the Italian NPL market and one of the major worldwide investors in this sector. The four securitisations of non-
performing loans it is currently involved in amount to around 31 billion euro gross, for a total investment of around 2.5 billion
euro. As at 31 December 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo had paid in a total of around 99 million euro, corresponding to 51% of the
total commitment, and had a residual commitment to the ltalian Recovery Fund of 96 million euro. However, the carrying
amount of the units of the fund in Intesa Sanpaolo's 2017 Financial Statements is 98 million euro, because 1 million euro,
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relating to expenses incurred for the structuring of transactions that were subsequently not completed, was already included
in the 2016 income statement.

In terms of valuation, since the units of the funds are classified under investments available for sale (AFS), they must be
measured at fair value. The valuations conducted by the expert appraiser engaged by the asset management company,
which took into account the expected cash flows from the securitisation notes subscribed by Italian Recovery Fund and the
recent issue of the notes, estimated the current value of the assets held by the fund to be in line with the subscription price.
Consequently, as at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the units held by Intesa Sanpaolo in the two funds was in line with
their book value.

In May, Intesa Sanpaolo launched a 750 million euro Additional Tier 1 issue targeted at international markets, with
characteristics in line with the CRD IV regulation. It is listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange as well as the usual Over-
the-Counter market.

The Additional Tier 1 issue is perpetual (with a maturity date tied to the duration of Intesa Sanpaolo, as set in its articles of
association) and may be early redeemed by the issuer after seven years from the issue date and on every coupon payment
date thereafter. The issuer will pay a fixed rate coupon of 6.25% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears every 16 May
and 16 November of each year, with the first coupon payment on 16 November 2017. The compounded yield to maturity is
6.348% per annum, equivalent to the 7-year Mid Swap Rate in Euro reckoned at the moment of issuance, plus a spread equal
to 585.6 basis points. In the event that the early redemption rights are not utilised on 16 May 2024, a new coupon at fixed rate
will be determined by adding the original spread to the 5-year Mid Swap Rate reckoned at the reset date. Such new annual
coupon will be fixed for the following 5 years (until the next reset date). As envisaged in the regulations applicable to
Additional Tier 1, coupon payment is discretionary and subject to certain limitations. The trigger of 5.125% of Common Equity
Tier 1 (CET1) provides that, if the CET1 ratio of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group or Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. falls below such trigger,
the nominal value of AT1 will be temporarily reduced for the amount needed to restore the trigger level, taking into account
also the other instruments with similar characteristics.

On 25 May, Intesa Sanpaolo signed an agreement for the sale of a portfolio of bad loans to Christofferson, Robb & Company
and Bayview Asset Management Fay with a nominal amount of around 2 billion euro at a price in line with their net book value
and without any significant impacts on the capital ratios. The sale was completed on 30 May 2017, with legal effect, and
consequent derecognition of the portfolio sold, from 19 June. The portfolio sold consisted of around 9,000 loan positions that
are mainly unsecured and long past due.

On 26 July 2017, Burlington Loan Management DA, on one hand, and Pirelli & C. S.p.A., Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A., UniCredit
S.p.A. and Fenice S.r.l., on the other hand, (the “sellers”) entered into an agreement for the purchase, by an Italian newco
(Lavaredo S.p.A.) designated by Burlington, of a total of 611,910,548 shares of Prelios S.p.A. held by the sellers, at a price of
0.105 euro per share. The sellers and Burlington subsequently executed, on 2 August 2017, an amendment agreement by
virtue of which the price agreed for the purchase and sale of the shares was set at 0.116 euro per share, with an increase of
10.48%. Accordingly, the total price, paid by the purchaser to the sellers in one instalment on 28 December 2017, on the
completion date of the purchase, was a total of 70,981,624 euro, of which 13,659,289 euro paid to Intesa Sanpaolo.

Following the completion of the acquisition of the shareholding, Lavaredo launched a mandatory takeover bid on all the
outstanding ordinary shares of Prelios, pursuant to and for the purposes of Article 106, first paragraph, of Legislative Decree
no. 58 of 24 February 1998, as amended.

On 23 August 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo and the shareholders of Morval Vonwiller Holding SA reached an agreement for the sale
to Intesa Sanpaolo of the Swiss group of the same name, including Banque Morval SA, which has been operating in
Switzerland as an asset management company since 1974. After obtaining its banking licence in 1989, the company became
Banque Morval SA. With head offices in Geneva and offices in Lugano, Banque Morval specialises in wealth and fund
management through the Morval Vonwiller Holding Group. Through Banque Morval and the other companies of the Group,
Morval Vonwiller Holding SA offers all the services of a banking organisation that specialises in wealth and fund management.
The agreement is in line with Intesa Sanpaolo’s strategic plan to strengthen its presence on international markets in the field
of private banking. Morval Vonwiller's presence in Geneva will permit Intesa Sanpaolo’s Private Banking Division, currently
present in Lugano, London and Luxembourg, to further expand its geographic footprint outside Italy. The transaction is
subject to obtaining all necessary regulatory authorisations. This process is expected to be concluded by the first quarter
of 2018.

On 13 September 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo and UniCredit completed the sale of 2,971,186 ordinary shares equal to 11.176% of
the ordinary share capital of Eramet S.A., a French mining and metal processing company, equal to the respective entire
investments held by the two banks in the company. Specifically, Intesa Sanpaolo sold 7.114% of the capital, which was
posted under Assets available for sale. The transaction, realised through accelerated book-building targeted at Italian
qualified investors and international institutional investors, closed with a final price of 57 euro per share.

On 18 September 2017, an ordinary share buy-back programme was launched and concluded. The programme executes a
plan that assigns, free of charge, ordinary shares of Intesa Sanpaolo to the Group’s employees; this covers the share-based
incentive plan for 2016 reserved for Risk Takers who accrue a bonus in excess of the so-called “materiality threshold”, as well
as for those who, among Managers or Professionals that are not Risk Takers, accrue “relevant bonuses”, as approved by the
Intesa Sanpaolo Shareholders’ Meeting of 27 April 2017. Several subsidiaries also terminated their purchase programmes of
the Parent Company’s shares to be assigned, free of charge, to their employees. The programmes were approved by their
respective corporate bodies within their remits and are analogous to the programme approved at the Parent Company’s
Shareholders’ Meeting.

Specifically, on the day of execution of the programme, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group purchased a total of 8,091,160- Intesa
Sanpaolo ordinary shares, through Banca IMI (which was responsible for the programme execution), representing
approximately 0.05% of the ordinary share capital and total share capital of the Parent Company (comprising ordinary shares
and savings shares), at an average purchase price of 2.937 euro per share, for a total countervalue of 23,762,245 euro.
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The Parent Company purchased 4,263,325 shares at an average purchase price of 2.937 euro per share, for a value of
12,520,115 euro.

On 21 September 2017, the offering period relating to the subordinated Tier 2 bond issue targeted at qualified investors and
high net worth individuals on the domestic market ended with the assignment of a nominal amount of 723.7 million euro. It is
a 7-year, floating-rate bond issue to be redeemed in whole at maturity. The coupon, payable quarterly in arrears on
26 March, 26 June, 26 September and 26 December of each year, from 26 December 2017 to 26 September 2024, is equal
to 3-month Euribor plus 190 basis points per annum. The offer price was set at 100%. The settlement date was 26 September
2017. The minimum denomination of each bond is 100,000 euro.

On 29 September 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo and other Group companies contributed a series of properties to two closed-end
real estate funds managed by InvestiRE SGR. At the same time, the contributing companies sold 70% of the units of the two
funds receiving the contributions to third-party investors. A put & call agreement was signed for the full sale, within 18 months
and at the same conditions, of the remaining 30% of the units of the two funds. A portion of the properties contributed was
then leased by the same Group companies that contributed them.

On 21 November 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo finalised the sale of its entire stake held in Allfunds Bank to funds affiliated with
Hellman & Friedman, a leading private equity investor, and GIC, Singapore’s sovereign wealth fund, for a consideration of
around 930 million euro. This sale followed on from the agreement reached with the buyers in March 2017.

Allfunds Bank is a multimanager distribution platform for asset management products targeted at institutional investors.
Before the finalisation of the transaction, it was 50%-owned by Eurizon Capital SGR (in turn, 100%-owned by
Intesa Sanpaolo) and 50% by AFB SAM Holding (Santander Group).

In the consolidated financial statements of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group the investment was considered a joint venture pursuant
to IFRS 11 and was consolidated at equity. The finalisation of the transaction generated a positive contribution of around 802
million euro to the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's consolidated net income (811 million euro gross of the tax effect) in the fourth
quarter of 2017.

On 21 December, Intesa Sanpaolo reached an agreement with the Trade Unions, which follows on from what had been
previously agreed in relation to the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities of the former Venetian Banks (Banca Popolare
di Vicenza and Veneto Banca). Specifically, the agreement stipulates the Group’s willingness to:

— accept all the applications it has received with regard to voluntary exits, submitted by around 7,500 people under the
Solidarity Allowance, with the last exits to take place by 30 June 2020;

— hire 1,000 new personnel on indefinite-term contracts, with a focus on the branch network, on disadvantaged areas of
the country, on new professions, including the hiring of people in protected categories (compulsory employment) and
taking into account people currently employed on fixed-term contracts;

—  hire 500 new personnel on mixed contracts, each hired on a part-time indefinite-term contract and on a self-employed
basis, to perform the role of financial advisor having previously been enrolled on the register of financial advisors.

Therefore, the total voluntary exits will involve around 9,000 people. In detail:

— 1,500 people from the Intesa Sanpaolo Group who already fulfil the pension requirements, by 31 December 2018;

— 1,000 people from the former Venetian Banks and 3,000 people from the Intesa Sanpaolo Group under the Solidarity
Allowance, by 30 June 2019, in accordance with the contract signed on 26 June 2017 for the acquisition of certain assets
and liabilities of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca;

— 3,500 people from the Intesa Sanpaolo Group under the Solidarity Allowance, by 30 June 2020.

The new hires are in addition to the 150 hires already agreed on with the trade unions on 1 February 2017 and to around 100

hires on indefinite-term contracts reserved for people on fixed-term contracts working at the Aggregate Set of the former

Venetian Banks as at 25 June 2017.

The agreement is expected to result in overall savings in personnel expenses of around 675 million euro per year on a fully

operational basis (starting from 2021).

With regard to levies and other charges concerning the banking industry, in particular, after Crédit Agricole-Cariparma
formally expressed its interest in acquiring the investment in CR Cesena and in two other banks in relation to which early
intervention measures have been adopted by the Voluntary Scheme (Cassa di Risparmio di Rimini and Cassa di Risparmio di
San Miniato), on 21 December 2017 the Voluntary Scheme signed an agreement with Crédit Agricole-Cariparma for the
recapitalisation and sale of three banks, as well as the subscription of junior and mezzanine notes with underlying NPLs of
those banks.

To finance this operation, in the third quarter the Voluntary Scheme approved an increase in its financial allocation of 95
million euro (from 420 million euro remaining at the end of 2016 to 515 million euro), part of which was used for the
recapitalisation of the banks prior to the sale (470 million euro, gross of the receipt of 130 million euro from Cariparma) and
170 million euro for the subscription of the securitised notes for a total outlay of 634 million euro, with the remaining 6 million
euro consisting of cash and cash equivalents held by the Voluntary Scheme.

At the closing of the transaction, the gross total charge for the Group — including the charges of the former Venetian banks —
amounted to 166 million euro (111 million euro net of tax) of which 127 million euro as the loss on the sale of the three banks
and 39 million euro as the full write-down of the junior note subscribed. This, compared to the estimated gross charge of 159
million euro (107 million euro net of tax), recognised in the third quarter, resulted in a higher net impact on the income
statement of 4 million euro.

On 22 December 2017 Intesa Sanpaolo received the ECB’s final decision concerning the capital requirement that it has to

meet, as of 1 January 2018. The overall capital requirement the Bank has to meet in terms of Common Equity Tier 1 ratio is
8.065% under the transitional arrangements for 2018 and 9.25% on a fully loaded basis.
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This is the result of:

— a SREP requirement in terms of Total Capital ratio of 9.5%, comprising a minimum Pillar 1 capital requirement of 8%, of
which 4.5% is Common Equity Tier 1 ratio, and an additional Pillar 2 capital requirement of 1.5% made up entirely of
Common Equity Tier 1 ratio;

— additional requirements, entirely in terms of Common Equity Tier 1 ratio, relating to:

o a Capital Conservation Buffer of 1.875% under the transitional arrangements for 2018 and 2.5% on a fully loaded
basis in 2019,

o an O-SlI Buffer (Other Systemically Important Institutions Buffer) of 0.19% under the transitional arrangements for
2018 and 0.75% on a fully loaded basis in 2021,

0 a countercyclical capital buffer of 0.08%.

On 28 December 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo completed the sale of the entire share capital of the subsidiary Infogroup to
Engineering, a leading Italian company in the digital transformation field, for a cash consideration of around 61 million euro,
which followed on the agreement reached with the buyer in July 2017.

Infogroup is a key ICT partner for the Intesa Sanpaolo Group and for major banking, industrial and commercial groups. The
sales agreement includes, among other things, the establishment of a commercial agreement between Infogroup and the
Intesa Sanpaolo Group, and maintaining employment levels.

With regard to subsequent events, on 3 January 2018, Intesa Sanpaolo announced an invitation to the holders of
government-guaranteed senior notes issued by the former Venetian banks (Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca),
for a total principal amount of 3 billion euro (maturing 3 February 2020) and 1.75 billion euro (maturing 2 February 2020), both
outstanding, to submit offers to sell their Notes to ISP for cash at a purchase price set at 101.20 euro. Intesa Sanpaolo holds
1.75 billion euro and 0.4 billion euro respectively of the outstanding amounts.

At the expiration deadline, Notes for an aggregate principal amount of 1,703,300,000 euro were validly offered for sale,
comprising an aggregate principal amount of 823,500,000 for the notes maturing on 3 February 2020 and an aggregate
principal amount of 879,800,000 euro for the notes maturing on 2 February 2020.

The purchase consideration amounted, respectively, to 833,382,000 euro (plus accrued interest of 1,868,521.50 euro) and
890,357,600 euro (plus accrued interest of 2,008,231.48 euro).

On 5 February 2018, the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo approved the merger by incorporation into Intesa Sanpaolo of
Banca Nuova, a company forming part of the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca.

On 6 February 2018, the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo approved the Group’s 2018-2021 Business Plan. The Plan
envisages that the Group will continue to prioritise strong and sustainable value creation and distribution, while maintaining a
very solid capital position and significantly reducing the risk profile at no extraordinary cost to shareholders. It also confirms
Intesa Sanpaolo’s role as a real-economy bank with sustainable profitability, which creates value for all its stakeholders. More
information is provided below in the section “The new 2018-2021 Business Plan”.

Alongside the approval of the 2018-2021 Business Plan, the Board of Directors also resolved to submit a Long-term Incentive
Plan for the approval of shareholders, who will be summoned to the Meeting scheduled for 27 April 2018. The Incentive Plan
is based on Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. financial instruments and is reserved for all Group employees in Italy. The Incentive Plan
is a tool facilitating a broad-based shareholding in the capital of the Bank, aimed at enhancing the role of employees as key
enablers in the achievement of the Business Plan’s results, and consists of two systems:

— with regard to top management, risk takers and key managers, it provides for the assignment of equity call options on
Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares (POP — Performance-based Option Plan);

— with regard to all the other Group employees, it provides for: i) the assignment of new ordinary shares of Intesa Sanpaolo
deriving from a share capital increase without payment and, as an alternative choice for employees, ii) the opportunity to
subscribe to an Investment Plan in a certain proportion to the number of shares received free of charge. This Incentive
Plan is based on new Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares deriving from a capital increase with payment, reserved for
employees and at a discounted issue price (LECOIP 2.0 — Leveraged Employee Co-Investment Plan).

In detail, the POP Incentive Plan stipulates that performance conditions must be applied for incentives to be actually awarded,

in relation to specific key objectives to be achieved over the course of the Business Plan. It does not envisage any protection

of the initial assignment to the employee. The related documentation will be made available to shareholders and the public in
accordance with the regulations in force and within the period of time provided by law.

The Incentive Plan is subject to authorisations being received from the competent authorities.

Assuming all employees subscribe to the Incentive Plan, the total number of ordinary shares to be issued in the capital

increase without payment and in the capital increase with payment is estimated to be equal to a maximum number

representing around 3.5% of the ordinary share capital following the increase and 3.4% of the total share capital (comprising
the ordinary shares and the savings shares) of Intesa Sanpaolo following the increase.

Also on 6 February, the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo resolved to submit a proposal to the Shareholders’ Meeting for
the mandatory conversion of savings shares into ordinary shares, on the basis of a conversion ratio of 1.04 ordinary shares
per each savings share, without any payment of cash adjustments and along with the concurrent removal of the indication of
the nominal value of the shares from the Articles of Association.

Therefore, the Board of Directors called the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, on single call, to take place at 10:00 on
27 April 2018, in order to resolve upon the following agenda: “Mandatory conversion of savings shares into ordinary shares
and concurrent removal of the indication of nominal value for the shares of Intesa Sanpaolo from the Articles of Association.
Amendment of Articles 5 and 29 and removal of Article 30 of the Articles of Association. Pertinent and consequent
resolutions.”

The Board of Directors also called the Special Meeting of Savings Shareholders, on single call, to take place at 16:00 on
27 April 2018 and in any case at the end of the Meeting of Ordinary Shareholders, in order to resolve upon the following
agenda: "Approval, pursuant to Article 146, paragraph 1, letter b) of Legislative Decree no. 58 of 24 February 1998, of the
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resolutions of the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting concerning the mandatory conversion of the Company’s savings

shares into ordinary shares of the same Company, as well as the removal of the indication of the nominal value of the shares

from the Articles of Association and the relative amendments to the Articles of Association. Pertinent and consequent
resolutions.”

The effectiveness of the Conversion, should it receive the approval of the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, will be

conditioned upon:

a) the approval of the Conversion by the Special Savings Shareholders’ Meeting;

b) the authorisations of the European Central Bank required under the current legal and regulatory framework, for the
purposes of the amendments to the Articles of Association, the inclusion of the ordinary shares that are issued in
connection with the conversion in the CET 1 and the possible purchase by the Company of own shares at the end of the
liquidation procedure relating to withdrawing shareholders;

c) the amount owed to those who elect to exercise the withdrawal right not exceeding 400 million euro at the end of the pre-
emption and pre-emptive rights offering period concerning any offer to the Intesa Sanpaolo shareholders of the shares
held by the withdrawing savings shareholders pursuant to Art. 2437-quater, par. 1 and 2 of the Italian Civil Code.

The conversion ratio has been set by the Board of Directors on the basis of, inter alia, the report of an independent expert and

includes an implied premium on the savings shares’ price equal to:

—  3.4% in relation to the last stock exchange closing price of 5 February 2018;

— 3.3% in relation to the average price registered in the past month;

—  4.4% in relation to the average price registered in the past 3 months.

Since the resolution approving the conversion implies an amendment to the Company’s Articles of Association regarding

voting and participation rights, the savings shareholders who do not take part in the approval of the related resolution of the

Special Savings Shareholders’ Meeting will be entitled to exercise the right of withdrawal pursuant to Art. 2437, par. 1 (g) of

the Italian Civil Code. The liquidation value of each savings share was calculated in accordance with Art. 2437-ter of the

Italian Civil Code and set by the Board of Directors at Euro 2.74, equal to the arithmetic average of closing prices of the

savings shares on the market in the six months prior to the date of publication of the notice of call of the Special Savings

Shareholders’ Meeting (6 February 2018). The Articles of Association do not derogate from the abovementioned legal criteria.

Should any of the aforesaid savings shareholders exercise the withdrawal right, it will be necessary to liquidate their

shareholdings in accordance with the liquidation procedure provided under Article 2437-quater of the Italian Civil Code. In the

context of this procedure, the Company may be required to repurchase the shares from the withdrawing shareholders that are
not purchased by the other shareholders or possibly placed on the market at their liquidation value. For this reason, the Board

of Directors will propose among the items on the agenda for the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting set for 27 April 2018

also the authorisation of the sale of shares that may be purchased in the light of this procedure, in order to allow the Company

to liquidate an investment which would be otherwise fully deducted from shareholders’ equity and CET 1 (Common Equity

Tier 1) Capital due to their quality as own shares. The maximum amount of shares which are the subject matter of said

authorisation will be equal to the number of ordinary shares resulting from the conversion which will be purchased by the

Company at the end of the possible liquidation process in connection with the shares remaining at the end of the pre-

emption/pre-emptive offer.

Please note that:

— the ordinary shares that will be issued to service the conversion will bear regular dividend rights;

— it is foreseen that the date of effectiveness of the Conversion — where the relevant conditions have been fulfilled — shall
fall after the ex-right date of dividends relating to the financial year ended 31 December 2017 (set for 21 May 2018); said
dividend shall therefore be distributed to both ordinary and savings shareholders in accordance with the Articles of
Association in place prior to the Conversion (Art. 29.3 of the Articles of Association);

— the withdrawal procedure will commence and will conclude after the ex-right date of the dividends relating to the financial
year ended 31 December 2017, and the savings shareholders who exercise the Withdrawal Right — as well as those who
do not exercise such right — will receive such privileged dividend in accordance with Art. 29.3 of the Articles of
Association currently in force.

The Conversion will be directed at all holders of savings shares. Its effective date shall be agreed with Borsa Italiana and

made publicly available on the website of the Company and in at least one national daily newspaper, in accordance with Art.

72, par. 5, of the Issuers’ Regulation — CONSOB resolution no. 11971/1999 With the same notice, the Company will provide

details on the methods of assignment of the ordinary shares resulting from the conversion ratio and on the management of

any fractions of shares resulting from the conversion ratio. On the same date, the savings shares shall be revoked from listing
on the Mercato Telematico Azionario, organised and managed by Borsa ltaliana S.p.A., and the ordinary shares resulting

from the conversion will be listed on the Mercato Telematico Azionario, organised and managed by Borsa lItaliana S.p.A..

The Conversion is aimed at rationalising and simplifying the capital structure of Intesa Sanpaolo, as well as simplifying the

Company’s corporate governance by aligning all shareholder rights. Furthermore, with respect to the capital requirements

provided under the supervisory regulations, it is worth noting that the nominal value of the savings shares — unlike that of

ordinary shares — is not included in the CET 1 (Common Equity Tier 1) capital but is included in Additional Tier 1 capital.

Therefore, assuming a scenario in which all savings shares are converted, the CET 1 ratio of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group

would register — on the basis of the figures as at 31 December 2017 and all other terms being equal — an increase equal to 18

bps. Such increase would instead be equal to 3 bps if withdrawals entail the Company to incur the maximum costs provided in

the conditions upon which the effectiveness of the Conversion is subject and should the ordinary shares remaining post-

Conversion (and therefore purchased by the Company) not be sold.

Should all of the savings shares be converted into ordinary shares, the voting rights of the ordinary shareholders will be

diluted by approximately 5.8%. In the instance of maximum costs being incurred by the Company following the exercise of

withdrawal rights (without placement of the shares purchased in the context of the abovementioned liquidation procedure on

the market), said dilution will instead be equal to approximately 4.9%.

The economic dilution, following the increase in the total number of shares due to the conversion ratio of 1.04 ordinary shares

per each savings share, would be equal to approximately 0.2% in the case of all of the savings shares being converted into

ordinary shares, while the Conversion would be accretive by approximately 0.7% in the case of maximum costs being
incurred by the Company following the exercise of withdrawal rights without placement of the shares purchased on the

market.
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The 2014-2017 Business Plan

With the Business Plan approved in March 2014, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has introduced the 2014-2017 objective to

pursue a new growth phase based on an innovative strategy which, focusing on the individuals and adopting a clear and

effective business model, aims at increasing profitability in a sustainable manner, optimising capital and liquidity.

The strategy hinged on a number of priorities that are now part of the inheritance of Intesa Sanpaolo, which aimed to become:

- A real-economy bank, which supports households and businesses and, leveraging a strong balance sheet and
leadership, matches healthy credit demand and manages the financial wealth of customers with care;

- a Bank with sustainable profitability, in which operational performance, productivity, risk profile, liquidity and
solidity/leverage are carefully balanced;

- aleader in retail and corporate banking in Italy and a few other key countries;

- a European leader Bank in a number of high growth/high value businesses (Private banking, Asset management,
Insurance);

- a Bank structured according to a divisional model and engaged in strengthening and further simplifying the current
business model of Banca dei Territori, taking into account the evolution in customers’ demands;

- aninternational Bank that acts as "Local bank abroad" for Italian companies;

- asimple yet innovative Bank, acting with a truly multi-channel model.

The Plan envisaged measures in the following areas:

- “New Growth Bank”, to develop revenues with innovative growth engines capable of identifying new market
opportunities;

- “Core Growth Bank”, to capture untapped revenue potential of existing business, in terms of revenue development,
reduction in operating costs, and credit and risk governance;

-  “Capital-Light Bank”, to optimise the use of capital and liquidity, de-leveraging the bank’s "non-core" assets;

- People and Investments as key enablers to maximise the contribution of each of the three “Banks” to the Group’s result.

The 2014-2017 period was characterised by a very challenging macro-economic environment. In particular, market interest
rates reached record lows (annual average 1M Euribor at -0.37% in 2017) and GDP recovery was slower than expected. In
this context, the Group successfully implemented the 2014-2017 Business Plan, distributing 10 billion euro in cumulative cash
dividends, while also strengthening its level of capitalisation and supporting the real economy.

A number of initiatives were implemented from both the organisational standpoint as well as with regard to product innovation,
improvement of customer service and development of Intesa Sanpaolo's human capital.

a) New Growth Bank
The “Sviluppo Clienti Base” (base customers development) project led to the creation of a commercial organisation of around
3,500 people who, during the four years of the Plan, increased the per capita profitability of around 5 million base customers
from 70 euro to 129 euro per year. In line with the Group’s digitalisation strategy, several customer journey campaigns were
also promoted, supported by a customer awareness raising initiative aimed at spreading the use of digital channels.
The Multichannel Bank Project involves the integration of physical and remote banking channels. It aims to give customers
greater flexibility and autonomy in managing their relationships with the Bank, and give managers the possibility of providing a
more personalised and specialist offering of services. In 2017, the activities focused on operations from mobile phones, with
the release and development of apps for specific customer segments, the development of the Online Branches and their
integration into the physical network, the release of the Digital Identity, the extension of the remote offering of insurance
products and the restyling of the home banking website.
The establishment of Banca 5 S.p.A., following the acquisition of Banca ITB, forms part of the strategy for the development of
multichannel banking and the base customers, as it enables:
— the leveraging of the existing network of approximately 21,000 accredited points of sale to expand cross-selling to Group
customers and acquire new customers (tapping into a potential customer base of some 25 million customers, of which
12 million are already customers of Banca ITB's partner points of sale);
— the creation of a “proximity bank”, focused on instant banking, which is complementary and with a lighter cost structure
versus the existing branch network, which is increasingly specialised in advisory and high value-added services.
The Plan envisaged the development of new professional areas that have synergies with the core banking business, such as
real estate brokerage and e-commerce, with a view to generating new sources of fee and commission income and seizing
new cross-selling opportunities. On the real estate front, Intesa Sanpaolo Casa is now fully operational. The company has a
staff of 235 agents and operates through a network of 27 physical agencies, 14 satellite agencies, an agency for financial
institutions (insurance companies, asset management companies, funds, etc.), and an on-line agency, in addition to specialist
partners (Habitissimo and CasaClima), offering customers services that range from brokerage and interior renovation to
check-ups and studies for energy redevelopment measures. The year 2017 closed with ~900 properties sold and ~800 sale
mandates. With regard to e-commerce, in the food and wine sector the “Destination Gusto” website was launched, a portal
with a catalogue of around 1,200 products offered by 250 quality producers, while in the tourism sector, the “Destination ltalia”
website is now operational in both the B2B market (from March 2017) and the B2C market (from October 2017).
Another project is the SME Finance Hub, which aims to integrate the specialist business finance skills of Mediocredito Italiano
into Banca dei Territori operations. In terms of organisation, initiatives revolved around the centralisation of various
governance functions at the Parent Company. Initiatives on the commercial front included the launch of Nova+ for Industry
4.0, with subsidised credit lines for innovative entrepreneurial projects, the establishment of the unit dedicated to monitoring
covenants, the development of subsidised credit in support of the investments of SMEs (e.g. AL VIA, Social Economy, SMEs
and Bank Lending, Tourism 2017, Supply Chain and District Contracts), the development of the Confirming project at national
and international level, the introduction of MCI to the main private equity funds operating in the SME segment, the addition of
staff with specific expertise in the Advisory and Structured Finance services, and the launch of commercial initiatives on the
Network aimed at generating Extraordinary Finance opportunities, with a focus on several key sectors (e.g. food
& beverages).
The entire Banca dei Territori network was involved in the “Insieme per la Crescita” (Together for Growth) project, aimed at
disseminating commercial best practice to increase customer satisfaction and improve the network’s performance. During the
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year, courses and meetings were organised with the operational staff in the commercial structures and new online
communication, sharing and support tools were launched. In particular “Vividigitale Colleghi” was extended to all the Regional
Governance Centres to spread knowledge of specific products and services and to support the management of customers in
the transition to the new Internet Banking service.

The “Global Transaction Banking” (GTB) project assigns to a single product company the strategic coordination of Group
activities in the field of transactions, with a view to supporting business growth through product innovation, excellence in
commercial support, and a pro-active development of partnerships. During the year, the Department expanded the offering
and harmonised the transaction banking activities carried out by the Group’s Divisions, in addition to being involved in the
integration project for the Venetian Banks, for the part under its responsibility. Developments on the commercial front included
the launch of the first 7 GTB desks to support the main International Branches/Hubs in the TB offering (Cash and Trade) and
the development of the Direct Marketing (customer centricity pilot project for Hong Kong, London, New York, Singapore,
Shanghai and Frankfurt). The development activities were supported by a public relations plan, which included the
organisation of workshops abroad and participation in international and national events. Initiatives with a longer-term
perspective of technological and financial innovation included the launch of proof of concept on blockchain technology and
artificial intelligence.

Efforts to expand the range of products and services offered by Banca IMI focused on three main areas: asset-backed trading
in the commodities market for Corporate customers; financing, structuring and support for securitisations and NPL
management; and the collaboration with Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking in the offering of products and services to Ultra
High Net Worth Individuals (UHNWI) which are usually reserved to professional investors.

On the international front, further progress was made on the development of the International Network, with a view to
strengthening the Group’s competitive edge in terms of commercial offering and geographical coverage.

The companies operating in Private Banking (Banca Fideuram, ISPB, Sirefid and ISB Suisse) were aggregated into a single
hub, which aims to strengthen leadership in Italy and consolidate the Group's status as a big player in Europe through the
development of the product range, the evolution of the service model and the technological instruments supporting advisory
activities, the development of synergies with the other Group structures and the intensification of international operations.
During the year, new investment products were launched, including the PIR-compliant funds and the new “Fideuram Vita
Sintonia” policy, the first multi-line insurance product in Italy with a capital protection mechanism, and the range offered by the
London branch was expanded. As regards the service model, Fideuram’s branch set-up was revised (90% cashless
operations at branches thanks to the automation of low-service content processes), 9 Credit Hubs were activated, and the
advanced advisory services (SEI for the Fideuram network and VIEW for the ISPB network) and the “Alfabeto” interactive
digital advisory platform were further developed. The service model was completed with the set-up of the services aimed at
HNWI customers (branch network and Central Service Hub) and the launch of the cooperation with Intesa Sanpaolo Casa,
which will enable the expansion of the services offered to customers by leveraging synergies within the Group. Lastly, at
international level, the project was initiated for the creation of a Swiss hub with the acquisition of the Morval Vonwiller group (a
Swiss boutique investment house with around 3 billion euro of assets under management).

The Asset Management Division has set itself three main objectives: ensuring the excellence of the support to the Group
networks through the prompt creation of products that are always in line with the market situation, becoming a centre of
reference for institutional customers and promoting extra-captive distribution on the domestic as well as international markets.
During the year, the Division operated on several fronts. Work for the Banca dei Territori, Private Banking and Insurance
Divisions consisted of the development of the offers, with the launch of new investment solutions, the improvement of the
quality of after-sales support and the contribution to sales networks' training and education programmes on the basis of
specific requirements of the individual structures. The strengthening of sales efforts aimed at extra-captive customers
continued and new institutional customers were acquired in Europe and Latin America. The activity at international level
intensified with the opening of Eurizon branches in Paris and Frankfurt, the start-up of asset management operations in Hong
Kong and the expansion of Eurizon SLJ Capital Ltd’s operations. In the Chinese market the activity was particularly intense,
with the continued development of Penghua Fund Management and the establishment of the organisational structure of YiCai
Wealth Management Co. Ltd. in Qingdao (China), which is due to become operational in the first quarter of 2018. The stake
held in Allfunds Bank S.A. was sold on 21 November 2017.

The Insurance Division worked on both strategic and commercial aspects. At strategic level, additional guidelines where
established for the development of the Group’s insurance business, together with the continuation of the “Information Driven
Insurer” project, aimed at streamlining the information assets of the insurance companies and increasing the effectiveness of
business intelligence. On the commercial front, in the Life Business, capital-efficient life policies (Class Il and multi-line
products) were promoted and new products were launched (e.g. unit-linked and multi-line products with capital protection),
while, in the Non-Life Business, a further boost was given to the Division’s activities towards both companies and private
individuals, including the expansion of the offering for small and medium enterprises and the development of synergies with
the “Sviluppo Clienti Base” (base customers development) project. The work was also completed for the dematerialisation of
the contracts for all the non-life products and the remote offering functions were released for all the main products. Lastly, the
pilot work was completed for the introduction of specialist professionals dedicated solely to the sale of Non-Life products and
for the sale of Motor, Head of Household Civil Liability and Accident and Injury products through the online branch.

b) Core Growth Bank

The Banca dei Territori Division continued to work on the development of three projects aimed at optimising the service
model: Full Potential (Retail), Investment House (Personal), and Business-Entrepreneur (Enterprises).

As regards the “Full Potential” project, work continued on the rationalisation measures for the network and the transformation
of the branch layout.

Within the “Investment House” project, work continued on the MiFid Il compliance requirements, the expansion of the product
range, the activation across the entire network of the advanced advisory services (Valore Insieme), the enhancement of the
remote offering (particularly for the sale of policies) and the development of training initiatives.

Work on the “Business-Entrepreneur” project involved three main areas: support for the international expansion of
businesses, partnership with customers to support the establishment of their business strategies, and the development of a
service model for businesses (e.g. Extraordinary Finance, portfolio guarantee operations, supply chain development).
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The “Commercial Excellence” project aims to improve service quality for high-value customers by basing work with customers
on personalised interviews, the use of flexible and integrated (multichannel) contact systems, and the adoption of advanced
technologies to extend the automated management of commercial processes. In 2017, work continued on the process and
product innovation for retail mortgages and personal loans, the automation of low-service content operations, and the
dematerialisation and contractual simplification with the digitisation of payments to the Public Administration (F24 tax
payments, Virtual Stamp Duty, pagoPA services, and SIOPE+ testing).

Service improvement projects for the various customer segments are supported by the new organisational model of the
Banca dei Territori Division: in all of the regional governance centres, three specialised “commercial areas” have been
identified — Retail, Personal and Business — to maximise the specific skills of personnel.

Within the framework of the Asset Light project, the Corporate & Investment Banking Division aims to develop an “originate-
to-distribute” model to improve the Division’s capital ratios and further strengthen engagement with institutional investors.

In 2017, the “Increasing the Business with International Customers” project was reorganised with the aim of maximising the
synergies between the relationship management for Corporate customers and the investment banking activities of Banca IMI
in the development of international business. Having completed the redesign of the Division’s international vision in terms of
customers, products and geographic coverage and set the order of priorities and action plan for each of the initiatives, the
project has entered into the final stage, consisting of the launch and start-up of the initiatives.

The project focused on the “Selective Growth of the ltalian Corporate sector”, is aimed at adopting a suitable strategy for
expanding business with customers selected on the basis of their growth prospects and their asset and financial stability.
During the year, initiatives were also launched to increase the market shares in lending, global markets and global transaction
banking, by expanding the customer base, increasing product penetration and developing funding synergies with
Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking.

Within the Corporate area, work continued on the commercial development targeted at Financial Institutions customers, in
cooperation with Banca IMI, with the objective of consolidating the Group’s position in certain segments and product areas
already covered (ltalian Banks and Trade Finance) and improving its penetration in the International Subsidiary Banks, Asset
Management, Insurance, Investment Banking, and Transaction Banking segments. Particular focus was given to the
“international growth” project for the development of the international business and the enhancement of the
dedicated coverage.

The International Subsidiary Banks Division is engaged in a vast programme of reviewing the operational model that
envisages strengthening governance, optimising the monitoring processes and support for extending best practices, and
harmonising the service models, commercial offering and IT systems. As regards the reorganisation of the Division, all the
main project streams (including Digical, Nexus, Loans Programme, Covenant project, the IFRS 9 and BFD projects,
Cooperation, and Constellation) are continuing according to the established plans. With regard to the commercial strategy,
work continued on the extension and adaptation of the Parent Company’s commercial policies to the individual international
subsidiary banks.

The Proactive Loan Management project resulted in the application of a new work method which, thanks to the ongoing
monitoring of customer positions, and the prompt identification of situations at risk, has contributed to stemming the
deterioration of credit quality. In 2017, also owing to these loan management programmes, ~21,000 businesses returned their
loans to performing status from non-performing status (~73,000 from 2014), a success that confirms Intesa Sanpaolo’s
intention to be a bank that supports the real economy and which is always committed to seeking sustainable growth.

In accordance with ECB instructions, in 2016 Intesa Sanpaolo initiated measures to keep the stock of NPLs in check. In
March 2017, a three-year NPL Plan was approved, aimed at bringing the NPL ratios back down to pre-crisis levels, through a
coordinated action plan structured for each of the business units involved. The plan takes a holistic approach by tackling all
categories of NPLs and involves all business owners in the Group. The plan activates all the levers that can help achieve its
stated objectives, while also providing suitable mechanisms for the coordination of efforts and the monitoring of
outcomes delivered.

The 2014-2017 Business Plan envisaged the progressive simplification of the corporate structure of the Banca dei Territori
Division, with the aim of achieving a significant reduction in the number of legal entities, from 17 banks at the end of 2013 to
just 6 banks. The first corporate transaction involved the merger of Banca di Credito Sardo and CR Venezia, 100%-owned,
into Intesa Sanpaolo (effective for legal purposes from 10 November 2014). The mergers by incorporation of Banca di Trento
e Bolzano and Banca Monte Parma into Intesa Sanpaolo took effect on 20 July 2015. The merger by incorporation of Cassa
di Risparmio di Rieti, Cassa di Risparmio di Civitavecchia and Cassa di Risparmio della provincia di Viterbo into Intesa
Sanpaolo concluded with effect from 23 November 2015. The merger by incorporation of Banca dell’Adriatico into Intesa
Sanpaolo was completed (taking legal effect on 16 May 2016). The Casse di Risparmio del’Umbria banks were incorporated
into Intesa Sanpaolo on 21 November 2016. On 7 November 2017, the procedures were initiated for the merger by
incorporation of Cassa di Risparmio del Friuli Venezia Giulia into Intesa Sanpaolo (effective July 2018). On 21 December
2017, the Board of Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo approved the project for the merger by incorporation of Banco di Napoli into
Intesa Sanpaolo (effective February 2019). On the same date, the Board of Directors of Cassa dei Risparmi di Forli e della
Romagna approved the project for its merger by incorporation into Intesa Sanpaolo (effective November 2018).
On 27 December 2017, the project for the merger by incorporation of Banca Nuova into Intesa Sanpaolo (effective from
April 2018) was filed with the Turin Company Register.

Lastly, in 2017 the rationalisation of the local presence led to the closure of 114 branches (for a total of 838 closures since
2014, net of three new openings).

c) Capital Light Bank

The Business Plan identifies a clear strategy for optimising capital and liquidity, while deleveraging non-core Group assets
through the Capital Light Bank Division. Compared to the start of the year, the stock of assets contributed with the launch of
the 2014-2017 Business Plan was reduced by approximately 6.2 billion euro, bringing total deleveraging since 2014 to
approximately 23.3 billion euro. In particular, the Sherazade transaction led to the sale of consumer credit NPLs of around
620 million euro (including the former Accedo component). In Ukraine, the loan portfolio of Pravex was shored up (NPL ratio
down to 1.4% from over 75% at the start of the year). At the same time, the organisational structure was rationalised,
reducing the workforce by around 300 people. In Hungary, as part of the Bad Bank programme, the sale was completed of a
package of retail NPLs (“Lara” transaction). At the same time, the continuation of the ordinary collection/sale of individual
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positions led to a total deleveraging of around 830 million euro since the start of the year. In 2017, the business activity of
Intesa Sanpaolo REOCO, the Group company which has the mission of extracting the most value from repossessed
properties and safeguarding the Bank's assets, generated a total benefit for the Group of approximately 15 million euro.
The ordinary business of Provis, instead, led to total deleveraging of around 540 million euro since the start of the year.
Other initiatives saw the conclusion of the consumer credit rationalisation project through the merger by incorporation of
Accedo into Intesa Sanpaolo. In the last quarter, activities continued for the sale of non-strategic investments, with the full
sale of the equity interest held in NB Renaissance Partners and F2I.

d) People and investments as key enablers

The objective of reskilling 4,500 people and reallocating them to high priority initiatives in the Group was achieved in 2016,
more than a year ahead of the deadline set by the Business Plan. This enabled the Bank to maintain the employment levels,
helping to strengthen the sense of belonging to the company while preserving the know-how and professional expertise within
the Group.

The structures responsible for governing innovation are now well established as a centre of expertise within the Group. It
works constantly with the business divisions to steer its work, guaranteeing the optimisation of innovation investments and the
identification of concrete solutions that can be applied to the benefit of customers.

With regard to investments as enablers, the “Projects” section of this Executive Summary provides a brief description of the
project initiatives that have had the greatest developments in the year, with particular reference to projects with cross-cutting
impacts across the Group.

The new 2018-2021 Business Plan

Intesa Sanpaolo achieved excellent results during the 2014-2017 Business Plan and laid the foundations for being highly
competitive in the years to come, through a major transformation of its model business and significant investments in digital
technology.

In a new scenario significantly impacted by recent industry trends, including regulatory developments, Intesa Sanpaolo
aspires to become the number one Bank in Europe in all the key indicators that will form the basis for future success in the
banking industry: (i) asset quality; (ii) profit quality; and (iii) level of efficiency.

The Group also aims to strengthen its leadership in Corporate Social Responsibility and leave a positive impact on society,
while also increasing its own internal inclusion, without any discrimination.

In a new highly digitalised and competitive world, the Bank will continue to pursue its goals by leveraging its solid
fundamentals and values and the proven ability of a results orientated delivery machine, effectively steered by our People and
supported by a state-of-the-art digital platform.

The new 2018-2021 Business Plan seeks to maintain solid and sustainable value creation and distribution for Shareholders
and to build the #1 Bank in Europe on solid fundamentals and values.

The pillars of the 2018-2021 Business Plan are:

—  “Significant de-risking at no cost to Shareholders”;

—  “Cost reduction through further simplification of the operating model”;

—  “Revenue growth capturing new business opportunities”.

The 2018-2021 Business Plan’s top priority is the effective management of NPLs and will be achieved, without a negative

impact on value distribution to Shareholders, through the implementation of several initiatives:

— carve-out of a state-of-the-art loan recovery platform, to improve recovery rates and extend the scope of activities;

— readiness for future NPL disposals at a price in line with book value;

—  “Pulse”, a new way of managing retail early delinquency, and positioning as one of the leading operators in early
delinquency recovery;

— scale-up of proactive credit portfolio management, aimed at significantly reducing the Group’s Unlikely to Pay level and
optimising its risk-return profile.

As a result of these initiatives, the risk profile will further improve in 2021, with best-in-class cost of risk and a very low

NPL stock.

The importance of the de-risking work for Intesa Sanpaolo is reflected in the sizing of the designated units involved, which

were already strengthened during the last Business Plan and will be further reinforced during the new plan.

The second pillar aims to strengthen Intesa Sanpaolo’s position as a European leader in cost management, through:
workforce reduction and renewal, to be achieved through voluntary exits and new hires, redeployment of excess capacity
towards higher value-added jobs and gradual deployment of the new “Lavoro misto” flexible work contract';

— optimisation of the branch strategy, by continuing the streamlining of local coverage with the closure of additional
branches and the development of Banca 5 (former “Banca ITB”);

—  proactive management of the real estate portfolio, to optimise the physical presence in Italy and harness the potential
value of the Group’s assets, through the creation of a new headquarters in Milan (ISP City”) and the disposal of
redundant spaces throughout Italy;

—  reduction of the Group’s legal entities, through their merger into the Parent Company;

— reduction in administrative expenses by strengthening best practice in cost management and creating a dedicated unit at
Group level, reporting directly to the CEO.

" Two parallel contracts in place for the same person, one part-time contract as a bank employee and one as a financial advisor.
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The third pillar of the Business Plan seeks to increase operating income by capturing significant business opportunities in all

the Divisions:

—  becoming one of the top four Italian P&C insurance companies and the number one in retail non-motor;

— consolidating the domestic leadership in private banking and expanding further in other geographical areas, also by
leveraging the increasing customer digitalisation, with the aim of becoming the fifth largest Private Bank in Europe for
assets under management and reinforcing its current position in third place in Europe for gross profit;

— enhancing asset management operations in Europe, through the strengthening of Eurizon Capital and possible
partnerships with industry players;

— increasing the penetration in assets under management, for the Banca dei Territori Network, by strengthening the
advisory model and introducing new digital features and innovations to the service model;

— significantly developing operations with Businesses and Corporates, through a distinctive offering and service model;

— establishing a new focused strategy for the International Subsidiary Banks, aimed at optimising the international
presence and maximising synergies within the Group;

— developing a major presence in the Chinese wealth management market, which in the medium-to-long term will
significantly contribute to the Group’s earnings, through various initiatives for Yi Tsai, Penghua and Bank of Qingdao.

The first enabler is our People, who continue to be Intesa Sanpaolo’s most important resource and who will benefit from a

series of dedicated initiatives:

— strengthening of employee commitment through long-term incentive programmes linked to the main Business Plan
indicators;

—  promotion of inclusion and continuous open listening to personnel;

— international programme for young talent, to enhance the middle management community through tailored training
programmes and career paths;

— training and learning programmes, scaling up the Group’s digital learning platform and increasing the number of training
hours. This will enable the redeployment of excess capacity to higher value-added activities in line with the Plan
priorities;

—  work flexibility programmes, with a significant increase in the use of smart working;

— organisational empowerment, with the implementation of a new international HR platform aimed at ensuring internal
fairness, in addition to the extension of the “Management Succession Plan”.

The second enabling factor is the completion of the digital transformation, by leveraging the significant investments made in

the previous Business Plan, focusing on the development of:

— amulti-channel customer platform, aimed at providing a state-of-the-art digital offering to all the customer segments;

— digitalisation of processes and products;

— data management and cyber security;

— Advanced Analytics, also by leveraging partnerships with leading start-ups in the areas of Machine Learning and Atrtificial
Intelligence;

— an innovation culture within the Group, by strengthening dialogue with FinTechs and industry leaders in emerging
technologies, incubating new ideas, and scaling up venture investments (managed through Neva Finventures).

Based on the guidelines set out in the 2018-2021 Business Plan and the strategic pillars (i) “Significant de-risking at no cost to

Shareholders”, (ii) “Cost reduction through further simplification of the operating model” and (iii) “Revenue growth capturing

new business opportunities”, enabled by our People and Digital Technologies, Intesa Sanpaolo has set itself the following

targets for 2021:

— Netincome of 6 billion euro (14.6% ROTE);

—  Operating income of 20.8 billion euro;

—  Best-in-class Cost/Income, at 45.4%;

—  Cost of risk at pre-crisis levels (~40bps);

—  Gross NPL ratio at ~6% and Net NPL ratio below 3%, in line with the levels of the major European competitors;

—  Very solid capital position, with Fully Loaded CET1 Ratio down from 14% in 2017 (~13% including the IFRS 9 FTA
impact) to ~13% in 2021 (with ~(80) bps impact of Basel IV after 2021 offset by business evolution);

—  Cash dividend payout ratio gradually moving from 85% in 2018, to 80% in 2019, 75% in 2020 and 70% in 2021.

The 2018-2021 Business Plan will enable the Bank to be competitive in the new macroeconomics scenario and to maintain its
leadership in Italy, while also strengthening its competitiveness at international level. Intesa Sanpaolo has already established
a unique business model, with a low risk profile. Through the new Business Plan, the Bank will further strengthen the
distinctiveness of its business model, achieving a unique risk profile in terms of illiquid assets, and will continue its
transformation into a wealth management and protection company, also expanding its leadership to the area of
insurance protection.

The successful implementation of the Business Plan will enable Intesa Sanpaolo achieve the objective of generating a return

above the cost of capital over the Plan horizon. In addition, the objective of strong and sustainable value creation will enable

value distribution to all the stakeholders, with a contribution of over 300 billion euro to the real economy:

— to Shareholders, through dividend payouts;

— to households and businesses, through new medium/long-term lending to the real economy (around 250 billion euro
cumulative);

— to employees, through wages (around 24 billion euro cumulative) and significant number of training hours (~46 million
cumulative);

—  to suppliers, through purchases and investments (around 11 billion euro cumulative);

— to the public sector, through tax generated (around 13 billion euro cumulative);
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to the non-profit sector, through new loans in support of social ventures (around 0.7 billion euro cumulative) and social
impact initiatives.

Projects

In 2017, the Group’s spending for projects was around 1.2 billion euro, in line with the previous year. Projects concerned the

following macro-areas:

- Regulatory Projects, to meet regulatory requirements, which represent approximately 28% of total expenses, up on 2016;

- Maintenance, IT Transformation and Operating Excellence Projects, to adjust/upgrade systems to next-generation
technologies, which represent approximately 23%;

- Major Transformation projects, also in the area of Digitalisation, representing around 22%;

- Other Business initiatives, representing approximately 11%;

- Projects aimed at extending/integrating the target model to all Group entities (systems, processes and procedures),
which have an impact of approximately 16%.

The component of innovation, which is transversal across all the areas mentioned above, includes development initiatives

regarding:

- customers, including through new services and products via digital distribution channels;

- the bank, reconsidering the traditional operating model, promoting new professions and new models of cooperation;

- the country’s economic activity, facilitating its growth and sustainability using approaches differentiated by industry, which
capture and stimulate the production and technological innovation under way.

The main activities carried out are shown below, with specific reference to those that have a transversal impact on the Group.

Integrated Multi-channel Platform

The aim of the Group’s multichannel strategy is to redefine the customer experience, by integrating all the physical and virtual
channels, through the simplification of processes and more effective and efficient communication. Initiatives in 2017 included
the release of the processes for the sale of personal loans and current accounts to new customers from the showcase
website and the start of the analyses for the extension of the multi-channel processes to the Business segment. The new
process for the sale of credit cards to new customers was also released in the second half.

In December, the sale of the new “prestito diretto” product (special-purpose personal loan for the purchase of goods and
services sold by companies that have signed specific agreements with the Bank) was launched on the Internet banking
channel, with the issue of the rules relating to the granting of the new product.

Digitisation of Group Core Processes

The digitisation of the Core Processes was launched through the Group’s “Digital Factory” in the second half of 2015 with the

goal of upgrading the operating model, accelerating innovation and digitising processes, disseminating a new way of working

based on internal and external cooperation and co-creation, starting from the customers’ perspective.

In 2017, work was completed for the processes of Business & Corporate Proactive Lending, Specialist International Lending,

Remote Banking Contracts, Online Branch, Presentation of Portfolios and Mortgages to the Bank’s Personnel. Work also

continued on the processes relating to Retail Management and Proactive Lending, Seizures, Authorisations, Collation and

Non-Performing Loans. Lastly, three new processes were activated:

- Digital Wallet and payments engine, to provide a solution, built into IntesaSanpaolomobile’s App, that will give simple and
immediate access to all the digital services for payments and the sending of cash between private individuals;

- Insurance Wallet, aimed at creating a product that can be activated at branches and on a self-service basis and is
continuously available through the multi-channel and mobile platforms, to cover customer insurance needs in the area of
protection and P&C;

- Industrial Dialogue: a workgroup set up in December to develop an instrument for the Relationship Managers to help
them improve the effectiveness of the business customer relationship management and industrial dialogue.

Big Financial Data (BFD)/Big Data Engine

The operational phase of the project was launched with the goal of structural improvement of management of all of the Bank's
data by defining and implementing technological and organisational interventions.

The Big Data Factory activities continued in 2017 (involving inter-departmental teams working in a co-location environment on
a Digital Factory model), and are now focusing more on priority business chains.

To this end, a specific Big Data Engine programme was initiated in the first half, focused on the use of the data and on the
updating/supplementation of the main BFD Governance Areas. The objective is to achieve a shared target architecture design
through a structured project aimed at tapping into key interdepartmental engines used by the business chains and at
redesigning specific engines to feed data directly from the BFD.

G20 Reforms Project

The G20 Reforms project is intended to guarantee the adaptation of the operating model for the Group in order to respond to
the regulatory obligations arising from the reforms undertaken by the G20 with regard to investments in financial instruments.
In relation to the EMIR - European Market Infrastructure Regulation, in 2017 work was completed for the transition to the
target regulatory reporting system (FCHub) for all the asset classes and for the entire Group, except for the International
Subsidiary Banks, whose release is planned for 2018.

Following the entry into force of the MIFID Il Directive (January 2018) which adds Forex Forward and Forex Swap products to
the scope of the EMIR, the functional analyses were examined and the necessary implementations were made across the
entire value chain affected.

In relation to the Dodd Frank Act, the preparations were carried out for the alignment of the IT systems and processes in
response to two no action letters from the US CFTC — Commodity Futures Trading Commission. The documentary framework
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(policies and procedures) was updated during the year, following the requests for certification of the documentation from the
US Regulator (NFA — National Futures Association).

In relation to the Volcker Rule, the work was completed for the preparation and publication of the documentary framework.
The development work was also completed for the automatic monitoring of the positions held in structured funds and products
for Banca IMI and Intesa Sanpaolo.

IFRS 9

At the end of 2015, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group initiated a project for the implementation of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments, the
new financial reporting standard that replaced IAS 39 from 1 January 2018. The introduction of IFRS 9 will impact the
methods of classification and measurement of financial instruments and the calculation logics and methods of value
adjustments. Given the pervasive impacts of IFRS 9, both on business and under an organisational, application and reporting
point of view, the project was aimed at understanding the various areas of influence of the Standard — grouped under
“Classification & Measurement”, “Impairment”, and “Hedge Accounting”; determining its impact in qualitative and quantitative
terms, and identifying and implementing the practical and organisational measures required for consistent, systematic and
effective adoption within the Group as a whole and for each of the subsidiaries of which it is composed.

For a detailed description on the projects and their results, see the information provided in the chapter on the
Accounting Policies.

Cyber Security Program

The programme, which ran over the two-year period 2016/2017, aimed to increase the Group's maturity through more efficient
and effective threat management, as well as strengthen the capabilities and structures needed to mitigate the risk induced by
cyber attacks. The key activities completed during the year included the progressive implementation of the ISBC Integrated
Control Model; the identification and sharing of the guidelines for upgrading the methodology adopted for IT risk analysis with
the Enterprise Risk Management Head Office Department and the accompanying 2017 campaign; the evolution of the CERT
(Computer Emergency Response Team) measures for the Group; the verification by the Agency for a Digital Italy (AGID) of
the full compliance of the Intesa Sanpaolo Certification Authority (release of certificates for digital signatures); the analysis of
the EBA RTS technical standards for the regulation of the PSD2 electronic payment services; the consolidation of the Internet
Banking Security infrastructure for the protection of business services and the addition of new advanced authentication
features (Smart Authentication, OTP Software, Cardless Withdrawals, Push Notifications); the activation of the whitelisting
solution on ATMs for the monitoring and real-time blockage of unauthorised software; and the roll-out of the operating model
for the new Global Security Operation Center (Global SOC) service.

The new Security Regulatory Framework has also introduced a new flow towards the corporate bodies, the Security Plan,
within the Integrated Internal Control System Regulations, which, in addition to providing an overall assessment of the state of
the Group’s IT security, also details the evolution of the threats and opportunities, the strategic objectives and the
development and investment plans. The Security Plan will also include the initiatives for the continuation of the Cyber Security
Program and the extension of the Remediation Plan.

New Group Register

The aims of this project are to define a new operating model for the acquisition, management and control of the personal data
of customers, economic groups and related parties at Group level, to make a new single infrastructure for the management of
customers available with innovative features, actionable in the various companies of the Group, and to enable the unification
of the view on a single customer in relation to all the existing contact channels.

The first phase of the pilot companies started at the end of the year, and work also continued on the preparation and planning
of the activities for the other legal entities that will migrate in 2018.

Processes Integrated Governance

The project begun in April 2016, with the aim of redefining the processes tree from an end-to-end perspective, the
management model in terms of integration with the risks and related controls, a new classification of risks and controls, as
well as simplifying the current body of regulations. The initiative also aims to define a method and implement a tool for
measuring the performance of the processes, using three indicators (effectiveness, efficiency and quality) to which specific
performance indicators are connected for each process being measured. In 2017, the final version of the new processes tree
was established, with a total of 264 end-to-end processes out of 370 having been revised and released.

Banca 5 Project

In February, the project work was started for the integration of Banca 5 (former Banca ITB) into the Group, while maintaining
its distinctive characteristics. The main priority is the adoption of the regulatory structure, adapting it to Banca 5’s specific
features where necessary.

With regard to the launch of Banca 5’s commercial offering (payment account with debit card, bearer rechargeable card,
personal loans, SPID (digital identity), digital non-captive point of sale, small-ticket insurance products) a pilot study was
conducted on 5 non-captive points of sale in July and, in conjunction with the participation at the Rimini Meeting
(20-26 August, where two instant-issuing devices for the direct on-site production of bearer rechargeable Flash cards with
customisable layout were present), an additional 245 non-captive points of sale were activated with a plan for the extension to
around 6,000 merchants.

Data Collection on Credit/Credit Risk (AnaCredit)

EU Regulation 2016/867, issued by the ECB on 18 May 2016, introduces a new collection of credit and credit risk data,
known as AnaCredit, which requires national central banks to collect harmonised and extremely granular information on loans
and guarantees referring, at an initial stage, to counterparties identified as legal entities.

To ensure a framework for the new reporting requirement, a specific project was formally started up in March 2017 and fully
included within the ECB regulatory requirements programme. The new requirement represents a major opportunity for the
Group to enhance the target IT architectural model for the entire credit risk area, enabling it to perform reporting and
management, strategic and innovation roles, and be potentially relieved of predefined updating restraints.
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The first set of reporting, for the domestic scope, must be prepared and sent to the Bank of Italy with the reporting date of
30 June 2018. To this end, the target architectural scenario has been defined and the adjustment and contingency solutions
needed to ensure compliance with the first regulatory deadlines (June and September 2018) have been identified. The Project
forms part of the priority areas of the Big Data Engine Programme within the Big Financial Data initiative.

“Lavoro Misto” flexible work (Minotauro Project)

In the Protocol of 1 February 2017 for the sustainable development of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, the Parent Company Intesa
Sanpaolo and the trade unions agreed on the trial — for the first time in Italy — of an innovative working method, referred to as
“Lavoro Misto” (flexible work), with the aim of providing a service more oriented to the diverse customer needs and expanding
business opportunities.

A “mixed” employment framework was created, for work both as a permanent part-time employee and as a contractor for out-
of-branch financial advisory services, to be offered to people from outside the Group, as well as the current Relationship
Managers at the Banca dei Territori Division.

In the second half, the various project initiatives within the Personnel and Organisation Department where completed, which
mainly involved personnel recruitment, training and management and the establishment of the organisational and operational
model in support of the activities of the personnel hired during the period.

The impacts of the new model were mapped to establish the new roles/responsibilities and processes. The integration
procedures for the personnel of the former Venetian banks and the extension of the model to the “existing employees” are
currently being defined.

Integration of the Former Venetian banks into Intesa Sanpaolo

This project is aimed at ensuring the complete integration of the former Venetian banks with the monitoring of progress in

specific project initiatives/areas.

The project was organised taking into account the need to oversee matters relating to due diligence, urgent and mandatory

requirements, integration of the international networks, migration, and alignment to the target model.

With regard to the last two aspects in particular, the analysis of the product catalogue and identification of the related IT gaps

and possible alternative non-IT solutions to minimise the changes required to applications have been completed; the

geographical planning has been established; the design of the Business and Retail Network has been consolidated; the list of

physical consolidations accompanying the migration has been finalised; and all the communications to customers have been

prepared. The plan has also been prepared for the training and mentoring at the ISP Branches for the colleagues of the

former Venetian banks, based on criteria of geographical proximity, through an ad hoc training platform and procedure

simulators to provide training on the Branch operations.

The schedule for the migration to the target system is as follows:

- Pilot Event (27 November): integration of four branches of both the former Banca Popolare di Vicenza network and the
former Veneto Banca network;

- Big Bang Event (11 December): integration of the remaining branches of the former Banca Popolare di Vicenza network
and the former Veneto Banca network, with accompanying consolidation of the first 120 branches;

- Merger by incorporation of Banca Nuova into Intesa Sanpaolo (within the first four months of 2018);

- Creation of IT clone for Banca Apulia (within the first four months of 2018).

Work continued according to schedule, and both the pilot event and the weekend migration activities were successfully

completed.

The 738 branches involved operated regularly (opening and closing without any problem issues).

In addition, in order to provide adequate support, the mentoring arrangements have been extended beyond the four weeks

planned.

Work started on the preparation of the new project structure for the integration of Banca Apulia and Banca Nuova into the

target system and the support to the liquidators of the Selling Banks for the establishment of the operating processes with

interaction to and from Intesa Sanpaolo was initiated and managed.

Retail Early Warning System Project

The aim of this project is to strengthen and develop the assessment processes for counterparty risk and the “interception” and
“classification” of non-performing loans, through the implementation of an Early Warning System (EWS). This system enables:
- the monitoring of a list of impairment triggers for the classification;

- the calculation and monitoring of a set of indicators that reveal signs of deterioration of credit positions.

In the Early Warning System developed, the level of risk of a counterparty is placed on a scale of six colours in increasing
order of risk: green, light green, orange, red, light blue, and dark blue.

In 2017, the system was activated for Retail and Retail SME customers, as part of the progressive rollout of the new Early
Warning System (EWS) to all the regulatory segments,. In 2018, the EWS will replace the previous instrument with regard to
the overall indication of the status of the counterparties and the risk of deterioration in their credit quality in the short term.
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Main risks and uncertainties

The macroeconomic scenario and the high volatility of the financial markets require constant monitoring of the factors that
make it possible to pursue sustainable profitability: high liquidity, funding capacity, low leverage, adequate capital base, and
prudent asset valuations.

Group liquidity remains high: as at 31 December 2017, both the regulatory indicators (Liquidity Coverage Ratio - LCR and Net
Stable Funding Ratio -NSFR), also adopted as internal liquidity risk measurement metrics, were well above fully phased-in
requirements established by Regulation 575/2013 and Directive 2013/36/EU. At the end of December, the eligible liquidity
reserves for the Central Banks — including the components relating to the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare Vicenza and
Veneto Banca — came to 171 billion euro (150 billion euro at the end of December 2016), of which 98 billion euro, net of
haircut, was unencumbered (96 billion euro at the end of December 2016). The loan to deposit ratio at the end of
December 2017, calculated as the ratio of loans to customers to direct deposits from banking business, came to 97%.

In terms of funding, the widespread branch network remains a stable, reliable source: 74% of direct deposits from banking
business come from retail operations (315 billion euro). In addition, 2 billion euro of Additional Tier 1 instruments, 2.5 billion
euro of unsecured senior Eurobonds, 1 billion euro of covered bonds, 2.5 billion euro of unsecured senior bonds and
500 million euro of green bonds were placed during the year.

With regard to the targeted refinancing operation TLTRO II, at the end of December 2017, the Group's participation amounted
to 57 billion euro, equal to the maximum borrowing allowance (46 billion euro as at 31 December 2016). Including the
components relating to the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca, the amount as at
31 December 2017 was approximately 64 billion euro.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group's leverage was 6.4% as at 31 December 2017.

The capital base also remains high. Own funds, risk weighted assets and the capital ratios at 31 December 2017 are
calculated according to the harmonised rules and regulations for banks and investment companies contained in Directive
2013/36/EU (CRD 1V) and in (EU) Regulation 575/2013 (CRR) of 26 June 2013, which have transposed the banking
supervision standards defined by the Basel Committee (the Basel 3 Framework) to European Union laws, and on the basis of
Bank of Italy Circulars 285, 286 and 154.

The calculation took account of the risk-weighted assets of the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and
Veneto Banca.

At the end of 2017, total Own Funds came to 51,373 million euro, against risk-weighted assets of 286,825 million euro, which
reflected primarily the credit and counterparty risk and, to a lesser extent, the operational and market risk.

The Total Capital Ratio stood at 17.9%, while the ratio of the Group’s Tier 1 capital to its total risk-weighted assets (Tier 1
ratio) was 15.2%. The ratio of Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) to risk-weighted assets (the Common Equity Tier 1 ratio)
was 13.3%.

As the regulatory conditions for its inclusion (Art. 26, paragraph 2 of the CRR) were met, Common Equity Tier 1 capital
includes net income for the year and, consequently, the related dividend proposed.

With regard to the insurance segment, the measurements of the regulatory Solvency Ratio of the Intesa Sanpaolo Vita
Insurance Group, including Fideuram Vita — which represent the same scope as the Insurance Division of the Parent
Company Intesa Sanpaolo, in terms of entities — indicated a ratio of 236% as at 31 December 2017.

The Group’s risk profile remained within the limits approved by the Risk Appetite Framework, consistent with the intention to
continue to privilege commercial banking operations.

In relation to market risk, the Group’s average risk profile in 2017 was 69 million euro, compared to an average of around
95 million euro in 2016.

The macroeconomic environment and the persisting financial market volatility heighten the complexity of assessing credit risk
and measuring financial assets.

Intesa Sanpaolo has developed a set of instruments which ensure analytical control over the quality of loans to customers
and financial institutions, and of exposures subject to country risk.

With regard to performing loans to customers, including the loans of the Aggregate Set, “collective” adjustments, equal to
1,299 million euro, provide a coverage ratio of 0.4%.

The methods used to classify non-performing loans and to measure both non-performing and performing loans ensure that
the impacts of the deteriorating economic environment on a debtor’'s position are promptly recognised, with continuous
revision of the values of the loans that already shows signs of distress and of loans with no obvious signs of impairment. All
categories of non-performing loans were assessed using the criteria of maximum prudence, as highlighted by the substantial
average coverage percentages for bad loans (63.1%) and unlikely to pay positions (28.4%).

Constant attention has been paid to the valuation of financial items. The majority of financial assets are measured at fair
value, since classified as held for trading using the fair value option, under assets available for sale, or represented by
hedging derivatives.

The fair value measurement of financial assets was carried out as follows: approximately 82% using level 1 inputs, around
14% using level 2 inputs and only close to 4% using level 3 inputs. Among the financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit and loss, most of the financial instruments (approximately 87%) were measured using the level 2 approach.

As regards the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s sovereign debt exposure, at the end of December exposure in securities to the
Italian government amounted to a total of approximately 76 billion euro, in addition to receivables for approximately 13 billion
euro.
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The Group banks’ exposure in securities amounted to approximately 27 billion euro, of which approximately 13.6 billion euro
up to 5 years (approximately 50%), with a duration of about 5 years. On the other hand, the duration of the insurance portfolio
is longer, at 6 years, consistently with that of liabilities.

Investment levels in structured credit products and hedge funds remained low. The former generated a positive contribution of
28 million euro during the year, compared to a positive result of 13 million euro for 2016.

For the hedge funds, the investments in this segment in 2017 generated a profit of 16 million euro compared to a loss of 35
million euro for 2016.

As regards taxes, deferred tax assets were posted in the consolidated financial statements for 13,199 million euro, of which
8,746 million euro can be converted into tax credits, along with deferred tax liabilities for 2,145 million euro.

In compliance with IAS 12, the amount of deferred tax assets must be tested each year to determine whether there is a
qualified probability that they will be recovered and, thus, to justify their recognition and maintenance in the financial
statements (“probability test”).

The analysis conducted indicated a taxable base that was more than sufficient and adequate to allow recovery of the deferred
tax assets carried in the financial statements as at 31 December 2017.

In volatile market environments, measuring the recoverable amount of intangible assets is also particularly important.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives (insurance portfolio), the amounts of which (a total of 187 million euro) are being
gradually amortised (with 26 million euro of amortisation recognised in the income statement for 2017) were analysed with
respect to their volume, profitability and discount rates in order to detect any impairment indicators. These analyses did not
identify any critical positions. During the year, following the business combination involving the former Venetian banks, an
amount of 80 million euro was recognised in the balance sheet for the asset management relationships, allocated to the
Banca dei Territori CGU. No indicators of impairment were detected for these intangible assets at the end of the year, in view
of the short period of time since their initial recognition and the amortisation for the period already recorded (3 million euro).
As regards intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, represented by goodwill (4,056 million euro) and brand name
(1,882 million euro), for the 2017 Financial Statements the method for determining the value was the same used in previous
years, based on the calculation of the value in use, i.e. the current value of future cash flows that the Group can expect to
generate. A period of five years was adopted as the forecasting period for this purpose, as in the 2016 Financial Statements,
i.e. the five-year period 2018-2022. Specifically, for the first 4 years of that period, the detailed estimates set out in the 2018-
2021 Business Plan, approved by the Board of Directors on 6 February 2018, were used. The flows for 2022 were estimated
through inertial tracking of the flows for 2021, based on the forecasts relating to the macroeconomic scenario, thus, without
considering the effect of managerial leverage. Among various financial valuation techniques, such as that used for the
estimate of the value in use, the value of a company at the end of the flow forecast period, the so-called terminal value, is
normally determined by infinite compounding, at an appropriate “g” rate, of the cash flow achievable "at full capacity”. With
regard to the impairment test as at 31 December 2017, for the purposes of the Terminal Value, 2022, the last year of the
analytical forecast, separating out the main non-recurring components, was projected in perpetuity. The cash flows so
determined have been discounted, net of the “g” long term growth rate, by applying a discount rate expressing the cost of
capital and calculated as the sum of the returns on a risk-free investment and a risk premium, in turn dependent on the
specific risks implicit in the business activities and in country risk. In defining the discount rates, given the extremely low
market rates at present, associated with contingent expansionary monetary policies adopted by the ECB, for the purpose of
the Terminal Value those rates were prudentially considered risk free and with country risk spreads globally higher by over
120 bps compared to the current year-end values used for the discounting of flows for the “explicit” horizon.

As this valuation method has yielded value in use for the various CGUs which are higher than their respective book values, no
value adjustments have been made to intangible assets with indefinite useful life.

Since the value in use is determined by using estimates and assumptions that may contain some level of uncertainty,
sensitivity analyses were carried out to verify the sensitivity of the results obtained to changes in the parameters and in the
underlying hypotheses. In particular, the impact on the value in use of an increase in discounting rates of up to 50 bps or a
decrease in the growth rate for Terminal value purposes of 50 bps was verified. In addition, analyses were conducted of
changes in the value in use resulting from a 10% decrease in Terminal Value flows. These analyses show that such changes
would not result in a value in use lower than the book value for any of the CGUs.

In terms of market values, there was a rise in the price of the Intesa Sanpaolo (ordinary) stock over the course of 2017
(up 14%). The performance of the price of Intesa Sanpaolo stock in 2017 moved in line with that of the FTSE MIB index
during the same period (around +14%) and the index of Italian banking securities (around +15%). The additional rise in the
price in January 2018 brought the value of the stock to a level close to the Group’s equity per share. The target prices
published by the main investment houses, which were also up significantly on the end of 2016 (+20%), were substantially in
line with the Group's equity per share.

Kk dodokok

In general, the information on risks and uncertainties to which the Intesa Sanpaolo Group is exposed, briefly illustrated above,
is provided in this Report on operations and in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The risks associated with the trends in the global economy and financial markets are discussed in the introduction to the
Report on operations, in the chapter on the macroeconomic scenario and in the following chapter on the forecast for 2018.
The assumptions on which our valuations and forecasts are based with regard to the verification of the values of intangible
assets and goodwill are described in Part B of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, in the section on
impairment tests.

Capital soundness is dealt with briefly in this chapter, whereas a more detailed discussion can be found in Part F of the Notes
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Information on risks at a general level, and in particular on financial risks (credit risks and market risks), operational risks and
the risks of insurance companies are detailed in Part E of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

With regard to the going concern assumption, the Directors of Intesa Sanpaolo re-affirm that they have a reasonable certainty
that the company will continue in operational existence in the foreseeable future and consequently have prepared the
financial statements for 2017 on a going concern basis. The Directors have not detected any uncertainties in the asset and
financial structure or in the performance of operations that question the going concern assumption.
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The macroeconomic context and the banking system

The macroeconomic context

The economy and the financial and currency markets

In 2017, world economic growth strengthened its pace and became more widespread. Growth in international trade
intensified. Inflation rebounded, partly driven by the strong recovery in oil prices, but was still moderate. In many cases,
economic figures proved surprisingly positive.

After a weak first half of the year, the US economy picked up again, pushing the unemployment rate below 4% of the labour
force. In addition, a tax reform was approved at the end of the year, which could fuel stronger growth in domestic demand in
2018. Faced with the increasing risk of the economy overheating, the Federal Reserve tightened its monetary policy stance.
Official interest rates were raised three times in 2017 by a total of 75 basis points, and the Central Bank is signalling to the
markets that this pace may be maintained in the current year. The Federal Reserve has also started a gradual reduction in
reinvestments of principal payments at portfolio maturity, which will lead to a reduction in the surplus reserves in the banking
system. For the time being, however, inflation is still moderate.

The Eurozone witnessed stunning growth during the year, far above the standards of recent years and the forecasts from a
year ago. In the third quarter, the latest period with official data available, the change in GDP compared to one year before
was 2.8%. Recoveries in exports and fixed investments more than offset the marginal slowdown in consumption. Growth in
economic activity across all countries in the Eurozone drove employment figures up and the unemployment rate down to
8.7% in November. Improved confidence figures were favoured by various factors, including general election outcomes in the
Netherlands and France, which dispelled the risk of a victory by Euro-sceptic parties and, therefore, of major crisis in the
Eurozone. Instead, the outcome of the French general election has raised expectations of fresh stimulus to the Eurozone
reform process. The start of negotiations for the United Kingdom’s exit from the European Union did not have any major
repercussions, with the exception of the impact on trade flows of a devalued Sterling.

Italy has also fully participated in the improved European economic climate and the recovery underway. In the third quarter,
the annual growth rate of GDP reached 1.7%, the highest level after the short-lived rebound in 2010-11. Increased confidence
in the demand outlook has also started to generate a recovery in investment. The consensus estimates of average annual
GDP growth in 2017 and 2018 have been revised upwards. Employment growth slowed due to the phasing out of
extraordinary measures which buoyed growth through 2016, though it remained sufficient to drive the unemployment rate
down to 11% in November. Higher energy prices and growth in demand began to impact inflation, which rose temporarily to
2% in April, but then fell again. In terms of public finances, accelerating growth in the primary budget surplus was insufficient
to significantly lower the debt-to-GDP ratio, which is practically unchanged according to the European Commission estimates.
The European Central Bank began to adapt its monetary policy stance to improvements in economic conditions and the
balance of risks. After announcing an initial reduction in its securities purchase programme from 80 to 60 billion euro as of
April, in June the ECB dropped any reference to the likelihood of further interest rate cuts. The ECB later extended the
purchase programme to the period January-September 2018, though with a monthly volume halved to 30 billion euro. The
ECB continues to forecast a rise in official rates only once the asset purchase programme has been wound up.

The ECB’s monetary policy stance led to a strengthening of the exchange rate and a rise in medium/long-term interest rates.
The ten-year Bund yield, which was negative at the end of 2016, had risen to 0.60% at the end of the third quarter and posted
an average of 0.39% in the fourth quarter. The ten-year BTP yield rose slightly, ending the year at 2.0%, just above the level
at the end of 2016 (1.83%). The spread with German bonds came under pressure for a short time during the French electoral
campaign, after which it fell to a low of 133 basis points in December, ending the year at 157 basis points.

The euro/dollar exchange rate rose almost constantly between January and September, gaining an overall 14% to end the
year at 1.20.

In the international stock markets the trend was positive overall in 2017, as risk aversion in investors gradually fell and stock
prices showed lower volatility.

Various factors contributed to propping up stock markets, including the strengthening of world economic growth, both in the
emerging countries and the major advanced economies, and positive economic figures that have led to an upward revision of
growth forecasts, particularly for the Eurozone, including ltaly. Moreover, in the early part of the year, the political risk posed
by elections in the Netherlands and, in particular, France failed to materialise, with pro-euro and pro-European Union political
parties emerging from the vote with stronger consensus, which helped lower the risk premium on stocks. Lastly, the visibility
of company profits gradually increased during the year, on the back of the improvement in business profits.

After dropping to a relative low in February, stock markets in the Eurozone progressively rose, driven by favourable
developments in company earnings. The first quarter of 2017, in particular, delivered several positive surprises, accompanied
by frequent confirmation or improvement in guidance for yearly results.

In the second half of the year, European stock markets further consolidated their increases, in the wake of company results
that confirmed the steady improvement in earnings margins, despite the strengthening of the euro exchange rate against the
dollar, which put a partial brake on growth in some cases.

The Euro Stoxx index was up by 10.1%. The DAX 30 posted a rise of 12.5% at the end of the period, and the CAC 40
performed strongly with an increase of 9.3%, while the IBEX 35 index slightly underperformed, with a rise of 7.4%. Outside
the Eurozone, the Swiss market index SMI rose by 14.1%, while the United Kingdom's FTSE 100 index ended 2017 up 7.6%.
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In the US, the S&P 500 closed the period with a strong rise (+19.4%), while the Nasdaq Composite Index of technology
stocks outperformed with a rise of +28.2%. The overall performance of the main Asian stock markets was positive: the
Chinese SSE A-Share benchmark index ended the year up by 6.6%, while the Nikkei 225 index posted a rise of +19.1% for
the year.

The overall performance of the Italian stock market was satisfactory, also driven by the recovery in the banking sector (which
represents 26% of the FTSE MIB Index) and the progressive improvement in economic growth outlooks and company
earnings. The FTSE MIB index closed 2017 up 13.6%, while the FTSE Italia All Share posted a slightly higher increase
(+15.6%). Mid-cap stocks performed very strongly, with the FTSE Italia STAR index up 34.7% at the end of the year. The
fundamentals were also accompanied by the positive effect of the Individual Savings Plans, which invest a significant
proportion of their funds in shares not included in the FTSE MIB benchmark.

The European corporate bond markets ended 2017 positively, with risk premiums (measured as ASW — asset swap spread)
down compared to the beginning of the year, although slightly higher than the lows reached in the first sessions of November.
Also in 2017, the monetary policies of the central banks (and in particular the ECB’s corporate securities purchase
programme - CSPP) continued to be among the most important factors supporting the markets. At the end of December,
corporate securities purchases by the ECB totalled around 132 billion euro (with a monthly average of 7 billion euro since
June 2016), of which around 11% involving securities of ltalian issuers, according to the central bank's figures. Markets also
benefited from positive macroeconomic fundamentals, with moderate growth coupled with only marginal inflationary
pressures.

The key catalyst for markets in the first part of the year were expectations over major general elections due in Europe. After
initial uncertainty and rise in volatility, the outcome of French general elections, which allayed fears of a possible surge in anti-
euro populist movements, had a strong positive effect on markets, which regained their growth trend.

In the following months, however, market sentiment was driven by the expectation of changes in the ECB’s monetary policy,
and a possible tapering of its purchasing programme. At its meeting on 26 October, the ECB, despite taking another step
towards the normalisation of its monetary policy, actually gave a message to the markets of a much more accommodative
stance than previously feared. Indeed, the ECB announced its commitment to continue its purchases in 2018 at a rate of 30
billion euro per month (from 60 billion euro) at least until September, or later, if necessary. The market reaction was positive,
with spreads narrowing further in the remainder of the year, except for a short correction in November.

In terms of performance, investment grade securities saw their spreads fall by around 40% from the beginning of 2017, while
riskier high yield securities underperformed (-25%) as a result of the increased widening in November.

The effect of the ECB policy — reflected in very favourable funding conditions — and the search for yields by investors had a
very positive impact on the primary market, with record volumes both for Investment Grade (IG) and High Yield (HY) issuers.
In this regard, a major contribution came from euro-denominated issues made by US companies.

The emerging economies and markets

The economic growth in the emerging countries, which began in the second half of 2016, continued to strengthen in 2017.
According to the most recent IMF estimates (World Economic Outlook, January 2018 Update), in 2017 average GDP growth
in the emerging countries rose to 4.7% from 4.4% in 2016. Asia continued to be the most dynamic region, with GDP growing
by 6.5%, driven both by China (+6.8%) and India (+6.7%). The recovery in oil and other commodity prices supported
economic activity both in Latin America, which came out of a six-quarter recession, and in South Saharan Africa, with GDP
growth in the two regions estimated at 1.3% and 2.7%, respectively. In the MENA area, on the other hand, production is
estimated to have slowed down to 2.5% in 2017, from 4.9% in 2016, particularly in the hydrocarbon-producing countries, due
to the oil extraction cuts decided and the fiscal measures taken by various governments to cope with the fall in revenues
following the collapse of oil prices in 2014. This slowdown was only partly offset by stronger performance in the net
hydrocarbon importing countries, such as Egypt.

In Central and South-Eastern Europe, GDP growth in 2017 is estimated to have accelerated, particularly in the Czech
Republic, Hungary, Slovenia and Romania. Growth was driven by domestic as well as foreign demand. Consumption
benefited in particular from improvements in the labour market, thanks to falling unemployment and wage increases.
Investment was also supported by the recovery in the private sector and the use of EU structural funds. In Russia, which has
come out of recession, GDP growth is expected to be above 1.5% (from -0.2% in 2016). Ukraine is expected to post a figure
close to 2% (in line with 2016). The region's economy continues to be affected by persistent geopolitical tensions.

In 2017, the average inflation rate in the emerging countries slowed down to 4.1%, from 4.3% in 2016. In the CIS area, the
annual inflation rate at the end of 2017 had fallen to 2.5% in Russia, below the target of 4% indicated by the Central Bank,
favoured by the strength of the rouble, but also due to the weak economic performance, whereas in Ukraine the rate had risen
to 13.7%. In Egypt, inflation slowed down steadily, after having peaked in July (33%), ending 2017 at 21.9%, thanks to the
gradual absorption of pressures linked to the devaluation of the exchange rate at the end of 2016. In the CEE and SEE
countries, economic growth led to a general increase in inflation. Slovakia and Slovenia in the CEE area and Bosnia, Croatia
and Romania started to see consumer prices rise again in 2017, after a period of deflation in 2016. Within the region, inflation
recovery was particularly strong in the Czech Republic and Romania, with rates rising above the targets set by their
respective central banks.

In 2017, monetary policy in the Emerging Countries varied across the different areas, according to the different inflation
dynamics. New easing measures, with very large rate cuts, were implemented in Brazil (where the Selic rate fell by 675 basis
points to 7%) and in Russia (where the minimum rate fell by 225 basis points to 7.75%). Rates also fell in South Africa (from
7% to 6.75% for the official rate) and in India (from 7.2% to 6.5% for the average 3-month MIBOR). In China, on the other
hand, the People's Bank of China, mindful of the risks arising from excessive credit growth, favoured a rise in the 90-day
interbank rate (the average rose from 3% in 2016 to 4.6% in 2017). After initial easing measures, higher-than-expected
inflation also led the Central Bank of Ukraine to raise interest rates by 50 basis points in the second half of the year.
Significant interest rate rises (+400 basis points) were also seen in Egypt, aimed at countering inflationary pressures linked to
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the devaluation of the exchange rate. In the CEE and SEE area, the policy rate in Serbia was reduced by 50 basis points,
while in the Czech Republic it was raised by 25 basis points. In Romania, in response to a rise in inflation, the Central Bank
tightened the interest rate corridor from +/- 150 to +/- 100 basis points, through an initial measure in December. In the other
countries in the region where ISP subsidiaries are based, the monetary policy stance remained accommodative.

With regard to the financial markets, in 2017 the US dollar depreciated overall against the currencies of the advanced
countries (Major Index -8.7%) as well as the emerging countries (OITP index -6%). The most significant movements on the
dollar were recorded by several currencies in Asia (Korea, Thailand, and Singapore, but also China and India, with the latter
achieving earnings above 6%) and in the CEE and SEE countries where ISP subsidiaries are based, which essentially
followed the euro, recovering by 13.8% on the US dollar in 2017. In the CIS area, the Russian rouble appreciated by 4.4%,
despite the sharp fall in interest rates, driven by the further recovery in oil prices, while the Ukrainian currency depreciated by
3.6%, penalised by uncertainties regarding IMF support due to delays in implementing agreed reforms. The Egyptian pound
stabilised, after the major devaluation in 2016 accompanied by the transition to a floating exchange rate system, closing the
year up slightly (+1.9%).

The continued strengthening of economic performance, with several major economies out of recession, gave a further boost
to stock prices in the emerging markets. The MSCI composite index of emerging markets rose by 27.7% in 2017, recording a
higher gain than the +7.2% registered by that index in the previous year and by the S&P (+19%) and EuroStoxx (+10%)
indexes in the advanced countries in the same year. Price rises were particularly significant in the Latin American and Asian
markets. On the other hand, the markets of the Gulf oil countries were penalised by regional tensions and relatively weak
economic growth. In the countries where ISP subsidiaries are based, some markets in Central Eastern Europe performed
better than the EuroStoxx, including Hungary (+23%) and the Czech Republic (+17%), whereas the Croatian stock exchange
(-7.6%) was affected by difficulties experienced by some major listed companies. In the CIS area, the stock index in Russia
remained substantially unchanged in 2017 (+0.2%), after the considerable gains recorded in 2016 (+52.2%), while Kiev was
down (-10%), having been penalised by the slow progress of stabilisation policies. In contrast, the strong cyclical performance
and economic stabilisation policies pushed up the stock market in Egypt (+21.7%).

The search for yields by international investors, the improvement in the risk profile in several countries and the rise in
commodity prices led to a further reduction of the EMBI+ spread for the emerging countries, which fell by 34 basis points to
330 basis points in 2017. The most significant decrease was on the EMBI+ spread of the European countries (-65 basis
points to 232 basis points). For the countries where ISP subsidiaries are based, the decrease in the CDS spread was
particularly large in relative terms (above one third) in the CIS area (Russia and Ukraine), but also in the SEE area
(particularly in Croatia and Serbia) and in the CEE area (particularly in Hungary, Poland and Slovenia). In Serbia, the spread
almost halved (down to under 130 basis points), and the country also saw an upgrade in its S&P rating from BB- to BB in
2017. In the countries where ISP subsidiaries are based, Egypt also had a rating increase (from B- to B by S&P).

The Italian banking system

Interest rates and spreads

In 2017, bank interest rates were still slightly lower, despite the rise in mortgage lending rates in the first part of the year and
rates applied to businesses on large loans having settled at the lows reached in the past. In contrast, interest rates offered to
businesses on smaller loans reached new lows. Overall, the average interest rate on new loans to businesses remained
broadly stable until the summer and then fell slightly in the fourth quarter. Compared to Europe, ltalian rates on loans to
businesses have fallen back below the Eurozone average, also for smaller loans, while for loans of over 1 million euro,
lending rates have shown a significantly negative spread since the last quarter of 2015. Rates on mortgage loans to
households also reached new lows in the fourth quarter. In this area, lending rates continued to fall, although at a slower pace
than in the previous year, driven by the significant drop in short-term lending rates.

Given the lows already reached, the average rate on deposits remained sticky, with only a slight amount shaved off. For
overnight deposits, the near-zero levels for interest rates paid to both households and businesses justify the slowdown in the
downward trend. The average rate on new time deposits was also stable for most of the year, but started to fall again in
recent months. Thanks partly to the steady decrease in the average rate on the stock of bonds and their lower proportion in
terms of volumes, the overall cost of customer deposits continued to fall.

However, the spread between lending and funding rates fell slightly compared to the annual averages, as a result of stability
for most of the year followed by a reduction at the end of the year. The mark-down on demand deposits improved marginally,
but was still negative for the sixth year running. At the same time, the mark-up was further reduced due to the fall in short-
term lending rates.

Loans

Bank lending to the private sector confirmed its moderate growth, at a rate of 1% on average per year (figures adjusted for
securitisations). The trend was again driven by loans to households, which reached an overall growth rate of 2.8% year-on-
year, thanks to both mortgage loans for house purchase and consumer credit. However, mortgage lending, despite remaining
at high volumes, was down year-on-year, mainly due to the decrease in subrogations, although new agreements also
declined. Fixed-rate loans remained predominant, in the presence of interest rates still at their historical lows. The trend in
mortgage loans to households was consistent with the more moderate pace of residential property trading, which slowed
down steadily over the year, after the two-digit growth posted in 2016.

Despite the favourable credit supply conditions, lending to non-financial companies continued to be disappointing. In
conditions of liquidity considered sufficient or more than sufficient by a large majority of companies, demand for credit
remained subdued by low external funding requirements, which were also met by bond issues. Business debt as a
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percentage of GDP continued to fall, with loans to businesses only starting to pick up towards the end of the year. The overall
development was due to different dynamics depending on sector and company size. In particular, in the second half of the
year, growth in loans to the manufacturing sector strengthened and loans to the services sector continued to perform strongly,
albeit with a slowdown compared to the first half of the year. In contrast, the major contraction in loans to the construction
sector showed no signs of abating. Looking at borrower size, loans to medium and large businesses continued to grow
slightly, while loans to small businesses kept declining.

Trends in loans to businesses were shaped by the generally positive supply and demand scenario. According to the lending
survey conducted by the Bank of ltaly, banks have continued to cautiously reduce their margins and improve contractual
terms and conditions, driven by the pressures of competition. In addition, after a shaky start to the year, business demand
started to grow again, with a strengthening at the end of the year, particularly for long-term loans, driven by fixed investment
needs and low interest rates. At the same time, demand for loans from households for consumer credit and, to a lesser
extent, for residential mortgages is still increasing, although the trend for both types of loans has gradually become more
moderate compared to the previous year. The outlook is for a further increase in demand in the early part of 2018 for both
business and household loans. Businesses assessed credit access conditions to be favourable, expressing the highest score
on record since this kind of survey was first initiated with the emergence of the financial crisis in 2008.

Credit quality indices continued to improve significantly, thanks to more favourable economic conditions and the sale and
securitisation of bad loans by banks. From the end of 2016 and November 2017, the stock of net bad loans fell by 21 billion
euro, or 24%, and by over 1.2 percentage points in relation to total loans, to 3.7%. The formation rate for new non-performing
loans fell to even below pre-crisis levels, at 1.7% year-on-year in the third quarter, in terms of total amount in relation to
performing loans. More specifically, for loans to businesses the impairment rate fell to 2.6%, 1.4 percentage points less than a
year before and in line with the end of 2007.

Direct deposits

Customer deposits in 2017 confirmed the trends observed previously, with growth in deposits driven by the significant
increase in overnight deposits. At the same time, the double-digit decline in time deposits continued. The performance of
customer deposits continued to benefit from strong growth in overnight deposits of non-financial companies and the solidity of
household deposits. Growth in deposits held by residents continued to be offset by the reduction in the stock of bank bonds,
the trend of which was affected by customer portfolio reallocation processes. On the whole, customer deposits remained
stable compared to 2016. Also considering the use of the Eurosystem, which further increased in the first half of the year as a
result of targeted refinancing operations, total bank funding has increased moderately since March 2017.

Indirect deposits and asset management

With regard to assets under administration, the sharp decline in debt securities held in custody by banks on behalf of
households continued. This performance reflected the continued decline in bank bonds and the limited attractiveness of
government bonds in a scenario of negative interest rates.

For the asset management market, 2017 was a particularly positive year for mutual funds, which more than doubled their
infows compared to 2016. Net inflows were driven by bond funds, followed by flexible funds and balanced funds.
The contribution of the Individual Savings Plan-compliant funds was also significant, having achieved considerable success
among investors. Net inflows to portfolio management schemes recovered over the summer, after weak performance in the
first half, to end the year with inflows in line with 2016.

Turning to the insurance sector, new insurance business was still cumulatively in decline in the first 11 months of the year.
From July, however, the sector started to show signs of recovery, partly driven by the introduction of Individual Savings Plan-
compliant funds. Specifically, subscriptions of products with a higher financial content (class Ill) posted a major recovery,
while new subscriptions of traditional policies (classes | and V) continued to fall, but with a steady slow down.
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Economic results

General aspects

A condensed reclassified income statement has been prepared to give a more immediate understanding of results.

To enable consistent comparison, the figures for previous periods are restated, where necessary, to account for changes in

the scope of consolidation.

The restated financial statements are obtained by making appropriate adjustments to historical data to reflect the significant

effects of such changes retroactively. Any differences due to the possibility of choosing between different options provided for

by IAS/IFRS or arising from the use of different methods or parameters to measure assets and liabilities are not considered,
as they are deemed irrelevant. Last, please note that no intragroup relations are netted where their amount is not significant.

The 2017 income statement includes the impact of the acquisition, with effect from the third quarter, of certain assets,

liabilities and legal relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca and, with effect from the fourth quarter, of

subsidiaries Banca Apulia, Banca Nuova, Veneto Banka (Croatia), Veneto Banka Sh.a (Albania), Sec Servizi and Servizi

Bancari (hereinafter also the "Aggregate Set").

Considering the particular case in question, no adjustments were made to the historic data in the reclassified income

statement in order to retroactively reflect the effects of the acquisition. Consequently, unless otherwise indicated, the

comments in the Report on operations refer to income components net of the effects of the Aggregate Set. However, in order
to improve the reader’s understanding, the main amounts referring to the Aggregate Set and the consolidated figure including
said amounts are highlighted in the tables.

In this regard, it should be noted that, in relation to the migration of data regarding the relationships of the former Banca

Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca, completed in early December, separate accounting records are no longer available

for such relationships. Accordingly, the related contributions to the income statement have also been determined on the basis

of management accounting records.

Breakdowns of restatements and reclassifications made in accordance with the layout established in Bank of Italy Circular

262 are provided in separate tables included in the attachments, as also required by Consob in its Communication 6064293

of 28 July 2006.

In summary, the reclassifications and aggregations are as follows:

— dividends on shares classified as assets available for sale and as assets held for trading have been reallocated to Profits
(Losses) on trading;

— the portions of Net interest income, Dividend and similar income, Net fee and commission income and Profits (Losses)
on trading related to the insurance business have been recorded under a specific caption, and the effect of the
adjustment of the technical reserve — with respect to the component attributable to policyholders — associated with the
impairment of securities available for sale held in the portfolios of the Group’s insurance companies was also attributed
to this caption;

— differentials on derivatives, classified to the trading portfolio and contracted to hedge transactions in foreign currencies,
have been allocated among Net interest income owing to the close correlation;

—  Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting (caption 90) have been reallocated to Profits (Losses) on trading;

—  Profits and losses on disposal or repurchase of financial assets available for sale and of financial liabilities have been
reallocated to Profits (Losses) on trading;

—  Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value are recorded in Profits (Losses) on trading;

— the recoveries of expenses, taxes and duties have been subtracted from Administrative expenses, instead of being
included among Other income;

—  Profits and losses on disposal or repurchase of loans are posted in Net adjustments to loans;

— Net impairment losses on other financial activities, related to guarantees, commitments and credit derivatives, have been
recognised under Net adjustments to loans;

— the reversal in time value on loans is recorded in Net interest income instead of being allocated to Net adjustments to
loans, since the phenomenon derives directly from the application of the amortised cost criterion in the absence of
changes in expected future flows. A consistent approach is used for the time value of Employee termination indemnities
and Allowances for risks and charges;

— Net impairment losses on financial assets available for sale, held to maturity, on investments, as well as property and
equipment and intangible assets (including property and other assets resulting from the enforcement of guarantees or
purchase at auction and intended for sale on the market in the near future), which have been reclassified to Net
impairment losses on other assets, which consequently includes — in addition to the provisions for risks and charges —
the valuation effects of the assets other than loans, with the sole exception of impairment losses on intangible assets that
have been reclassified, after tax, to Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets;

— realised profits (losses) on investments held to maturity, on equity investments and on other investments have been
reallocated to Other income (expenses). Accordingly, in addition to the income and expenses not strictly related to
operations, this caption represents the summary of the effects from the realisation of assets other than loans.

— Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives, which have been reclassified from Personnel expenses,
Administrative expenses and, to a lesser extent, other captions of the income statement to a separate caption;

— the effects of purchase price allocation, net of the tax effect, are indicated in a specific caption. They represent
adjustments to and any impairment losses on financial assets and liabilities and property, equipment and intangible
assets which were measured at fair value as provided for by IFRS 3;
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— levies and other charges aimed at maintaining the stability of the banking industry, which have been reclassified, after
tax, to the specific caption;

— goodwill impairment and impairment losses on other intangible assets, as mentioned above, are shown, net of tax, in a
specific caption among "non-current" income components.

Reclassified income statement

(millions of euro)

2017 2016 Changes
Consolidated Of which: Consolidated Consolidated
figure figure of the figure net of the figure CTIENTL %
(a) Aggregate Set Aggregate Set (d) _

(b) (©)=(a)- (b) (e)=(c)-(d) (e)/(d)
Net interest income 7,264 153 7111 7,294 -183 -25
Net fee and commission income 7,843 108 7,735 7,331 404 55
Income from insurance business 933 - 933 995 -62 -6.2
Profits (Losses) on trading 1,311 -30 1,341 1,190 151 12.7
Other operating income (expenses) 92 35 57 165 -108 -65.5
Operating income 17,443 266 17,177 16,975 202 1.2
Personnel expenses -5,670 -285 -5,385 -5,323 62 1.2
Other administrative expenses -2,730 -162 -2,568 -2,630 -62 -2.4
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -810 -24 -786 -749 37 4.9
Operating costs -9,210 -471 -8,739 -8,702 37 0.4
Operating margin 8,233 -205 8,438 8,273 165 2.0
Net adjustments to loans -3,304 -51 -3,253 -3,708 -455 -12.3
Net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets -218 -3 -215 -422 -207 -49.1

Other income (expenses) 4,746 - 4,746 355 4,391

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations - - - 952 -952
Gross income (loss) 9,457 -259 9,716 5,450 4,266 78.3
Taxes on income -1,481 72 -1,553 -1,428 125 8.8
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -300 -179 -121 -150 -29 -19.3
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) 327 378 -51 -112 -61 -54.5
Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry (net of tax) -649 -12 -637 -559 78 14.0
Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - -
Minority interests -38 3 -41 -90 -49 -54.4

Net income (loss) 7,316 3 7,313 3,111 4,202

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

In a context characterised by a more favourable economic scenario in the Eurozone, in 2017 the Intesa Sanpaolo Group
reported a significant increase in net income compared to the previous year. Excluding, for a consistent comparison, the
public contribution of 3,500 million euro received to offset the impacts on capital ratios of the acquisition of certain assets and
liabilities and certain legal relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca and the result in the second half of
the year of 3 million euro associated with the Aggregate Set, net income climbed to 3,813 million euro, compared to 3,111
million euro in 2016 (+22.6%). The increase was chiefly due to the rise in fee and commission income on services, the greater
income on the sale of equity investments, fair value measurement of certain investments and the decline in adjustments and
provisions, as well as careful management of operating costs.
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Quarterly development of the reclassified income statement

(millions of euro)

2017 2016
Fourth quarter Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Consolidated Of which:  Consolidated quarter quarter quarter quarter quarter quarter quarter

figure  figure of the figure net of the
(a)  Aggregate Aggregate Set
Set  (¢)=(a)-(b)

(b)

Net interest income 1,837 95 1,742 1,749 1,815 1,805 1,748 1,859 1,832 1,855
Net fee and commission income 2,146 51 2,095 1,889 1,896 1,855 2,030 1,756 1,858 1,687
Income from insurance business 183 - 183 227 240 283 166 258 239 332
Profits (Losses) on trading 538 -4 542 208 365 226 247 248 467 228
Other operating income (expenses) 9 28 -19 4 32 40 -7 29 68 75
Operating income 4,713 170 4,543 4,077 4,348 4,209 4,184 4,150 4,464 4,177
Personnel expenses -1,606 -155 -1,451 -1,310 -1,338 -1,286 -1,393 -1,310 -1,341 -1,279
Other administrative expenses -834 -102 -732 -620 -633 -583 -765 -627 -641 -597
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -234 -14 -220 -192 -188 -186 -206 -186 -179 -178
Operating costs -2,674 2711 -2,403 -2,122 -2,159 -2,055 -2,364 -2,123 -2,161 -2,054
Operating margin 2,039 -101 2,140 1,955 2,189 2,154 1,820 2,027 2,303 2,123
Net adjustments to loans -1,229 -54 -1,175 -646 =737 -695 -1,174 -917 -923 -694
Net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets -135 -5 -130 -25 -57 -3 -105 =77 -194 -46
Other income (expenses) 861 - 861 72 3,617 196 138 16 196 5
Income (Loss) from discontinued operations - - - - - - 881 23 28 20
Gross income (loss) 1,536 -160 1,696 1,356 5,012 1,652 1,560 1,072 1,410 1,408
Taxes on income -249 41 -290 -374 -444 -445 -314 -321 -361 -432
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -227 -179 -48 -20 -41 -12 -83 -16 -38 -13
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) 364 378 -14 -26 -5 -6 -30 -26 -27 -29
Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry

(net of tax) 3 1 2 -179 -178 -282 -377 -69 -11 -102
Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets - - - - - - - - - -
Minority interests 1 3 -2 -26 -7 -6 20 -12 -72 -26
Net income (loss) 1,428 84 1,344 731 4,337 901 776 628 901 806

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Operating income

Operating income amounted to 17,177 million euro, excluding the 266 million euro attributable to the Aggregate Set, up by
1.2% on a like-for-like basis compared to 2016, due to the increase in net fee and commission income (+5.5%), which
accounted for the largest share of revenues, and profits on trading (+12.7%), which more than offset the decline in net interest
income (-2.5%), income from insurance business (-6.2%) and lower profits on investments carried at equity.

Net interest income
(millions of euro)

2017 2016 Changes
Consolidated Of which: ~ Consolidated  Consolidated
figure figure of the figure net of the figure Quarterly development
(a) Aggregate Set Aggregate Set (d) amount % Net interest income
b)  (©)=()-(b) (€)=()-(d) (e)/(d)
Relations with customers 7,500 220 7,280 7,445 -165 2.2
Securities issued -2,710 -101 -2,609 -3,226 -617 -19.1
Customer dealing 4,790 119 4,671 4,219 452 10.7
Financial assets held for trading 82 3 79 151 <72 477
Investments held to maturity 42 1 41 52 -1 212 o 8
Financial assets available for sale 674 43 631 716 -85 -11.9 ©
Financial assets 798 47 751 919 -168  -18.3 . I
Relations with banks 197 - 197 107 90 84.1 © ~ 2
0
Differentials on hedging derivatives 29 -14 43 478 -435  -91.0 ;'2- 3, :— ®
- o o~
Non-performing assets 1,410 1 1,409 1,555 -146 9.4 ":» N ,‘{
Other net interest income 40 - 40 16 24 N N
. . © © © ©
Net interest income 7,264 153 711 7,294 -183 -2.5 < S 5 3 L
e

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare
di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Net interest income, which amounted to 7,111 million euro, excluding the contribution of 153 million euro from the Aggregate
Set, declined by 2.5% compared to the previous year. With a spread at very low historical levels, the result was influenced by
the gradual depreciation of the Egyptian pound since November 2016, which penalised the result of the International
Subsidiary Banks, by the more limited contribution from the hedging of core deposits and by the lower interest on non-
performing assets as a consequence of the proactive management of NPLs, confirmed by the decrease in volumes.

67
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Income from customer dealing amounted to 4,671 million euro, higher than the 4,219 million euro recorded in 2016, as a
result of lesser interest expenses on securities. Income on operations with customers, which declined by 165 million euro,
was adversely affected by the decrease in margins, partly offset by the positive contribution of intermediated volumes.

Interest on financial assets fell by 18.3%, due to the decline in interest on assets available for sale (-85 million euro), on
trading activities (-72 million euro) and, to a lesser extent, on assets held to maturity.

Net interest income on the interbank market came to 197 million euro compared to the 107 million euro recorded in the
previous year, due to the reduction in interest expense on interbank funding. The contribution of differentials on hedging
derivatives to net interest income declined sharply (-435 million euro), due to the measures taken in relation to the changed
expectations regarding the interest rate curve. The interest income accrued on the deposit at TLTRO Il negative interest rates
signed with the Bank of Italy amounted to 215 million euro and was recorded among other net interest income.

(millions of euro)

2017 Changes %
Fourth quarter Third Second First
Consolidated Of which:  Consolidated quarter quarter quarter (C/D) (D/E) (E/F)
figure  figure of the  figure net of (d) (e) (f)
(a) Aggregate Set the

b) Aggregate Set
(c)=(a)-(b)

Relations with customers 1,957 128 1,829 1,822 1,806 1,823 0.4 0.9 -0.9
Securities issued -665 -55 -610 -658 -647 -694 -7.3 1.7 -6.8
Customer dealing 1,292 73 1,219 1,164 1,159 1,129 4.7 0.4 2.7
Financial assets held for trading 15 1 14 16 26 23 -12.5 -38.5 13.0
Investments held to maturity 10 - 10 10 10 11 - - 9.1
Financial assets available for sale 159 19 140 169 160 162 -17.2 5.6 -1.2
Financial assets 184 20 164 195 196 196 -15.9 -0.5 -
Relations with banks 59 5 54 59 42 42 -8.5 40.5 -
Differentials on hedging derivatives -9 -6 -3 -21 29 38 -85.7 -23.7
Non-performing assets 311 1 310 358 362 379 -13.4 -1.1 -4.5
Other net interest income - 2 -2 -6 27 21 -66.7 28.6
Net interest income 1,837 95 1,742 1,749 1,815 1,805 -0.4 -3.6 0.6

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been
restated.

In the fourth quarter of 2017, net interest income amounted to 1,742 million euro, net of the 95 million euro attributable to the
contribution of the Aggregate Set, essentially in line with the third quarter and down on the first two quarters of 2017. The
quarterly performance was essentially due to the decline in interest on financial assets and non-performing assets and on
differentials on hedging derivatives, which had generated positive contributions in the first two quarters.

(millions of euro)

2017 2016 Changes )
Business areas

amount %
Banca dei Territori 4,499 4,596 -97 =21
Corporate and Investment Banking 1,592 1,447 145 10.0 = Private
International Subsidiary Banks 1,346 1,428 82 57 Banking, " Asset

y : : : 2.3% Manag.,
Private Banking 171 175 -4 -2.3 0.0%
® |nternat.
Asset Management 1 1 - - Subsidiary
Insurance - - - - Banks, g‘gf/rance‘
17.7% =
Total business areas
(net of the Aggregate Set) 7,609 7,647 -38 -0.5
Corporate Centre -498 -353 145 414 Soporae
Investment )
Intesa Sanpaolo Group Banking, Banca dei
(net of the Aggregate Set) 7,111 7,294 183 25 20.9% ;—grm/o”’
. (]

Corporate Centre (Aggregate Set) 153
Intesa Sanpaolo Group 7,264

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di
Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

The Banca dei Territori Division, which accounts for approximately 60% of business area results, though benefiting from
growing customer dealing, recorded a decline of 2.1% (-97 million euro) in net interest income, driven by the more limited
contribution from the hedging of core deposits. The net interest income of the Corporate and Investment Banking Division was
up (+10%, or +145 million euro) in relation to the greater contribution from customer dealing. The net interest income of the
International Subsidiary Banks Division decreased by 5.7% (-82 million euro), due to the depreciation of the Egyptian pound
in 2016. Lastly, the interest income of the Private Banking Division — which in relative terms has a lower incidence on the
consolidated result — was essentially in line with the previous year.
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It should be noted that the contribution to the net interest income of the Aggregate Set (153 million euro) has been temporarily
fully allocated to the "Corporate Centre (Aggregate Set)" and will be broken down into the various divisions once the
processes are integrated starting from 2018.

Net fee and commission income

(millions of euro)

2017 2016 Changes
Consolidated Of which: Consolidated Consolidated
figure figure of the  figure net of figure
(a) Aggregate Set the (d) Quarterly development
(b) Aggregate Set amount % Net fee and commission income

(©)=(@)- (b) (€)=(c)-(d) (e)/(d)
Guarantees given / received 289 -34 323 342 -19 -5.6
Collection and payment services 412 21 391 390 1 0.3
Current accounts 1,139 62 1,077 1,023 54 5.3 B
Credit and debit cards 373 10 363 376 -13 -3.5
Commercial banking activities 2,213 59 2,154 2,131 23 1.1
Dealing and placement of securities 738 25 713 524 189 36.1 5
Currency dealing 43 1 42 41 1 24 .
Portfolio management 2,303 -1 2,304 2,055 249 121
Distribution of insurance products 1,509 5 1,504 1,386 118 8.5 o
Other 173 4 169 215 -46 -21.4 g_ @ @
Management, dealing and consultancy § o 3 3
activities 4,766 34 4,732 4,221 511 121 5 - :,5 - -
Other net fee and commission income 864 15 849 979 -130 -13.3 2 =

© © © © ~ ~ ~ ~

Net fee and commission income 7,843 108 7,735 7,331 404 5.5 = S B 3 =z 3} B B

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca
Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Net fee and commission income in 2017, which makes up 45% of operating income, came to 7,735 million euro (net of the
108 million euro attributable to the Aggregate Set), with an annual increase of 5.5% on a like-for-like basis, mainly as a result
of the positive performance of the management and dealing activity, which benefited from a recovery in prices and an
increase in volumes placed.

Fee and commission income on commercial banking activities amounted to 2,154 million euro, compared to the 2,131 million
euro obtained in 2016 due to higher fees and commissions on current accounts. Management, dealing and financial
consultancy activities, which provided the greatest contribution, generated net fee and commission income of 4,732 million
euro, up 12.1%.

The significant commercial effort devoted by the Group's distribution network to asset management products, accompanied
by a bull stock market and an expansion in the volumes of securities traded, produced notable growth in fee and commission
income on portfolio management, securities dealing and placement and the distribution of insurance products. Other net fee
and commission income showed a decline of 13.3%.

(millions of euro)

2017 Changes %
Fourth quarter Third Second First
Consolidated Of which:  Consolidated quarter quarter quarter (cn)  (D/E)  (E/F)
figure  figure of the figure net of the () (e) ®

(a) Aggregate Set  Aggregate Set
(b)  (c)=(a)-(b)

Guarantees given / received 59 -17 76 80 86 81 -5.0 -7.0 6.2
Collection and payment services 113 11 102 97 97 95 5.2 - 21
Current accounts 334 34 300 272 253 252 10.3 7.5 0.4
Credit and debit cards 103 5 98 90 92 83 8.9 2.2 10.8
Commercial banking activities 609 33 576 539 528 511 6.9 21 3.3
Dealing and placement of securities 225 12 213 142 182 176 50.0 -22.0 3.4
Currency dealing 11 - 1 10 1 10 10.0 -9.1 10.0
Portfolio management 637 - 637 568 560 539 12.1 1.4 3.9
Distribution of insurance products 385 - 385 380 366 373 1.3 3.8 -1.9
Other 50 2 48 42 39 40 14.3 7.7 -25
Management, dealing and consultancy activities 1,308 14 1,294 1,142 1,158 1,138 13.3 -1.4 1.8
Other net fee and commission income 229 4 225 208 210 206 8.2 -1.0 1.9
Net fee and commission income 2,146 51 2,095 1,889 1,896 1,855 10.9 -0.4 2.2

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been
restated.

In the fourth quarter of 2017, net fee and commission income posted a double-digit increase on the first three quarters of
2017, driven by the higher revenues on management activity, which included performance fees of 70 million euro, and, to a
lesser extent, on commercial banking activity.
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(millions of euro)

2017 2016 Changes i
Business areas

amount %
Banca dei Territori 4,282 3,940 342 8.7
Corporate and Investment Banking 925 1,111 -186 -16.7 B Asset
International Subsidiary Banks 493 483 10 2.1 'g"g"/ag

B 0
Private Banking 1,673 1,627 146 9.6 B Private
Banking, Insurance,
Asset Management 718 567 151 26.6 20.7% 0.0%
Insurance - - - -
Total business areas
(net of the Aggregate Set) 8,091 7,628 463 6.1
Corporate Centre -356 -297 59 19.9 " |nternat. Banca
Subsidia dei
Intesa Sanpaolo Group Banks, 6.1% Territori,
(net of the Aggregate Set) 7,735 7,331 404 5.5 52.9%
Corporate and
Corporate Centre (Aggregate Set) 108 Investment
Banking, 11.4%

Intesa Sanpaolo Group 7,843

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca
Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

In relation to the business areas, the Banca dei Territori Division, which represents more than half the result of the business
units, showed an increase in fee and commission income (+8.7%, or +342 million euro), mostly coming from the asset
management segment - which has benefited from more placements of asset-management products and certificates - and the
fees on protection products, driven in part by the positive trend in medium-/long-term loan disbursements; Private Banking
recorded growth of 9.6%, or +146 million euro, confirming the strong performance of assets under management; Asset
Management posted an increase of 26.6% (+151 million euro), due primarily to the favourable performance of management
and incentive fees collected on the products managed; the International Subsidiary Banks reported gains of 2.1% (+10 million
euro), attributable to the banks operating in Hungary, Slovakia, Croatia and Serbia; finally, the Corporate and Investment
Banking Division recorded a decline of 16.7% (-186 million euro), as a result of lower fee and commission income from the
commercial banking (loans, guarantees and interbank services) and investment banking areas.

It should be noted that the contribution to net fee and commission income of the Aggregate Set (108 million euro) has been
temporarily allocated in full to the "Corporate Centre (Aggregate Set)" and will be broken down into the various divisions once
the processes are integrated starting from 2018.
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Income from insurance business

(millions of euro)

Captions (a) 2017 2016 Changes Quarterly development
Life Non-ife  Total Life Non-ife ~ Total  amount % Income from insurance business

Technical margin 2 95 97 45 80 125 -28 -224
Net insurance premiums (b) 6,472 345 6,817 8,135 301 8,436 -1,619  -19.2
Net charges for insurance claims and surrenders (c) -10,191 -93 -10,284 -7,910 -89 -7,999 2,285 28.6
Net charges for changes in technical reserves (d) 2,512 - 2,512 -1,550 -1 -1,551 4,063
Gains (Losses) on investments pertaining to insured parties
on insurance products (e) 1,423 - 1423 1,632 - 1,632 -209 128
Net fees on investment contracts (f) 286 1 287 230 3 233 54 23.2
Commission expenses on insurance contracts (g) -493 -107 -600 -499 -97 -596 4 0.7
Other technical income and expense (h) -7 -51 -58 7 -37 -30 28 93.3
Net investment result 966 12 978 1,028 26 1,054 -76 7.2
Operating income from investments 4,651 12 4663 4,097 26 4,123 540 13.1

Net interest income 1,936 4 1,940 1991 7 1,998 -58 -2.9

Dividends 225 2 227 235 3 238 -11 -4.6

Gains/losses on disposal 1,720 6 1,726 564 16 580 1,146

Valuation gains/losses 844 - 844 1,380 - 1,380 -536  -38.8

Portfolio management fees paid (i) -74 - -74 -73 - -73 1 14
Gains (Losses) on investments pertaining to insured parties -3,685 - -3,685 -3,069 - -3,069 616 201

Insurance products (j) -1,504 - -1,504 -1,482 - -1,482 22 15

Investment’s unrealized capital gains/losses

pertaining to insured parties on insurance products (k) 81 - 81 -150 - -150 231 @

Investment products (I) -2,262 - -2,262  -1,437 - -1,437 825 57.4 2 @

g2 8 S 5
Income from insurance il gross of N © ]
effects 968 107 1,075 1,073 106 1,179 -104 -8.8 <
Consolidation effects -142 - -142 -182 -2 -184 -42 228
2 g g g o & &

Income from insurance business 826 107 933 891 104 995 -62 6.2 - & 503 S 8 s 5

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

@ The table illustrates the economic components of the insurance business broken down into those regarding:

- products considered to be insurance products according to IAS/IFRS, which include contracts where the risk insured is considered significant or in which the decision of the return on the contracts
is not market-based but depends on the insurance company's choices;

- investment products, which include financial products without a significant insurance risk. The latter are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements as financial movements.

( )The caption includes premiums issued only for products considered to be insurance products according to IAS/IFRS, net of the portions ceded to reinsurers. For the non-life insurance business,
the change in the premiums reserve is also included.

(c)

The caption includes the amounts paid (claims, surrenders and maturities) and the change in claims reserves and reserves for amounts to be paid, net of portions ceded to reinsurers.

d
@ The caption includes the change in technical reserves, net of the portions ceded to reinsurers.

(e)
”The caption includes net fees on investment products; specifically, charges paid by customers, management fees received by the financial units and fee expenses reversed by the insurance
companies to the sales network and management companies.

(9)
( )ReSIduaI caption comprising fee income on insurance product management fee income (unit and index-linked insurance products and pension funds), rebates, net interest income on current
accounts of the insurance company and on subordinated loans and other income and technical charges.

o The caption includes fees paid to management companies for the management of traditional insurance products (separate management) portfolios and pension funds. This also includes fees from
consolidated funds underlying insurance units.

0

The caption includes the portion of the profit/loss from investments (for insurance products) pertaining to insured parties, including the impact of shadow accounting.

The caption includes commission expenses on insurance products (including unit and index-linked insurance products and pension funds) paid to the sales network.

The caption includes the portion of the profit/loss from investments (for insurance products) pertaining to insured parties, without the impact of shadow accounting.

K]
( )The caption includes the portion of unrealized capital gains/losses pertaining to insured parties on insurance products (shadow accounting).

(
O The caption refers to the valuation of financial liabilities designated at fair value which represent the amount payable to insured parties for investment products.

During the reporting year, income from insurance business, which includes the cost and revenue captions of the insurance
business of the Group’s life and non-life companies declined to 933 million euro from the 995 million euro recorded in 2016.
This performance was mainly determined by the worsening of the net investment result (-76 million euro), affected by a
greater incidence of the result from investments pertaining to insured parties, in particular of investment products. The
technical margin for the life business was penalised by the decline in the weight of traditional policies, whereas the technical
margin of the non-life business improved.
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Captions (a)

Technical margin

Net insurance premiums (b)

Net charges for insurance claims and surrenders (c)

Net charges for changes in technical reserves (d)

Gains (Losses) on investments pertaining to insured parties on
insurance products (e)

Net fees on investment contracts (f)

Commission expenses on insurance contracts (g)

Other technical income and expense (h)

Net investment result

Operating income from investments
Net interest income
Dividends
Gains/losses on disposal
Valuation gains/losses
Portfolio management fees paid (i)

Gains (Losses) on investments pertaining to insured parties
Insurance products (j)

Investment's unrealized capital gains/losses pertaining to insured
parties on insurance products (k)
Investment products (l)

Income from insurance business gross of
consolidation effects

Consolidation effects

Income from insurance business

Fourth

quarter

(a)

-18
1,765
-3,124
1,042

381
68
-139
-11

231
1,458
475
48
536

416
-17

-1,227
-397

15
-845

213
-30
183

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

For notes, see the previous table.

2017
Third Second
quarter quarter
(b) (c)
46 94
1,798 1,455
-2,449 -2,484
431 866
353 356
89 55
-157 -143
-19 -1
217 185
1,085 497
465 511
55 80
310 481
274 -556
-19 -19
-868 -312
-383 -408
31 52
-516 44
263 279
-36 -39
227 240

First
quarter

(d)

-25
1,799
-2,227
173

333
75
-161
-17

345
1,623

44
399

710
-19

-1,278
-316

-17
-945

320

283

(A/B)

-1.8
27.6

7.9
-23.6
-11.5
-42.1

6.5
34.4
2.2
-12.7
72.9

51.8
-10.5

414
3.7

-51.6
63.8

-19.0

-16.7
-19.4

(millions of euro)
Changes %

(BIC)

-51.1
23.6
-1.4
-50.2

-0.8
61.8

9.8
72.7

-9.0
-31.3
-35.6

-6.1

-40.4

-7.7
-5.4

(C/D)

-19.1
11.5

6.9
-26.7
-11.2
-35.3

-46.4
-69.4

4.5
81.8
20.6

-75.6
29.1

-12.8

5.4
-15.2

At the quarterly level, income from insurance business, inclusive of both the life and non-life

progressively throughout 2017; the technical margin decline in the fourth quarter in particular.

Life insurance business

Premiums issued on traditional products
Premiums issued on unit-linked products
Premiums issued on capitalisation products
Premiums issued on pension funds

Non-life insurance business
Premiums issued
Change in premium reserves

Premiums ceded to reinsurers

Net premiums from insurance products
Business on index-linked contracts
Business on unit-linked contracts

Total business from investment contracts

Total business

2017
Periodic Single
premiums  premiums
184 6,289
163 5,640
9 7
- 1
12 641
88 267
89 343
-1 -76
-5 -6
267 6,550
84 15,971
84 15,971
351 22,521

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation.

Total

6,473
5,803

6,817

16,055

16,055

22,872

of which
new
business

6,289
5,640
7

1

641

160
334
-174

-8

6,441

15,979

15,979

22,420

businesses, declined

(millions of euro)

2016

8,136
7,531
22

582

307
391
-84
-10

8,433

15,797

15,797

24,230

In 2017, business in the insurance segment remained at high levels of nearly 23 billion euro, just below the 24 billion euro
generated in 2016. The shift towards unit-linked investment contracts (which have lower capital requirements) from traditional
life policies, which had already been observed in the previous year, continued during the period.
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New business was nearly 22.4 billion euro, confirming the fact that the premiums of the Group's insurance companies relate
almost entirely to new single-premium contracts.

Profits (Losses) on trading
(millions of euro)

2017 2016 Changes
Consolidated Of which:  Consolidated  Consolidated
figure figure of the  figure net of figure Quarter!
y development
(a) Aggregate Set the (d) amount % i i
Profits (Losses) on tradin
(b) Aggregate Set ©=0)-@ (€)/(©) ( ) o
(c)=(a)- (b)

Interest rates 429 -16 445 145 300
Equity instruments 234 -1 235 106 129
Currencies -44 3 -47 21 -258
Structured credit products 28 - 28 19 9 47.4
Credit derivatives -26 - -26 12 -38 <
Commodity derivatives 5 - 5 20 -5 -75.0
Trading result 626 -14 640 513 127 24.8
Trading on AFS securities and financial § g
liabilities 685 -16 701 677 24 35 o @ [ E E

N

~N ~N ~N
Profits (Losses) on trading 1,311 -30 1,341 1,190 151 12.7 © © © © L

= Rn Ed 3 = & & 3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca
Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Profits on trading amounted to 1,341 million euro in 2017, net of the losses of 30 million euro attributable to the Aggregate
Set. The increase on 2016 on a like-for-like basis was 12.7% and was primarily due to the profits on trading, most notably
profits on interest rates and equity instruments. Trading of AFS securities and financial liabilities — despite being penalised by
the lesser dividend collected on the equity stakes in the Bank of Italy, which fell from 121 million euro in the previous year to
10 million euro in the current year — increased by 24 million euro.

(millions of euro)

2017 Changes %
Fourth quarter Third Second First
Consolidated Of which: Consolidated quarter quarter quarter (C/D) (D/E) (E/F)
figure  figure of the figure net of the (@) C) ®

a) Aggregate Set  Aggregate Set
(b)  (c)=(a)-(b)

Interest rates 174 7 167 66 115 97 -42.6 18.6
Equity instruments 54 - 54 74 49 58 -27.0 51.0 -15.5
Currencies 18 2 16 10 -45 -28 60.0 60.7
Structured credit products 3 - 3 5 12 8 -400 -583 50.0
Credit derivatives -17 - -17 -31 2 20 -452 -90.0
Commodity derivatives -2 - -2 2 3 2 -33.3 50.0
Trading result 230 9 221 126 136 157 75.4 74 134
Trading on AFS securities and financial liabilities 308 -13 321 82 229 69 -64.2

Profits (Losses) on trading 538 -4 542 208 365 226 -43.0 61.5

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not
been restated.

The fourth quarter of the current year saw a significant increase (revenues of 542 million euro compared to 208 million euro in
the third quarter) due to the greater profits earned by the Parent Company through the sale of units of UCIs (undertakings for
collective investment) and available-for-sale securities.

It should be noted that the sub-caption “Trading on AFS securities and financial liabilities” incorporates, in addition to
dividends and proceeds on the trading of securities classified as available for sale, the effects of the measurement at fair
value of financial liabilities issued associated with an assessment of creditworthiness in accordance with the fair value option.

Other operating income (expenses)

Other operating income and expenses of 57 million euro (net of the 35 million euro attributable to the Aggregate Set),
compared to the 165 million euro recognised in the previous year, include the income and expenses from continuing
operations - except for recoveries of expenses, taxes and duties, which are deducted from the sub-captions of administrative
expenses - as well as profits on investments carried at equity. The negative performance on an annual basis is attributable to
this latter aggregate, which presents a positive balance of 93 million euro, a significant reduction compared to the 203 million
euro recorded the previous year.
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Operating costs

(millions of euro)

2017 2016 Changes
Consolidated Of which:  Consolidated Consolidated
figure figure of the figure net of the figure
o (a) Agg?egate Set /g\ggregate Set o (d) amount % Qua(;terly cllevelopment
®  ©=@-6) ©@=0-@ (@@ perating costs
Wages and salaries 3,909 211 3,698 3,659 39 1.1
Social security charges 1,009 54 955 932 23 25
Other 752 20 732 732 - -
Personnel expenses 5,670 285 5,385 5,323 62 1.2 N
Information technology expenses 653 20 633 631 2 0.3 N
Management of real estate assets expenses 580 44 536 531 5 0.9 S
General structure costs 393 17 376 400 -24 -6.0 N
Professional and legal expenses 424 8 416 418 -2 -0.5
Advertising and promotional expenses 127 1 126 132 -6 -4.5
Indirect personnel costs 92 1 91 91 - -
Other costs 385 66 319 349 -30 -8.6
Indirect taxes and duties 917 36 881 877 4 0.5 - Q §
Recovery of expenses and charges -841 -31 -810 -799 11 1.4 3 “E_ e o~
Administrative expenses 2,730 162 2,568 2,630 -62 -2.4 o & o
Property and equipment 334 14 320 335 -15 -4.5
Intangible assets 476 10 466 414 52 12.6
Adjustments 810 24 786 749 37 4.9 © © © © [
= S > < = S B ¥
Operating costs 9,210 471 8,739 8,702 37 0.4

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca
Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Operating costs amounted to 9,210 million euro. Excluding the 471 million euro attributable to the Aggregate Set, operating
costs increased slightly (+0.4%) compared to 2016. Personnel expenses of 5,385 million euro increased by 1.2% on a like-for-
like basis, attributable to the variable incentives awarded due to the achievement of the objectives set in the Business Plan.
Administrative expenses continued their positive performance, which has distinguished the Intesa Sanpaolo Group since its
establishment, and stood at 2,568 million euro, down 2.4% on an equivalent basis thanks to the savings achieved on general
structure costs and other costs.

Considering a like-for-like scope, amortisation and depreciation, amounting to 786 million euro, showed an increase of 4.9%
compared to 2016, which is related to new capitalisation of investments in intangible assets by Intesa Sanpaolo Group
Services.

The cost/income ratio for the period was 50.9%, excluding the Aggregate Set (52.8% including it), compared to 51.3% in the
previous year, marking an improvement due to the revenue performance.

(millions of euro)

2017 Changes %
Fourth quarter Third Second First
Consolidated Of which: Consolidated quarter quarter Quarey (C/D)  (D/E) (E/F)
figure  figure of the  figure net of the (@) () ®

(a) Aggregate Set Aggregate Set
(b) (c) = (a) - (b)

Wages and salaries 1,120 115 1,005 897 916 880 12.0 -2.1 4.1
Social security charges 285 30 255 232 239 229 9.9 -2.9 4.4
Other 201 10 191 181 183 177 5.5 -1.1 3.4
Personnel expenses 1,606 155 1,451 1,310 1,338 1,286 10.8 -2.1 4.0
Information technology expenses 179 1 168 159 155 151 5.7 2.6 2.6
Management of real estate assets expenses 169 24 145 130 130 131 11.5 - -0.8
General structure costs 104 8 96 91 91 98 5.5 - -71
Professional and legal expenses 148 4 144 91 105 76 58.2 -13.3 38.2
Advertising and promotional expenses 60 1 59 22 27 18 -18.5 50.0
Indirect personnel costs 24 1 23 18 25 25 27.8 -28.0 -
Other costs 127 45 82 79 84 74 3.8 -6.0 13.5
Indirect taxes and duties 253 15 238 189 255 199 259 -259 28.1
Recovery of expenses and charges -230 -7 -223 -159 -239 -189 40.3 -33.5 26.5
Administrative expenses 834 102 732 620 633 583 18.1 -2.1 8.6
Property and equipment 90 8 82 78 79 81 5.1 -1.3 -2.5
Intangible assets 144 6 138 114 109 105 211 4.6 3.8
Adjustments 234 14 220 192 188 186 14.6 21 1.1
Operating costs 2,674 27 2,403 2,122 2,159 2,055 13.2 -1.7 5.1

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not
been restated.

The quarterly analysis shows a seasonal fluctuation of costs, with higher operating costs in the fourth quarter of 2017 than in
the previous three quarters.
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(millions of euro)

2017 2016 Changes Business areas

amount %
Banca dei Territori 4,907 4,944 -37 -0.7
Corporate and Investment Banking 984 957 27 2.8
International Subsidiary Banks 938 962 -24 -2.5 u Asset |

. . i nsurance,
Private Banking 551 534 17 32 Tohee  Maa. 23%
Asset Management 157 141 16 11.3 7.1%
Insurance 178 173 5 2.9
L] Interr_la_(.
Total business areas g;ﬁi‘:'a’y Banca dei
(net of the Aggregate Set) 7,715 7,71 4 0.1 12.2% Territori,
63.6%

Corporate Centre 1,024 991 33 3.3 g:dfpma‘e
Intesa Sanpaolo Group 'E?;’slfi‘r’]ge”‘
(net of the Aggregate Set) 8,739 8,702 37 0.4  128%
Corporate Centre (Aggregate Set) 471
Intesa Sanpaolo Group 9,210

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di
Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

The performance of Group operating costs was the result of a differentiated dynamic among the business units. The Banca
dei Territori Division, which accounts for 64% of all costs for the business areas, reported savings compared to the previous
year (-0.7%, or -37 million euro) thanks to lower administrative and personnel expenses. Operating costs also fell for the
International Subsidiary Banks Division (-24 million euro, or -2.5%), due to the reduction in personnel expenses and, to a
lesser extent, administrative expenses and adjustments. In contrast, the other Business Units posted increases in operating
costs: Corporate and Investment Banking (+27 million euro, or +2.8%) and Asset Management (+16 million euro, or +11.3%),
due to higher personnel and administrative expenses, Private Banking (+17 million euro, or +3.2%) and Insurance (+5 million
euro, or +2.9%), due to higher personnel expenses.

It should be noted that the operating costs of the Aggregate Set (471 million euro) have temporarily been fully allocated to the
"Corporate Centre (Aggregate Set)" and will be broken down into the various divisions once the processes are integrated
starting from 2018.

Operating margin

The operating margin amounted to 8,233 million euro in 2017. Excluding, on a like-for-like basis, the negative contribution of
205 million euro attributable to the Aggregate Set, the operating margin posted an annual increase of 2%, due to the rise in
revenues, which more than offset the modest increase in operating costs.

Net adjustments to loans
(millions of euro)

2017 2016 Changes
Consolidated Of which:  Consolidated ~Consolidated
figure figure of the figure net of the figure Q
uarterly development
(a) Aggregate Set Aggregate Set (d) amount % Net adjusi’ments tz I
®  ©=@-0 ©=0- @/
Bad loans -2,580 -5 -2,575 -2,489 86 3.5
Unlikely to pay -1,042 -33 -1,009 -1,347 -338  -25.1
Past due loans -242 -13 -229 -266 -37 139 <
Performing loans 496 - 496 342 154 45.0
Net losses/recoveries on impairment
of loans -3,368 -51 -3,317 -3,760 -443  -11.8 < @ o
~ ~
Net adjustments to/recoveries on = Q = :‘ ~ e
guarantees and commitments 64 - 64 52 12 23.1 2 & ) g -
Net adjustments to loans -3,304 -51 -3,253 -3,708 -455 123 © © © © S
Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of = B & 5 = ] & ¥

Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Adjustments to loans continued to decline in 2017, despite accelerating in the fourth quarter. While still increasing the
coverage of the total non-performing assets, as the incidence of non-performing loans on total loans fell, the cost of credit,
expressed as the ratio of net adjustments to net loans, decreased to 80 bps from 102 bps in the previous financial year.

Net adjustments to loans amounted to 3,304 million euro, an annual decrease of around 12%, which primarily affected
unlikely to pay positions. Bad loans required total net adjustments of 2,580 million euro, with a coverage ratio at year-end of
63.1%. Net impairment losses on unlikely to pay exposures, totalling 1,042 million euro, decreased compared to the previous
year, with a coverage ratio of 28.4%. Net impairment losses on past due loans amounted to 242 million euro, with a coverage
ratio of 20.2%. The coverage ratio for forborne positions within the non-performing loans category was 33.9% at the end of
December 2017. Lastly, the generic reserve, due to the gradual decrease in the incurred loss, offers a coverage ratio of 0.4%
for the ordinary risk inherent in the performing loans portfolio.
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(millions of euro)

2017 Changes %
Fourth quarter Third Second First
Consolidated Of which:  Consolidated quarter quarter quarter (C/D)  (D/E) (E/F)
figure  figure of the figure net of the (d) (e) (U]

(a) Aggregate Set Aggregate Set
(b)  (c)=(a)-(b)

Bad loans -1,327 -5 -1,322 -428 -431 -394 -0.7 9.4
Unlikely to pay -288 -33 -255 -296 -197 -261 -13.9 50.3 -245
Past due loans -66 -9 -57 -45 -55 -72 26.7 -18.2 -23.6
Performing loans 399 -7 406 82 -25 33

Net losses/recoveries on impairment of loans -1,282 -54 -1,228 -687 -708 -694 78.7 -3.0 2.0
Net adjustments to/recoveries on guarantees and commitmeni 53 - 53 41 -29 -1 29.3

Net adjustments to loans -1,229 -54 -1,175 -646 -737 -695 81.9 -12.3 6.0

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been
restated.

The rate of adjustments in the fourth quarter of 2017 was nearly twice that of the first three quarters of 2017 and essentially in
line with the fourth quarter of 2016. Net adjustments to performing loans in the fourth quarter include the positive effects of the
sale of a security classified among loans and receivables.

Net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets
(millions of euro)

2017 2016 Changes
Consolidated Of which:  Consolidated Consolidated
figure figure of the  figure net of figure Net provisions and net impairment
(8)  Aggregate Set the @ amount % losses on other assets
(b) Aggregate Set (e)=(c)- (d) (e)/(d)
(c)=(a)- (b)
Net provisions -151 -3 -148 -177 -29 -16.4
[fe]
Net impairment losses on other assets -67 - -67 -245 -178 -72.7 |
Net provisions and net impairment - o~ §
losses on other assets -218 -3 -215 -422 -207 -49.1 s 38 o B
© b= - ° H
< —
© © © © £ £ £ E
Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca = B By 3 S 8 & ¥

Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Within the layout of the reclassified income statement, this caption consists of the net provisions for risks and charges and net
impairment losses on other assets. In the current financial year, the net provisions for risks and charges amounted to 148
million euro, a decline compared to 2016; net impairment losses on other assets (financial assets available for sale and
property and equipment and intangible assets) recorded a negative balance of -67 million euro, down considerably from the -
245 million euro recorded in the previous year, thanks to lower impairment on equities and equity investments.

(millions of euro)

2017 Changes %
Fourth quarter Third Second First
Consolidated Of which: Consolidated ~ quarter  quarter  quarter (C/D) (D/E) (E/F)
figure figure of the figure net of the (d) (e) ()
(a) Aggregate Set Aggregate Set
(b) (¢)=(a)- (b)
Net provisions -93 -5 -88 -22 -37 -1 -40.5
Net impairment losses on other assets -42 - -42 -3 -20 -2 -85.0
Net provisions and net impairment losses
on other assets -135 -5 -130 -25 -57 -3 -56.1

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca
have not been restated.

At the quarterly level, both net provisions for risks and charges and net adjustments to other assets were higher in the fourth
quarter of 2017 than in the preceding three quarters of 2017, the former due to increased provisions for risks associated with
commercial initiatives and disputes and the latter due to the impairment of certain equity investments and real estate assets.
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Other income (expenses)

In this caption of the reclassified income statement, the “realised profits (losses) on investments held to maturity and on other
investments” are aggregated together with other income and expenses not strictly linked to operations. In 2017, other net
income amounted to 4,746 million euro, of which 3,500 million euro related to the public contribution received to offset the
impact on the capital ratios and such as to ensure a phased-in Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio of 12.5% of the risk-weighted
assets (RWA) included in the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca. Net of this contribution,
revenues amounted to 1,246 million euro, compared to the 355 million in 2016. The capital gains realised on the sale of the
investment in Allfunds Bank (811 million euro), the positive effect due to the disposal of a stake in NTV and the fair value
measurement following the reclassification of both the remaining equity investment held in NTV (109 million euro) and the
investment in Bank of Qingdao (190 million euro), no longer included under entities subject to significant influence, were all
recorded in 2017. The NTV transaction was overseen by the Structured Finance team of Banca IMI, as part of the core
business of the Corporate and Investment Banking Division.

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations

No income or loss from discontinued operations was recorded in 2017; by contrast, income of 952 million euro was recorded
in 2016, referring to the capital gain realised and the ordinary profit of Setefi and ISP Card, which were sold in the fourth
quarter.

Gross income (loss)

Income before tax from continuing operations, net of the aforementioned public contribution of 3,500 million euro and the
contribution attributable to the Aggregate Set of a negative 259 million euro, amounted to 6,216 million euro, up +14.1%
compared to the 5,450 million euro posted in 2016.

Taxes on income

Current and deferred taxes came to 1,553 million euro. The tax rate dropped drastically to 16% following the non-taxable
public contribution; excluding this contribution the tax rate would be approximately 25%, more than one percentage point
below the tax rate for 2016.

Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives

The caption — net of charges of 179 million euro associated with the Aggregate Set and relating to the amount by which the
estimated integration costs exceeded the government contribution received and with a fund created for Group customers who
lost a part of their savings on their investments in the shares of the former Venetian banks — amounted to 121 million euro, a
decline on the previous year. This reclassified income statement caption also includes - net of the relevant tax effect - the
additional public contribution of 1,285 million euro received to cover the integration and rationalisation charges relating to the
acquisition of certain assets and liabilities and certain legal relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca.
The same caption also includes the specific provision for risks and charges, net of the relevant deferred tax assets.
Consequently, the aforementioned contribution had no impact on the caption and on the income statement.

Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax)

This caption comprises amounts attributable to the revaluation of loans, debts, real estate and the recognition of new
intangible assets, in application of IFRS 3, upon recognition of acquisition of equity investments and/or balance sheet
aggregates. In 2017, such expenses amounted to 51 million euro, less than the 112 million euro recognised in 2016. This item
came to a positive 327 million euro, taking account of the positive effect of 378 million due to the recognition of badwill of 363
million euro following the purchase price allocation (PPA), in accordance with IFRS 3, in respect of the assets and liabilities of
the former Venetian Banks, and to the effects pertaining to the second half of 2017 (15 million euro) relating to the
amortisation of differences between fair values and carrying amounts as a result of the PPA.

Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry (net of tax)

The caption includes the charges imposed by legislative provisions and/or aimed at maintaining the stability of the banking
system and consequently outside the company management. In 2017, levies and other charges concerning the banking
industry, net of taxes, amounted to 637 million euro (excluding the 12 million euro attributable to the Aggregate Set), up by
14% from the 559 million euro recorded in the previous year. The charges for the current year include 301 million euro
attributable to the impairment of the investment in the Atlante Fund and 103 million euro to the impairment of the investment
in the Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund Voluntary Scheme, both established to tackle the banking crisis, in addition to 114
million euro of ordinary contributions to the European Resolution Fund, 68 million euro of contributions to the National Deposit
Guarantee Fund, 16 million euro of contributions to the Deposit Guarantee Scheme of some international subsidiaries and 35
million euro of charges as a result of the compulsory administrative liquidation of the former Venetian banks.

Minority interests
Minority interests, amounting to 41 million euro, were down compared to the 90 million euro in 2016, mainly as a result of the
lower income from the Group’s indirect private equity investments.

Net income (loss)

As a result of the above trends, the Group closed 2017 with net income of 3,816 million euro (excluding the effect of the public
contribution of 3,500 million euro as a result of the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities and certain legal relationships of
Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca). This result — even excluding the positive contribution in the second half of the

year of the Aggregate Set of 3 million euro — was 22.6% higher than in 2016.



Balance sheet aggregates

General aspects

A condensed balance sheet is prepared to permit a more immediate understanding of the Group's assets and liabilities.

Where necessary, comparative figures are restated to account for discontinued operations and changes in the scope of

consolidation. As usual, certain aggregations and reclassifications have been made with respect to the model provided in

Circular 262/05 of the Bank of Italy.

The restated financial statements are obtained by making appropriate adjustments to historical data to reflect the significant

effects of such changes retroactively. Any differences due to the possibility of choosing between different options provided for

by IAS/IFRS or arising from the use of different methods or parameters to measure assets and liabilities are not considered,

as they are deemed irrelevant. Last, please note that no intragroup relations are netted where their amount is not significant.

The balance sheet as at 31 December 2017 includes the acquisition, effective from 26 June 2017, of certain assets and

liabilities and certain legal relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca, including subsidiaries

Banca Apulia, Banca Nuova, Veneto Banka (Croatia), Veneto Banka Sh.a (Albania), Sec Servizi and Servizi Bancari

(hereinafter the “Aggregate Set”).

Considering the particular case in question, no adjustments were made to the historic data in the reclassified balance sheet in

order to retroactively reflect the effects of the acquisition.

In relation to the migration to Intesa Sanpaolo's systems of data regarding the relationships of the former Banca Popolare di

Vicenza and Veneto Banca, completed in early December, separate accounting information about such relationships is no

longer presented in the Report on operations. Accordingly, the figures as at 31 December 2017 include the contribution of the

Aggregate Set.

In the interest of greater comprehensibility, the absolute changes attributable to the Aggregate Set — represented by the

amounts as at the acquisition date — are presented in the reclassified balance sheet and the detail tables, along with absolute

and percent changes in balance sheet figures, net of such amounts, to enable a consistent comparison.

Breakdowns of restatements, aggregations and reclassifications made with respect to the model provided in Circular 262 of

the Bank of Italy are provided in separate tables included in the attachments to the consolidated financial statements, as also

required by Consob in its Communication 6064293 of 28 July 2006.

Aggregations of captions refer to:

— the inclusion of Cash and cash equivalents in the residual caption Other assets;

— the inclusion of Hedging derivatives and Fair value change of financial assets/liabilities in hedged portfolios in Other
assets/liabilities;

— the inclusion of the technical insurance reserves reassured with third parties under Other assets;

— the aggregation in one single caption of Property and equipment and Intangible assets;

— the aggregation of Due to customers and Securities issued into one caption;

— the aggregation into one caption of allowances for specific purpose (Employee termination indemnities and Allowances
for risks and charges);

— the presentation of Reserves as an aggregate and net of any treasury shares.

Again, to provide a more effective presentation of the composition of aggregates, derivatives recorded in Financial

assets/liabilities held for trading and Due from/Due to banks are presented on a net basis in the tables and in the

relative comments.

Loans to customers include the loan granted by Intesa Sanpaolo to the banks in the compulsory administrative liquidation

procedure totalling 6.4 billion euro (3.2 billion euro to Banca Popolare di Vicenza in compulsory administrative liquidation and

3.2 billion to Veneto Banca in compulsory administrative liquidation) with a maximum term of five years, a fixed interest rate of

1% per annum guaranteed by the State. This amount finances the imbalance between assets acquired and liabilities

assumed from Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca.
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Reclassified balance sheet

Assets

Financial assets held for trading
of which: Insurance Companies

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss
of which: Insurance Companies

Financial assets available for sale
of which: Insurance Companies

Investments held to maturity

Due from banks

Loans to customers

Investments in associates and companies subject to joint control
Property, equipment and intangible assets

Tax assets

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Due to banks
Due to customers and securities issued
of which: Insurance Companies
Financial liabilities held for trading
of which: Insurance Companies
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss
of which: Insurance Companies
Tax liabilities
Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations
Other liabilities
Technical reserves
Allowances for specific purpose
Share capital
Reserves
Valuation reserves
Equity instruments
Minority interests

Net income (loss)

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

C Lidatad Consolidated

figure figure

(including the (b)
Aggregate Set)
(a)

39,518 43,613

490 514

75,269 63,865

74,715 62,743

142,341 146,692

77,373 79,286

1,174 1,241

72,462 53,146

410,746 364,713

678 1,167

14,419 12,294

16,887 14,442

627 478

22,740 23,487

796,861 725,138

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

C Tidated C Fdated

figure figure

(including the (b)
Aggregate Set)
(a)

99,990 72,641

417,682 386,666

1,311 1,295

41,285 44,790

67 86

68,169 57,187

68,166 57,184

2,509 2,038

264 300

20,541 21,754

82,926 85,619

6,891 4,824

8,732 8,732

36,843 36,805

-789 -1,854

4,103 2,117

399 408

7,316 3,111

796,861 725,138

Changes amount
Figure of

Consolidated

figure the Aggregate

(©)=(a)-(b)

-4,095
-24

11,404
11,972
-4,351
1,913
67
19,316
46,033
-489
2,125
2,445
149
747

71,723

Changes amount
Figure of

Consolidated

Set
(d)

2,073

1,982
328
1,207

50,007

figure the Aggregate

(©)=(a)-(b)

27,349
31,016
16
-3,505
-19
10,982
10,982
471

-1,213
-2,693
2,067
38
-1,065
1,986
-9
4,205

71,723

Set
(d)

10,376
36,079

1,541

107

1,748

147

50,007

(millions of euro)

Net of the
Aggregate Set
(e) = (a-d) - (b)

6,168
24
11,402
11,972
-10,029
1,013
-67
15,547
11,459
-553
1,795
463
179
-1,954

21,716

Net of the
Aggregate Set
(e) = (a-d) - (b)

16,973
-5,063
16
-5,046
-19
10,982
10,982
364

-2,961
-2,693
1,920
31
-1,063
1,986
-9
4,205

21,716

%
(e)/(b)

-14.1
4.7

17.9
19.1

-6.8
24

54
29.3
3.1
47.4
146
32
374
-8.3

3.0

%
(e)/(b)

23.4
-1.3
1.2

-11.3
-22.1

19.2
19.2
17.9

-12.0
-13.6
-3.1
39.8

0.1
-57.3
93.8
-2.2

3.0

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto

Banca have not been restated.

Figures under (d) relate to the values of the Venetian Banks as at the date of acquisition, adjusted to take the results of the due diligence into account.
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Quarterly development of the reclassified balance sheet

(millions of euro)

Assets 2017 2016
31112 30/09 30/06
c lidated C lidated Consolidated
figure figure figure
(including the (including the (including the 313 31/12 30/9 30/6 313
Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Set) Set) Set)
Financial assets held for trading 39,518 41,762 44,415 44,484 43,613 50,232 52,499 54,786
of which: Insurance Companies 490 485 486 498 514 524 648 721
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit and loss 75,269 72,805 70,018 67,438 63,865 61,338 57,948 54,480
of which: Insurance Companies 74,715 71,806 68,961 66,330 62,743 60,187 56,908 53,358
Financial assets available for sale 142,341 143,906 144,562 150,000 146,692 146,885 152,465 142,816
of which: Insurance Companies 77,373 78,098 78,174 78,916 79,286 80,792 80,379 78,393
Investments held to maturity 1,174 2,267 2,305 1,229 1,241 1,231 1,246 1,317
Due from banks 72,462 79,381 78,147 58,897 53,146 37,528 36,879 33,540
Loans to customers 410,746 390,818 393,517 366,648 364,713 364,836 360,240 358,478
Investments in associates and companies
subject to joint control 678 716 1,282 736 1,167 1,253 1,266 1,281
Property, equipment and intangible assets 14,419 12,331 12,418 12,198 12,294 12,102 12,109 12,107
Tax assets 16,887 15,707 15,949 14,341 14,442 14,161 14,396 14,581
Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations 627 493 483 488 478 961 1,154 3,721
Other assets 22,740 25,173 24,959 23,028 23,487 23,909 27,126 23,289
Total Assets 796,861 785,359 788,055 739,487 725,138 714,436 717,328 700,396
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 2017 2016
31112 30/09 30/06
c lidated C lidated Consolidated
figure figure figure
(including the (including the (including the 313 31/12 30/9 30/6 313
Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Set) Set) Set)
Due to banks 99,990 99,281 101,450 92,584 72,641 69,641 67,656 60,343
Due to customers and securities issued 417,682 412,279 406,036 377,374 386,666 372,383 379,655 373,239
of which: Insurance Companies 1,311 1,376 1,339 1,331 1,295 1,320 1,362 1,361
Financial liabilities held for trading 41,285 41,476 42,517 43,360 44,790 48,143 49,340 48,936
of which: Insurance Companies 67 68 68 78 86 117 104 95
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit and loss 68,169 65,567 63,017 60,562 57,187 54,373 51,360 48,031
of which: Insurance Companies 68,166 65,398 62,823 60,559 57,184 54,373 51,360 48,031
Tax liabilities 2,509 1,927 1,972 2,084 2,038 2,235 2,186 2,564
Liabilities associated with non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations 264 296 295 302 300 442 364 375
Other liabilities 20,541 20,588 29,083 22,994 21,754 25,945 26,800 25,180
Technical reserves 82,926 83,211 83,593 84,405 85,619 87,370 86,813 86,664
Allowances for specific purpose 6,891 6,695 6,571 4,731 4,824 5,042 4,981 4,786
Share capital 8,732 8,732 8,732 8,732 8,732 8,732 8,732 8,732
Reserves 36,843 36,834 36,930 39,903 36,805 36,774 36,830 39,184
Valuation reserves -789 -1,908 -1,838 -2,159 -1,854 -1,737 -1,860 -1,387
Equity instruments 4,103 4,102 4,102 3,358 2,117 2,118 2,118 2,118
Minority interests 399 391 357 356 408 640 646 825
Net income (loss) 7,316 5,888 5,238 901 3,111 2,335 1,707 806
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 796,861 785,359 788,055 739,487 725,138 714,436 717,328 700,396

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di
Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.
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Loans to customers

Current accounts

Mortgages

Advances and other loans
Commercial banking loans
Repurchase agreements

Loans represented by securities

Non-performing loans

Loans to customers

31.12.2017

Consolidated %
figure  breakdown

(including

the

Aggregate

Set)

(a)

22,261 5.4
171,341 41.7
147,074 35.8
340,676 82.9

31,482 7.7

13,124 3.2

25,464 6.2
410,746 100.0

31.12.2016
Consolidated %
figure  breakdown
(b)

21,142 5.8
145,342 39.8
124,099 34.0
290,583 79.6

29,940 8.2

14,423 4.0

29,767 8.2
364,713 100.0

Consolidated
figure

(c) = (a)- (b)

1,119
25,999
22,975
50,093

1,542
-1,299
-4,303

46,033

(millions of euro)

Changes
Figure of Net of the
the  Aggregate Set
Aggregate (e) = (a-d) - (b)
Set
(d)

3,392 -2,273
19,475 6,524
10,745 12,230
33,612 16,481

63 1,479

305 -1,604
594 -4,897
34,574 11,459

%
(e)/(b)

-10.8
4.5
9.9
5.7
4.9

-11.1

-16.5

3.1

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca
Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Figures under (d) relate to the values of the Venetian Banks as at the date of acquisition, adjusted to take the results of the due diligence into account.

358,478

31/3/16

(

360,240

30/6/16

364,836

30/9/16

Quarterly development
Loans to customers

364,713

31/12/16

366,648

31/3117

) Consolidated figure including the Aggregate Set

393,517

30/6/17

*

390,818

30/9/17

=

410,746

3112117

*

As at 31 December 2017, loans to customers of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group amounted to 411 billion euro, up by 11.5 billion
euro, net of the Aggregate Set (an annual increase of +3.1% on a like-for-like basis).
The development of loans was driven by the positive performance of commercial banking loans (+16.5 billion euro, or +5.7%)
and reverse repurchase agreements (+1.5 billion euro), only partly offset by the decline in loans represented by securities
(-1.6 billion euro) and non-performing loans (-4.9 billion euro). Commercial banking loans, which benefited from the
improvement in the economy, were driven by the increase in advances and other loans (+12.2 billion euro, or +9.9% on a like-
for-like basis) and mortgages (+6.5 billion euro, or +4.5%). Given the favourable market conditions for customers, increases
were observed in loans to individual customers, through consumer credit and mortgage loans for home purchase, and in
loans to businesses aimed at financing investments and working capital.
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In the domestic medium-/long-term loan market, disbursements to households in 2017 (including the small business accounts
having similar needs to family businesses) reached 20 billion euro, while disbursements to businesses under the Banca dei
Territori scope (including customers with turnover of up to 350 million euro) came to 15 billion euro. During the year, medium-
/long-term disbursements to segments included in the scope of the Corporate Division exceeded 13 billion euro. Including the
extra-captive activities of Mediocredito, disbursements within Italy exceeded 49 billion euro. On the whole, the Group's
medium-/long-term disbursements in 2017, inclusive of those attributable to the former Venetian banks, exceeded 63
billion euro.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s share of the domestic market was 18% for total loans, including loans to customers of
the Aggregate Set.

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes Business areas
amount %
Banca dei Territori 196,814 188,317 8,497 4.5
Corporate and Investment Banking 109,399 98,183 11,216 11.4 u Asset
International Subsidiary Banks 28,637 26,492 2,145 8.1 Manag., Insurance, 0.0%
Private Banking 9,637 9,597 40 04 "D 0-1%
Asset Management 361 298 63 211 2.8%
Insurance 22 26 -4 -154 =
International
Subsidiary
Total business areas 344,870 322,913 21,957 6.8 Banks, 8:2%
Corporate Centre 65,876 41,800 10,498 -25.1

. Corporate and

0 410,746 364,713 11459 34 SeEment o Banca do
Territori,
57.2%

Intesa Sanpaolo Group
0 The change expresses the ratio between 31.12.2017, excluding the Aggregate Set, and 31.12.2016.

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate
Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

In the analysis of loans by business area, the Banca dei Territori Division, which accounts for approximately 60% of the
aggregate of the Group’s business areas, recorded an increase of 8.5 billion euro compared to the end of 2016 (+4.5%),
essentially due to the increase in medium-/long-term loans. The loans of the Corporate and Investment Banking Division
posted even greater growth of 11.2 billion euro (+11.4%), due in part to the increase in repurchase agreement business by
Banca IMI and the greater loans issued by Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Luxembourg. The loans to customers of the International
Subsidiary Banks Division also increased (+8.1%). Turning to the other operating divisions, whose loans are of relatively
modest amounts in light of their specific businesses, the loans of the Private Banking Division increased marginally (+0.4%).
With regard to the Aggregate Set, as mentioned above the balance sheet balances as at 31 December 2017 are temporarily
allocated in full to the Corporate Centre and will be broken down into the various divisions once the processes are integrated
starting from 2018.
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Loans to customers:

credit quality

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
Net exposure % Net exposure %

Consolidated ~ breakdown Consolidated ~ breakdown gonsojidated Figure of Net of the
figure figure figure the  Aggregate Set
(including (b) (c)=(a)-(b)  Aggregate (e)=(a-d)-(b)

the Set

Aggregate (d)

Set)
(@)

Bad loans 12,625 3.1 14,895 41 -2,270 94 -2,364
Unlikely to pay 12,460 3.0 14,435 4.0 -1,975 477 -2,452
Past due loans 379 0.1 437 0.1 -58 23 -81
Non-performing loans 25,464 6.2 29,767 8.2 -4,303 594 -4,897
of which forborne 7,360 8,204 -844 171 -1,015
Performing loans 372,158 90.6 320,523 87.8 51,635 33,675 17,960
of which forborne 7,734 7,828 -856

-94 762
Loans represented by performing securities 13,124 3.2 14,423 4.0 -1,299 305 -1,604
of which forborne 94 96 -2 - -2
Loans to customers 410,746 100.0 364,713 100.0 46,033 34,574 11,459

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca
Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Figures under (d) relate to the values of the Venetian Banks as at the date of acquisition, adjusted to take the results of the due diligence into account.

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes Net Exposure
Gross exposure Total Net exposure Gross Total Net  Consolidated Figures of Net of
adjustments p e ij p e figure operations operation
c e C, (PR C (T C (T c fdatod  © (c) = (a) - (b) acquired acquired
figure figure figure figure figure figure @ (e)=(ad)-(b)
(including (including (including (b)

operations operations operations

acquired) acquired) acquired)

(@)
Bad loans 34,192 -21,567 12,625 37,834 -22,939 14,895 2,270 94 -2,364
Unlikely to pay 17,406 -4,946 12,460 19,745 -5,310 14,435 -1,975 477 -2,452
Past due loans 475 -96 379 558 -121 437 -58 23 -81
Non-performing loans 52,073 -26,609 25,464 58,137 -28,370 29,767 -4,303 594 -4,897
of which forborne 11,134 -3,774 7,360 11,727 -3,523 8,204 -844 171 -1,015
Performing loans 373,457 -1,299 372,158 322,130 -1,607 320,523 51,635 33,675 17,960
of which forborne 7,860 -126 7,734 8,036 -208 7,828 -94 762 -856
Performing loans represented 13313 189 13,124 14,651 228 14423 1,299 305 41,604

by securities

of which forborne 94 94 97 -1 96 -2 - -2
Loans to customers 438,843 -28,097 410,746 394,918 -30,205 364,713 46,033 34,574 11,459

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di
Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Figures under (d) relate to the values of the Venetian Banks as at the date of acquisition, adjusted to take the results of the due diligence into account.

As at 31 December 2017 the Group's net non-performing loans amounted to 25.5 billion, down by 16.5% compared to the end
of 2016, continuing the decline recorded in the previous year. Since the beginning of the year, a significant decrease has also
been recorded in non-performing assets as a percentage of total net loans to customers, down to 6.2%.

In particular, at the end of 2017 loans classified as bad loans, net of adjustments, stood at 12.6 billion euro, down by 2.4
billion euro compared to the beginning of the year (-15.9% on a like-for-like basis), due in part to the sales undertaken,
accounting for 3.1% of total loans. During the period, the coverage ratio was 63.1%. Loans included in the unlikely to pay
category amounted to 12.5 billion euro, down by 2.5 billion euro on a like-for-like basis (-17%), accounting for 3% of total
loans to customers, with a coverage ratio of 28.4%. Past due loans amounted to 379 million euro, down 18.5% compared to
the beginning of the year on a like-for-like basis, with a coverage ratio of 20.2%. Within the non-performing loan category,
forborne exposures, generated by forbearance measures for borrowers experiencing difficulty in meeting their financial
obligations, according to the definition introduced by the European Banking Authority, amounted to 7.4 billion euro, with an
average coverage ratio of 33.9%, whereas those in the performing loan category were slightly higher (7.7 billion euro).

The overall coverage ratio of performing loans was 0.4%.
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Customer financial assets

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
Consolidated % Consolidated % Consolidated Figure of Net of the %
figure breakdown figure  breakdown figure the Aggregate Set (e)/ (b)
(including (b) (c)=(a)-(b) Aggregate (e)=(a-d)-(b)
the Set
Aggregate (d)
Set)
(a)
Direct deposits from banking business 423,474 449 393,805 45.6 29,669 36,079 -6,410 -1.6
Direct deposits from insurance business and technical 152,403 16.1 144,098 16.7 8.305 } 8305 58
reserves
Indirect customer deposits 518,443 55.0 468,855 54.2 49,588 15,531 34,057 7.3
Netting (*) -151,092 -16.0 -142,803 -16.5 8,289 - 8,289 5.8
Customer financial assets 943,228 100.0 863,955 100.0 79,273 51,610 27,663 3.2

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and
Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Figures under (d) relate to the values of the Venetian Banks as at the date of acquisition, adjusted to take the results of the due diligence into account.

-
0 Netting refers to components of indirect deposits which are also included in direct customer deposits (financial liabilities of the insurance business designated at fair value and technical
reserves).

As at 31 December 2017, customer financial assets had exceeded 943 billion euro, up by 27.7 billion euro compared to the
beginning of the year on a like-for-like basis (+3.2%), due to the increase in indirect funding, which rose by 34.1 billion euro
and, to a lesser extent, in insurance funding (+8.3 billion euro).

Direct deposits from banking business
The table below sets out amounts due to customers, securities issued, including those designated at fair value, and capital-

protected certificates.
(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
Consolidated % Consolidated % Consolidated Figure of Net of the %
figure  breakdown figure  breakdown figure the Aggregate Set (e)/ (b
(including (b) (c)=(a)- (b) Aggregate (e) = (a-d) - (b)
the Set
Aggregate (d)
Set)
(a)
Current accounts and deposits 288,635 68.2 257,740 65.5 30,895 17,125 13,770 5.3
Repurchase agreements and securities 21,303 5.0 24,561 6.2 -3,258 2,592 5,850  -23.8
lending
Bonds 68,773 16.2 73,214 18.6 4,441 11,784 16,225  -22.2
of which designated at fair value © - - - - - - - -
Certificates of deposit 4,913 1.2 3,933 1.0 980 34 946 241
Subordinated liabilities 13,411 3.2 13,813 3.5 -402 - -402 -2.9
Other deposits 26,439 6.2 20,544 52 5,895 4,544 1,351 6.6
of which designated at fair value 7,103 1.7 8,434 2.1 -1,331 - 41,331 -15.8
Direct deposits from banking business 423,474 100.0 393,805 100.0 29,669 36,079 -6,410 -1.6

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca
Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Figures under (d) relate to the values of the Venetian Banks as at the date of acquisition, adjusted to take the results of the due diligence into account.
© Figures included in the Balance sheet under Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss.

™ Figures included in the Balance sheet under Financial liabilities held for trading.
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Quarterly development
Direct deposits from banking business

379,996
386,769
379,631
393,805
383,840
412,067
418,407
423474
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311216
311317
30617
3009117
11217

¥
¥
¥

© Consolidated figure including the Aggregate Set

Total direct deposits from banking business exceeded 423 billion euro: in equivalent terms, the aggregate was down by 6.4
billion euro (-1.6%) compared to the end of December 2016, with diverging performances by the main deposit types.

In particular, there were decreases of 16.2 billion euro in bonds (-22.2%) and of 5.9 billion euro in repurchase agreements
(-23.8%). On the other hand, there were increases in current accounts and deposits (+13.8 billion euro or +5.3%), other
deposits (+1.4 billion euro due to the development of commercial paper) and certificates of deposit (+0.9 billion euro).

At the end of December 2017, the domestic market share of the Group’s direct deposits, consisting of deposits and bonds,
was 18.3%, including the deposits contributed by the Aggregate Set.

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes Business areas
amount %
Banca dei Territori 175,277 173,599 1,678 1.0
Corporate and Investment Banking 111,940 112,661 -721 -0.6
International Subsidiary Banks 35,538 32,978 2,560 7.8 L] = Private
International Banking, Insurance,
Private Banking 30,581 27,540 3,041 11.0 Subsidiary % 0.0%
Asset Management 6 8 2 250 Banks, 10.1%
Insurance - - - -
m Asset
Total business areas Manag.,
(excluding operations acquired) 353,342 346,786 6,556 1.9 0.0%
* B
Corporate Centre ) 70,132 47,019 12,966  -27.6 v
*) Territori,
Intesa Sanpaolo Group 423,474 393,805 -6,410 -1.6 Corporate and 49.6%

Investment
Banking, 31.7%
*
( )The change expresses the ratio between 31.12.2017, excluding the Aggregate Set, and 31.12.2016.

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate
Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

An analysis of the aggregate attributable to the business areas shows an overall increase compared to the end of 2016
(+1.9%). At the level of the individual divisions, Banca dei Territori, which accounts for approximately 50% of the aggregate,
posted an increase of 1% due to the rise in amounts due to customers, primarily personal and corporate customers, which
more than offset the decline in bonds, whereas the Corporate and Investment Banking Division was essentially stable
(-0.6%). Significant increases were posted by the International Subsidiary Banks Division (+7.8%), due to the positive
performances of both amounts due to customers and securities issued, and by the Private Banking Division (+11%).

With regard to the Aggregate Set, as mentioned above the balance sheet balances as at 31 December 2017 are temporarily
allocated in full to the Corporate Centre and will be broken down into the various divisions once the processes are integrated
starting from 2018.
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Direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves
(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
% %
breakdown breakdown amount %
Financial liabilities of the insurance business designated
at fair value (*) 68,166 44.7 57,184 39.7 10,982 19.2
Index-linked products 1 - 1 - - R
Unit-linked products 68,165 44.7 57,183 39.7 10,982 19.2
Technical reserves 82,926 54.4 85,619 59.4 -2,693 -3.1
Life business 82,248 54.0 85,026 59.0 -2,778 -3.3
Mathematical reserves 71,320 46.8 73,508 51.0 -2,188 -3.0
Technical reserves where the investment risk is borne by the
policyholders (**) and reserves related to pension funds 5,843 3.8 5,455 3.8 388 71
Other reserves 5,085 3.4 6,063 4.2 -978 -16.1
Non-life business 678 0.4 593 0.4 85 14.3
Other insurance deposits (***) 1,311 0.9 1,295 0.9 16 1.2
Direct deposits from insurance business and technical reserves
152,403 100.0 144,098 100.0 8,305 5.8

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations.

0 Figures included in the Balance sheet under Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss.
) This caption includes unit- and index-linked policies with significant insurance risk.

" Figures included in the Balance sheet under Due to customers and securities issued.

Quarterly development
Direct insurance deposits and technical reserves
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Direct deposits from insurance business came to 152.4 billion euro at the end of December 2017, up 5.8% compared to 31
December 2016. The more performing component is represented by the financial liabilities of the insurance business
designated at fair value, which grew by 11 billion euro (+19.2%), entirely as a result of the contribution from unit-linked
products. Technical reserves, which constitute the amounts owed to customers subscribing to traditional policies or policies
with significant insurance risk, decreased by 3.1% since the beginning of the year, due to the decrease in mathematical
reserves and other reserves of the life insurance business.
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Indirect customer deposits

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
Consolidated % Consolidated % Consolidated Figure of Net of the %
figure breakdown figure breakdown figure the  Aggregate Set (e)/ (b)
(including (b) (c)=(a)-(b) Aggregate (e)= (a-d)- (b)
the Set
Aggregate (d)
Set)
(@)
Mutual funds 119,387 23.0 105,787 22.6 13,600 930 12,670  12.0
Open-ended pension funds and individual pension 8,221 16 7.489 16 732 } 732 98
plans
Portfolio management ¢~ 57,928 11.2 56,064 12.0 1,864 - 1,864 3.3
Technl.cal reserves a_nd financial liabilities 140 567 271 132,727 283 7.840 } 7.840 59
of the insurance business
Relations with institutional customers 11,895 2.3 12,014 2.5 -119 - -119 -1.0
Assets under management 337,998 65.2 314,081 67.0 23,917 930 22,987 7.3
Assets under administration and in custody 180,445 34.8 154,774 33.0 25,671 14,601 11,070 7.2
Indirect customer deposits 518,443 100.0 468,855 100.0 49,588 15,531 34,057 7.3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca
Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Figures under (d) relate to the values of the Venetian Banks as at the date of acquisition, adjusted to take the results of the due diligence into account.

( )The caption includes mutual funds established and managed by Eurizon Capital, Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking and several international companies. The caption
does not include funds held by Group insurance companies and managed by Eurizon Capital, whose values are included in technical reserves, or the contribution of funds
established by third parties and managed by Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking, whose value is included in assets under administration and in custody.

( )The entry does not include stocks of unit-linked policies of Intesa Sanpaolo Vita, the value of which is included in the technical reserves and financial insurance liabilities.

Quarterly development
Indirect deposits

451,191
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) Consolidated figure including the Aggregate Set

As at 31 December 2017, indirect customer deposits, inclusive of the contribution of the Aggregate Set, exceeded 518 billion
euro, an increase of 34.1 billion euro, net of the Aggregate Set, compared to the end of 2016 (+7.3% on a like-for-like basis).
Given the favourable conditions of the financial markets, the performance was determined by the increase in both assets
under management, mainly driven by mutual funds and insurance segment products, and assets under administration.

Assets under management, which account for nearly two-thirds of the total aggregate, were up 23 billion euro in 2017 (+7.3%
on an annual basis, net of the Aggregate Set), mainly due to the high net inflows achieved by the distribution networks.
Investment funds, in which investor preferences were concentrated, increased by 12.7 billion euro net of the Aggregate Set
(+12%). Insurance products increased by 7.8 billion euro (+5.9%): in 2017, the new life business of Intesa Sanpaolo Vita
(including Intesa Sanpaolo Life) and Fideuram Vita, including pension products, amounted to 22.3 billion euro. Portfolio
management schemes and pension funds also posted growth (+1.9 billion euro and +0.7 billion euro, respectively). Dealings
with institutional customers were essentially stable.

Assets under administration recorded an increase of 11.1 billion euro net of the Aggregate Set (+7.2%), attributable to
securities and third-party products in customer portfolios and dealings with institutional customers.

87
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Financial assets and liabilities
(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
Consolidated of which Consolidated of which Consolidated Figure of Net of the %
figure Insurance figure Insurance figure the Aggregate Set  (e)/(b)
(including  Companies (b)  Companies (c)=(a)-(b)  Aggregate  (e)=(a-d)-(b)
the Set
Aggregate (d)
Set)
(a)
Financial assets held for trading 39,518 490 43,613 514 -4,095 2,073 -6,168 -14.1
of which derivatives at fair value 24,789 10 30,220 12 5,431 1,943 -7,374 24.4
Flna_nmal assets designated at fair value through 11,404 2 11,402 179
profit and loss 75,269 74,715 63,865 62,743
Financial assets available for sale 142,341 77,373 146,692 79,286 -4,351 5,678 -10,029 -6.8
Investments held to maturity 1,174 - 1,241 -67 - -67 -5.4
Total financial assets 258,302 152,578 255,411 142,543 2,891 7,753 -4,862 -1.9
Financial liabilities held for trading (*) -34,185 -67 -36,359 -86 -2,174 -1,541 -3,715 -10.2
of which derivatives at fair value -25,732 -67 -32,201 -86 -6,469 -1,541 -8,010 -24.9

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and
Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Figures under (d) relate to the values of the Venetian Banks as at the date of acquisition, adjusted to take the results of the due diligence into account.

O The amount of the item does not include capital protected certificates which are included in the direct customer deposits table.

The table above illustrates the breakdown of financial assets and the financial liabilities held for trading. Financial liabilities
designated at fair value, referring to insurance business and capital-protected certificates, are not represented as these are
included in the direct deposits aggregates.

Total financial assets were down by 1.9% during the year on a like-for-like basis, following a general decline in all
components, except for financial assets designated at fair value, which recorded an increase of 11.4 billion euro on a like-for-
like basis (+17.9%), essentially due to equities and units of UCI attributable to insurance companies. Among the other
components, financial assets available for sale showed a decline of 10 billion euro on a like-for-like basis (-6.8%), and
financial assets held for trading decline of 6.2 billion euro on a like-for-like basis (-14.1% compared to December 2016), due
to the decline in derivative contracts (-24.4%). Financial liabilities held for trading also posted a decline of -3.7 billion euro
(-10.2%) during the period attributable to derivative contracts.

Net financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Figure of Net of the %
figure figure figure the  Aggregate Set (e)/ (b
(including of which (b) of which (c)=(a)-(b)  Aggregate (€)= (a-d)- (b)
the Insurance Insurance Set
Aggregate Companies Companies @
Set)
(a)
Bonds and other debt securities held for trading and designated
at fair value through profit and loss 17,049 4,071 16,377 3,963 672 132 540 33
of which designated at fair value (fair value option) 4,281 3,844 4,704 3,710 -423 2 -425 -9.0
Equities and quotas of UCI held for trading and designated at fair
value through profit and loss 72,319 70,506 60,580 58,990 11,739 - 11,739 19.4
of which designated at fair value (fair value option) 70,358 70,253 58,860 58,741 11,498 - 11,498 19.5
Other assets designated at fair value through profit and loss 630 618 301 292 329 - 329
Securities, assets held for trading and financial assets
designated at fair value through profit and loss (*) 89,998 75,195 77,258 63,245 12,740 132 12,608 16.3
Financial liabilities held for trading (**) -8,453 - -4,158 - 4,295 - 4,295
Net value of financial derivatives -827 -56 -1,930 -71 -1,103 402 -701 -36.3
Net value of credit derivatives -116 -1 -51 -3 65 - 65
Net value of trading derivatives -943 -57 -1,981 -74 -1,038 402 -636 -32.1
Financial assets / liabilities, net 80,602 75,138 71,119 63,171 9,483 534 8,949 12.6

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto
Banca have not been restated.

Figures under (d) relate to the values of the Venetian Banks as at the date of acquisition, adjusted to take the results of the due diligence into account.

® Net of the fair value of derivatives.

) The amount is net of the fair value of derivatives and does not include the capital protected certificates included in the table on direct deposits.

Financial assets held for trading, net of the associated liabilities, and financial assets designated at fair value through profit
and loss amounted to approximately 81 billion euro, up 12.6% on a like-for-like basis. This trend was determined largely by
the increase in the stock of equities and units of UCI measured at fair value. Financial liabilities held for trading increased by
4.3 billion euro.
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Financial assets available for sale

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Figure of Net of the %
figure figure figure the  Aggregate Set (e)/ (b)
(including of which (b) of which ~ (¢)=(a)-(b)  Aggregate  (e)=(a-d)- (b)
the Insurance Insurance Set
Aggregate  companies Companies (d)
Set)
(@)
Bonds and other debt securities 126,398 66,309 131,571 69,452 -5,173 5,649 -10,822 -8.2
Equities and quotas of UCI 15,892 11,064 15,098 9,834 794 - 794 53
Securities available for sale 142,290 77,373 146,669 79,286 -4,379 5,649 -10,028 -6.8
Loans available for sale 51 - 23 - 28 29 -1 -4.3
Financial assets available for sale 142,341 77,373 146,692 79,286 -4,351 5,678 -10,029 -6.8

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di
Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Figures under (d) relate to the values of the Venetian Banks as at the date of acquisition, adjusted to take the results of the due diligence into account.

Financial assets available for sale amounted to 142 billion euro: net of the Aggregate Set, they decreased by 10 billion euro
(-6.8%) compared to 31 December 2016.

The caption consists primarily of bonds and other debt securities not held for trading and, to a lesser extent, equities and units
of UCI. Financial assets available for sale are measured at fair value with a balancing entry in the specific shareholders'
equity reserve.

Net interbank position

The net interbank position as at 31 December 2017 recorded a negative balance (-27.5 billion euro, of which 6.6 billion euro
attributable to the Aggregate Set), up compared to the end of 2016 (-19.5 billion euro). Amounts due to banks, equal to 100
billion euro, include a 63.5 billion euro exposure to the ECB, following participation in the TLTRO Il refinancing operations
(inclusive of approximately 7 billion euro relating to the refinancing of the former Venetian banks).

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations and related liabilities
(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated Figure of Net of the %
figure figure figure the Aggregate Set (e)/ (b)
(including (b) (c)=(a)-(b) Aggregate (e) = (a-d) - (b)
the Set
Aggregate (d)
Set)
(a)
Investments in associates and companies subject to joint control - 111 -1 - -1
Property and equipment 341 305 36 - 36 11.8
Other 286 62 224 328 -104
Individual assets 627 478 149 328 -179 -37.4
Discontinued operations - - - - - -
of which: loans to customers - - - - - -
Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations -264 -300 -36 - -36 -12.0
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
and related liabilities 363 178 185 328 -143 -80.3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di
Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

Figures under (d) relate to the values of the Venetian Banks as at the date of acquisition, adjusted to take the results of the due diligence into account.

This caption contains assets and related liabilities which no longer refer to continuing operations as they are being disposed
of. At the end of December 2017, assets held for sale amounted to 363 million euro, down by 143 million euro on a like-for-
like basis compared to the previous year.

In particular, other discontinued operations relating to the Aggregate Set, which as at the execution date amounted to 328
million euro, comprise 14 million euro relating to loans of the international subsidiaries Veneto Banka DD (Croatia) and
Veneto Banka Sh.A. (Albania) identified during due diligence by the Board of Experts as non-performing loans to be
transferred back to Veneto Banca in compulsory administrative liquidation (transfer back that took place in January 2018) and
314 million euro in high-risk loans subsequently reclassified in the financial statements as bad loans or unlikely to pay, which
shall be transferred to the Banks in compulsory administrative liquidation during the next retrocession windows envisaged by
contract, which therefore, in order to ensure comparison on a consistent basis, are shown among discontinued operations
also as at the execution date.
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Shareholders’ equity

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s shareholders’ equity, including net income for the period, came to 56,205 million euro
(52,705 net of the public contribution of 3.5 billion euro related to the acquisition of the Venetian banks), compared to the
48,911 million euro at the end of the previous year. The positive change in equity was due to the issue of Additional Tier 1
equity instruments for 2 billion euro and to net income for the period, which offset the payment of dividends.

Valuation reserves
(millions of euro)

Valuation Change Valuation reserves as at
reserves in the 31.12.2017
as at period

31.12.2016 % breakdown

Financial assets available for sale 471 -187 284 -36.0

of which: Insurance Companies 503 -88 415 -52.6

Property and equipment - - - -

Cash flow hedges -1,146 146 -1,000 126.8

Fair yalue measufement of property and equipment and legally- 348 1,236 1,584 2008
required revaluations

Other -1,527 -130 -1,657 210.0

Valuation reserves -1,854 1,065 -789 100.0

As at 31 December 2017, the negative balance of the Group’s valuation reserves came to -789 million euro, improving
compared to the negative value at the end of December 2016 (-1,854 million euro).

The change in the period relating to the measurement of property and equipment was due to the change in the measurement
criterion (from cost to fair value) for owner-occupied property, investment property and works of art. New reserves of 1,238
million euro, net of deferred taxation, were recognised as a result of the change of accounting policy (as discussed in further
detail in Part A — Accounting Policies of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements).

Own funds and capital ratios

(millions of euro)

Own funds and capital ratios 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Own funds

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) net of regulatory adjustments 38,051 35,926
Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1) net of regulatory adjustments 5,414 3,533
TIER 1 CAPITAL 43,465 39,459
Tier 2 capital net of regulatory adjustments 7,908 8,815
TOTAL OWN FUNDS 51,373 48,274

Risk-weighted assets

Credit and counterparty risks 249,784 243,351
Market and settlement risk 17,833 19,199
Operational risks 18,597 19,545
Other specific risks 611 1,823
RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS 286,825 283,918
% Capital ratios

Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 13.3% 12.7%
Tier 1 capital ratio 15.2% 13.9%
Total capital ratio 17.9% 17.0%

@The caption includes all other elements not contemplated in the foregoing captions that are considered when calculating total capital requirements.

The figures as at 31 December 2017 include the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca.

Own Funds, risk-weighted assets and the capital ratios as at 31 December 2017 were calculated according to the harmonised
rules and regulations for banks and investment companies contained in Directive 2013/36/EU (CRD IV) and in (EU)
Regulation 575/2013 (CRR) of 26 June 2013, which transpose the banking supervision standards defined by the Basel
Committee (the Basel 3 Framework) to European Union laws, and on the basis of the related Bank of Italy Circulars.
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Regulatory provisions governing Own Funds envisage the gradual introduction of the new regulatory framework, through a
transitional period generally lasting until 2017, during which several elements that will be eligible for full inclusion in or
deduction from Common Equity when the framework is fully effective, will only have a partial percentage effect on Common
Equity Tier 1 capital. Generally, the residual percentage, after the applicable portion, is included in/deducted from Additional
Tier 1 capital (AT1) or Tier 2 capital (T2), or is considered among risk-weighted assets.

Specific transitional provisions (i.e. grandfathering) have also been established for subordinated instruments that do not meet
the requirements envisaged in the new regulatory provisions, aimed at the gradual exclusion of instruments no longer
regarded as eligible from Own Funds (over a period of eight years).

Accordingly, the prudential ratios as at 31 December 2017 take account of the adjustments envisaged by the transitional
provisions for 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, total Own Funds came to 51,373 million euro, against risk-weighted assets of 286,825 million euro,
resulting primarily from credit and counterparty risk and, to a lesser extent, operational and market risk.

In January and May 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo issued two Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) equity instruments, respectively for 1.25 and
0.75 billion euro. These two issues complete the issue of 4 billion euro of Additional Tier 1 instruments envisaged in the 2014-
17 Business Plan (a first issue of AT1 instruments had already been carried out in September 2015 for 1 billion dollars and a
second one in January 2016 for 1.25 billion euro). The instruments issued in January and May 2017, both targeted to the
international markets, have, as the issues of 2015 and 2016, characteristics in line with the provisions of the CRD IV and the
CRR, are perpetual (with maturity date tied to the duration of Intesa Sanpaolo, as set in its articles of association) and may be
redeemed in advance by the issuer respectively after 10 and 7 years from the issue date and on every coupon payment date
thereafter.

With regard to the January 2017 issue for 1.25 billion euro, the coupon, payable semi-annually in arrears on 11 January and
11 July of each year, with first payment on 11 July 2017, is equal to 7.75% per annum. With regard to the May 2017 issue for
0.75 billion euro, the issuer pays a fixed rate coupon of 6.25% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on 16 May and
16 November of each year, with first coupon payment on 16 November 2017. For both issues, if the early redemption option
is not exercised on 11 January 2027 and 16 May 2024, respectively, a new fixed-rate coupon will be determined for the
following five years (until the next recalculation date). As envisaged by the regulations applicable to AT 1 instruments, the
payment of coupons for both instruments is discretionary and subject to certain limitations.

Moreover, the offering period relating to the subordinated Tier 2 bond issue targeted to qualified investors and high-net-worth
individuals on the domestic market ended on 21 September 2017 with the assignment of a nominal amount of 723.7 million
euro. This floating-rate bond has a 7-year duration and will be redeemed in whole at maturity. The coupon, payable quarterly
in arrears on 26 March, 26 June, 26 September and 26 December of each year, from 26 December 2017 to 26 September
2024, is equal to 3-month Euribor plus 190 basis points per annum.

As the regulatory conditions for its inclusion (Art. 26, paragraph 2 of the CRR) were met, Common Equity Tier 1 capital
includes net income for the year and, consequently, the related pro-rata dividend proposed.

The net income for the year includes both, in its non-distributed portion, the government contribution of 3.5 billion euro
covering the impact on capital ratios of the acquisition of certain assets and assumption of certain liabilities of Banca Popolare
di Vicenza and Veneto Banca, and badwill of 363 million euro, recognised in accordance with IFRS 3 during the purchase
price allocation (PPA) for the acquisition of the Venetian banks.

Finally, it should be noted that when calculating capital ratios as at 31 December 2017, account was taken of the accounting
revaluation of artistic and real-estate assets (of both an investment and non-investment nature), applied to align their carrying
amounts with their current market values, as permitted by IAS/IFRS. In light of the adjustments allowed under the transitional
rules for 2017, 80% of the revaluation, net of the related tax effect, was included in Common Equity Tier 1 capital.

Based on the foregoing, the Total capital ratio was 17.9%, while the ratio of the Group’s Tier 1 capital to its total risk-weighted
assets (Tier 1 ratio) was 15.2%. The ratio of Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) to risk-weighted assets (the Common
Equity ratio) was 13.3%.

On 22 December 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo received the ECB’s final decision regarding the capital requirement to be observed
with effect from 1 January 2018. The capital requirement at consolidated level in terms of phased-in Common Equity Tier 1
ratio is 8.065% (for 2018) and in terms of fully loaded Common Equity Tier 1 ratio is 9.25%.
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Reconciliation of Shareholders’ equity and Common Equity Tier 1 capital

(millions of euro)
31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Captions

Group Shareholders' equity 56,205 48,911
Minority interests 399 408
Shareholders’ equity as per the Balance Sheet 56,604 49,319
Dividends in distribution and other foreseeable charges © -3,500 -
Shareholders' equity following presumed distribution to shareholders 53,104 49,319
Adjustments for instruments eligible for inclusion in AT1 or T2 and net income for the period - -
- Capital of savings shares eligible for inclusion in AT1 -485 -485
- Other equity instruments eligible for inclusion in AT1 -4,121 -2,121
- Minority interests eligible for inclusion in AT1 -9 -6
- Minority interests eligible for inclusion in T2 -5 -2
- Ineligible minority interests on full phase-in -335 -356
- Ineligible net income for the period - -3,111
- Treasury shares included under regulatory adjustments 94 98
- Other ineligible components on full phase-in -24 -38
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) before regulatory adjustments 48,219 43,298
Regulatory adjustments (including transitional adjustments) -10,168 7,372
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) net of regulatory adjustments 38,051 35,926

@ The figure at 31 December 2017 takes account of the dividends paid on 2017 profit, the portion of the remuneration on the AT1 instruments issued on
the balance-sheet date and the portion of the 2017 profit allocated to charity, net of the tax effect.

The figures as at 31 December 2017 include the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca.

Performance of risk-weighted assets
(millions of euro)

Risk-weighted assets as at 31.12.2016 283,918
Increased credit risk 6,433
Decreased market and settlement risk -1,366
Decreased operational risk -947
Decreased other specific risks -1,213
Risk-weighted assets as at 31.12.2017 286,825

Credit risk increased by around 6.4 billion euro, since the increase in RWA resulting from the integration of the Venetian
Banks and from the new operations was partially offset by the updating/introduction of new AIRB models and by the
repositioning of the EAD towards less risky portfolio segments.

The capital requirements for market risk decreased significantly in 2017 -1.4 billion euro). This performance primarily reflected
the smaller size of the portfolio of financial issuers, in addition to the greater exposure in the equity markets.

The reduction of operational risks (-0.9 billion euro) is largely attributable to the historical component of the AMA perimeter,
and in particular to the improvement in the risk profile of the historical component of the “Customer” category.
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Reconciliation of the Parent Company’s shareholders’ equity and net income (loss) with
consolidated shareholders’ equity and net income (loss)
(millions of euro)

Shareholders’ of which

equity Net income (loss)

as at

31.12.2017

Parent Company’s balances as at 31 December 2017 48,472 4,882

Effect of consolidation of subsidiaries subject to control 1,847 5,300
Effect of valuation at equity of companies subject to joint control and other

significant equity investments 210 93

Elimination of adjustments to equity investments and recognition of impairment of goodwill 5,559 295

Dividends collected during the period - -3,248

Other 117 -6

Consolidated balances as at 31 December 2017 56,205 7,316







Breakdown of consolidated
results by business area
and geographical area







Breakdown of consolidated results by business area
and geographical area

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group organisational structure is based on six Business Units. In addition, there is the Corporate
Centre, which is charged with providing guidance, coordination and control for the entire Group.

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group

International Private Asset
Banking Management

Insurance

Corporate

Subsidiary Centre

Banks

*)

) Includes the Group’s Treasury and the Capital Light Bank

The Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s segment reporting is based on the elements that management uses to make its own operating
decisions (the “management approach”) and is therefore consistent with the disclosure requirements of IFRS 8.

In addition to reflecting the operating responsibilities assigned in accordance with the Group’s organisational structure, the
business areas are an aggregation of business lines similar in the type of products and services they sell.

The table below shows the main data summarising the trend of the business areas of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group in 2017.

The following itemised analysis of the business areas contains a description of the products and services offered, the type of
customers served and the initiatives carried out in the year; it also illustrates income statement figures and the main balance
sheet aggregates. Finally, for each business area, the capital absorbed based on Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) was also
calculated, determined in accordance with the provisions in force (Circulars 285 and 286, both issued during 2013, and the
update to Circular 154 of 22 November 1991) issued by the Bank of Italy following the implementation of Directive
2013/36/EU (CRD 1V) and Regulation (EU) 575/2013 (CRR) of 26 June 2013, which transpose the banking supervision
standards defined by the Basel Committee (the Basel 3 Framework) to European Union laws; for asset management and
private banking, business risk was also taken into consideration, and for the insurance segment reference was made to the
capital absorbed by insurance risk.

Division figures for the comparative periods have been restated to reflect the changes in scope of the Business Units,
where necessary. With regard to the Aggregate Set acquired from the former Venetian banks, the income statement
contribution for the second half of 2017 and the balance sheet balances as at 31 December 2017 are temporarily allocated in
full to the Corporate Centre and will be broken down into the various divisions once the processes are integrated starting
from 2018.

Furthermore, please note that the Italian name of the International Subsidiary Banks Division, namely Divisione Banche
Estere, has been changed to “Divisione International Subsidiary Banks”.
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(millions of euro)

Banca Corporate and International Private Asset Insurance Corporate Total
dei Investment  Subsidiary Banking Management Centre
Territori Banking Banks

Operating income
2017 8,884 3,341 1,948 1,879 785 1,067 -461 17,443
2017 8,884 3,341 1,948 1,879 785 1,067 727 17,177
(Excluding the Aggregate Set )
2016 8,625 3,385 2,002 1,740 647 1,172 -596 16,975
% change 3.0 1.3 2.7 8.0 21.3 9.0 22.0 1.2
Operating costs
2017 -4,907 -984 -938 -551 -157 -178 -1,495 -9,210
2017 . -4,907 -984 -938 -551 -157 -178 -1,024 -8,739
(Excluding the Aggregate Set )
2016 -4,944 -957 -962 -534 -141 -173 -991 -8,702
% change @ 07 2.8 25 32 1.3 2.9 33 0.4
Operating margin
2017 3,977 2,357 1,010 1,328 628 889 -1,956 8,233
2017 3,977 2,357 1,010 1,328 628 889 1,751 8,438
(Excluding the Aggregate Set )
2016 3,681 2,428 1,040 1,206 506 999 -1,587 8,273
% change 8.0 2.9 2.9 10.1 24.1 -11.0 10.3 2.0
Net income (loss)
2017 1,371 1,615 827 879 493 613 1,518 7,316
2017 . 1,371 1,615 827 879 493 613 1,515 7,313
(Excluding the Aggregate Set )
2016 1,812 1,448 703 710 357 669 -2,588 3,111
% change @ -24.3 11.5 17.6 238 38.1 -8.4
Loans to customers
31.12.2017 196,814 109,399 28,637 9,637 361 22 65,876 410,746
31.12.2016 188,317 98,183 26,492 9,597 298 26 41,800 364,713
% change 45 114 8.1 04 211 15.4 251 31
Direct deposits from banking business
31.12.2017 175,277 111,940 35,538 30,581 6 - 70,132 423,474
31.12.2016 173,599 112,661 32,978 27,540 8 - 47,019 393,805
% change 1.0 0.6 7.8 11.0 -25.0 . 276 16
Risk-weighted assets
31.12.2017 86,963 78,510 30,926 10,138 914 - 79,374 286,825
31.12.2016 84,165 103,744 30,013 9,727 1,130 - 55,139 283,918
% change © 33 243 3.0 42 19.1 ; 44.0 1.0
Absorbed capital
31.12.2017 8,044 7,264 3,347 987 102 4,198 7,352 31,294
31.12.2016 7,785 9,597 3,245 949 118 4,186 4,985 30,865
% change © 33 243 3.1 40 136 03 475 14

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations. The figures concerning the
Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

@ The change expresses the ratio between 2017 and .2016.

For the Corporate Center the change expresses the ratio between 2017, excluding the Aggregate Set, and 2016.

® The change expresses the ratio between 31.12.2017 and 31.12.2016.

For the Corporate Center the change expresses the ratio between 31.12.2017, excluding the Aggregate Set, and 31.12.2016.

© The change expresses the ratio between 31.12.2017 and 31.12.2016.
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BUSINESS AREAS

Banca dei Territori

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income

Income from insurance business

Profits (Losses) on trading

Other operating income (expenses)

Operating income

Personnel expenses

Other administrative expenses

Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets
Operating costs

Operating margin

Net adjustments to loans

Net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets
Other income (expenses)

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations

Gross income (Loss)

Taxes on income

Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax)

Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry
(net of tax)

Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets

Minority interests

Loans to customers
Direct deposits from banking business

Indirect customer deposits

Risk-weighted assets
Absorbed capital

4,499
4,282

196,814
175,277
230,753

86,963
8,044

4,596
3,940

69
20
8,625
-3,040
-1,900
-4
-4,944
3,681
-2,039

109

892
2,586
-710

-12

188,317
173,599
224,030

84,165
7,785

(millions of euro)

-12

-21
8.7

-1.4
75.0

3.0
-0.2
-1.6

-0.7
8.0
-22.7
281

-10.0
28.0
2.3
-62.5

(millions of euro)

8,497
1,678
6,723

2,798
259

4.5
1.0
3.0

3.3
3.3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

Banca dei Territori’'s operating income was 8,884 million euro in 2017, amounting to over half of the Group’s consolidated
operating income, up 3% on the previous year. In further detail, there was an increase in net fee and commission income
(+8.7%), specifically for the asset management segment - which benefited from greater placements of asset management
products and certificates - and for the fees on protection products, driven also by the positive performance of medium-/long-
term loan disbursements. Net interest income, though benefiting from growing customer dealing, recorded a drop (-2.1%)
driven by the more limited contribution from the hedging of core deposits. Among the other revenue components, which
however provide a marginal contribution to the Division’s income, other net operating income showed positive performance
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(+15 million euro) while profits on trading were essentially stable. Operating costs, equal to 4,907 million euro, were down
slightly on 2016 (-0.7%) due to the savings on administrative expenses and on personnel expenses. Operating margin
amounted to 3,977 million euro, up 8% from the previous year. In contrast, gross income, at 2,328 million euro, was down by
10%, despite lower adjustments to loans, due to the lack of extraordinary income related to the sale of the investment in VISA
Europe and the sale of Setefi, both recorded in 2016. Lastly, after allocation to the Division of taxes of 909 million euro,
charges for integration of 45 million euro and the economic effects of purchase price allocation for 3 million euro, net income
amounted to 1,371 million euro, down 24.3% due to the abovementioned extraordinary income for the year 2016.

In terms of quarterly performance, operating margin was up slightly in the fourth quarter compared to the third quarter, thanks
to the improvement in revenues from fees for services, which more than offset the usual increase in operating costs in the
final months of the year. In contrast, gross income and, consequently, net income were down due to the higher adjustments
and provisions.

Loans to customers of the Banca dei Territori Division came to 196,814 million euro at the end of December 2017, up
(+8.5 billion euro, or +4.5%) compared to the beginning of the year, essentially as a result of the increase in medium-/long-
term loans to individuals (households and personal loans) and businesses. Direct deposits from banking business, equal to
175,277 million euro, were up 1% on the end of December 2016: the increase in amounts due to customers, mainly in the
personal and corporate segments, more than offset the fall in bonds.
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Traditional lending and deposit collection operations in ltaly and associated financial services.

To serve Retail, Personal, Small Business, and Small and Medium Enterprise customers, creating
value through:
— widespread local coverage;
— focus on the characteristics of local markets, and the needs of customer segments serviced;
— development of service levels to customers using different channels in order to improve the
efficiency of the commercial offering;
— exploitation of the brands of banks and the centrality of the roles of the officers responsible for the Regional Governance Centres,
Area Governance Centres, banks and branches as points of reference for the Group at local level;
— exploitation of the company specialised in medium-term lending, leasing, factoring, advisory services and structured finance
transactions, reporting to the Business Unit.

Overseeing the Retail sector, which consists of the following segments: Base (individual

Marketing, Multichannel customers with financial assets of up to 10,000 euro), Households (individual customers with
Integration, Customer financial assets of between 10,000 euro to 100,000 euro) and Retail Businesses (businesses with
Experience and CRM less complex requirements); the Personal area (individual customers with financial assets of

Departments between 100,000 euro to 1 million euro); and the SME area (enterprises with group turnover of

350 million euro or less) as well as multi-channel services for customers and the Network.
Supporting the branches and head office departments in defining the customer journey of commercial processes and development, in
managing communications and relations with customers and the related Customer Satisfaction and Net Promoter Score surveys.

Specialised in medium-term lending, leasing, factoring, advisory services and structured finance
operations to support the needs of investment, development and innovation of businesses and the

Mediocredito Italiano
local areas.

A “proximity bank”, linked with a non-captive network of points of sale, focused on instant banking

Banca 5 and targeting categories of customers who rarely use banking products and services.

Serves non-profit organisations.

Banca Prossima

Over 4,400 branches, including Retail and Business branches, distributed broadly throughout Italy,
as well as the branches of the former Venetian banks. During the year, the network structure
consisted of 8 Regional Governance Centres, each of which is in a reporting line to the Regional
Manager. There are three Commercial Managers (one specialist for each business area, i.e. Retail,
Personal and SME) in each Centre, coordinating around 400 commercial areas, in order to
improve commercial focus and ensure the best possible service levels.

In 2017, in the area of consumer credit, the merger by incorporation of Accedo (formerly Intesa Sanpaolo Personal Finance)
into Intesa Sanpaolo was finalised. Following the corporate transaction, the customers of the incorporated company and their
loans passed to the Parent Company.
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Marketing, Multichannel Integration, Customer Experience and CRM Departments

The diversification of customer portfolios continued according to customer needs (spending,
reserves, investment and pension) and the Recommended Portfolios. The offer of investment
products was extended by: 110 new mutual funds, including three Individual Savings Plans;
two products for dynamic management of liquidity of businesses; funds that involve a
strategy of gradual entry into the stock market; flexible investment solutions with broad
diversification of asset classes and investment strategies; protected investment solutions and funds for investors with excess
liquidity; a new process of “Exclusive Insurance”, which allows investors to decide whether and to what extent to activate a
portfolio protection mechanism, and three multi-line policies: “LaTuaScelta” and “InFondi Stabilita”, which protect a
percentage of invested capital, and “Progetta Stabilita Insurance”, which allows investors to accumulate small sums to carry
out future projects; a new individual protection service for the “Unica” and “Unica Facile” portfolio management schemes; and
the placement of 39 certificates issued by Banca IMI and two IBRD bonds.
For Retail and Personal customers the new “Valore Insieme” advanced advisory service is available, combining structured
consultation and customised recommendations. The service, which is divided into three packages with increasing levels of
advice, Specialist, Extended and Wealth, uses detailed analysis of customer requirements to assist them with all their needs,
by offering customised solutions in different areas: securities, real estate, protection and security, and, from the first quarter
2018, succession planning.
In order to seize new business opportunities, broaden the customer base and increase assets under administration, an
innovative working method has been selected, for the first time in Italy, involving a part-time and open-ended employment
contract and a parallel separate independent employment contract for the performance of the role of authorised out-of-branch
financial advisor, subject to registration in the Register of Financial Advisors.

XME Salvadanaio is a new transaction service combined with a current account, which can

be used on mobile devices (by installing the Intesa Sanpaolo Mobile App) or via Internet

banking, and allows customers to easily and quickly put aside even very small amounts to be

allocated for future purchases, transferring amounts of money from the available funds on the

account, periodically allocating set amounts or rounding up payments. Intesa Sanpaolo was
one of the first banks in Italy to offer its customers the instant euro credit transfer service, based on the SEPA Instant Credit
Transfer programme of the European Payment Council, with the possibility of sending and receiving payments in real time
with the sole condition of holding a current account. Instant credit transfers, which can be executed in seconds at any time,
allow the beneficiaries to have the amount immediately available on their account.

For current account holders with a multi-channel contract that has been active for at least 30
days, “PerTe Prestito Diretto” is the new special-purpose loan that can be purchased online,
which, thanks to agreements entered into on each occasion with a merchant, enables
customers to buy the desired asset/service through a loan disbursed directly to the merchant
and with favourable financial terms, thanks to the contribution from the merchant.

Confirming the focus on customers’ dream and need of a home, alongside a mortgage offer

which aims to be comprehensive and flexible, thanks to the specific characteristics of

innovative products such as “MutuoUp” and “Mutuo Giovani”, the new “Real Estate

Enhancement” service was launched as an accessory service to loans, to support those who

intend to invest in their homes through energy redevelopment and building restructuring
works, providing free information on tax benefits and savings on energy bills, as well as to support the best loan and home
protection solutions, with the possibility for the customers to use the services, on favourable terms, offered by the partners in
the initiative (CasaClima and Habitissimo), which operate in the energy saving and restructuring sectors.

As part of the process of development and expansion of services provided to customers, with

the goal of becoming a comprehensive point of reference for “home needs”, the growth

continued of Intesa Sanpaolo Casa, a Group company dedicated to residential real estate

brokerage, which operates through 41 agencies for trading (of which 27 traditional agencies

and 14 satellite agencies), an agency dedicated solely to institutional customers and an
online agency solely for sales, with the latter having won the “MF Milano Finanza Innovazione Award 2017” as the most
innovative product in 2017 in the non-financial services category.

In the motor sector, the offer range of the “ViaggiaConMe” policy has been simplified, with a

focus on the revision of unlimited distance plan, with a new percentage discount on renewal

if the distance travelled in the previous year is less than 6,500 km, and on a new version of

the consumption-based plan, which allows customers to pay premiums based on the actual

use of the vehicle and has been extended to all vehicles; the consumption-based plan has an
entry premium for the first 3,500 km differentiated and discounted according to the age of the vehicle, with a quarterly
supplement for any additional kilometres travelled and a maximum cap for the premium equal to the premium for the unlimited
distance plan.

A special focus is reserved for young people, by combining products and services
specifically conceived for that target and engagement initiatives, in order to become
established as the preferred bank for younger customers. As part of the “Alternanza Scuola-
Lavoro” work-study project, promoted to knock down the wall between school and work and
favour knowledge of the working world for young people in the last three years of secondary
school, training laboratories were organised, with opportunities for active learning. In addition, Intesa Sanpaolo was the main
sponsor for the second year of X-Factor, Sky’s musical talent show, and the “Festival dei Giovani di Gaeta”, and a sponsor of
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the Milan Games Week, the most important videogame event in ltaly, and the 2017 edition of Lucca Comics&Games, the
leading Italian festival dedicated to the world of games and fantasy.

To facilitate the financial inclusion of the younger generations, the age limit for “XME Conto”, which allows customers to
benefit from a reduction in the total monthly fee, was raised from 26 to 30. Furthermore, agreements continued to be signed
with new entities with regard to “PerTe Prestito Con Lode”, a product aimed at particularly deserving students, to provide
them with access to credit, supporting them in their educational development.

In 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo further strengthened its position in the multi-channel and digital
banking segments (with 7 million multi-channel customers and 5.3 million apps downloaded),
becoming ltaly’s leading digital bank. A fundamental part of this process was the launch of
the new digital platform for Retail customers, with the completion of the migration to the new
Internet Banking, used by almost 50% of customers even before the shutdown of the old
platform, which began in September and ended in November. During the year, around one million My Key contracts were
activated. This is a new multichannel contract that automatically links all the products and services owned by customer to the
digital channels and enables OkeySmart, the new latest-generation OTP software, in line with the requirements of the new
European PSD2 regulations.
The new “Intesa Sanpaolo Mobile” App has been available since the beginning of 2017. In addition to the option of carrying
out common transactions, it offers new services that simplify access to the Bank's various channels: operations without the
need for the physical token; withdrawals from ATMS without using cards; emergency withdrawals through which customers
can have third parties withdraw cash from any ATM of the Group banks in Italy using only their smartphones; Online Branch
immediately available for personalised assistance; new functionalities for payments using smartphones via JiffyPay,
Masterpass and PAyGO.
Two additional specific Apps are also available: “Intesa Sanpaolo Investimenti”, for asset management and trading, and
“Market Hub”, which provides information on global markets and key analysis indicators.
The activation of new multi-channel purchase processes continued, with the XME Conto opening made available online and
the restyling of the lending process, including the launch of the sale of personal loans also to non-customers, together with
the new “guest area” section of the public website.
The multi-channel evolution of the product catalogue was further extended to include portfolio management schemes, class |,
Il and multi-line life insurance policies, as well as the protection products of the "Remote offering”, already available for
primary and secondary markets, mutual funds, personal loans, and debit, credit and prepaid cards. The document
dematerialisation process - which has generated estimated savings of approximately 9 billion euro for 2017 due to the
elimination of signatures on paper at all Retail and Personal branches and the exclusive use by customers of their
graphometric or digital signature to sign agreements that have already been dematerialised - was extended to the sale of
mortgages and the signing of the “ViaggiaConMe”, “MotoConMe”, “Interventi Chirurgici’, “Malattie Gravi®, “Prevenzione e
Salute” and “Casa ConMe” policies. That process already involved the main accounting documents at the counter, all the
investment products, including portfolio management schemes, signing and after-sales of class I, Il or multi-line policies,
opening the “XME Conto” account and deposits under administration, payment cards, personal loans and the main regulatory
documents, such as due diligence, FATCA, IVASS, CONSOB and Privacy questionnaires.
There was also significant growth in the Online Branch, which, with the opening of two new branches, now operates in 11
offices (2 in Milan and one in Turin, Padua, Bologna, Florence, Rome, Naples, Lecce, Cagliari and Trapani) with over 800
employees, consisting of online operators and coordination personnel, who provide information, operational and commercial
assistance (also on a co-browsing basis) and relational support to the customers of all the network banks of the Banca dei
Territori and to prospect customers. During the year, the Online Branch sold almost 40,000 products remotely, including
loans, payment cards, investments and protection products.

In 2017, “Best” was launched - an excellence programme for Retail Companies, a category

that includes small businesses and micro enterprises (artisans, restaurants, small hotels,

farmers and merchants) and freelance professionals. Through this initiative, the Bank

develops commercial offerings designed based on the needs of the segment (facilitating

access to credit), promotes contact channels and the training of managers, as well as the
tools that support them to bring them ever closer to those companies.

In cooperation with the Confindustria associations, the new three-year agreement, signed in

November 2016 with Confindustria Piccola Industria, was rolled out at local level. The

agreement, referred to as “Progettare il futuro. Accelerazione, trasformazione digitale,

competitivita", is made up of four pillars: Corporate ecosystems and business integration,

finance for growth, human capital and new entrepreneurship, which provides companies with
up to 90 billion euro, to make use of the opportunities provided by the “fourth industrial revolution”. Under the national
Industria 4.0 plan, which supports and encourages innovation processes, investment in new technologies and digitisation of
businesses, agreements were also signed with UCIMU — Sistemi per Produrre, the lItalian association of machine tool
manufacturers, ASSIOT (the Italian association of transmission and gearbox manufacturers) — ASSOFLUID (the ltalian
association of manufacturers of the oleo hydraulic and pneumatic industry), associations belonging to Federmacchine
Confindustria, which represent a total of over 300 companies in the mechanical engineering sector, and ANFIA (the Italian
association of the automotive supply chain manufacturers), which brings together over 290 companies from the automotive
industry. These agreements provide targeted support to the member companies and their customers, in the form of loans,
non-financial services, sales support, specific measures to facilitate international expansion and exports, training programmes
and support in the development of innovative projects.

Also thanks to its long-term collaboration with Confindustria Piccola Industria, Intesa
Sanpaolo has developed an innovative rating model, validated by the ECB, which, together
with the usual economic and financial assessment, also assigns value to intangible
qualitative factors, in terms of easier access to credit and more favourable financial terms
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and conditions. These include trademarks, patents, quality and environmental certifications, research and development,
innovation and digitisation, development and competitive positioning projects, management of business risk, ownership and
management, as well as membership of a chain.

The “Sviluppo Filiere” programme, an innovative project launched by Intesa Sanpaolo, which

focuses on the relationship between companies and their suppliers, had reached over 519

participating lead companies by the end of the year, with a potential of 15 thousand

suppliers, for a turnover of over 70 billion euro. The initiative, which brings together the most

important industrial segments in the national economy, has been expanded by the
“Confirming” tool, a new project designed by Mediocredito Italiano, which finances receivables due to suppliers by the lead
company (using without recourse factoring), optimising the management of working capital within the production chain.
“Confirming” substantially transfers risk to the company purchasing the goods and services (lead company or buyer), which is
granted a credit ceiling, used by the suppliers in the factoring application.

In relation to the Industria 4.0 National Plan of the Ministry of Economic Development and
the measures in the Stability Law 2017 regarding tax incentives for new capital equipment
investments necessary for technological upgrades (Super-depreciation and Hyper-
depreciation), Intesa Sanpaolo has set up new solutions to support the growth of companies
in the fourth stage of the industrial revolution. Alongside the specialist support, the
commercial proposal involves the joint offering of a medium-/long-term loan covering up to 100% of the investment and a
short-term optional credit line to support working capital in the form of advances on trade receivables, in the maximum amount
of 50% of the amount of the investment or the approval of a maximum credit limit, with loan options that can be combined with
each other, capable of ensuring financial support to businesses’ investment plans.
The Intesa Sanpaolo Group continued its commitment to supporting households and businesses affected by earthquakes and
environmental disasters in lItaly, with the provision of new subsidised loans dedicated to restoring damaged structures,
suspensions of payments on outstanding loans, actions in the area of protection and preferential, simplified and expedited
procedures for new instruments. In particular, in relation to the continuing emergency situation in the areas of Central Italy hit
by earthquakes in 2016 and 2017, a fund of 20 million euro has been allocated to cancel mortgages on primary residences for
homes that were destroyed or are 100%-inaccessible.

Confirming the Group’s commitment to support agricultural and agrifood companies in Italy,

the partnership was expanded with the Ministry of Agricultural, Food and Forestry Policies

(MIPAAF), with which a three-year agreement “Diamo credito all’agroalimentare italiano”

(Granting Credit to Italian Agrifood) was signed in 2016. This expansion involved an increase

of the credit ceiling allocated for the period 2017-2019 from 6 to 8 billion euro, the provision
to customer businesses in the sector of a self-assessment questionnaire, an upgrade of the offering and services, with
insurance policies personalised based on the needs of agribusiness and the activation of a revolving pledge on milk-dairy
products.

Product companies

In 2017, Mediocredito Italiano recorded a sales volume of medium- and long-term products of 6.4 billion euro, up 21.3%
(+1.1 billion euro) compared with 2016, whilst factoring turnover was 63.1 billion euro, up 9.4% on the previous year (+5.4
billion euro).

Mediocredito Italiano disbursed loans totalling around 5 billion euro, improving by 25.3% compared to 2016 (+1 billion euro).
With 4.5 billion euro of loans disbursed (+30%), the Banca dei Territori Division accounts for 89.6% of total volumes, whilst
the Corporate and Investment Banking Division, with 471 million euro (-14%), represents 9.4% of volumes disbursed.

The Specialist Desks dedicated to the principal economic sectors generated a total of almost 704 million euro of medium- and
long-term loan disbursements (14% of the total), down by around 2% compared to 2016. During the year, the Structured
Finance Advisory organisational unit, which originated transactions of 369 million euro, became fully operational.

In 2017, Mediocredito Italiano maintained the selective strategy for assets eligible for financing in the leasing segment, aimed
at mitigating credit risk, and recorded new contracts for a value of 1.4 billion euro, up 8.6% on 2016 (+112 million euro).
Contracts entered into by customers of the Banca dei Territori Division amounted to around 1.3 billion euro (+5%),
representing 89.6% of total volumes. Customers in the Corporate Division signed contracts totalling 147 million euro, equal to
10.4% of total volumes (+44% on the previous year).

Turning to the commercial performance of the factoring business, Mediocredito reported a turnover of 63.1 billion euro, up
over 9% on the previous year, retaining its position as the number-one domestic factoring provider by turnover. Non-recourse
factoring accounted for 9.8% of factoring business, up on the figure for 2016. Compared with 31 December 2016, outstanding
receivables, equal to 14.3 billion euro, posted an increase (+3%) and period-end loans amounted to 12.1 billion euro (+4%).
The international activities related to the import and export factoring segments (both directly and intermediated through the
correspondent bank members of Factors Chain International) and the foreign-on-foreign operations, predominantly conducted
under the freedom to provide services in other European Union countries. The volumes generated, equal to 16.3 billion euro,
represent 25.8% of the total turnover, up on the figure for 2016 (+6.3%).

Banca 5 (formerly Banca ITB), is the first online bank in Italy to operate in the payment system sector and dedicated
exclusively to a non-captive network of points of sale. It is authorised for the deposit-taking activity and to exercise lending
activities in their various forms, for all the financial and banking operations and services permitted.

The bank has around 20,700 customers which are owners of the non-captive points of sales (-2.8% compared to 2016)
located throughout the country. The decrease was due to an improvement in the composition, with the transition of around
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2,500 customers to the latest generation terminal and the closure of low yield and old technology accounts. During the year,
the new business linked to retail customers served through non-captive points of sale was implemented, with the equipping of
2,570 non-captive points of sale, which offer SPID, Flash cards, loans, insurance, payment accounts and assistance services,
in addition to traditional products. The services provided are classified into three main macro areas: services for individuals
(postal and bank bill payment slips, F24 tax forms, car property tax, mobile phone and prepaid card top-ups, for the traditional
business, and the abovementioned products, for the new business) with around 86 million transactions carried out at the non-
captive points of sales in the year, with an amount transacted of 6.7 billion euro (+4.5% on 2016 net of the INPS voucher
services suspended in March); services for businesses, relating to the collections of businesses through SDD, which
generated around 0.9 million transactions, with an amount transacted of 1.6 billion euro (+45%); services to the non-captive
points of sale, relating to fees for current accounts and use of the terminal, revenues for account activation and for credit line
services (+10% in terms of revenues).

Banca Prossima

Banca Prossima operates in the non-profit sector through 84 local branches and 273 specialists distributed throughout Italy.
At the end of December, the bank had approximately 62,000 customers. Financial assets amounted to 6 billion euro, of which
3.5 billion euro of direct deposits, while lending operations presented an approved amount of 2.7 billion euro, of which 1.8
billion euro had been used. In 2017, the bank disbursed loans amounting to 293 million euro (+39.3% compared to 2016) and
placed 328 million euro (+45.1%) of asset management products.

The bank launched its new service model in 2017, which introduced new customer segmentation to align the service to the
value and complexity of the customers. To strengthen its role in the Group as the “leading bank for the non-profit sector”,
Banca Prossima has produced a commercial plan of 48 initiatives aimed at developing relations with non-profit organisations
and better meet their needs.

During 2017, on the basis of the agreement signed with the EIB in December 2016, the bank disbursed 12 loans totalling over
40 million euro, mainly in the social and health sector. The bank continued to offer distinctive solutions dedicated to the non-
profit sector, such as the Terzo Valore crowd-lending portal through which 15 projects have been published.

The agreement signed at the end of 2016 between the bank, the Societa Nazionale di Mutuo Soccorso Cesare Pozzo and
Intesa Sanpaolo enabled the disbursement of 40 loans to members in 2017, amounting to almost 200,000 euro.

Together with Mediocredito, in addition to continuing the ABI-ACRI protocol for the assignment of tax receivables of the
Banking Foundations subscribing to the Fund for combating the lack of education of minors, in October, the bank subscribed
to the ABI-MISE-CDP protocol for the strengthening of the social economy. This subsidy provided by the Ministry of Economic
Development is aimed at promoting the dissemination and strengthening of the social economy, supporting the establishment
and growth of companies operating, throughout the country, for the pursuit of worthy general interests and social benefit
purposes.

Lastly, in 2017 the bank developed national and local commercial agreements, which provide for the supply of products and
services at conditions reserved to subscribers.
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Corporate and Investment Banking
(millions of euro)

Net interest income 1,592 1,447 145 10.0

Net fee and commission income 925 1,111 -186 -16.7

Income from insurance business - - - -

Profits (Losses) on trading 805 808 -3 -0.4
Other operating income (expenses) 19 19 - -
Operating income 3,341 3,385 -44 -1.3
Personnel expenses -389 -372 17 4.6
Other administrative expenses -593 -582 11 1.9
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -2 -3 -1 -33.3
Operating costs -984 -957 27 2.8
Operating margin 2,357 2,428 -7 2.9
Net adjustments to loans -154 -333 -179 -53.8
Net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets -1 -10 -9 -90.0
Other income (expenses) 85 33 52

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations - - - -
Gross income (Loss) 2,287 2,118 169 8.0
Taxes on income -665 -664 1 0.2
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -7 -6 1 16.7

Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) - - - -

Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry
(net of tax) - - - -

Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets - - - -

Minority interests - - - -

(millions of euro)

Loans to customers 109,399 98,183 11,216 11.4
Direct deposits from banking business 111,940 112,661 721 06
Risk-weighted assets 78,510 103,744 -25,234 -24.3
Absorbed capital 7,264 9,597 -2,333 -24.3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

@ The item includes capital protected certificates.

In 2017, the Corporate and Investment Banking Division earned 3,341 million euro in operating income (representing around
20% of the Group’s consolidated figure), down on the previous year (-1.3%).

In detail, net interest income of 1,592 million euro was up (+10%), mainly as a result of the greater contribution from customer
dealing. Net fee and commission income, equal to 925 million euro, declined by 16.7%, primarily due to the negative
performance of the commercial banking segment (which includes loans, guarantees and interbank services) and the
investment banking segment. Profits on trading, amounting to 805 million euro, were substantially stable compared to 2016.
Operating costs amounted to 984 million euro, up 2.8%, primarily due to higher personnel expenses as a result of the
increase in the average workforce related to business development. Administrative expenses were essentially impacted by
higher legal fees of Banca IMI on its international operations. As a result of the revenue and cost dynamics described above,
the operating margin came to 2,357 million euro, slightly lower than in the previous year (-2.9%). Gross income, equal to
2,287 million euro, grew by 8%, benefiting from lower adjustments to loans, as well as the proceeds from the partial disposal
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of the stake in NTV and the fair value measurement of the remaining equity investment following its reclassification under
companies not subject to significant influence. The NTV transaction was overseen by the Structured Finance team of Banca
IMI, as part of the core business of the Corporate and Investment Banking Division.

Finally, net income came to 1,615 million euro, compared to 1,448 million in 2016 (+11.5%).

The Corporate and Investment Banking Division posted a significant improvement in revenues and the main income margins
in the fourth quarter compared to the third quarter.

With regard to intermediated volumes, loans to customers, totalling 109,399 million euro at the end of December 2017, were
up by 11.2 billion euro (+11.4%) year-on-year, both in the short-term and medium-/long-term component, also due to
increased levels of repo transactions by Banca IMI and the higher amounts of loans by Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Luxembourg,
whereas direct deposits from banking business, at 111,940 million euro, remained essentially stable over the twelve months.

Corporate, Investment Banking and Public Finance, in ltaly and abroad.

To act as a global partner in supporting companies and financial institutions in achieving balanced,

sustainable growth, including at the international level, through a specialised network of branches,

representative offices and subsidiaries that engage in corporate banking operations.

To foster collaboration between the public and private sectors with the aim of supporting the

creation of infrastructure and the modernisation of the public administration, also by pursuing
international growth opportunities in countries of strategic interest to the Group.

The Department develops and manages relationships with Italian and foreign corporates with

Global Corporate diverse needs and multinational presence, and with domestic public entities. It ensures the

Department provision of a global, integrated offering of products and services by specific economic sector for

customers under its remit, integrating traditional commercial banking products and services with

those of investment banking and capital markets, pursuing cross-selling of products and services

overseen by the Corporate and Investment Banking Division, by other Divisions and by the Group's product companies, availing itself

centrally of the commercial action of the Industry units, and locally of the Italian network (Areas) and of the international network of

the International Department. The specialist coverage by industry includes all industrial sectors: Automotive & Mechanics; Basic

Materials & Healthcare; Energy & Utilities; Food & Beverage and Distribution; Global EPC & Integrated Logistics; Infrastructure &

Real Estate Partners; Oil & Gas; Public Finance, Retail and Luxury; Telecom, Media and Technology. The Business Solutions
industry also manages highly complex customers, transversally across the various sectors.

The Department ensures the international development of the Division in agreement with the other
. relationship and product structures, ensures the correct management of operational and
International Department commercial activities of the international branches and representative offices and oversees the
management of the international subsidiary banks (Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Luxembourg S.A,,
Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Ireland Plc and Intesa Sanpaolo Brasil S.A. - Banco Multiplo), ensuring their

overall coordination.

The Department is responsible for servicing Italian and international financial institutions according

Financial Institutions to a dedicated, global commercial model. Its highly sophisticated approach to relations with such

Department customers is widely diversified and oriented towards integrated solutions that promote the cross-
selling of capital markets and investment banking products.

The Department is responsible for transaction banking products and services for the entire Group.
Global Transaction Banking

Department
The Sub-Department is responsible for management of the proprietary portfolio and/or risk through
. . direct access to markets or indirect access, via relevant internal functions, in order to carry out
Proprietary Trading trading, arbitrage and long/short positions on capital markets products, cash and derivatives.

The scope of the Division also includes the M&A, capital markets, structured finance and primary

Global Markets and markets (equity and debt capital market) activities performed by Banca IMI.

Corporate & Strategic
Finance

In ltaly, the Corporate and Investment Banking Division has a total of 28 branches dedicated to
corporate customers and public customers. At the international level, it operates in 25 countries in
support of the cross-border operations of its customers through a specialised network of branches,
representative offices and subsidiaries that engage in corporate banking activity.
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Global Corporate Department

In 2017, the Global Corporate Department confirmed its role as financial partner to its customers, participating with Banca IMI
in a number of investment banking transactions to the benefit of Italian and international customers. The Department
continued to support the economic activities of both corporate customers, consisting of individual companies or national
groups with over 350 million euro in turnover and international groups, and public customers consisting of Central State
Administrations, Local Entities and the so-called “public corporate entities” (companies with public participation of strategic
importance in the services and infrastructure sectors). The specialist skills gained consequently to the Industry model
contributed to making the commercial activity more effective, adjusting it to the customers’ specific needs and allowing for
important transactions with Italian and international company customers.

The Department participated in numerous syndicated loans, including the refinancing in favour of Softbank for the acquisition
of Sprint and ARM, the financing of the Acciona Group for the construction of the Dubai metropolitan railway, the project
financing with the consortium engaged to build the Toledo hospital and the structured export finance transaction for the
construction of a wind farm in Chile.

It also acted as joint lead arranger and joint bookrunner for Ternium in the underwriting for the acquisition of the Brazilian
company CSA Companhia Siderdrgica do Atlantico, as mandated lead arranger, bookrunner and facility agent in the
syndicated loan in favour of Wind Tre, and as mandated lead arranger in the loans to Becton Dickinson for the acquisition of
CR Bard and to the LVMH Group for the acquisition of Christian Dior.

It took part in the loan to Fortum, for the launch of the voluntary takeover bid on Uniper, and the financing transactions of the
Maire Tecnimont Group, the NTV Group and the Pirelli Group.

Other transactions included the debt optimisation with the Petrobras Group and the financial support granted to the
Volkswagen Group and the Tecnica Group.

In 2017, the Department continued its M&A operations, such as the work carried out in the acquisition of Giochi Preziosi by
Artsana, of SAVE (Finint Group) by InfraVia e DWS, and in the sale from Edison to Snam of the company Infrastrutture
Trasporto Gas and of a share of Terminale GNL Adriatico.

With regard to the Debt Capital Markets business, the Bank acted as bookrunner in the bond issues of CNH, RCI Banque,
ATM, Invitalia, Pedemontana Veneta, Engie, Italgas and Esselunga.

The Bank also acted as financial debt advisor of Atlantia in the voluntary takeover bid and/or public exchange offer on all
shares issued by Abertis and acted as sole bookrunner in a major important private placement of bonds issued by a leading
operator in the Oil & Gas sector.

The Global Corporate Department participated in global programmes to support multinational companies, in senior roles,
specifically standing out as main bank in the supply chain financing of the various divisions of the Jab Group, world leader in
the coffee sector.

Moreover, in synergy with the Banca dei Territori Division, the activity regarding "Programma Filiere" continued with the aim of
promoting production chains of excellence in the Italian entrepreneurial system.

A series of activities were carried out connected to the Industry 4.0 project which, following on from that set out in the
Industria 4.0 National Plan, aim to propose the Group as a strategic partner in technological development initiatives, in order
to stimulate investments, digital transformation and the acceleration of competitiveness of national production. To that end, for
example, Intesa Sanpaolo supported the EVO project of the Bonfiglioli Group, one of the leading players in the mechanical
engineering sector.

Lastly, dialogue continued with numerous customers sensitive to sustainability issues linked to the circular economy and work
in this area included the issue of the green bonds of Iren, Enel and Ferrovie dello Stato.

International Department

In 2017, the International Department continued work on the development of the international network, focused on monitoring
relations with Italian and international customers and on investments in high-potential markets. As part of projects aimed at
increasing competitiveness on customers, coverage and products in markets of strategic interest, the Department defined
specific interventions to optimise synergies and opportunities for cross-selling corporate and investment banking products on
various target customers.

Specific attention was paid to promoting business in the Gulf region and in the geographical areas where the Department has
recently expanded its presence.

Transactions with international customers included loans in the roles of bookrunner and mandate lead arranger in the Jewel
and Expolink Route 2020 projects for the expansion of the Dubai airports and metropolitan railway, and the Lobster project for
acquisition of a share of Oman Telecom by Oman Investment Fund.

The Department also acted as mandate lead arranger in the acquisition of Amec Foster Wheeler by John Wood Group PLC
and for the National Treasury of Kenya for the development of two dams and agricultural infrastructure in Kenya.

As part of the funding of two private public partnership projects for the construction of hospitals in Turkey, significant hedging
derivative transactions were concluded, involving both cross currency and interest rate hedging.

The development actions were accompanied by targeted measures to increase the efficiency of direct coverage, such as the
closing of the Casablanca, Tunis and Santiago de Chile representative offices, in addition to the Grand Cayman branch. The
Department’s current international network is present in 25 countries through 14 wholesale branches, 11 representative
offices and 3 subsidiary banks (Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Ireland, Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Luxembourg, Intesa Sanpaolo Brasil
S.A.). This network increasingly represents the right blend of customer relations and offering of products in specific markets.
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Financial Institutions Department

In 2017, the banking industry continued to face major challenges, both in terms of macroeconomic conditions and of
developments in the regulatory and competitive landscape. In this context, the market saw several major bank aggregations
and restructurings, in addition to equity and debt issues. The Intesa Sanpaolo Group supported its own customers in several
of these international and domestic operations, including the capital increases of Deutsche Bank, Credit Suisse, UniCredit
and UBI, and disposals and securitisations of non-performing loans by domestic operators.

In 2017, growth continued in the asset management and near-banking sectors, thanks to the increase in volumes — driven by
the strong performance of the markets (asset management) and the economic recovery (near-banking) - and the
development of innovative lending business models created by new operators in the near-banking sector. In this sector,
Intesa Sanpaolo, also due to the strong interest shown by international operators in domestic assets, has strengthened its
leadership by assisting customers with advisory services and financing for acquisitions of both performing and non-performing
loan portfolios.

With regard to insurance customers, Intesa Sanpaolo has been particularly effective on the commercial front, by offering
innovative product solutions that have enabled these customers to achieve significant funding targets.

The Bank also participated in the placements of securities of the Ministry for the Economy and Finance, Cassa Depositi e
Prestiti and Azimut, and major financing transactions in the Real Estate sector with operators such as Coima, Investire
Immobiliare and Dea Capital Real Estate, in addition to significant banking-industry level transactions including those relating
to the company REV Gestione Crediti and the National Resolution Fund.

In 2017, the strong demand continued for financial support for exports of Italian and international customers of Intesa
Sanpaolo to emerging countries. As a result of its work in the export credit sector over the last few years, the Bank has been
involved in major transactions, with leading roles in structuring loans and in direct relationships with exporters and buyers of
Italian products. In 2017, major transactions were completed with countries such as Cameroon, Qatar, Angola and Kenya,
and operations in the commodity financing sector were very positive. Transactions were carried out with large Russian
operators in the fertiliser and metal sectors (Metalloinvest, Suek and Acron) and the hydrocarbons sector (KazmunaiGas) and
opportunities were seized with counterparties in the Middle East (Oman) and Asia such as the Sinochem and China National
Offshore Oil Co. groups. The supply chain finance sector recorded positive growth. In this sector, the Bank focuses on
customers operating in mature markets (America and Europe).

In the area of activities with financial sponsors (private equity funds, SPACs and Sovereign Wealth Funds), volumes of activity
remained high, with continued interest in Italian companies from domestic and international operators in this sector. Intesa
Sanpaolo was involved in several sponsor-driven transactions, including the sale of Avio Spazio to Space 2 (SPAC), the
purchase of a controlling interest in the Prenatal Retail Group by Artsana (Investindustrial), the purchase of Bormioli Pharma
by Triton Capital Partners, and the listing of the SPACs Crescita, Sprintitaly and IdeaMi.

Global Transaction Banking Department

In 2017, the Global Transaction Banking Department strengthened its commercial coverage of transactional products,
expanding its network of specialists both in Italy and abroad.

In the area of commercial support to the Group Divisions, numerous initiatives were launched on traditional and innovative
transactional products.

As regards the development of new services, cash management and trade finance solutions were released, also launching
strategic development solutions in order to expand the offering.

The Department also actively participates in events to promote transaction banking products and services to customers.

Proprietary Trading

In 2017, Proprietary Trading made a positive contribution to the income statement, in terms of revenues, which was better
than in 2016.

The risk exposure to structured credit products amounted to 2,279 million euro as at 31 December 2017 with respect to
funded and unfunded ABSs/CDOs, compared to 2,471 million euro as at 31 December 2016. There were no exposures in
structured packages, compared to 7 million euro as at 31 December 2016. In this context, the exposure to funded and
unfunded ABSs/CDOs designated at fair value, excluding the positions coming from the Venetian banks of 5 million euro,
went from 2,081 million euro in December 2016 to 2,029 million euro in December 2017.

The hedge fund portfolio, held for trading, totalled 270 million euro as at 31 December 2017 compared to 352 million euro
recorded as at 31 December 2016. The reduction of the portfolio is attributable to the distributions and redemptions that
started in the second quarter of last year and continuing also this year, aimed at reducing the risk level of the exposure.

Global Markets and Corporate & Strategic Finance

In 2017, the strong performance of the activities carried out by the Global Markets Area were driven, in particular, by Banca
IMI's involvement in the disposal of non-performing loans by financial intermediaries. In this area, the Solutions segment was
very active both in the management of sales processes and in the financing of potential buyers. The Equity area benefited
from the high liquidity transferred into the Individual Savings Plans and the work carried out by Banca IMI in various roles in
the placement of transactions on capital markets (SPACs and IPOs). Several derivative position management transactions
were completed during the year, thanks to the direct approach with corporate customers and the sharing of customers of
primary interest with the main investment banks. The performance of certificate issuing operations was very positive: Banca
IMI was elected “Issuer of the Year” at the Italian Certificate Awards 2017, also thanks to an offering mainly concentrated on
capital protection issues and to the excellent volumes achieved in the Group's sales network.
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In the Securitisation and Risk Transfer Solutions area, Banca IMI maintained its leadership in Italy in the structuring and
active management of credit risk, continuing to offer the Group and corporate customers and financial institutions solutions
designed to optimise funding and economic and regulatory capital, deconsolidating non-core and non-performing assets and
improving net financial position. In 2017, securitisations were carried out both for Group customers and numerous ltalian
financial intermediaries for different types of assets (consumer loans, receivables underlying lease contracts, and residential
mortgages). Major international transactions were completed, with loans to companies operating in consumer credit and the
participation in programmes for the disposal of receivables for large corporate groups. The Risk Transfer Solutions segment
participated in different roles in numerous disposal and/or financing transactions for portfolios of non-performing loans of
Italian banks and securitisations of non-performing loans backed by the government guarantee scheme.

In the Equity Capital Markets segment, Banca IMI maintained its usual coverage with the engagement as global coordinator in
the Pirelli IPO (the largest IPO of the year in Europe), in the SPACs (Special Purpose Acquisition Companies) Ideami (the first
institutional SPAC promoted by Banca IMI and DeA Capital), Crescita and Sprintltaly, and the IPO of Gamenet, Indel B and
Alkemy. Regarding capital increases, it acted as joint bookrunner in the UniCredit and Il Sole 24 Ore transactions and as co-
bookrunner in the UBI transaction. At international level, it acted as joint bookrunner in the capital increases of leading
European banks and, as co-bookrunner, in the Edf transaction. It also acted as coordinator in the public takeover bid made by
Italmobiliare and the bid carried out on Dada.

With regard to M&A Advisory operations, the most significant transactions involved the Energy segment, where Banca IMI
provided its services to Gruppo Maccaferri, Edison, BKW and Novapower for several asset disposals. In the TMT
(Technology, Media and Telecommunications) sector, it supported Abertis in the sale of Infracom, and in the Consumer &
Healthcare sector it assisted Artsana in the acquisition of a stake in the JV Prénatal Retail Group. It also worked in the food
sector for NB Renaissance Partners, in the Industrial sector for IMR Industries, and in the Infrastructure sector for a
consortium of Investors in the acquisition of a controlling interest in SAVE and the subsequent mandatory takeover bid.

In the Debt Markets, Banca IMI acted as bookrunner in the Italian Corporate Investment Grade segment for the private
placement of ENI and numerous transactions with major Italian counterparties, including Esselunga, Salini Impregilo, FCA
Bank, Telecom ltalia, Atlantia, Italgas, Nuovo Trasporto Viaggiatori (NTV), and CNH Industrial, and in the International
Corporate Investment Grade segment for the Telefonica hybrid bond and the issues of General Motors, FCE Bank and RCI
Bank. In the Corporate High Yield segment, it acted as bookrunner in the Wind jumbo bond and in the private placements of
Saras and Bormioli Pharma, as well as the Virgin Media and Mercury Bondco issues. In the Financial Institutions segment, it
handled the senior issues of the Group and the issues carried out by Italian issuers, including Cattolica Assicurazioni and
Veneto Banca, and by international issuers, including SoGen, CFF, Deutsche Bank, Goldman Sachs and BNP Paribas. Also
of note was the work carried out in the area of Green Bonds, where Intesa Sanpaolo was the first Italian bank to make its
debut as a green issuer, reflecting its commitment to the growth of sustainable finance in Italy, which was followed by the
issuance of the inaugural green bond of Ferrovie dello Stato. Banca IMI also acted as dealer manager in various tender
offers, including the one for Kedrion, and in the exchange offer of the Italian Republic.

With regard to Structured Finance operations, in 2017 the bank continued to conclude transactions by developing cross-
selling and synergies within the Group. Operations at international level were intensive, with the participation in numerous top
deals at world level (Sibanye, Airport Financing Company and Ista). Operations in the Italian market also continued with major
financing transactions aimed at developing projects, acquisitions or refinancing in the various sectors of operations: project
financing (Atlantia, Italy-France Interconnector, Nuovo Trasporto Viaggiatori, Wind and Save), leveraged finance (Marco Polo
and Pirelli), corporate (Fiat Chrysler Automobiles, Gruppo Arnault/Christian Dior and LVMH, Teva, Esselunga, and Enel) and
real estate (Fondo Atlantic 1, Fondo Trophy Value Added and Fondo Immobili Pubblici).
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International Subsidiary Banks
(millions of euro)

Income statement 2017 Changes

amount %
Net interest income 1,346 1,428 -82 5.7
Net fee and commission income 493 483 10 2.1

Income from insurance business - - - -

Profits (Losses) on trading 177 108 69 63.9
Other operating income (expenses) -68 -17 51

Operating income 1,948 2,002 -54 2.7
Personnel expenses -518 -533 -15 -2.8
Other administrative expenses -338 -341 -3 -0.9
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -82 -88 -6 -6.8
Operating costs -938 -962 -24 -2.5
Operating margin 1,010 1,040 -30 2.9
Net adjustments to loans -208 -221 -13 -5.9
Net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets 8 -8 16

Other income (expenses) 196 71 125

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations - 31 -31

Gross income (Loss) 1,006 913 93 10.2
Taxes on income -162 -179 -17 -9.5
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -20 -31 -1 -35.5

Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) - - - -

Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry
(net of tax) - - - -

Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets - - - -

Minority interests 3 - 3 -

Net income (loss) 827 703 124 17.6

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
amount %
Loans to customers 28.637 26.492 2.145 8,1
Direct deposits from banking business 35.538 32.978 2.560 7.8
Risk-weighted assets 30.926 30.013 913 3,0
Absorbed capital 3.347 3.245 102 3,1

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued
operations.

The International Subsidiary Banks Division is responsible for the Group’s activities in foreign markets through commercial
banking subsidiaries and associates, mainly active in retail banking.

In 2017, the Division’s operating income came to 1,948 million euro, down 2.7% compared to the previous year (+8.1% at
like-for-like exchange rates). This trend was influenced by the depreciation of the Egyptian pound in 2016 following the
announcement by the Central Bank of Egypt that it will allow the currency to float. A detailed analysis shows that net interest
income came to 1,346 million euro compared to 1,428 million euro for 2016 (-5.7%), mainly due to the trends reported by
Bank of Alexandria (-61 million euro), VUB Banka (-16 million euro) and CIB Bank (-10 million euro). Net fee and commission
income, equal to 493 million euro, increased (+2.1%) compared to 2016. Profits on trading, amounting to 177 million euro,
increased significantly (+63.9%) thanks to increased contributions from Bank of Alexandria (+23 million euro), VUB Banka
(+22 million euro) and Banca Intesa - Russia (+4 million euro) and dividends from Bank of Qingdao (+17 million euro).
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Operating costs of 938 million euro decreased by 2.5% (+4.9% at like-for-like exchange rates). As a result of the above,
revenue and cost trends, the operating margin came to 1,010 million euro, down 2.9% (+11% at like-for-like exchange rates).
Gross income, amounting to 1,006 million euro, increased compared to the 913 million euro for 2016 (+10.2%), benefiting
from the positive effect deriving from the measurement at fair value of the investment in Bank of Qingdao as a consequence
of the reclassification of the investment, no longer included among the entities subject to significant influence. Excluding this
effect, a 10.6% decrease is recorded compared to the previous financial year (+4% at like-for-like exchange rates), when a
portion of the capital gain deriving from the sale of the equity investment in VISA Europe was recorded. The Division closed
2017 with net income of 827 million euro, up compared to 703 million euro for 2016 (+17.6%).

In the fourth quarter of 2017, the operating margin declined compared with the third quarter, as a result of the increase in
operating costs. Gross income and net income were adversely impacted by the increase in adjustments to loans and
provisions.

The Division’s intermediated volumes grew compared to the end of December 2016 (+7.9%) owing to positive performance of
loans to customers (+8.1%) and direct deposits from banking business (+7.8%), in both amounts due to customers and
securities issued.

In 2017, the International Subsidiary Banks Division continued the process of moving towards a common operating model in
the areas of governance, control/support, commercial strategy, product range and information technology.

Specifically, in the commercial area, the development of new digital channels continued in Croatia, Hungary and Egypt, as
well as the extension of the Customer Relationship Management methodology to Slovakia and the implementation of the
advisory model in investment services, which has been activated in Croatia and Slovenia, and will start up shortly in Slovakia
and Hungary. With a view to strengthening and optimising the presence of the international subsidiary banks in their
geographical areas of operation, the integration of the Bosnian bank into the Croatian group was completed. During the
period, the authorisation process was completed for the acquisition of the bank in Slovenia by the bank in Croatia and the
transfer from Intesa Sanpaolo of the controlling interest in the Slovenian bank to the Croatian bank was also completed. In the
area of loans, the Early Warning System platform, already activated in the main countries, was also extended to Hungary,
Romania and Albania. The common platform for granting loans, already operational at many international subsidiary banks,
was also launched in Hungary.

It is responsible for the Group’s operations on the international markets through commercial
bank subsidiaries and associates.

Guidance, coordination and support for international subsidiaries, which engage primarily in
retail banking operations. The Division is responsible for setting the Group’s strategic
development guidelines in terms of its direct presence on international markets, involving
systematic exploration and analysis of new growth opportunities on markets already served
and new markets, the coordination of international subsidiary banks’ operations and the
management of the relationships between international subsidiary banks and the Parent Company’s central units and the
branches and other foreign offices of the Corporate and Investment Banking Division.

Organisational structure

Presence in Albania, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Croatia, Romania and Serbia.

South-Eastern Europe

Presence in Slovakia, Slovenia and Hungary.
Central-Eastern Europe

Presence in Egypt and the Russian Federation.

Commonwealth of
Independent States & South
Mediterranean

Over 1,000 branches in 11 countries.
Distribution structure
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South-Eastern Europe

In 2017, the operating income of the Privredna Banka Zagreb Group amounted to 506 million euro, up compared to 2016
(+4.8%), due to the favourable performance of fee and commission income and profits on trading. Operating costs of 199
million euro increased slightly (+0.7%) due to the rising trend in personnel expenses. The operating margin came to 307
million euro (+7.6%). Gross income came to 222 million euro (-19.7%), impacted by the increase in adjustments to loans. Net
income came to 167 million euro (-17.5%).

Banca Intesa Beograd, including Intesa Leasing Beograd, generated operating margin of 132 million euro, up 2.9% on 2016.
Operating income increased by 1.7%, primarily due to the performance of fee and commission income and net interest
income. Operating costs were stable with respect to the previous year. Gross income amounted to 111 million euro, up
21.4%, following the lower adjustments to loans, while net income was 99 million euro (+20.9%).

Intesa Sanpaolo Banka Bosna i Hercegovina closed 2017 with an operating margin of 21 million euro, up on the previous year
(+2.3%). This performance is attributable to the increase in operating income, which more than offset the growing operating
costs. Gross income, amounting to 16 million euro, dropped slightly (-0.2%) on 2016, while net income came to 13 million
euro (-7.8%).

Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Albania reported an operating margin of 18 million euro, down on 2016 (-17.2%), due to the fall in
revenues and the increase in operating costs. Gross income amounted to 15 million euro (-26.7%). Net income, equal to 12
million, fell by 25.8%.

Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Romania recorded an operating margin of 10 million euro, down (-26.3%) compared to the previous
year due to the declining trend in operating income (-11.5%), primarily attributable to lower interest income. The company
showed net income of 9.3 million euro, compared to net income of 2.9 million euro for 2016.

Central-Eastern Europe

Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Slovenia generated operating income of 76 million euro, down 1.6% compared with the previous year
due to the decline in net interest income and net fee and commission income. Costs remained more or less stable compared
to 2016. Gross income fell by 68.1%, also due to the absence of other income and the gains from disposals recognised in
2016. The same trend was seen in net income, which amounted to 4.2 million euro.

The VUB Banka group generated an operating margin of 272 million euro, slightly down (-0.4%) on the previous year due to
an increase in operating costs (+2.9%), which more than offset the growth in operating income (+1.1%). On the revenue side,
profits on trading and net fee and commission income increased. Gross income, equal to 232 million euro, grew by 5.7% due
to releases of allowances for risks and charges and lower adjustments to loans. Net income came to 175 million euro
(+11.6%).

The CIB Bank Group (excluding the FUT business unit, which now houses the non-performing loans managed by the Capital
Light Bank) recorded operating income of 162 million euro, down 3.9% on 2016, mainly due to the decrease in net interest
income. Operating costs recorded savings (-3.7%), especially in administrative expenses. Net income recorded a positive
balance of 41 million euro, compared to net income of 52 million euro for the previous year.

Commonwealth of Independent States & South Mediterranean

Banca Intesa — Russia posted a decrease in operating income (-10.2%) attributable to the negative performance of net fee
and commission income and net interest income. Operating costs rose by 3.4% in relation to the expansion of personnel
expenses and higher amortisation and depreciation. Net adjustments to loans amounted to 5.5 million euro, down
considerably compared to 2016. The bank ended 2017 at essentially break even compared to a profit of 4.8 million euro in the
previous year.

Bank of Alexandria reported an operating margin of 184 million euro, lower than in 2016 (-2.8%), due to the depreciation of
the Egyptian pound. Operating income of 282 million euro declined (-14.9%) as a result of the aforementioned depreciation,
which had a negative impact on all components (+55.5% at like-for-like exchange rates). Operating costs declined (-31.1%;
+26.1% at like-for-like exchange rates), as a result of the exchange rate effect on all expense captions. Net income came to
122 million euro, up slightly (+0.6%) on 2016 (+84% at like-for-like exchange rates).
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Private Banking
(millions of euro)

Income statement 2017 Changes

amount %
Net interest income 171 175 -4 -2.3
Net fee and commission income 1,673 1,527 146 9.6
Income from insurance business - - - -
Profits (Losses) on trading 25 31 -6 -19.4
Other operating income (expenses) 10 7 3 42.9
Operating income 1,879 1,740 139 8.0
Personnel expenses -315 -292 23 7.9
Other administrative expenses -221 -227 -6 -2.6
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -15 -15 - -
Operating costs -551 -534 17 3.2
Operating margin 1,328 1,206 122 10.1
Net adjustments to loans 8 6 2 33.3
Net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets -36 -44 -8 -18.2
Other income (expenses) 8 - 8 -

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations - - - -

Gross income (Loss) 1,308 1,168 140 12.0
Taxes on income -392 -339 53 15.6
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -33 -35 -2 -5.7
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) -4 -84 -80 -95.2

Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry
(net of tax) - - - -

Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets - - - -

Minority interests - - - -

Net income (loss) 879 710 169 23.8

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
amount %
Assets under management " 114.660 104.129 10.531 10,1
Risk- weighted assets 10.138 9.727 41 4,2
Absorbed capital 987 949 38 4,0

™ Figures restated in line with consolidated reporting criteria of indirect customer deposits.

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued
operations.

The Private Banking Division serves the top customer segment (Private and High Net Worth Individuals), creating value by
offering excellent products and services. The Division coordinates the operations of Fideuram, Fideuram Investimenti, Intesa
Sanpaolo Private Banking, Sirefid, Fideuram Fiduciaria, Intesa Sanpaolo Private Bank (Suisse) and Fideuram Asset
Management Ireland.

In 2017, the Division generated gross income of 1,308 million euro, up (+140 million euro, or +12%) compared to the previous
year as a result of higher operating income (+139 million euro) - attributable to the increase in net fee and commission income
(+146 million euro) and lower provisions (-8 million euro), as well as the recording of a capital gain on the sale of a property
(+8 million euro). The drop in provisions was mainly due to the discounting of the allowances for risks, which, due to the rising
trend of the interest rate curve, led to a lower charge to the income statement. Operating costs moved in the opposite
direction (+17 million euro), due to the increase in personnel expenses related to the quantitative and qualitative
strengthening of the workforce, only partially offset by a reduction in administrative expenses.




Report on operations - Breakdown of consolidated results by business area and geographical area

Net income was 879 million euro (+169 million euro, or +23.8%).

The values of assets under administration have been recognised in accordance with the reporting criteria for indirect
customer deposits used in the Intesa Sanpaolo Group's consolidated financial statements, involving in particular the
elimination of customer current accounts correlated with investment transactions, bonds and certificates that, despite being
part of customers' assets, are already included in direct customer deposits. In addition, third-party products were reallocated
from assets under management to assets under administration.

As at 31 December 2017, assets under administration, which also include the contribution of the trust mandates for Sirefid,
amounted to 182.7 billion euro (+16.7 billion euro compared to the end of 2016). That performance was largely due to higher
net inflows and, to a lesser extent, the effect of performance on assets. The assets under management component amounted
to 114.7 billion euro, up by 10.5 billion euro (+10.1%) compared to 31 December 2016.

The Board of Directors of Fideuram approved the integration of the two fiduciary companies of the Private Banking Division by
merger by incorporation of Fideuram Fiduciaria into Sirefid with the aim of creating the first Italian operator dedicated
exclusively to fiduciary activities, capable of best meeting the needs of high-end customers of the Private Banking Division.

Within the project for the international development of the Division, a strategic opportunity was identified in the acquisition of
the holding company of the Morval Vonwiller Group, operating in private banking and wealth management, with head office in
Switzerland and international presence. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of Fideuram approved the purchase of around
95% of the share capital of Morval Vonwiller and the simultaneous sale by Morval of its treasury shares to the management
team, under the same conditions as agreed with Fideuram, up to a maximum amount of 5% of the share capital.

Generating new inflows of assets and managing them, using a network of financial advisors and in-
house private bankers serving a customer base with high savings potential.

Improve and broaden the product portfolio and increase the service levels by allowing the
customers to choose the network which best satisfies their needs; assist customers in the informed
management of their wealth, based on a detailed analysis of their real requirements and risk
profile; and offering fully transparent financial and pensions advice in accordance with the
regulations.

Organisational structure

Dedicated to the production, management and distribution of financial products and services to
. high profile customers, using a network of more than 5,000 Fideuram and Sanpaolo Invest
Fideuram financial advisors.

Bank dedicated to private customers (with over 1 million euro in financial assets), providing
Intesa Sanpaolo Private financial services which are designed to preserve and increase wealth and provide continuity,
Banking using a network of around 900 in-house private bankers.

Company specialised in the provision of fiduciary services.

SIREFID

Network of 223 branches in Italy, three branches abroad and 5,950 financial advisors and private
bankers.

Distribution structure
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Asset Management
(millions of euro)
Income statement 2017 Changes

amount %

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income 718 567 151 26.6
Income from insurance business - - - -
Profits (Losses) on trading 3 11 -8 -72.7
Other operating income (expenses) 63 68 -5 -74
Operating income 785 647 138 21.3
Personnel expenses -76 -64 12 18.8
Other administrative expenses -80 -76 4 5.3
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -1 -1 - -
Operating costs -157 -141 16 1.3
Operating margin 628 506 122 241
Net adjustments to loans - - - -
Net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets - 1 -1
Other income (expenses) - - - -
Income (Loss) from discontinued operations - - - -
Gross income (Loss) 628 507 121 23.9
Taxes on income -116 -139 -23 -16.5
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -1 - 1 -
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) - - - -
Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry
(net of tax) - - - -
Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets - - - -
Minority interests -18 -1 7 63.6
Net income (loss) 493 357 136 38.1
(millions of euro)
31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes
amount %
Assets under management 253,161 238,804 14,357 6.0
Risk-weighted assets 914 1,130 -216 -19.1
Absorbed capital 102 118 -16 -13.6

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

The Asset Management Division pursues the mission of developing the best asset management solutions aimed at the
Group's customers and its presence on the open market segment through the subsidiary Eurizon Capital and its investees.

Overall, the total assets managed by the Asset Management Division at the end of December 2017 came to 253.2 billion
euro, up (+6%, equal to +14.4 billion euro) year-on-year, mainly as a result of net inflows (+10.2 billion euro). The trend in
inflows is attributable to the contribution of mutual funds (+9.8 billion euro) and institutional mandates (+1.7 billion euro),
mostly concentrated in insurance contracts, which more than offset the outflows relating to the retail sale of portfolio
management schemes (-1.2 billion euro).

As at 31 December 2017, Eurizon Capital’s market share of assets under management was 15.2% (gross of duplications and
excluding the closed-end funds segment, in which the company does not operate), up since the beginning of the year.

Operating income came to 785 million euro in 2017, up 21.3% compared to the previous year, due to the positive
performance of net fee and commission income (+26.6%), supported in particular by management fees related to the growth
in average assets under management and in incentive fees received on the managed products. Operating costs rose
(+11.3%) due to personnel and administrative expenses, as a result of the change in the operational structures triggered by
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the increase in volumes under management, as set out in the Division’s development plan. As a result of the above revenue
and cost trends, the operating margin came to 628 million euro, up 23.9%. The Division closed 2017 with net income of 493
million euro (+38.1%).

In terms of quarterly performance, the fourth quarter showed growth in revenues and the main income margins compared to
the third quarter, benefiting from the incentive fees collected in December.

The capital gain on the sale of the equity investment in Allfunds Bank has been allocated to the Corporate Centre, even
though it was included in the results of Eurizon Capital for statutory reporting purposes, in view of the type of transaction
involved, which took place as part of the management of the Group's equity investments portfolio.
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Organisational structure

Eurizon Capital SGR

Epsilon Associati SGR

Eurizon Capital S.A.
(Luxembourg)

Eurizon Capital (HK) Ltd.
(Hong Kong)

VUB Asset Management
(Slovakia)

Penghua Fund Management
Company Limited

Eurizon SLJ Capital Ltd
(U.K))

Qingdao Yicai Wealth
Management Co. Ltd.

Asset management.

To provide collective and individual asset management products to the Group’s internal banking
networks and develop its presence on the open market through specific distribution agreements
with other networks and institutional investors.

Specialised in asset management on behalf of both retail customers (mutual funds and portfolio
management schemes) and institutional customers, to which it offers a wide range of investment
products and services.

Specialised in active portfolio management, and in particular in quantitative and multi-strategy
management, with total return investment objectives. It is 51% owned by Eurizon Capital SGR,
with the remaining 49% held by Banca IMI.

The company manages and distributes Luxembourg UCI products aimed at retail and institutional
customers and offers a wide range of services dedicated to institutional investors. It specialises in
limited tracking error (LTE) management and money market products.

A company wholly owned by Eurizon Capital S.A., established to develop consulting activities on
financial instruments and portfolio management in the Asian market.

A Slovak asset management company, 100%-owned by Eurizon Capital S.A., which heads up the
Hungarian CIB IFM and the Croatian PBZ Invest (Eastern European asset management hub).

Chinese fund manager 49% owned by Eurizon Capital SGR.

An English company controlled by Eurizon Capital SGR through a 65% interest, which conducts
research and provides investment and advisory services.

A Chinese company headquartered in Qingdao, established on 30 September 2016. The company
is 20%-owned by Eurizon Capital SGR, 55%-owned by Intesa Sanpaolo and 25%-owned by
Fideuram-Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking.




Report on operations - Breakdown of consolidated results by business area and geographical area

Insurance
(millions of euro)
Income statement 2017 Changes

amount %

Net interest income - - - -
Net fee and commission income - - - -
Income from insurance business 1,077 1,179 -102 -8.7

Profits (Losses) on trading - - - -

Other operating income (expenses) -10 -7 3 429
Operating income 1,067 1,172 -105 -9.0
Personnel expenses -80 -71 9 12.7
Other administrative expenses -95 -100 -5 -5.0
Adjustments to property, equipment and intangible assets -3 -2 1 50.0
Operating costs -178 -173 5 2.9
Operating margin 889 999 -110 -11.0
Net adjustments to loans - - - -
Net provisions and net impairment losses on other assets -2 -12 -10 -83.3
Other income (expenses) - 21 -21

Income (Loss) from discontinued operations - - - -

Gross income (Loss) 887 1,008 121 -12.0
Taxes on income -248 -315 -67 -21.3
Charges (net of tax) for integration and exit incentives -9 -5 4 80.0
Effect of purchase price allocation (net of tax) -17 -19 -2 -10.5

Levies and other charges concerning the banking industry
(net of tax) - - - -

Impairment (net of tax) of goodwill and other intangible assets - - - -

Minority interests - - - -

Net income (loss) 613 -56 -8.4

(millions of euro)
31.12.2017 31.12.2016 Changes

amount %
Assets under management 152,691 144,321 8,370 5.8

Risk-weighted assets - - - -
Absorbed capital 4,198 4,186 12 0.3

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations.

The Insurance Division oversees management of the subsidiaries of the insurance group Intesa Sanpaolo Vita and Fideuram
Vita, with the mission of further developing the insurance product mix targeting Group customers.

In 2017, the Insurance Division reported income from insurance business of 1,077 million euro, showing a decline of 102
million euro (-8.7%) compared to the previous year, primarily due to the reduction in the contribution of the financial
component. In the presence of an increase in operating costs (+5 million euro), due to personnel expenses as a result of the
higher average workforce associated with business development, income before tax from continuing operations stood at 887
million euro, a decrease of 121 million euro (-12%) compared to 2016 and net income amounted to 613 million euro (-8.4%).

Direct deposits from insurance business, amounting to 152,691 million euro, increased by 8.4 billion euro (+5.8%) compared
to the end of December 2016, as a result of higher financial liabilities for the insurance segment designated at fair value.

Collected premiums for life policies amounted to 22.5 billion euro, down 5.9% compared to 2016. During 2017 the
diversification of the product range continued, in favour of efficient products in terms of capital absorption.
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Collected premiums for the non-life business, amounting to 0.4 billion euro, recorded a favourable performance on the
previous year, with growth recorded in all product lines. The increase in deposits reflects the diversification strategy launched
in 2016 and continued in 2017, with the marketing of new products linked to the health and accident segments, and with a
product range dedicated to small and medium-sized enterprises.

During the year, the Insurance Division expanded its commercial offering by launching the new multi-line policy “InFondi
Stabilitainsurance”’, @ medium-/long-term investment that offers a platform of underlying assets that feature guarantees,
protection and performance opportunities to freely allocate assets with a high degree of delegation and advisory services. The
new multi-line product, “Fideuram Vita Sintonia”, sold through Fideuram’s financial advisors network, was launched during the
year. This is an individual single-premium life insurance policy with the possibility of additional payments and benefits partly
linked to the performance of the segregated management and partly to the value of units in one or more internal and external
funds. The product provides access to an investment line that has individual protection for a part of the invested capital.

As regards the non-life business, a framework agreement was entered into with the international insurance broker AON to
develop specific insurance programmes for Group customers.

Life and Non-Life Insurance.

Develop the offering of insurance products for the Group's customers.

Organisational structure

Insurance parent company specialised in offering insurance, pension and personal and asset
) protection services within Banca dei Territori. The Company owns 100% of Intesa Sanpaolo Life
Intesa Sanpaolo Vita and Intesa Sanpaolo Assicura, as well as 49% of Intesa Sanpaolo Smart Care.

Specialised in life insurance products with a higher financial content, such as unit-linked products

and life insurance policies linked to internal funds.
Intesa Sanpaolo Life

Dedicated to the non-life business, it offers customers a wide range of products capable of

Intesa Sanpaolo Assicura covering personal injury, damage to vehicles and to the home and loan protection.

Dedicated to marketing hardware and software products and providing electronic assistance
services. The company is 51% owned by Intesa Sanpaolo, with the remaining 49% held by Intesa
Intesa Sanpaolo Smart Care |  Sanpaolo Vita.

) ) Specialised in offering insurance, pension and personal and asset protection products in service of
Fideuram Vita the Private Banking Division.
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Corporate Centre
The Corporate Centre is responsible for direction, coordination and control of the whole Group, as well as for the Capital Light
Bank business unit, Treasury and ALM.

The Corporate Centre Departments generated a negative operating margin of 1,751 million euro in 2017 — excluding the
contribution from the acquired Aggregate Set — compared to -1,587 million euro in the previous year. The largest movements
were recorded in other net operating income and net interest income. The latter was attributable to the Treasury securities
portfolio, due to the drop in both volumes and returns, and the portfolio of non-performing loans of Capital Light Bank, subject
to deleveraging. The operating costs of the Corporate Centre are charged back to the business units, based on the amounts
relating to the performance of services, governed by specific agreements. Net of services, the Corporate Centre costs for
steering, control and coordination (in addition to those of the CLB and Treasury business units) increased compared to 2016.
Gross income, net of the public contribution of 3,500 million euro related to the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities and
certain legal relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca, amounted to -2,228 million euro (-2,850 million
euro in 2016). The year 2017 ended with a net loss of 1,985 million euro (again net of the aforementioned contribution), lower
than the -2,588 million euro recorded last year. The loss for the year included 637 million euro due to charges imposed by
legislative provisions and/or aimed at maintaining the stability of the banking system and consequently outside the company’s
control, in addition to 12 million euro relating to the Aggregate Set.

With regard to the former Venetian banks, as previously indicated, the income statement contribution for the second half of
2017 and the balance sheet balances as at 31 December 2017 have been temporarily allocated in full to the Corporate
Centre and will be broken down into the various divisions once the processes are integrated starting from 2018.

Capital Light Bank

In 2017 the ordinary and extraordinary transactions carried out on the assets held by the Capital Light Bank continued with
the aim of reducing the non-core assets. In particular, the assets contributed with the definition of the 2014-2017 Business
Plan were reduced further, bringing the deleveraging since the beginning of the year to around 6 billion euro and total
deleveraging since 2013 to over 23 billion euro, reaching the target set in the Plan. Considering the extended scope (including
the assets contributed after the definition of the Business Plan), the decrease amounted to over 27 billion euro. At the end of
February, the reorganisation of consumer credit was completed with the incorporation into the Parent Company of Accedo,
the product company specialised in the extra-captive channel; therefore, the Banca dei Territori Division remains the only
Division designated to develop this product for all Group’s customers. With regard to the bad loan portfolio under
management, the recovery activity continued, both internally and through external servicers, with collections of around 1.4
billion euro during the year, up 17% on 2016. This result was also achieved thanks to initiatives aimed at improving recovery
performances, setting up dedicated incentive systems, as well as through recovery campaigns targeted to specific portfolios
with specific objectives. In terms of extraordinary transactions, in June the sale was completed to Christofferson Robb &
Company and Bay View A.M. of a portfolio of bad loans amounting to around 2 billion euro and in November a portfolio of
non-performing consumer loans was sold for a nominal amount of around 600 million euro. Actions were also taken on the
bad loans originating from lease contracts managed by Provis to speed up the reduction of the stock, in particular through the
disposal of the contracts of the securities segment and sale of repossessed assets. During the period, Re.O.CO. carried out
activities with a view to managing real estate collateral in a more pro-active manner. This entails both direct involvement in
auctions and "auction support", whereby external investors are encouraged to intervene, by choosing the interventions so as
to maximise the recovery of bad positions secured by real-estate assets with the goal of minimising the investment of
additional capital. In 2017, driven by supporting action and direct participation in auctions for over 200 properties,
approximately 40 million euro of properties were bought. Concerning the international subsidiaries, the deleveraging and
derisking activities involving the Ukrainian bank Pravex and the FUT Division of the Hungarian subsidiary CIB Bank
continued, reaching the overall targets set in the Bank’s 2014-2017 Business Plan. In addition, interventions aiming to
accelerate a reduction were carried out on the non-strategic equity investments, loans towards public and project finance
counterparties.

Treasury services

The Treasury Department includes treasury services in euro and foreign currencies, and the integrated management of
liquidity requirements/surpluses, financial risks and settlement risks.

In the third quarter of the year, Intesa Sanpaolo continued to carry out its role in various projects, confirming its role as a
critical participant on the ECB settlement platforms (Target2 and Target2 Securities) and cooperating in relation to
“Instant Payments”. The work of the Task Force on the future of the RTGS (Real Time Gross Settlement System) Services
was completed; in December the project that will lead to the creation of the new single Central Bank platform obtained the
approval from the Governing Council.

As regards the money market, in the first part of the year attention was focused on the rise of inflation in Europe and, in June,
on the removal of references to the possibility of lower interest rates in the forward guidance provided by the European
Central Bank. Subsequently, the Governing Council of the ECB decided to leave the benchmark interest rates unchanged, to
provide support for economic growth with the aim of reaching inflation levels close to 2%. During the year, the fourth auction
was held of the T-LTRO Il programme, in which Intesa Sanpaolo participated for an amount of 12 billion euro, taking the total
funding to around 57 billion euro. Please note that, as a result of the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities and certain
legal relationships of Veneto Banca and Banca Popolare di Vicenza, the total funding through ECB long-term auctions rose to
63.5 billion euro. In view of the favourable economic situation driven by a strong labour market and low inflation, in December
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the Federal Reserve raised official rates by a quarter of a percentage point to 1.5%, representing the third tightening in the
year. The amount of Intesa Sanpaolo’s short-term securities funding programmes was down in the early months of the year
mainly due to negative interest rates. Operations subsequently picked up in all the individual short-term securities funding
programmes, both in euro and US dollars, which were also boosted by the improvement in the credit rating issued by S&P at
the end of October.

Concerning the government bond portfolio, investment strategies were aimed at reducing the risk in January, then exploiting
market dynamics to re-establish positions on bonds issued by governments and state agencies of semi-core and peripheral
countries in February and March. Those positions were reduced in the second quarter, always preserving the need to
maintain a sufficient stock of liquidity reserves. Subsequently, operations remained at low levels, with slight reductions in
credit risk on the overall portfolios in order to exploit the favourable trend in the markets. With regard to repo transactions,
after the significant increase seen in the first half of the year, volumes remained substantially unchanged. Spreads between
the repo rates of government bonds of the core countries and Italian government bonds tightened slightly during the early part
of the year and then remained essentially stable, except for the widening at the end of each quarter. Italian repo rates were
stable at levels just below that of the depo facility.

In terms of medium-/long-term funding operations, the total amount of Group securities placed on the domestic market via its
own networks and direct listings was 4.2 billion euro in the year. Among the securities placed, there was a prevalence of the
component consisting of structured financial instruments (primarily represented by index-linked structures) at 78%. The
residual share consisted of plain-vanilla instruments. A breakdown by average maturity shows that 11% is comprised of
financial instruments with 2- and 3-year maturities, 38% is represented by 4-, 5- and 6-year securities and the remaining 51%
by 7-, 8- and 10-year securities.

On the international markets, medium-/long-term funding was completed for a total of 10.8 billion euro through the issue of
senior and subordinated bonds as well as, to a minimum extent, certificates, placed on the Euromarket with institutional
investors. In particular, the following public transactions were performed during the year: a fixed-rate senior security targeted
at the Euromarket for 1 billion euro (with a 7-year maturity); a fixed-rate Additional Tier 1 subordinated security targeted at the
international markets for 1.25 billion euro (which have characteristics in line with the “CRD IV” regulations, as they are
perpetual instruments with maturity equal to the duration of Intesa Sanpaolo as per its articles of association, which may be
redeemed in advance by the issuer after 10 years from the date of issue and subsequently on each coupon payment date); a
floating-rate senior security for 1.5 billion euro (with 5-year maturity); a fixed-rate Additional Tier 1 subordinate security for 750
million euro which has characteristics in line with the “CRD IV” regulations, redeemable in advance after 7 years from their
issue, on each coupon payment date (this transaction completed the issue programme of subordinated AT1 securities
envisaged in the 2014-2017 Business Plan for a total of 4 billion euro); a fixed-rate green bond for 500 million euro with 5-year
maturity (the first bond issued by an Italian bank to finance projects dedicated to renewable energy); and a fixed-rate senior
security for 2.5 billion USD (corresponding to around 2.2 billion euro), aimed at the US market. The security was issued in
dual tranche form: 1.25 billion USD at 5 years and 1.25 billion USD at 10 years.

As part of the covered bond issue programmes used as collateral for transactions in the Eurosystem, for the multi-originator
programme guaranteed by ISP OBG, the 9th and 10th series expiring in 2017 were redeemed in advance in February, for 1.4
billion euro each. Following these redemptions, the 23rd and 24th floating-rate series were issued for the same amount with a
maturity of 9 and 10 years respectively. The securities were subscribed by the Parent Company and are eligible on the
Eurosystem.

As part of the covered bond issue programme guaranteed by ISP CB Pubblico, the 10th series was redeemed partially for an
amount of 500 million euro. In May, the 13th series was issued for 1.65 billion euro, at a floating rate and maturing in 7 years,
which is also eligible on the Eurosystem.

As part of the covered bond issue programme guaranteed by ISP CB Ipotecario, in June a new issue of covered bonds was
placed on the institutional market, the 22nd fixed-rate series, for 1 billion euro and a 10-year maturity. The securities are listed
on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and rated Aa2 by Moody's.

In the area of self-securitisations, in November the special purpose vehicle company Adriano Lease Sec. issued two tranches
of floating-rate securities for a total amount of 4.2 billion euro on assets sold by Mediocredito Italiano. Both securities were
subscribed by the originator: the senior security, amounting to 2.8 billion euro, obtained an A1 rating from Moody’s and an A
rating from DBRS and is eligible on the Eurosystem.

A second multi-originator self-securitisation on a portfolio of residential mortgages was completed in December by the special
purpose vehicle company Brera Sec. which issued two tranches of floating-rate securities for a total of 7.1 billion euro. The
securities were subscribed by each originator: Intesa Sanpaolo, Cassa di Risparmio del Friuli Venezia Giulia, Cassa dei
Risparmi di Forli e della Romagna, Banco di Napoli and Cassa di Risparmio in Bologna, in amounts proportional to the
portfolio sold. Only the senior class, amounting to 6 billion euro, with an A (high) rating from DBRS and Aa2 from Moody’s, is
eligible on the Eurosystem.

As regards management of the collateral eligible for refinancing operations at central banks, Intesa Sanpaolo uses the
A.Ba.Co. (Collateralised Bank Assets) procedure, which allows bank loans disbursed to non-financial companies to be used
to secure loan transactions with the Bank of Italy. This procedure is implemented in compliance with the Bank of lItaly
regulations "Eurosystem Monetary Policy Instruments - Guide for Operators”. At the end of December 2017, the outstanding
amount of loans (gross of applicable hair-cuts) lodged as pledge by the Group was 12.9 billion euro.

Active Value Management (AVM)

With regard to Asset & Liability Management, operational management of the interest rate risks of the Group’s banking book —
in the segment over 18 months — is handled by the ALM structures under the supervision of the Financial and Market Risk
Department. Interest rate risk is monitored and managed mainly by examining the sensitivity of the market value of the
various positions in the banking book to parallel shifts in the interest rate curve at the various maturities; moreover specific
scenario analysis techniques on rate developments are used, as well as performance scenarios for specific positions. The
strategic choices on interest rate risk are made by the Group’s Financial Risks Committee, within the limits established by the
Management Body. The ALM structure actively supports the Committee’s decision-making activity by formulating analyses
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and proposals. The structural liquidity risk is managed by identifying expected liquidity mismatches by maturity bands, on the
basis of internal liquidity policies defined by the Group.

Integrated Operational Strategies Area

In particular, the Integrated Operational Strategies Area worked to ensure the definition and development of the target
technological model of Intesa Sanpaolo and of efficient and effective organisational solutions, aimed at supporting the
implementation of the initiatives scheduled under the Business Plan and the programs for compliance to sector-specific
regulations, as well as to define the guidelines and policies in terms of physical, IT and business continuity security and to
manage back office processing activities related to finance, securities, banking services, loans, services and systems for
collection and payment in Italy and abroad, while pursuing the efficiency needed for optimum cost governance.

In 2017, working with and supporting the Group structures, the I0S Area performed a central role in the implementation of the
integration project for the former Venetian banks, through the migration to Intesa Sanpaolo’s IT system and the related
certification activities; the alignment to the target organisational model, supporting intragroup mobility operations; a series of
urgent transitional and compulsory tasks, including the regulatory frameworks and intragroup services; and the integration of
operations structures, ensuring overall project governance and operational coordination of activities to guide and support the
structures during the changeover.

In 2017, the management and monitoring continued of the main projects at Group level that cut across the entire Company or
are common to several structures (Areas, Divisions or companies) and have a high degree of complexity.

In 2017, the Group also continued its commitment to implementing IT projects to support the development of new businesses
and to optimise and streamline processes, complete the development of multi-channel retail services, implement new
methods of data governance and simplify the corporate structure as set out in the Business Plan. The Area Structures
contributed to the execution of measures required by the evolution of the domestic, EU and international regulatory
frameworks. The insourcing of activities for the purpose of reducing costs and reappropriating competencies continued as
well. In 2017, the activities in the Group IT Plan also continued, for the purpose of increasing the central role of the customer,
improving the “user experience”, reducing time-to-market in the creation of IT solutions, supporting the end-to-end digitisation
of processes and strengthening IT governance.

See the Executive Summary for a more detailed description of the main cross-cutting projects and IT implementations that the
IOS Area actively contributed to.

Chief Innovation Officer Area

The Chief Innovation Officer Governance Area has the task of identifying, analysing and developing innovation activities,
guaranteeing their monitoring, coordination and consistency at Group level, searching for innovative solutions on the national
and international markets to identify development opportunities for the Group and its customers. The Area defines, in line with
business strategies and objectives, the guidelines and policies on Group's innovation, proposing new projects that are in line
with the main innovation trends, so that they can be translated into actions to support the achievement of the Bank's growth
objectives.

This structure governs innovation initiatives and the related investments, along with the competent company structures, taking
on the most appropriate role each time to achieve successful projects. The Area, in partnership with the other Group
structures, also acts as the driver of innovation initiatives throughout the country, building a national and international network
of relations with the ecosystem, promoting valuable partnerships with companies, incubators, research centres, universities
and other institutions. The structure also pursues the objective of disseminating the culture of innovation within the Group.

The initiatives promoted by the Innovation Center during 2017, working with the other departments of the Bank, can be
attributed to two main areas of action, and are listed below:

Structural/Ongoing activities in the CIO Area

—  Consolidation of the Group Innovation Portfolio for 2017, which represents the Bank's commitment to investing resources
in innovation;

—  Coordination of innovation partnerships with national and international universities, research centres, companies and
incubators;

—  Cross-industry innovation monitor;

—  Application of service design to various project areas;

—  Continuation of the StartUp Initiative cycle of events for the acceleration of international start-ups in Italy and abroad
(London, Hong Kong and New York), with the training of over 160 start-ups for subsequent presentation at investors
(Seed/VC Funds and Angel Investors), corporate customers and players in the innovation ecosystem;

— Online offering of services of the Officine Formative, the training, coaching and acceleration process for early-stage start-
ups;

—  Creation of events and workshops to disseminate and promote the culture of innovation and increase the Bank's
positioning, involving internal and external stakeholders (colleagues, customers, institutions and start-ups).
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New initiatives to compete in the world of tomorrow

Initiatives to promote and create new digital capabilities, also through the development of Fintech initiatives

Digital payments, with the creation of prototypes to identify the best customer experience for digital payments using
innovative technologies;

Blockchain and Virtual Currencies, with the continuation of the consortium and institutional collaboration to assess the
application of blockchain technology in accordance with the regulatory and functional requirements typical of the
traditional financial world;

Artificial intelligence: in this area the Innovation Center Lab on artificial intelligence has been established in partnership
with a leading research centre, with the aim of responding to the specific needs of the Group using "non-traditional"
approaches;

Biometrics: with the creation of prototypes for identifying biometric solutions aimed at simplifying the user experience and
continuous monitoring of activities to identify abnormal behaviour for anti-fraud purposes;

Neuroscience: with the launch of a Laboratory in collaboration with a recognised national research institute aimed at
identifying new models of communication, engagement and learning in the field of marketing and training, aimed at
internal and external customers;

Insurance: with the creation of prototypes for the development of life and non-life insurance solutions, using new models
and technologies, and the proposal of innovative medical solutions.

Circular Economy:

In relation to the Circular Economy, the activities planned as part of the partnership signed with the Ellen MacArthur
Foundation continued.

Initiatives were also launched, both in Italy and internationally, to promote awareness and adoption of the circular economy
paradigm, in collaboration with the Bank's Business Units and Head Office Structures.

Initiatives for the development of new products/services to support innovation for businesses:

Diligence Assessment Tool Scorecard (DATS): work was carried out on the integration of the technological due diligence
tool into the credit granting process for innovative start-ups;

A guaranteed convertible loan for innovative companies: this initiative aims to expand the Group’s financial range of
products and services supporting high potential innovative Italian companies by offering guaranteed loans with an option
of conversion to equity.

Banking for Industry 4.0: a project to support the Business Units and Group companies in the expansion and innovation
of service offerings for corporate customers, both in terms of advisory services and financing, with new ad hoc products
to support customers in the transition to Industry 4.0.

New open innovation services: this involved the development of a range of services aimed at promoting innovation of
enterprises through scouting, research into ad hoc technological solutions, development of dedicated call and start-up
selection programmes, and access to innovation demand and supply match-making platforms.
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GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS
(millions of euro)
Italy Europe Rest of Total
the World

Operating income
2017 13,173 3,211 1,059 17,443
2017
(Excluding the Aggregate Set ) 12917 3,201 1,089 17,177
2016 12,986 2,888 1,101 16,975
% change © -0.5 10.8 -38 1.2
Loans to customers
31.12.2017 343,857 53,383 13,506 410,746
31.12.2016 306,142 43,773 14,798 364,713
% change ® 1.2 211 -8.7 31
Direct deposits from banking business
31.12.2017 354,297 60,946 8,231 423,474
31.12.2016 329,445 57,902 6,458 393,805
% change ® -3.2 43 215 -1.6

Figures restated, where necessary, considering the changes in the scope of consolidation and in business unit constituents and discontinued operations. The figures
concerning the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca have not been restated.

@ The change expresses the ratio between 2017 excluding the Aggregate Set and 2016.

® e change expresses the ratio between 31.12.2017 excluding the Aggregate Set and 31.12.2016.

With regard to subdivision by geographical areas, the activities of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group continued to be concentrated
primarily in the ltalian market. Italy accounted for 76% of revenues and 84% of loans to customers and direct deposits from
banking business. Abroad, the Group has a significant presence in Central and South-Eastern Europe (Croatia, Slovenia,
Slovakia, Serbia, Hungary, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Albania, Romania), in the Russian Federation and in the Mediterranean
area (Egypt).

As regards the performance of operations in 2017, loans to customers were up in Italy and Europe and down in the rest of the
world, while direct deposits from banking business showed declining volumes in Italy and rising volumes in Europe and the
rest of the world. As regards the operating income, the substantially stable performance in ltaly was offset, though with more
contained absolute values, by an increase in Europe and a fall in the rest of the world.
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Corporate Governance and remuneration policies

Corporate Governance

Intesa Sanpaolo adheres to the objectives and guidelines of the Corporate Governance Code for listed companies, and its
one-tier corporate governance system is in line with the principles contained therein (for which a report is provided, describing
the adjustments deemed appropriate) as well as, in general, with national and international best practices, which aim to
ensure, also in accordance with the Supervisory Authority provisions, effective and transparent distribution of the roles and
responsibilities of its corporate Bodies and a proper balance of strategic supervision, management and control functions.

For a more detailed description of the corporate governance system, reference should be made to the “Report on Corporate
Governance and Ownership Structures” — available in the “Governance” section of the Company’s website — prepared in
accordance with Article 123-bis of the Consolidated Law on Finance, which requires issuers to provide the market yearly with
a set of information, precisely identified by the said Article, on their ownership structures, their compliance with a corporate
governance code, their corporate bodies structure and operation as well as their corporate governance practices.

Shareholder base

According to records in the Shareholders’ Register and the most recent available information, as at 31 December 2017
shareholders with stakes exceeding 3% — threshold that, if exceeded, requires now communication to both the company and
Consob, pursuant to ltalian legislation (Art. 120 of the Consolidated Law on Finance “TUF”) — were as follows.

Shareholder Ordinary % held on ordinary

shares share capital
Compagnia di San Paolo 1,308,804,043 8.252%
Black Rock Inc.!"’ 794,646,624 5.010%
Fondazione C.R. di Padova e Rovigo 767,029,267 4.836%

Shareholders being fund management companies may be exempted from disclosure up to the 5% threshold.

M Fund management. Shareholder owning aggregate investment equal to 5.106% as per form 120 B dated 4 July 2017.

One-tier governance system

Intesa Sanpaolo has adopted the one-tier governance system and therefore operates through a Board of Directors, within

which guidance and strategic supervision powers converge; the control functions are carried out by a committee within the

Board of Directors, made up entirely of independent Directors appointed by the Shareholders' Meeting (the Management

Control Committee); the management functions, without prejudice to the powers reserved for the Board of Directors, mainly

fall to the Managing Director and CEO-Chief Executive Officer.

The practical application of the one-tier system to the Bank’s structure is marked by a clear division of roles and

responsibilities between the Governing Bodies:

—  the Board of Directors of the Company is assigned the guidance and strategic supervision duties and the duty to resolve
on all the relevant corporate deeds;

— the internal Board Committees support the Board of Directors in carrying out its functions in order to facilitate the taking
of fully informed decisions;

—  the Management Control Committee performs the powers and functions conferred by the current regulations upon the
body with the control function and upon the internal control and audit committee, pursuant to Law Decree 39/2010.

— the Managing Director and CEO performs the day-to-day management function, within the scope of the powers
delegated by the Board of Directors.

The Managers support the Managing Director and CEO in performing the day-to-day management function: as Management

Committees, in performing the tasks and powers assigned to them by the Board of Directors within the scope of specific

Regulations; individually or jointly, in exercising the powers conferred upon them by the Board of Directors at the proposal of

the Managing Director.

The Shareholders’ Meeting

The Shareholders’ Meeting is the body deemed to represent all shareholders and its resolutions, passed in accordance with
the law and the Articles of Association, are binding on all shareholders, irrespective of their attendance or dissent.

In the one-tier system adopted by the Bank, the ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting resolves, amongst other things, on:

— the approval of the financial statements and distribution of profits;
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— the appointment, revocation and determination of remuneration with respect to the positions of Board Director, Chairman
and Deputy Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Chairman and member of the Management Control Committee;

— the approval of the Board Directors' and personnel's remuneration policies, as well as the plans based on financial
instruments;

— the appointment and revocation of the statutory audit mandate and the determination of the relative fees, upon the
reasoned proposal of the Management Control Committee;

— the other matters entrusted to its authority by law or by the Articles of Association.

The Board of Directors, the Managing Director and the Internal Committees

The Board of Directors is composed of a minimum of 15 up to a maximum of 19 members, including non-shareholders,
appointed by the Shareholders' Meeting on the basis of slates submitted by Shareholders. Board Directors remain in office for
three financial years until the date of the next Shareholders' Meeting called to approve the financial statements and the
proposal for allocation of net income in accordance with Article 2364 of the Italian Civil Code and may be re-elected.

The Shareholders’ Meeting of Intesa Sanpaolo, held on 27 April 2016, determined the number of members of the Board of
Directors as 19 and appointed the Board of Directors for the 2016/2017/2018 financial years, electing as its Chairman Gian
Maria Gros-Pietro and as Deputy Chairperson Paolo Andrea Colombo. The election took place on the basis of slates of
candidates who meet the requirements envisaged by law and by the Articles of Association.

The Board of Directors is responsible for corporate management. The Board may therefore undertake all transactions
considered necessary, useful or appropriate in achieving the corporate purpose, relating to both ordinary and extraordinary
administration. It is assigned guidance and strategic supervision powers for the Company and the duty to resolve on all the
relevant corporate deeds.

As regards the corporate management function, the Board of Directors, without prejudice to its powers that cannot be
delegated, delegates to the Managing Director the necessary and appropriate powers to ensure consistency with day-to-day
management, in implementation of the guidelines decided by the Board. The Board of Directors determined the content, limits
and methods of exercise of the powers granted to the Managing Director and CEO, while also defining the methods whereby
the Board of Directors is to receive information concerning the delegated activity.

The Board of Directors' meeting held on 28 April 2016 appointed Carlo Messina as Managing Director, thereby granting him
the necessary and appropriate powers to ensure consistency with day-to-day management, in implementation of the
guidelines decided by the Board; such powers were subsequently updated in July 2017.

The Managing Director is the Chief Executive Officer and General Manager and supervises the company’s management to
the extent of his/her assigned powers, in compliance with the general planning and strategic guidelines set forth by the Board
of Directors. He/she is responsible for personnel management and determines operational directives.

The Board of Directors has established four internal committees that support it in carrying out its functions:

Nomination Committee: it performs investigative and consulting functions to support the Board of Directors in the process
of appointment or co-option of the Board Directors to ensure that the composition of the body, in terms of size and
professionalism, makes it possible to fulfil its duties efficiently.

— Remuneration Committee: it proposes, advises and enquires on remuneration and incentive matters, thereby supporting
the Board of Directors.

—  Risks Committee: it supports the Board of Directors in the performance of strategic supervision functions regarding risks
and the internal control system, and performs the other duties assigned to it pursuant to the law or by the Board of
Directors.

—  Committee for transactions with related parties of Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. and associated entities of the Group: it carries
out the tasks assigned to it by the rules on transactions with related parties and associated entities; in particular, it issues
its opinion on the transactions that fall within the scope of application of the rules and of the internal regulations.

The Management Control Committee

The Management Control Committee, established as part of the Board of Directors, consists of 5 members of the Board of
Directors elected by the Meeting of 27 April 2016, who appointed as its Chairman Marco Mangiagalli. Al Committee members
meet the independence requirements defined by the Articles of Association.

The Management Control Committee performs the duties assigned by current legislation to the control body of a parent
company of a banking group heading a financial conglomerate and issuing listed shares and also operates as the internal
control and audit committee pursuant to Article 19, paragraph 2, letter c) of Legislative Decree no. 39/2010.

The Management Control Committee oversees, amongst other things:
compliance with legal and regulatory provisions and the Articles of Association and the principles of correct
management;

— the adequacy, efficiency and functionality of the company's organisational structure and administrative-accounting
system and its suitability to correctly represent the company operations;

— the adequacy, efficiency and functionality of the internal control system and risk management process;

—  compliance with the regulations applicable to Intesa Sanpaolo as the Parent Company of a banking group issuing shares
listed on regulated markets.

The Committee may, subject to notice to the Chairman of the Board of Directors, convene the Shareholders' Meeting

whenever deemed necessary for the performance of its duties or in the event that, in the performance of its duties, it should

detect reprehensible facts of significant severity and urgent measures need to be taken.
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The operating structure

Intesa Sanpaolo’s Head Office Departments are organised according to a model that is in line with international best practices
in terms of Corporate Governance.

The Head Office Departments report to the Chief Officers, who report directly to the Managing Director and CEO.

Until 31 December 2017, the Bank had operated with the system set out below.

Chief Operating Officer (COO)

The Chief Operating Officer (COO) is responsible for:

— defining, in accordance with corporate strategies and objectives, the Group’s organisational, IT, logistic, operational and
security guidelines and policies, working with Intesa Sanpaolo Group Services;

— coordinating the implementation of said guidelines and policies by the relevant Group business units, and in other
corporate areas as appropriate;

—  verifying, through the appropriate control methods and in collaboration with Intesa Sanpaolo Group Services, compliance
with the guidelines and policies in the aforementioned areas, ensuring, in accordance with the Business Plan, the
achievement of cost synergies and excellent quality service.

Also reporting to the COO is the Human Resources Department, which is responsible for:

—  contributing, consistently with corporate strategies and objectives, to the definition of guidelines and policies on human
resources of the Group;

— managing internal communication initiatives aimed at encouraging the development of Group values and culture;

—  promoting the professional development of human resources through the planning, implementation and management of
adequate systems and operating processes;

— defining, in accordance with the Business Units and other Departments, the training guidelines and policies for the
Group, monitoring their implementation;

— ensuring, in accordance with the Business Units and other Departments, proper qualitative-quantitative coverage of
required staff to achieve the strategic objectives of the Group;

— defining the employment and trade union relations policies;

— managing the pension aspects and employment-related disputes;

— coordinating and handling administrative, accounting, tax and social security obligations for Group personnel;

—  coordinating the operations of the Human Resources units of the Departments, Business Units and Group companies.

Chief Innovation Officer (CIO)

The Chief Innovation Officer (CIO) was made responsible for:

— searching and analysing innovative solutions on the national and international market, in order to identify development
opportunities for the Group and for customers in both the banking and non-banking sectors;

— defining, in line with business strategies and objectives, the guidelines and policies on Group's innovation, thereby
proposing to the Managing Director and CEO new projects that are in line with the main innovation trends, so that they
can be translated into actions for development and/or new business lines to pursue the achievement of the Group's
growth objectives, measuring the related financial return;

— managing, through the Innovation Agenda, innovation initiatives and the related investments, both at the Bank and
Territorial level, taking on the most appropriate role from time to time to achieve successful results;

— acting, in partnership with the other Group departments, as the driver and enabler of innovation initiatives in the local
areas, building a network of relations with companies, start-ups, incubators, research centres, universities and other local
entities;

— disseminating the culture of innovation within the Group, supporting and managing specific project phases.

Chief Lending Officer (CLO)

The Chief Lending Officer (CLO) is responsible for:

— making material lending decisions, or submitting them to the relevant bodies, and supervising non-performing loans;

—  coordinating the implementation of credit guidelines and strategies by the relevant Bank and Group business units, and
in other corporate areas as appropriate;

— participating, in accordance with the corporate strategies and objectives, in the definition of the Bank’s and Group’s
guidelines in terms of lending strategy and credit risk acceptance and management, directly authorising pertinent
matters;

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is responsible for:
defining, in accordance with corporate strategies and objectives, the guidelines and policies in terms of research,
planning, capital management, credit strategies, management control, and relations with investors and rating agencies;

— facilitating value creation within the Group and ensuring the relative controls, through integrated monitoring of study and
research activities, planning, management control and capital management, and optimisation of the financial and credit
portfolios;

—  coordinating the implementation of guidelines and policies on planning, capital management and management control by
the relevant Group business units, and in other corporate areas as appropriate;

—  verifying the implementation of said guidelines and policies, also through monitoring of the Group’s planning and capital
management process, budget development and management control activities;

— verifying, through the appropriate control methods, compliance with the guidelines and policies defined and ensuring the
pursuit of effectiveness and efficiency in the service level offered;

— ensuring — thanks to the presence within his governance area of the Manager Responsible for Preparing the Company’s
Financial Reports pursuant to the provisions of article 154-bis of the Consolidated Law on Finance (TUF) — the accurate
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and timely presentation of income statement and balance sheet results of the Bank and of the entire Group, as well as
compliance with the relative accounting and supervisory obligations, performing quality control of the processes
governing administrative and financial reporting disclosures to the market, pursuant to the appropriate regulations.
The CFO governance area also includes the Manager responsible for preparing the Company’s financial reports, who
ensures the accurate and timely presentation of income statement and balance sheet results of the Bank and of the entire
Group, as well as compliance with the relative accounting and supervisory obligations, performing quality control of the
processes governing administrative and financial reporting disclosures to the market, pursuant to the appropriate regulations;

Chief Compliance Officer (CCO);

The Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) is responsible for:

— supervising the identification and monitoring of any misalignment of current regulations, and arranging consulting,
support and awareness-rising of corporate functions as regards regulations;

— ensuring the monitoring of compliance risk in terms of anti-money laundering, combating the financing of terrorism and
embargo management.

Chief Risk Officer (CRO)

The Chief Risk Officer (CRO) is responsible for:
defining, in accordance with corporate strategies and objectives, guidelines and policies on risk management,
compliance and legal matters;

—  coordinating the implementation of guidelines and policies on risk management by the relevant Group business units,
and in other corporate areas as appropriate;

— guaranteeing the measurement and control of Group exposure to the various types of risk, also verifying the
implementation of guidelines and policies as above;

— guaranteeing the credit quality monitoring and the observance of credit guidelines and strategies through the constant
monitoring of risk, and submitting proposals on the structure of delegated powers of the Corporate Bodies.

Chief Governance Officer (CGO)

The Chief Governance Officer (CGO) is responsible for:

— ensuring assistance and advice to the corporate bodies of the Parent Company and to Top Management in terms of
proper implementation of corporate law and for the supervisory regulatory profiles at Group level;

—  providing assistance in all corporate transactions involving the Parent Company and Group companies;

— handling the obligations connected to the corporate governance of all Group companies, Board of Directors’ operations
and the Shareholders’ Meeting;

— ensuring that the Group’s interests are safeguarded in all specifically assigned subsidiaries;

The areas of responsibility described above do not include:

—  The Internal Auditing Head Office Department, which reports directly to the Board of Directors and is responsible for:

0 ensuring constant and independent auditing of the regular performance of Bank operations and processes for the
purpose of preventing or identifying any anomalous or risky conduct or situation, assessing the overall operations of
the internal control system and its adequacy in guaranteeing the effectiveness and efficiency of company processes,
safeguarding asset value and loss protection, and the reliability and completeness of accounting and management
reports, and the compliance of transactions with corporate governance policies and with internal and external
regulations;

o providing consultancy to the Bank’s and the Group’s departments, also through participation in projects, for the
purpose of adding value and improving effectiveness of control, risk management and governance processes of the
organisation;

0 ensuring supervision of the internal control systems of the Group’s subsidiaries, also by exercising governance of,
and guidance to, the respective internal audit functions;

0 supporting corporate governance and ensuring that Top Management, the Corporate Bodies and the competent
Authorities (Bank of Italy, Consob, etc.) promptly and systematically receive information on the status of the control
system and on the outcome of activities performed.

— The International and Regulatory Affairs Head Office Department, which reports to the Managing Director and CEO is

responsible for:

O managing relations with national and international regulators;

o overseeing and developing relations with the main stakeholders at the international level;

o0 managing the Group’s institutional relations, promoting and directing relations with institutional bodies, associations
and national and international trade associations;

o representing the Group's position in institutional venues as regards policies for economic and social growth
and development.

— The External Relations Head Office Department, which reports to the Managing Director and CEO and the Board of

Directors, is responsible for:

0 managing and coordinating the Group’s external communications, in order to promote competitiveness, quality and
innovation with respect to the targets of the various business lines, uphold the Group’s reputation with media and
with the financial community and develop its image as perceived by opinion makers and lItalian and foreign public
opinion;

o spreading the ethical, social and cultural values that form part of the Group’s identity;

handling relations with the press and with media in general;
o monitoring the perception of the group and the effectiveness of external communications.

(o]
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It is noted that at the end of 2017, within the scope of the activities in preparation for the new Business Plan, the

organisational structure described above was changed by way of:

— enhancement of the digital and innovation area, in order to manage the current and future technology challenges
more effectively;

—  greater focus of responsibilities and functional skills, also through the consolidation of highly contiguous structures;

— getting the Human Resources function to report more directly to the CEO, an enabling factor for the achievement of the
objectives of the new Business Plan and further evidence of the attention paid to the people, which has always been a
hallmark of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group;

— the further strengthening of the central monitoring dedicated to cost management.

The foregoing was also made possible by setting up three new areas of responsibility, which gradually became operational as
from 1 January 2018:

Chief IT, Digital and Innovation Officer

The Chief IT, Digital and Innovation Officer, who is tasked with monitoring the high complexity of Information Technology
Systems, Operations and Processes, with a view to constant innovation of the technology solutions, in a sophisticated
dimension in line with the ongoing digital “revolution”.

Chief Cost Management Officer
The Chief Cost Management Officer, dedicated to cost management in general and the monitoring of the Procurement and
Real Estate functions.

Chief Institutional Affairs and External Communication Officer,

The Chief Institutional Affairs and External Communication Officer is tasked with realising objective synergies by promoting
the Bank’s identity and image and ensuring, through a unified approach to common activities, management efficiency in the
numerous communication and relational initiatives that the Group undertakes in respect of external entities and stakeholders.
This area comprises the International and Regulatory Affairs Head Office Department and the External Relations
Head Office Department.

The Strategic Support Head Office Department is also established and reports directly to the Managing Director and CEO.
This department covers a number of strategic activities relating to governance/management control such as the activities of
the Steering Committee, the monitoring of specific strategic initiatives and the management of certain events addressed to the
financial community.

Remuneration policies

The issue of remuneration of listed companies and financial intermediaries has been gaining growing attention by
international bodies and regulators, aiming to guide issuers and intermediaries towards the adoption of remuneration systems
that are consistent with the principles - intensified following the economic and financial crisis - governing the process for
drawing up and approving the remuneration policies, their remuneration structure and their transparency.

In particular, according to these principles, remuneration systems must take into account current and future risks and the level
of capitalisation of each intermediary, and guarantee remuneration based on results actually achieved.

In accordance with European Community regulations and with effect from 2011, the Italian Authorities defined a set of key
rules on these matters.

The Bank of Italy, with regulation dated 30 March 2011, defined balanced rules for banks’ remuneration policies, systems and
practices with reference to their design and control, to compensation structures and disclosure obligations. The remuneration
systems and practices are included among the information to be disclosed under Pillar 3, pursuant to Circular no. 285 of
17 December 2013.

Moreover, ISVAP (now IVASS), with regulation no. 39 of 9 June 2011, dictated the principles regarding the decision-making
processes, structure and disclosure obligations of the remuneration policies of insurance companies.

In its resolution no. 18049 of 23 December 2011, Consob regulated implementation of the provisions contained in Article
123-ter of the Consolidated Law on Finance, which require issuers to draw up and publicly disclose a report on remuneration.
Important updates have been introduced on self-governance level as well. After being initially modified (March 2010) in the
remuneration part, the Corporate Governance Code has been subject to a complete review that resulted in a new edition
published on December 2011.

In fact, the Bank of Italy subsequently revisited the topic of remuneration policies with two communications dated 2 March
2012 and 13 March 2013, highlighting in general the opportunity for banks to define a strategy that is consistent with the
objective of preserving, with a view to the future, the balance of the company's position, as well as maintaining the conditions
of capital adequacy and prudent management of liquidity risk.

In 2014, following a proposal from the EBA, the European Union arranged the issue of new Regulatory Technical Standards
(RTS) relating to suitable qualitative and quantitative criteria for the identification of categories of personnel whose
professional activities have a material impact on the institution’s risk profile (so-called “Risk Takers”).

Lastly, in application of the Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 (CRD 1V),
the Bank of Italy issued the new Supervisory Provisions on remuneration, laid down in Circular 285/2013.

Finally, in December 2015, the EBA, based on the forecasts contained in CRD IV, published the update of the "Guidelines on
sound remuneration policies", drawn up by its predecessor CEBS, defining in detail the rules relating to the remuneration
structure, remuneration policies and the related governance and implementation processes. The Bank of Italy stated its
intention to adapt the aforesaid Guidelines and issue the ensuing new Provisions on remuneration.

Consequently, based on the provisions of the aforementioned Article 123-ter of the Consolidated Law on Finance, a specific
Report on Remuneration is drawn up and published on an annual basis, which also takes into account the obligations of
disclosure to the Shareholders' Meeting, in accordance with the supervisory provisions issued by the Bank of Italy.
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Moreover, Intesa Sanpaolo has always extensively focused its attention on remuneration matters, on relative regulation
compliance and on maximum transparency to the market.

Procedures for adoption and implementation of the remuneration policies

The role of corporate bodies

The Shareholders’ Meeting

The Articles of Association require the Shareholders’ Meeting to approve the Board Directors' and personnel's remuneration
policies, as well as the plans based on financial instruments.

In this context, it shall approve the criteria for determining the severance payments to be granted in the event of early
termination of the employment agreement or early termination of office, including the limits set for such payments as provided
by the regulations currently in force and shall also determine, with the qualified majority threshold defined by the supervisory
regulations in force, a ratio between the variable and fixed individual remuneration of the personnel above the ratio of 1:1, but
in any case not exceeding the maximum established by the same regulations.

The Shareholders’ Meeting determines the remuneration for the members of the Board of Directors and the Management
Control Committee and the remuneration for the offices of Chairman and Deputy Chairperson of the Board of Directors and
Chairman of the Management Control Committee.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors may determine, in addition to the fixed remuneration determined by the Shareholders' Meeting, the
remuneration of the Board Directors to whom the Board itself assigns further special duties in compliance with the Articles of
Association, including the office of Managing Director and General Manager.

The Board of Directors is tasked with determining the remuneration due to the Manager responsible for preparing the
Company’s financial reports pursuant to Article 154 bis of Legislative Decree no. 58 of 24 February 1998, as well as of all
other Top Risk Takers and the higher-level personnel from the corporate control functions, in accordance with the provisions
of the legislation currently in force.

Finally, the Board of Directors is responsible for the drafting of the remuneration and incentive policy to be submitted to the
Shareholders' Meeting and the definition of the remuneration and incentive systems for persons for whom the supervisory
regulations require that this task be performed by the body with strategic supervision functions, including the identification of
parameters used to evaluate performance objectives and the definition of the variable remuneration deriving from the
application of said systems.

The Human Resources Head Office Department and the Corporate Control Functions
As mentioned above, the Shareholders’ Meeting is responsible for approving remuneration policies for employees upon
proposal of the Board of Directors and with the involvement of the Remuneration Committee.
The Human Resources Head Office Department is responsible for drawing up the aforementioned remuneration policies, that
undergo the relative approval procedure, involving the following, to the extent of their responsibilities, as envisaged by the
Regulations:
- the Chief Risk Officer Governance Area, in order to ensure consistency of the remuneration policies and resulting
incentive systems with the Group’s Risk Appetite Framework (RAF);
- the Planning and Active Value Management Head Office Departments and the Budget and Control Head Office
Department in order to ensure consistency of the remuneration policies and resultant incentive systems with:
o the strategic short-and medium-long term objectives of the Companies and of the Group;
o the level of capitalisation and liquidity of the Companies and of the Group;
- the Chief Compliance Officer, in order to verify compliance of the remuneration policies and resultant incentive systems
with rules, regulations, codes of ethics and standards of conduct applicable to the Group.
On an annual basis, the Internal Auditing Head Office Department, in accordance with the guidelines of the Supervisory
Authority, verifies compliance of the remuneration implementation procedures with the relevant policies, informing the Board
of Directors and the Shareholders' Meeting on the results of the verifications conducted.

Remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors

Remuneration of Board Directors

The Bank’s Articles of Association envisage that the members of the Board of Directors be entitled, in addition to the
reimbursement of expenses incurred due to their office, to a fixed remuneration for the services rendered, which is
determined for the entire period of their office by the Shareholders’ Meeting at the time of their appointment. Upon
appointment, the Shareholders’ Meeting also determines the supplementary remuneration of the offices of Chairman and
Deputy Chairperson of the Board of Directors.

An insurance policy for civil liability is signed in favour of the members of the Board of Directors according to the terms
submitted to the Shareholders’ Meeting.
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Remuneration of the Managing Director and CEO

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Managing Director also acts as the General Manager of Intesa Sanpaolo.

The Managing Director and General Manager is entitled to receive a fixed and variable remuneration determined by the Board
of Directors in line with the remuneration policies approved by the Shareholders' Meeting.

The Board of Directors, upon the proposal of the Remuneration Committee, determined the remuneration of the Managing
Director. This amount is in addition to the amount due as a Board Director. The Managing Director, in his/her capacity as
General Manager, is entitled to receive the gross annual remuneration, the incentive system and the supplementary pension
scheme, and to receive the additional fringe benefits for the position determined by the Board of Directors in accordance with
the Remuneration and Incentive Scheme Policies for employees.

Remuneration for participation in the Management Control Committee

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Shareholders' Meeting has the duty to determine, at the time of the appointment of
the Management Control Committee and for the entire term of office, specific remuneration for the Board Directors of said
Committee, consisting of an equal amount for each Member, but with a special addition for the Chairman.

Remuneration for participation in the other Board Committees

In terms of the activities that the Board Directors are called upon to carry out as members of the Committees established
within the Board, the Board of Directors, pursuant to the Articles of Association, determines an additional fixed remuneration
for these Members, in line with the remuneration policies approved by the Shareholders' Meeting. The Board of Directors
supplemented the remuneration for the position of Board Director with an attendance fee in relation to the actual participation
of the members in the activities of the Committees, with a further annual gross fixed remuneration for the Chairmen of such
Committees.

Remuneration policy for employees and staff not bound by an employment agreement

The remuneration policies of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group are based on the following principles:

a) alignment of the conduct of management and employees with the interests of shareholders, the medium and long-term
strategies and the company objectives, as part of the set of rules aimed at accurate monitoring of the current and future
corporate risks and maintenance of an adequate level of liquidity and capitalisation;

b) merit, to guarantee better matching with actual performance and the managerial quality identified, through:

— remuneration flexibility via the variable component linked to the results achieved;

— focus on key staff members demonstrating high management quality, to whom competitive salary brackets,
compared with the reference market, are reserved;

— differentiation of the best performances to which variable bonus levels significantly in excess of the average are to
be assigned

c) equity, in order to promote proper conduct and standardise treatment in terms of remuneration, through:

— correlation of a person’s fixed salary to the weight of the role held;
— differentiation of salary brackets and the ratio of the variable component to the total remuneration according to
professional categories;

d) external competitiveness of total annual remuneration with respect to the levels in the large European banking groups,
obtained through periodic specialist surveys, in order to attract and retain the best management and professional
resources on the market;

e) sustainability, to limit expense deriving from application of the policy to values compatible with medium- and long-term
strategies and annual targets, by means of:

— mechanisms to adjust allocations to the overall incentive provisions according to the company’s profitability and the
results achieved, while also taking account of the reference peer;

— selective reviews of fixed remuneration;

— use of objective parameters when reviewing pay;

— determination of appropriate caps regarding both total incentives and the amount of individual bonuses;

f) compliance with the international, European and national legal and regulatory provisions and the consequent focus on
Key Managers, Risk Takers and Corporate Control Functions.

Employee remuneration is broken down into the following:
a) fixed component;
b) variable component.

Fixed remuneration

The fixed component is defined based on the contractual agreement, the role held, the responsibilities assigned, and the

specific experience and expertise acquired by the employee.

In full compliance with the provisions of law, the fixed component includes:

— allowances tied to the role held, envisaged for the Risk Takers belonging to the Corporate Control Functions and for the
heads of commercial roles within the scope of the Banca dei Territori local network;

— allowances paid to expatriate personnel in order to cover for any differences in cost, quality of life and/or remuneration
levels of the target reference market;

— allowances and/or fees deriving from offices held in corporate bodies, provided that these are not reversed to the
companies to which they belong;

— any benefits designed to increase employee motivation and loyalty of the resources and assigned not on a discretionary
basis.

The benefits paid to Group employees may be of a contractual nature (e.g., supplementary pension, health benefits, etc.) or

the result of remuneration policy decisions (e.g., company car) and, therefore, have different treatment with respect to

different categories of personnel.
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Variable remuneration

The variable component is linked to employee's performance and aligned to the results actually achieved and the risks

prudentially assumed, and consists of:

— short-term variable component, paid through the incentive system;

— variable result bonus;

— long-term variable component, based on certificates associated with Intesa Sanpaolo shares, introduced in 2014 at the
time of launch of the 2014-2017 Business Plan through the Leveraged Employee Co-Investment Plans (“LECOIP Plans”);

— any stability, non-competition, one-off retention and similar agreements.

The distinction of the variable remuneration in a short-term and a long-term component allows both to enhance the

performance targets on the basis of an annual accrual period and to consider the long-term strategic targets defined in the

Business Plan.

Remuneration may not be paid in forms, instruments or methods aimed at avoiding provisions of law.

In accordance with the regulatory guidelines, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group traditionally adopts a pay mix that is appropriately

balanced between the aforementioned components, in order to:

— allow flexible management of labour costs, as the variable portion may significantly decline, even down to zero, depending
on the performance actually achieved during the year in question;

— discourage behaviour focused on the achievement of short-term results, particularly if these involve taking on greater risk.

In order to achieve the above objectives, it is standard Group practice to establish ex ante limitations in terms of balanced

maximums for variable remuneration, through the definition of specific caps on the increase of bonuses in relation to any

over-performance.

The aforesaid cap to the variable remuneration was determined:

— -at 100% of fixed remuneration for roles not included amongst Corporate Control Functions, save as otherwise specified
in paragraph 4.5.2;

— -at 33% of fixed remuneration for roles included amongst Corporate Control Functions.

The calculation of the variable remuneration takes into account both the short-term component relating to the Incentive

System and the long-term component assigned through the LECOIP Plans. The latter have an impact on the pro-rata variable

remuneration for the entire accrual period.

The maximum limit established by the general criteria (1:1) was increased to 2:1, as provided by CRD IV, permitted by the

Bank of Italy, and approved by the 2017 Shareholders’ Meeting, for Risk Takers not included amongst Corporate Control

Functions and for specific and limited professional sectors and business segments (investment banking, asset management,

private banking, treasury). However, in terms of cap compliance between fixed and variable remuneration (1:1), appropriate

pay mix differentiations were identified with reference to the various professional or business segments, in line with the results
obtained by means of specific benchmark analyses related to the leading European global banks that also ensure compliance
with the internal equity principle, given the use of common benchmarks for each cluster.

The adequacy of the amounts is further verified in comparison to market practices, with ongoing participation in national and

international remuneration surveys; for management roles and other particular business positions, the comparison is based

on specific peer groups, in order to evaluate the competitive alignment with the most appropriate reference market.

In relation to market data, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group aims to align the overall remuneration with median values,

notwithstanding the possibility to make the appropriate differentiations for particularly critical positions and/or resources with

high management skills.

The correlation between remuneration, risk and performance is ensured for all employees through:

— the use of a balanced pay mix, as the fixed component is sufficiently high to allow the variable portion, which is never
guaranteed, to decline significantly, even down to zero, upon occurrence of the conditions specified below;

— the application of the principle of selectivity, which differentiates the best performances and, in return, assigns significantly
higher-than-average bonuses;

— the introduction, on the basis of the “financial sustainability principle", of a structured mechanism for funding the variable
component (bonus pool), which correlates the amount to be allocated to incentives for all company segments to the
performance of a Group parameter, currently identified as Gross Income;

— the use of a solidarity mechanism between Group and Division/Business Unit results, according to which the amount of
total bonuses paid to the employees of each Business Unit depends in part on the Group’s overall performance (reflected
in the size of the bonus pool) and in part on the performance of the specific Organisational Unit, measured in terms of the
degree of expected contribution to the Group’s Gross Income;

— the application of the “guided discretion principle", which translates into the assignment to the CEO of a limited part of the
Group's bonus pool (10%), eligible for allocation once the threshold has been reached, to departments that have
exceeded their access thresholds, as further recognition for the quality and level of performance achieved;

— the observance of the access conditions provided for in international and national regulations, namely:

o at Group level, the achievement of capital adequacy and liquidity levels and, in more general terms, compliance with
the limits envisaged in its own Risk Appetite Framework (RAF);

o at individual level, the propriety of conduct (absence of disciplinary measures resulting in one or more days of
suspension);

— the measurement of performance from multiple perspectives, both quantitative (profitability, growth, productivity, cost of
risk/sustainability) and qualitative (strategic actions or projects and managerial qualities), as well as extending to different
scopes (Group/Department/Individual). The following are some examples of indicators for performance drivers:

o Profitability: Operating income/Risk Weighted Assets, Portfolio Mix (assets under management vs. assets under
administration), Revenues/Assets;

o0 Revenue development: Growth: Operating income, Asset management, Net inflows (private banking);

o Productivity: Cost/Income, Optimisation of response times in relation to credit granting, Operating costs, Costs/Asset
under Management;

o Cost of risk/Sustainability: NPL Ratio, Concentration Risk, Balance sheet quality and active risks profile; Maintaining
Liquidity Coverage Ratio target levels;

— the use of an additional mechanism that measures the residual risk level of each business unit (Q-Factor) and that acts as
a possible de-multiplier of the bonus achieved in the event of failure to reach the target.
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The assignment of guaranteed bonuses is not envisaged, with the sole exception of limited cases of recently hired

employees, without prejudice to thorough assessment and analysis of market practice, solely for the first year.

It is expressly prohibited for individual employees to undertake personal hedging or insurance strategies on the remuneration

or other aspects that may alter or undermine the effects of the alignment with company risk inherent in the remuneration

mechanisms described. Remuneration may not be paid in forms, instruments or methods aimed at avoiding provisions of law.

The termination of the employment agreement involving personnel with state pension or seniority pension rights and/or

A.G.O. pension treatment does not result in loss of the right to payment of the entitled amounts, even deferred.

In all other cases, the Bank has the right to award any amounts, depending on the specific situations, upon termination of the

employment agreement, also through consensual retrenchment agreements providing termination payments.

In any case, in compliance with the principles contained in the Group's Code of Ethics, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group does not

enter into individual agreements with its managers and employees in advance (i.e. prior to termination of the employment

agreement) that govern compensation to be granted in the event of early termination of the employment agreement.

In recent years, the Bank has signed specific agreements with the trade unions with regard to the “solidarity fund”, applied to

employees of all levels, including executives, which also govern the treatment of sums payable to personnel upon termination

of the employment agreement in the event of extraordinary transactions and/or company reorganisations.

According to the Supervisory Provisions on remuneration, the severance payment agreed in view of or upon early termination

of the employment agreement or early termination of office for the amount exceeding the provisions of the National Collective

Bargaining Agreement concerning payments related to the indemnity for failed notice constitutes the so-called golden

parachutes, including any compensation paid according to the non-competition agreement.

In the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, the principles for the definition of these payments - inspired to both the correlation between

severance pay and ongoing performance criteria and the control of potential litigations — are:

— regulatory capital adequacy requirements maintenance;

— no reward for failure;

— unobjectability of individual behaviour (consistency with compliance breaches’ criteria);

— alignment with international and domestic best practices.

Pursuant to these criteria and the Supervisory Provisions on remuneration, when negotiating this kind of remunerations, the

Group defined that those payments:

— are equal, as a maximum amount, to 24 months of fixed salary, and is determined in a different manner depending on
each cluster, in order to take into due consideration the overall evaluation of the work of the person and having particular
regard to the levels of capitalization, liquidity and profitability of the Group and the presence or absence of individual
sanctions imposed by the Supervisory Authority;

— are paid according to the methods set for short-term variable remuneration, for each cluster, except for the payment
related to the indemnity for failed notice.
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Social and environmental responsibility

In 2017, in what is still a challenging macroeconomic context, Intesa Sanpaolo has confirmed its commitment to the three
dimensions of sustainability - social, environmental and governance - in line with its leading role in Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR).

The Group’s areas of social and environmental responsibility are overseen by the CSR Sub-department which reports -
through the Chief Governance Officer - to the Managing Director and CEO and the Board of Directors, and collaborates with a
network of Delegates that work in the various Group entities in Italy and abroad. In addition, specific CSR tasks are allocated
to the Risks Committee which, established within the Board of Directors, helps the Board assess and examine CSR issues.
The reference guidelines as regards the Group’s founding values are found in the Code of Ethics, which outlines the
principles of conduct towards all internal and external parties and also defines the implementation and verification
mechanisms used by the Governance bodies to ensure that the values are firmly embedded in the life of the Bank.
An independent body performs an assessment of the level of implementation of the principles of the Code in accordance with
the 1ISO 26000 Guidelines, the international standard for the integration of social responsibility in practice and within business
organisations. The principles and commitments expressed in the Code are also strengthened by the Group’s participation in a
number of international initiatives that promote dialogue between companies, international organisations and civil society and
pursue respect for the environment and human rights. These initiatives include the UN Global Compact, the United Nations
Environment Programme Finance Initiative (UNEP FI) and the Equator Principles.

The 2017 results include the implementation of the 2014-2017 Business Plan and solid value creation for all stakeholders,
reflecting the strengths of the Intesa Sanpaolo business model which combines the solid generation of revenues and high
efficiency with capital soundness and a low risk profile. Intesa Sanpaolo has created shared value by focusing on innovation,
on the development of new products and services and on people’s commitment to excellence, strengthening the awareness
that sustainable business growth can foster long-term development reducing both social risks (increase in inequalities and
situations of vulnerability) and environmental risks (with particular attention to climate change).

As regards social aspects, Intesa Sanpaolo has confirmed its position as a real economy Bank, by disbursing approximately
63 billion euro in new long- to medium-term loans during 2017 (around 50 billion euro in Italy, 43 billion euro of which to
households and SMEs). Specific attention was paid to financial inclusion, vulnerable groups of customers, households and
businesses affected by the financial crisis or earthquakes and environmental disasters in ltaly, with the disbursement of
around 4.5 billion euro in loans with a high social impact. With regard to Italian businesses, over 73,000 companies were
brought back to performing loan positions during the 2014-2017 period, around 21,000 of which over the last year. As regards
retail customers, initiatives continued for the renegotiation of mortgages (approximately 41,000 in 2017) or the suspension of
instalments (over 3,400 in 2017). Relations with customers are built on dialogue, transparency and excellent quality of service
and the offer of intelligent technology, through a multi-channel platform and digitisation and paperless policies. Intesa
Sanpaolo is also committed to offering its customers sustainable investment products, integrating financial criteria with
environmental and social considerations. Through Eurizon, the Group adheres to the PRI - Principles for Responsible
Investments - and manages SRI (Socially Responsible Investment) funds for around 4 billion euro with three SRI funds
launched in 2017. In 2017, around 300 million euro was granted to support social enterprises.

Close attention was also focused on supporting communities with numerous social and cultural initiatives and works and an
overall financial contribution of around 50 million euro. In particular, the Intesa Sanpaolo Charity Fund disbursed
approximately 9.5 million euro in 2017 to support over 900 projects carried out by non-profit bodies, with particular focus on
the vulnerable segments of society. Specific initiatives were dedicated to children including the Intesa Sanpaolo Educational
Programme for long-term inpatients, which offers créche services for children admitted to the oncology wards of some top-
level children’s hospitals.

In the environmental sphere, Intesa Sanpaolo has continued its efforts to contain its CO, emissions, which it has reduced by
over 53% since 2008, despite the increase recorded during the year largely due to the updating of the emission factors. The
new Environmental Sustainability Plan approved in 2017 set the CO, emissions reduction goal for the 2012-2022 period at
37%. In 2017, Intesa Sanpaolo also provided around 1.3 billion euro of financial support to the renewable energy sector and
to energy efficiency initiatives and, in June 2017, was the first Italian bank to issue a Green Bond, for an overall amount of
500 million euro. Furthermore, the focus on environmental sustainability is also demonstrated by the development of the
Circular Economy project thanks to the partnership with the Ellen MacArthur Foundation.

These results were made possible by the people who work for Intesa Sanpaolo; helping those people develop and
strengthening their sense of belonging represent the key forms of leverage for achieving the Group’s strategic objectives.
Specific attention was focused on protecting jobs, pursuing challenging goals with the reassignment of the excess production
capacity of 4,500 people over the 2014-2017 period. In addition, employee share ownership schemes have been introduced,
making it possible to share the value created over time, and an integrated welfare system has been established for
employees and their families, with an offer of services aimed at improving their work-life balance, ranging from créches to
flexible working time, involving over 8,200 employees at the end of 2017. Another stimulus is represented by continuous
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training focused on strategic company projects, with 800,000 training days provided in 2017 (4.6 million over the 2014-2017
period).

Intesa Sanpaolo’s social and environmental commitment was rewarded with the company’s inclusion in numerous
sustainability indexes, including the Dow Jones Sustainability Index (World and Europe) and the CDP Climate A List 2017.
Lastly, Intesa Sanpaolo is the only Italian company to feature on the Corporate Knights ranking of the world’s 100 most
sustainable companies.

The following paragraph provides information on the economic value generated by the Group in 2017.

Social and environmental aspects are covered in depth in the Consolidated Non-financial Statement drafted in accordance
with Italian Legislative Decree 254/2016, a separate report from the Report on operations and available on the Group’s
website.

Economic value generated and distributed
The economic value generated is calculated in accordance with ABI instructions and consistent with international reference
standards. The calculation is made by reclassifying consolidated income statement items recorded in the financial statements,
as required under Bank of ltaly Circular 262. The economic value generated, which in 2017 was 21 billion euro (including
government contributions to offset the impact of the acquisition of the operations of the former Venetian banks on capital
ratios), came from net income from financial and insurance business — which therefore takes into account the impairment
losses on loans and financial assets available for sale — plus the realised gains and losses on investments in associates and
companies subject to joint control, investments and discontinued operations, and other operating income. The amount of the
economic value generated expresses the value of the wealth produced, most of which distributed among the stakeholders with
which the Group interacts in various ways on a day-to-day basis. In particular:

— employees and other staff benefited from over 37% of the economic value generated, for a total of 7.8 billion euro. In
addition to staff pay, the total also includes payments to the network of financial advisors;

— suppliers received approximately 13% of the economic value generated, for a total of 2.7 billion euro in payment for goods
and services;

— the Government, Organisations and Institutions recorded a total flow of funds of 1.9 billion euro, around 9% of the
economic value generated, over 917 million euro of which referring to taxes on income from continuing operations, over
727 million euro to indirect taxes and duties, and 290 million euro to levies and other charges concerning the banking
industry, consisting of ordinary and extraordinary contributions to resolution and guarantee funds. There were also
numerous social and cultural initiatives and other actions taken to support the charity funds and issue disbursements by
way of social and cultural contributions.

— approximately 17% of the economic value generated was allocated to Shareholders and minority interests, largely in terms
of the proposed dividend, for a total of 3.6 billion euro.

The remaining amount, about 4.9 billion euro, was withheld by the corporate system. The considerable size of this amount
was due to the 3.5-billion-euro government contribution to offset the impact of the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities,
and certain legal relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca, which was allocated to the extraordinary
reserve. The remaining 1.4 billion euro mainly comprises deferred tax assets and liabilities, adjustments, and provisions for
risks and charges. Self-financing is considered an investment that other stakeholder categories make each year to maintain
efficiency and allow development of the Bank as a whole.

. millions
Economic value
of euro ECONOMIC VALUE IN 2017
Economic value generated 21,003 100.0%
Economic value distributed 16,082 76.6% 37.3% Employees and collaborators

17.3% Shareholders, Holders of equity

Shareholders, Holders of equity instruments and :
quity | Y instruments and Third

Third -3,643 17.3%

Employees and collaborators -7,825 37.3% | _12.7% Suppliers

Suppliers -2,667 12.7% ‘ 9.3% Government, Organisations
Government, Organisations and Institutions, and Institutions, Community
Community -1,947 9.3%

23.4% ECONOMIC VALUE RETAINED
Economic value retained 4,921 23.4%
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Stock price performance

In 2017, in a gradual context of reduction of risk aversion by the investors, driven by the consolidation of world economic
growth, the upward revisions of the growth forecasts for the Eurozone and disappearance of the political risk following the
elections in France and the Netherlands, the Euro banking index recorded progress of 10.9%, reporting an over-performance
of 4.4% compared to the Eurostoxx 50 index.

In this context, the Italian banking industry benefited from a significant re-rating of the multiples, which caused the Italian
banking index to close 2017 up by 14.9%, outperforming the FTSE MIB index by 1.3% and the European banking index
by 4%.

In 2017, the performance of Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares mirrored the performance of the banking sector indices, with a
fall at the start of the year, through to the end of February, followed by a rise, interrupted by a downturn in May, through to the
end of the third quarter, when the maximum was reached. The price then declined through to the end of the year, with a rise
of 14.2% recorded at the end of December compared to the end of 2016. The price of Intesa Sanpaolo savings shares
increased by 19.1% at the end of 2017 compared to the end of 2016. The discount with respect to ordinary shares decreased
to 4% at the end 2017 from 8% at the end of 2016.

Intesa Sanpaolo's capitalisation rose to 46.4 billion euro at the end of December 2017, from 40.6 billion euro at the end
of 2016.

Intesa Sanpaolo ordinary shares quotation and banking index
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Earnings per share

Intesa Sanpaolo’s share capital consists of ordinary and savings shares with different rights for the allocation of net income,
which have been taken into account for the determination of the portion of net income attributable to each category of share.
Net income attributable to ordinary shares and savings shares was determined considering the most recent dividends
proposed for each type of share and then allocating the residual portion of net income, in the hypothetical assumption of its
total distribution, in equal weight to all outstanding shares.

The Earnings Per Share (EPS) indicator is presented both in the "basic" and in the “diluted” formula: basic EPS is calculated
by dividing income theoretically attributable to holders of different categories of shares by the weighted average number of the
shares outstanding; diluted EPS takes into account the effect of any future issues of ordinary shares.
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31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Ordinary Savings Ordinary Savings

shares shares shares shares

Weighted average number of shares 15,837,253,005 932,490,561 15,841,479,283 932,490,561
Income attributable to the various categories of shares

(millions of euro) 6,900 416 2,929 182

Basic EPS (euro) 0.44 0.45 0.18 0.20

Diluted EPS (euro) 0.44 0.45 0.18 0.20

Price/book value

The index reflects the value attributed by the market to the share capital of a listed company, and hence indirectly to the
company’s overall assets. The index, while measuring the confidence which financial analysts and the financial community
have in the company’s income prospects and capital strength, is affected significantly by the external factors that influence
stock prices. Also for the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, the performance of the index — indicated in relation to both average figures
and year-end figures for 2017 — was impacted significantly by the dynamics of the market.

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Market capitalisation 46,412 44,820 37,152 51,903 38,096 24,026
Group’s shareholders’ equity 56,205 52,558 48,344 46,230 44,599 46,918
Price / book value 0.83 0.85 0.77 1.12 0.85 0.51

Pay-out ratio
The index expresses the ratio between net income and the portion paid out as dividends.
Also in 2017, it was decided to submit a proposal to the Shareholders’ Meeting, in addition to the allocation from the net
income for the year, for the distribution of part of the share premium reserve for a total of 2,065 million euro, as described in
detail in the chapter Proposals to the Shareholders’ Meeting of the Intesa Sanpaolo financial statements.

(millions of euro)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Net income 7,316 3,111 2,739 1,251 -4,550
Dividends "’ 3,419 2,999 2,361 1,185 822
Pay-out ratio 47% 96% 86% 95% n.s.

O For 2017 and 2016, the amounts were partially assigned from reserves.

For 2013 when a net loss was recorded, the amounts were assigned from reserves.

Dividend yield
This indicator measures percentage return on the share, calculated as the ratio between dividends for the year and market
price in the reference year. This return, determined on the basis of average annual stock prices, maintained sustainable levels

over time, also in view of financial market trends.
(in euro)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Ordinary share
Dividend per share 0.203 0.178 0.140 0.070 0.050
Average stock price 2.678 2.220 3.109 2.288 1.476
Dividend yield 7.58% 8.02% 4.50% 3.06% 3.39%
Savings share
Dividend per share 0.214 0.189 0.151 0.081 0.050
Average stock price 2.517 2.084 2.784 1.973 1.229
Dividend yield 8.50% 9.07% 5.42% 4.11% 4.07%
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Rating

On 20 January 2017, DBRS downgraded Intesa Sanpaolo’s rating following the same action on ltaly’s rating: the rating on
senior debt was lowered to “BBB (high)” with stable outlook, while the short-term rating of R-1 (low) with stable trend was
confirmed.

On 20 February, Fitch confirmed Intesa Sanpaolo’s long- and short-term ratings at “BBB+/F2”, with a negative outlook. The
agency also confirmed its viability rating at “bbb+”. This action was taken as part of the periodic review of the ratings.

On 27 April, Fitch downgraded ISP’s rating to “BBB” with stable outlook following the same action on Italy’s rating on 21 April.
The short-term rating was confirmed at “F-2”.

Following the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities and certain legal relationships of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and
Veneto Banca, the rating agencies Fitch, S&P and DBRS confirmed Intesa Sanpaolo’s ratings and outlook: on 27 June, Fitch
and S&P confirmed the ratings at “BBB/stable/F2” and “BBB-/stable/A3” respectively; on 29 June, DBRS confirmed the ratings
“BBB(high)/R-1(low)” with stable trend.

On 31 October, S&P improved ISP rating to “BBB/stable/A-2”. This action followed the similar upgrade of the Italy rating of
27/10/2017.

On 15 December, Fitch confirmed the long- and short-term ratings at “BBB/F2”, with a stable outlook. The agency also
confirmed its viability rating at “bbb”. This action was taken as part of the periodic review of the ratings.

RATING AGENCY
DBRS Fitch Moody's S&P Global
Short-term debt R-1 (low) " F2 P-2 A2
Long-term senior debt BBB (high) BBB Baal®@ BBB
Outlook / Trend Stable Stable Stable Stable
Viability - bbb - -

) Stable trend

@ Senior debt rating. The rating on deposits is "A3" with negative outlook.
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Other information

With regard to information to be included in the annual report as required by specific provisions note that:

the list of Group companies and subsidiaries is provided in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Part A and
Part B - Assets - Section 10), in accordance with the provisions of the Bank of Italy;

the Notes to the consolidated financial statements also contain (Part E — Information on risks and relative hedging
policies — Section 1) information concerning obligations under Art. 15 of the Consob Market Regulation 20249 / 2017 (in
force from 3 January 2018, previously Art. 36 of Consob Market Regulation 16191 / 2007) with respect to subsidiaries
established and regulated under the laws of non-EU countries;

information on compensation and transactions with related parties carried out by the Bank or by the Group is provided in
Part H of the Notes to the financial statements;

information on the Corporate Governance system and the ownership structure of Intesa Sanpaolo, pursuant to Art. 123
bis of the Consolidated Law on Finance and information on the remuneration paid to Supervisory and Management
Board Members, General Managers and Key Managers and on the Parent Company’s shares, pursuant to Art. 123 ter of
the Consolidated Law on Finance, is provided in brief in a specific chapter of this Report and to the Report on
Remuneration, published every vyear in the “Governance” section of the Bank’s website at:
www.group.intesasanpaolo.com

the public disclosure concerning Basel 3 Pillar 3 contained in a special separate file is made available, after its approval,
on the Bank’s above-mentioned website;

the country-by-country reporting as required by Article 89 of the Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of
the Council (CRD 1V) is published on the Bank's above-mentioned website;

the Consolidated Non-financial Statement, governed by Legislative Decree 254 of 30 December 2016 implementing
Directive 2014/95/EU, is contained in a separate document, available for consultation in the “Sustainability” section of the
Bank's above-mentioned website.



Forecast for 2018

The growth phase of the global economy will extend to 2018, encouraging the central banks to further reduce their monetary
stimulus measures and pushing the rate curves to rise. There are still uncertainties at economic level (particularly due to the
financial surpluses in China and the inflation response to the very mature level of the economic cycle in the United States),
and at political level. The adaptation of the markets to the shift in monetary policy may lead to greater volatility in exchange
and interest rates.

Growth in the emerging countries is expected to strengthen slightly in 2018. In the January update of the World Economic
Outlook, the IMF forecasts a continued acceleration in GDP growth, to 4.9% from an estimated 4.7% in 2017. The cycle has
probably reached its peak in Asia, with a slight slowdown expected in China, offset, however, by a forecast of an acceleration
in India. In the commodity exporting emerging economies of Latin America, South Saharan Africa and the MENA area, a
general strengthening of growth is now forecast, thanks to the recovery of commodity prices and the easing of the restrictive
phase of fiscal policies in the Gulf countries.

In the countries of Central and South-Eastern Europe where ISP subsidiaries are located, the average growth rate is
expected to be more moderate in 2018 than in the previous year, both in the CEE countries and SEE countries, along a path
closer to their potential. In the CIS countries, GDP growth in Russia should be supported by favourable credit conditions and
the boost to disposable income resulting from low inflation and the recovery of oil prices. However, both Russia and Ukraine
will continue to be affected by the regional geopolitical tensions. In the MENA area, Egypt's economic growth is forecast to
accelerate further, driven by the expected fall in inflation and interest rates and the start of exploitation of the Zohr gas reserve
recently discovered in the Mediterranean.

Within the Italian banking system, credit access conditions continue to be favourable, thanks to the support of monetary policy
and the availability of supply in a scenario of steady reduction in credit risk. The strengthening of economic growth and the
recovery of fixed investments justify expectations of an increase in credit demand. As regards loans to businesses, a more
robust recovery is expected during the year, though at still very modest rates, slowed down by liquidity conditions that will
continue to be sufficient and the use of bond issues. For households, the lending scenario remains positive: growth in stocks
will continue at a moderate pace in 2018, favoured by continued low interest rates, the positive outlook for the real estate
market, and improved conditions in the labour market.

With regard to funding, the total aggregate will remain essentially unchanged, due to the low demand for customer deposits
by banks, considering the evolution of loans and the significant liquidity available. In particular, the net redemption of bonds in
the retail segment and the growth in deposits will continue. Once again, unattractive market yields will continue to fuel
balances on overnight deposits. These factors will continue to favour the reduction of customer deposit costs. In a context of
continuously very low, where not negative, market rates, and favourable credit access conditions, borrowing rates are
expected to remain at lows.

In 2018, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s net income is expected to grow compared with 2017, excluding from the 2017 net
income the 3.5 billion euro public cash contribution that offset the impact on the capital ratios resulting from the acquisition of
the Aggregate Set of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca. An increase in revenues, continuous cost management
and a decrease in the cost of risk are envisaged to be the drivers of the expected performance of net income. The dividend
policy for 2018 envisages a commitment to distributing an amount of cash dividends corresponding to a payout ratio of 85% of
net income.

The Board of Directors

Torino, 23 February 2018
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Consolidated balance sheet

(millions of euro)

Assets 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 CHANGES
amount %
10. Cash and cash equivalents 9,353 8,686 667 7.7
20. Financial assets held for trading 39,518 43,613 -4,095 9.4
30. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss 75,269 63,865 11,404 17.9
40. Financial assets available for sale 142,341 146,692 -4,351 -3.0
50. Investments held to maturity 1,174 1,241 -67 -5.4
60. Due from banks 72,462 53,146 19,316 36.3
70. Loans to customers 410,746 364,713 46,033 12.6
80. Hedging derivatives 4,217 6,234 -2,017 -32.4
90. Fair value change of financial assets in hedged portfolios (+/-) -204 321 -525
100. Investments in associates and companies subject to joint control 678 1,278 -600 -46.9
110. Technical insurance reserves reassured with third parties 16 17 -1 -5.9
120. Property and equipment 6,678 4,908 1,770 36.1
130. Intangible assets 7,741 7,393 348 4.7
of which
- goodwill 4,056 4,059 -3 -0.1
140. Tax assets 16,887 14,444 2,443 16.9
a) current 3,688 3,313 375 11.3
b) deferred 13,199 11,131 2,068 18.6
- of which convertible into tax credit (Law no. 214/2011) 8,746 8,491 255 3.0
150. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations 627 312 315
160. Other assets 9,358 8,237 1,121 13.6

Total Assets 796,861 725,100 71,761 9.9
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Consolidated balance sheet

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

10.
20.
30.
40.
50.
60.
70.
80.

90.

100.
110.
120.

130.
140.
150.
160.
170.
180.
190.
200.
210.
220.

Due to banks

Due to customers

Securities issued

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss
Hedging derivatives

Fair value change of financial liabilities in hedged portfolios (+/-)
Tax liabilities

a) current

b) deferred

Liabilities associated with non-current assets

held for sale and discontinued operations

Other liabilities

Employee termination indemnities

Allowances for risks and charges
a) post employment benefits
b) other allowances

Technical reserves
Valuation reserves
Redeemable shares
Equity instruments
Reserves

Share premium reserve
Share capital

Treasury shares (-)
Minority interests (+/-)

Net income (loss)

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

31.12.2017

99,990
323,443
94,239
41,285
68,169
7,489
478

2,509
364
2,145

264
12,574
1,410

5,481
1,104
4,377

82,926
-789

4,103
10,921
26,006

8,732

399
7,316

796,861

31.12.2016

72,641
291,876
94,783
44,790
57,187
9,028
773

2,038
497
1,541

272
11,944
1,403

3,427
1,025
2,402

85,619
-1,854

2,117
9,528
27,349
8,732

408
3,111

725,100

(millions of euro)

CHANGES

amount

27,349
31,567

-544
-3,505
10,982
-1,539

-295

471
-133
604

-8
630

2,054
79
1,975

-2,693
-1,065

1,986
1,393
-1,343

12

-9
4,205

71,761

%

37.6
10.8
-0.6
-7.8
19.2
-17.0
-38.2

231
-26.8
39.2

-2.9
5.3
0.5

59.9
7.7
82.2

-3.1
-57.4

93.8
14.6

-4.9

16.7
-2.2

9.9
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Consolidated income statement

10.
20.
30.
40.
50.
60.
70.
80.
90.

100.

110.
120.
130.

140.
150.
160.
170.
180.

190.
200.
210.
220.

230.
240.

250.

260.
270.
280.
290.
300.
310.
320.
330.

340.

Interest and similar income

Interest and similar expense

Interest margin

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Dividend and similar income

Profits (Losses) on trading

Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting

Profits (Losses) on disposal or repurchase of

a) loans

b) financial assets available for sale

c) investments held to maturity

d) financial liabilities

Profits (Losses) on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value
Net interest and other banking income

Net losses / recoveries on impairment

a) loans

b) financial assets available for sale

c) investments held to maturity

d) other financial activities

Net income from banking activities

Net insurance premiums

Other net insurance income (expense)

Net income from banking and insurance activities
Administrative expenses

a) personnel expenses

b) other administrative expenses

Net provisions for risks and charges

Net adjustments to / recoveries on property and equipment
Net adjustments to / recoveries on intangible assets
Other operating expenses (income)

Operating expenses

Profits (Losses) on investments in associates and companies subject
to joint control

Valuation differences on property, equipment and intangible assets
measured at fair value

Goodwill impairment

Profits (Losses) on disposal of investments

Income (Loss) before tax from continuing operations
Taxes on income from continuing operations

Income (Loss) after tax from continuing operations
Income (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

Minority interests

Parent Company's net income (loss)
Basic EPS - Euro

Diluted EPS - Euro

2017

12,398
-3,871
8,527
9,544
-2,116
7,428
344
511

64
15,709
6,817
-9,012
13,514
-11,052
-7,177
-3,875
-893
-347
-532
5,902
-6,922

1,150

7,316
0.44
0.44

2016

12,865
-4,250
8,615
8,465
-1,730
6,735
461
527

990
-34
990

34
1,051
18,345
-3,288
-3,026
-314

52
15,057
8,433
-10,508
12,982
-9,505
-5,494
-4,011
-241
-354
-577
430
-10,247

125

356
3,216
-1,003
2,213
987
3,200

3,111
0.18

0.18

(millions of

CHANGES
amount
-467
-379
-88
1,079
386
693
-117
-16
-19
-172

-1,616
-1,496
532
1,547
1,683
-136
652

-7

-45
5,472
-3,325

1,025

30
-250
4,602
-539
5,141
-987
4,154

4,205

euro)

‘yﬂ
-3.6
-8.9
-1.0
12.7

22.3
10.3
-25.4
-3.0
-55.9
-17.4
-76.5
-13.1

19.7
29
-3.8
-10.2
62.1

23.1
43
-19.2
-14.2
4.1
16.3
30.6
-3.4

-2.0
-7.8

-32.4

-70.2

-63.7

-57.3
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Statement of consolidated comprehensive income

10.

20.
30.
40.
50.
60.

70.
80.
90.

100.
110.
120.

130.

140.

150.
160.

NET INCOME (LOSS)

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) that may not be reclassified
to the income statement

Property and equipment and legally-required revaluations

Intangible assets

Defined benefit plans

Non-current assets held for sale

Share of valuation reserves connected with investments carried at equity
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) that may be reclassified

to the income statement

Hedges of foreign investments

Foreign exchange differences

Cash flow hedges

Financial assets available for sale

Non-current assets held for sale

Share of valuation reserves connected with investments carried at equity

Total other comprehensive income (net of tax)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CAPTIONS 10 +130)

Total consolidated comprehensive income pertaining to minority interests

Total consolidated comprehensive income pertaining to the Parent Company

2017

8,381

2016

-806

-284

(millions of euro)

Changes

amount

4,154

1,382
1,250

-132

-664

-258
233
-332

159
2,046

6,200

94
6,106

%

-75.9

-82.4

-90.8

-65.5
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Changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2017

(millions of euro)

31.12.2017
3 Share Valuation Equity Treasury Net Shareholders' Group Minority
Share capital premium Reserves reserves instruments shares income equity shareholders interests
ordinary  savings TeServe retained  other (loss) ' equity
shares shares earnings
AMOUNTS AS AT 1.1.2017 8,621 485 27,375 8,947 578 -1,930 2,117 -74 3,200 49,319 48,911 408
ALLOCATION OF NET INCOME
OF THE PREVIOUS YEAR
Reserves 1,535 -1,535 - -
Dividends and other allocations -1,665 -1,665 -1,656 -9
CHANGES IN THE PERIOD
Changes in reserves - -
Operations on shareholders' equity
Issue of new shares 6 6 6
Purchase of treasury shares -18 -18 -18
Extraordinary dividends -1,343 -1,343 -1,343
Changes in equity instruments 1,986 1,986 1,986
Derivatives on treasury shares - -
Stock options - -
Changes in equity investmens - -
Other -80 -1 -20 -101 -62 -39
Total comprehensive income for the period 1,066 7,354 8,420 8,381 39
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AS AT
31.12.2017 8,541 485 26,031 10,462 578 -864 4,103 -86 7,354 56,604 56,205 399
- Group 8,247 485 26,006 10,343 578 -789 4,103 -84 7,316 56,205
- minority interests 294 - 25 119 - -75 - -2 38 399

@ |ncludes dividends and amounts allocated to the charity fund of the Parent Company, as well as those relating to consolidated companies, pertaining to minorities.

Changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2016

(millions of euro)

31.12.2016
) Share Valuation Equity Treasury Net Shareholders' Group Minority
Share capital premium Reserves reserves instruments shares income equity shareholders interests
ordinary  savings Teserve retained  other (loss) " equity
shares shares earnings
AMOUNTS AS AT 1.1.2016 8,804 485 27,521 8,544 578 -950 877 -72 2,806 48,593 47,776 817
ALLOCATION OF NET INCOME
OF THE PREVIOUS YEAR
Reserves 366 -366 -
Dividends and other allocations -2,440 -2,440 -2,371 -69
CHANGES IN THE PERIOD
Changes in reserves - - -
Operations on shareholders' equity
Issue of new shares 5 5 5 -
Purchase of treasury shares -7 -7 -7 -

Extraordinary dividends

Changes in equity instruments 1,240 1,240 1,240 -
Derivatives on treasury shares

Stock options

Changes in equity investmens 7 -7 - - -
Other -190 -146 44 -292 -7 -285
Total comprehensive income for the period -980 3,200 2,220 2,275 -55
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AS AT
31.12.2016 8,621 485 27,375 8,947 578 -1,930 2,117 -74 3,200 49,319 48,911 408
- Group 8,247 485 27,349 8,950 578 -1,854 2,117 -72 3,111 48,911
- minority interests 374 - 26 -3 - -76 - -2 89 408

@ Includes dividends and amounts allocated to the charity fund of the Parent Company, as well as those relating to consolidated companies, pertaining to minorities.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1. Cash flow from operations
- net income (loss) (+/-)
- gains/losses on financial assets held for trading and on assets/liabilities
designated at fair value through profit and loss (-/+)
- gains/losses on hedging activities (-/+)
- net losses/recoveries on impairment (+/-)

- adjustments to/net recoveries on property, equipment and intangible assets (+/-)

- net provisions for risks and charges and other costs/revenues (+/-)
- net insurance premiums to be collected (-)

- other insurance revenues/charges to be collected (-/+)

- taxes, duties and tax credits to be paid/collected(+/-)

- net adjustments to/recoveries on discontinued operations net of tax effect (-/+)

- other adjustments (+/-)

2. Cash flow from / used in financial assets
- financial assets held for trading
- financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss
- financial assets available for sale
- due from banks: repayable on demand
- due from banks: other
- loans to customers
- other assets

3. Cash flow from / used in financial liabilities
- due to banks: repayable on demand
- due to banks: other
- due to customers
- securities issued
- financial liabilities held for trading
- financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss
- other liabilities

Net cash flow from (used in) operating activities

B. INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1. Cash flow from
- sales of investments in associates and companies subject to joint control

- dividends collected on investments in associates and companies subject to joint control

- sales/reimbursements of investments held to maturity
- sales of property and equipment

- sales of intangible assets

- sales of subsidiaries and business branches

2. Cash flow used in

- purchases of investments in associates and companies subject to joint control

- purchases of investments held to maturity

- purchases of property and equipment

- purchases of intangible assets

- purchases of subsidiaries and business branches

Net cash flow from (used in) investing activities

C. FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- issues/purchases of treasury shares
- share capital increases
- dividend distribution and other

Net cash flow from (used in) financing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RECONCILIATION

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents: foreign exchange effect

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

LEGEND: (+) from (-) usedin

31.12.2017

7,725
7,354

1,075
15
3,623
879
1,034
4
1,272
-262

-2,567

-68,827
4,817
-9,000
4,714
-830
-18,472
-49,190
-866

63,120
-135
27,499
31,627
-579
-3,716
9,836
-1,412

2,018

1,108
940
39
68

61
-1,275

-391
-884

-167

-12
1,833
-3,008

-1,187
664

8,686
664

9,353

(millions of euro)

31.12.2016

6,737
3,200

-458
34
3,869
931
452

1
2,510
184

-3,986

-51,540
8,562
-8,618
-15,214
-25,242
6,542
-18,222
652

44,419
-597
14,183
36,601
-15,410
1,217
9,632
-1,207

-384

1,799
374

145
167

1,113
-822

-647
-175

977
-2

1,240
-2,440

-1,202
-609

9,344
-609

8,686
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In line with the amendment to IAS 7, introduced with Regulation 1990 of 6 November 2017, with first application starting from
1 January 2017, provided below is the information requested by paragraph 44 B in order to measure the movements in
liabilities arising from financing activities, relating to both changes deriving from cash flows or non-cash changes.

(millions of euro)

"A. Operating activities - 3. Cash flow from / used in financial liabilities" 31.12.2017
a) Changes from cash flows from financing activities 26,135
b) Changes from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other companies 49,998
c) Fair value changes -10,116
d) Other changes -2,897

CASH FLOW FROM / USED IN FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 63,120
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Part A — Accounting policies

A.1 — GENERAL CRITERIA

SECTION 1 — DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH IAS/IFRS

As set forth by Legislative Decree 38 of 28 February 2005, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group financial statements have been
prepared in compliance with the IAS/IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the relative
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and endorsed by the European
Commission as provided for by EC Regulation 1606 of 19 July 2002.

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2017 have been prepared based on the “Instructions for the
preparation of the separate and consolidated financial statements of banks and financial companies, which are parent
companies of banking groups” issued by the Bank of Italy, in the exercise of powers set forth by Art. 43 of Legislative Decree
136/2015™) , with Regulation of 22 December 2005, which issued Circular 262/05, and with the subsequent updates of 18
November 2009, 21 January 2014, 22 December 2014 and 15 December 20152.

These Instructions set out compulsory financial statement forms, as well as the contents of the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared using the IAS/IFRS in force as at 31 December 2017 (including the SIC and
IFRIC interpretation documents) as listed in the attachments to these financial statements.

The table below shows the new standards or amendments to existing ones, together with the related EU endorsement
regulations, which came into force in 2017.

IFRS endorsed as at 31.12.2017 in force since 2017

Regulation
endorsement  Title Effective date
1989/2017 Amendments to IAS 12 Income taxes 01/01/2017
First financial year starting on or after 01/01/2017
1990/2017 Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 01/01/2017

First financial year starting on or after 01/01/2017

The international financial reporting standards applicable on a mandatory basis for the first time starting in 2017 consist of
several limited amendments made to the existing standards, endorsed by the European Commission during 2017°. However,
those amendments are not particularly significant for the Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

The table below shows the new standards or amendments to existing ones, together with the related EU endorsement
regulations, which will become mandatory on 1 January 2018 - for financial statements reflecting the calendar year - or after
this date.

() Art. 43 of Legislative Decree 136/2015 confirmed to the Bank of Italy the powers concerning the layouts of financial statements already previously
attributed to the same Authority by Legislative Decree 38/2005.

2 For the sake of completeness, please note that, on 22 December 2017, the Bank of Italy published the 5th update of Circular 262. The update, which
consists of a complete review of the Circular, will be applied starting from the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018.

3 n particular with Regulation 1989/2017, some interpretations are provided regarding the accounting of the deferred tax assets relating to debt
instruments measured at fair value, while Regulation 1990/2017 introduced some changes to improve the information on liabilities arising from financing

activities disclosed to the users of the financial statements.
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IFRS endorsed as at 31.12.2017 applicable subsequent to 31.12.2017

The new accounting standards endorsed by the European Commission in 2016 and 2017 have particularly significant
repercussions; accordingly, additional information has been provided below.

With regard to IFRS 9 in particular, and also in view of the disclosure provided regarding the implementation project at the
Intesa Sanpaolo Group, further details can be found in a specific section in this Part A of the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Regulation
endorsement  Title Effective date
1905/2016 IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 01/01/2018

First financial year starting on or after 01/01/2018
2067/2016 IFRS 9 Financial instruments 01/01/2018

First financial year starting on or after 01/01/2018
1986/2017 IFRS 16 Leasing 01/01/2019

First financial year starting on or after 01/01/2019
1987/2017 Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 01/01/2018

First financial year starting on or after 01/01/2018
1988/2017 Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance contracts 01/01/2018

First financial year starting on or after 01/01/2018

New standard IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers was endorsed by Regulation 1905/2016, effective from January 2018. As
a result of the adoption of IFRS 15, with effect from the date of the standard coming into force, IAS 18 — Revenue and IAS 11
— Construction Contracts will be eliminated, together with their related interpretations.

The changes introduced with respect to the existing rules may be summarised as follows:
the introduction — within a single accounting standard — of a “common framework” for revenue recognition for both the
sale of goods and the provision of services;

— the adoption of a step based approach for revenue recognition (see below);

— an unbundling mechanism for the allocation of the total transaction price to each of the commitments (sale of goods
and/or provision of services) in a sale contract.

In general terms, IFRS 15 requires the entity, when recognising revenues, to adopt an approach based on five steps:

1. identifying the contract(s) with a customer: the requirements of IFRS 15 apply to each contract that has been signed with
a customer and meets specific conditions. In some specific cases, IFRS 15 requires an entity to combine/aggregate
several contracts and account for them as a single contract;

2. identifying performance obligations: a contract represents the commitments to transfer goods or services to a customer. If
these goods or services are “distinct”, these promises qualify as performance obligations and are accounted for
separately;

3. determining the transaction price: the transaction price is the amount to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for the transfer of goods and services promised. The price established in the transaction may be a fixed amount, but
sometimes it may include variable components or non-cash components;

4. allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: an entity allocates the transaction price to
the different performance obligations based on the standalone selling prices of each of the distinct contractually agreed
goods or services. If a standalone selling price is not directly observable, the entity will need to estimate it. The standard
identifies when an entity must allocate a discount or a variable component to some but not all the performance obligations
(or to the distinct goods or services) agreed in the contract;

5. recognising the revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation: an entity recognises the revenue when
it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a good or providing a service, agreed contractually, to a customer (or
when the customer gains control of that asset or service). The amount of revenue to be recognised is the amount that was
allocated to the performance obligation that has been satisfied. A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in
time (typically for the transfer of goods) or over time (typically for the provision of services). For performance obligations
that are satisfied over time, an entity recognises the revenue over the period of time concerned, by selecting the
appropriate method for measuring the progress achieved towards the complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

For completeness, it is also noted that Regulation 1987/2017 was endorsed in 2017, which amends IFRS 15 and is also
applicable from 1 January 2018. These amendments are essentially aimed at clarifying certain aspects of the new standard
and providing some helpful operational simplifications for the transition phase.

The impacts of IFRS 15 will depend, in practice, on the types of transactions measured (the standard has introduced
estimation elements in the determination of the transaction price, for the variable component) and on the entity’s sector of
operations (the sectors most affected appear to be telecommunications and residential real estate).




Notes to the consolidated financial statements — Part A — Accounting policies

In this regard, an analysis was conducted within the Intesa Sanpaolo Group of the main cases of revenue from contracts with

customers in order to identify any impacts resulting from the introduction of the new standard.

The main cases examined included:

—  fees on current accounts and the treatment of bonds, including any discounts on the transaction price;

—  bonuses for financial advisors for new customer deposits;

— bonus fees on credit cards arising from agreements between the Group banks and leading global payments companies
and the treatment of the variable fees;

—  placement fees for insurance policies and the treatment of the related performance obligation; and

— other types of fees, such as success fees, performance fees and underwriting fees.

The analyses conducted found that, in general, the accounting treatment of these cases was already in line with the
provisions of the new standard and, consequently, no significant impacts will arise at accounting level.

The main effects for the Group will consist of greater disclosure requirements — since the standard requires a wide range of
information on the nature, amount, timing and degree of uncertainty of revenues, as well as the cash flows arising from the
contracts with customers — whereas there will be no quantitative impacts. In this regard, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group is
preparing itself to be able to provide the more detailed disclosure in the 2018 financial statements, as required by the
standard and by the instructions issued by the Bank of Italy in the 5" update of Circular 262.

Amendments to IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts

Through Regulation 1988, in 2017, the European Commission endorsed the amendments to IFRS 4 published by the IASB on
12 September 2016. These amendments were necessary as a result of the observations made by the insurance industry,
which had noted the potential volatility of the results due to the mismatch between the effective date of the new IFRS 9
relating to financial instruments and of IFRS 17 relating to insurance liabilities (published and, as detailed further below, still
awaiting endorsement).

Indeed, while IFRS 9 became effective from 1 January 2018 in replacement of IAS 39, the effective date of IFRS 17, in
replacement of the current IFRS 4, is scheduled for 1 January 2021.

The Endorsement regulation also extends the scope of the amendments of IFRS 4 to the “insurance sector of a financial
conglomerate” and not just to “entities that predominantly undertake insurance activities”, in order to avoid creating a situation
of competitive disadvantage. This provision — when implemented by the financial conglomerates (it is in fact an option and not
an obligation) — results in the application of two different accounting standards within the same financial conglomerate, which
could result in opportunities for accounting arbitrage and create difficulties for investors in the understanding of the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the deferral of the application of IFRS 9 is subject to particular conditions
which are listed below.

The main amendments to IFRS 4 consist of the introduction of two new options:

1. deferral approach: it allows full exemption from IFRS 9, deferring its application until 1 January 2021, and maintenance of
the application of IAS 39 until the 2020 financial statements. This deferral can only be applied if the following conditions
are satisfied:

— after 29 November 2017, no financial instruments have been transferred between the insurance sector and the other
sectors of the financial conglomerate other than financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) by both the sectors (insurance and non-insurance) involved. This is designed to prevent the group from
transferring financial instruments between sectors to take advantage of a more favourable accounting treatment;

— the financial conglomerate must indicate in its consolidated financial statements the insurance entities of the group
that apply IAS 39;

— the disclosures required by IFRS 7 must be provided separately for the insurance sector (which applies IAS 39) and
for the rest of the group (which applies IFRS 9);

2. overlay approach: the application of this option allows entities that issue insurance contracts to remove part of the
accounting asymmetries from profit or loss for the period; the overlay approach involves continuing to apply IAS 39 to
financial assets measured at FVTPL according to IFRS 9, but which would have been measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (mainly attributable to securities currently classified as AFS) in accordance with
IAS 39, thereby having an impact on other comprehensive income rather than profit or loss.

Specific disclosures are required for the application of both options.

In view of the potential impacts in terms of increased volatility for the insurance businesses, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has
decided to implement the provisions of the above-mentioned Regulation and, in particular, to adopt the deferral approach.
The deferral of the adoption of IFRS 9 by the companies of the Insurance Division of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group means that,
starting from 1 January 2018, different financial reporting standards will need to be applied for the financial assets and
liabilities within the Group’s consolidated financial statements. In the absence of specific instructions from the Bank of Italy on
how to adopt this approach, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group will use specific captions in the official layouts and will provide the
related disclosure in the notes to the financial statements, in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 7 and IFRS 4.
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New standard IFRS 16 - Leases

The new standard IFRS 16, endorsed in 2017 by EU Regulation 1986 and applicable from 1 January 2019, introduces

significant changes to the accounting of leases in the financial statements of the lessee/user. In particular, the main

amendment is the removal of the distinction, established by the current IAS 17 (which will be replaced by IFRS 16), between

operating and finance leases: all leases must now be accounted for as finance leases. For the lessee/user enterprises this

results — at the same levels of income and final cash flows — in an increase in the assets recorded in the balance sheet (the

leased assets), an increase in the liabilities (the debt for the leased assets), a reduction in operating costs (lease rentals) and

an increase in financial costs (for the repayment and remuneration of the debt recognised).

In terms of disclosure, the minimum information required from the lessees includes:

— the sub-division of the leased assets among different “classes”;

— an analysis by due date of the liabilities related to the leases;

— all the information that is potentially helpful for a better understanding of the entity’s activities with regard to the leases
(for example, early repayment or extension options).

On the other hand, there are no particular changes, other than some additional disclosure requirements, for lessor entities, for

which the current distinction is maintained between operating leases and finance leases.

Analyses are being conducted to determine the impacts for the Group resulting from the application of the new standard,

mainly aimed at identifying the scope and the accounting treatment of the assets used by the Group through leases.

The table below shows the new international standards or amendments to existing standards that have not yet been endorsed
by the European Commission.

IFRS not endorsed as at 31.12.2017

Standard/

Interpretation Title Date of issue
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 08/12/2016
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 18/05/2017
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 07/06/2017
Standard/

Interpretation Amendments Date of issue
IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based payment Transactions 20/06/2016
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 08/12/2016
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 08/12/2016
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 08/12/2016
IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property 08/12/2016
IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 12/10/2017
IAS 28 Long-term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures 12/10/2017
IFRS 3 Business Combination 12/12/2017
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement 12/12/2017
IAS 12 Income Taxes 12/12/2017
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs 12/12/2017

In this context, given its significance, details are provided regarding IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts, published by the IASB in
May 2017 and still not yet endorsed by the European Commission.
This standard, once it has been endorsed by the European Commission, will replace the current IFRS 4, which, from the time
of its initial publication, was considered an interim standard and — as such — its objectives did not include establishing a single
approach for the presentation of insurance contracts. Addressing this aspect — together with better disclosure regarding the
operating performance of the insurance undertaking — forms the basis for the publication of the new standard. Accordingly,
the significance of the impacts will vary according to the “distance” between the current practices — in each jurisdiction —
compared to the model adopted by the new standard. In any event, the main impacts will be on insurance companies
operating in the life business.

Descriptions are provided below of the main elements of IFRS 17, which will be applicable from 1 January 2021%:

— initial recognition of the insurance liability: when the contract is signed with the policyholder, the insurance entity
recognises a liability whose amount represents the sum of the present value of the expected contractual cash flows
(discounted also taking account of an appropriate risk margin, for non-financial risks) and the contractual service margin
(representing the present value of the future profits);

—  subsequent measurement of the insurance liability: IFRS 17 requires the measurement at each reporting period of the
above elements (cash flows and contractual service margin), to verify the consistency of the estimates with the current
market conditions. The effects of any mismatches must be immediately recorded in the financial statements: in profit or

4 In this regard it is noted, as already mentioned above, that insurance entities have the option — through a specific amendment to the current IFRS 4 —
of deferring some of the volatility effects resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 (due to the accounting mismatch between assets and liabilities) prior to the
introduction of IFRS 17, through the possibility of applying the option of the deferral approach or the overlay approach from 1 January 2018.
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loss for changes relating to events that have already occurred in the past or as a reduction of the contractual service
margin when the changes relate to future events;

— grouping of contracts: the application of IFRS 17 involves the identification of “portfolios” of insurance contracts (units of
account, or groups of contracts that are subject to similar risks and managed together) broken down into groups
composed of contracts signed by policyholders in the same years (cohorts, or annual generations of insurance contracts)
and similar characteristics of expected profitability. In this regard, the standard establishes clear separations (also in
terms of disclosure) between the contracts defined as “onerous™ and the remaining contracts;

— measurement of the insurance revenue: IFRS 17 requires the presentation in profit or loss of the earnings "by margins"
achieved during the life of the policies, i.e. when the entity actually earns the profits estimated with respect to the
exposure of the insurance premiums received by the insurance company;

— measurement of the performance: with a view to improving (and harmonising) the disclosure of the performance of the
insurance companies, a distinct and separate presentation is required of the two main components that typically
contribute to making up the earnings of insurance undertakings: the first, which represents the profit from the “coverage”
provided (the “technical margin”) and the second, which brings together all the financial components (results of
investments, effects of financial variables used in the valuations of the contracts, etc.). Changes in the estimates of the
premiums (cash flows to be received) and payments (cash flows be paid) are recognised in profit or loss, but are
“spread” over the entire remaining contractual lifetime of the policies concerned;

— contract modifications: following contract modifications (agreed between the parties or due to regulatory changes) whose
presence at inception would have resulted in the exclusion of the contract from the insurance area, IFRS 17 requires the
derecognition and accompanying recognition of a new entry, measured according to the accounting standards that
refer to it;

— approach for contracts with direct participation features: a specific approach is established for contracts that give the
policyholders direct participation in the results of (some) assets held by the insurance company, according to which the
entities have the option of recognising those changes in liabilities (due to variations in the yields of the hedging assets,
and therefore essentially related to the variable component of revenue) in other comprehensive income.

IFRS 17 therefore introduces new criteria for determining the earnings of insurance companies, also with a view to achieving
better comparability of the financial disclosure produced by the competitors in the sector. These new criteria will lead to
potential impacts in the design of new insurance products, as well as their pricing, and to new risk management approaches
in relation to asset and liability management. The financial disclosure will see the introduction of new key performance
indicators based on product margins compared to the current collected premiums used as a reference at both national and
international level.

Lastly, the insurance companies will need to design a new target operational model that will enable the management of the

new earnings measurements established by the standard, with significant investments both in terms of internal processes and

information technology.

The Insurance Division has initiated a project for the introduction of IFRS 17 whose objective is to ensure both the

management of the insurance business and an operating and accounting model that fully adopts this standard.

Lastly, in October an Amendment to IFRS 9 was published entitled “Prepayment feature with negative compensation”,
regarding the classification of financial instruments that have particular prepayment features. Specifically, following the
amendment, debt instruments which include prepayment features that provide for the payment or receipt of reasonable
compensation for early termination can pass the SPPI Test. Adoption of this amendment is mandatory from 1 January 2019,
with the possibility of optional early adoption. If an entity exercises the option of early adoption of this amendment, it must
disclose this in its financial statements.

Obviously, for European entities this amendment can only be adopted after the endorsement process has been completed.

Amendment to the accounting standard for properties and valuable art assets

Compared to the previous financial statements, in the financial statements as at 31 December 2017, the Intesa Sanpaolo

Group amended the accounting criterion of recognition and measurement adopted for the following classes of property and

equipment:

— owner-occupied properties and valuable art assets (governed by IAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”);

—  properties held for investment (governed by IAS 40 “Investment property”).

More specifically, the amendment in question involved:

— the transition from the cost model to the revaluation model for the measurement after the initial recognition of non-
investment properties and valuable art assets;

— the transition from the recognition at cost to the recognition at fair value for the properties held for investment.

Since its establishment, one of Intesa Sanpaolo’s priorities has been the full enhancement of its top valuable art assets and
properties, inherited from about 250 financial institutions of various ltalian regions, which became part of the Group. These
assets, of unique extent and prestige, consist of buildings of great architectural and civil importance and precious works of art.
As part of the latter, 3,500 works of particular importance have been identified based on the following criteria: i) the historical-
critical and artistic value ii) the state of preservation and iii) the economic importance. These works have been included in the
class called “valuable art assets”.

Together with the top valuable art assets and properties, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group also inherited sizeable real estate
assets, which combine prestigious buildings in main cities with traditional bank branches distributed throughout Italy.

The decision to enhance these artistic and real estate assets is strongly encouraged by some trends that have developed in
the last few years:

— for the top valuable art assets and properties, the considerable growth of museum-related activities, for which 2016 was
a record year in Italy and whose untapped potential remains important, and the increasing tendency to exchange works

5 Contracts where the costs on exit are greater than the estimated benefits.
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among the various museums and foundations, with the number of exhibitions in Italy growing by about 10% a year in
recent years;

— for the real estate assets held for operating activities, the gradual abandonment of traditional bank branches by
customers, with the use of remote channels growing continuously (in Italy mobile banking users grew from 12% of the
population in 2012 to 37% in 2016 and Intesa Sanpaolo already has 6.6 million multi-channel customers and 2.4 million
app user customers), and the huge appreciation shown by employees for flexible working methods and opportunities to
work from home (more than 7,000 Intesa Sanpaolo employees have already participated in the Smart Working
programme launched less than two years ago).

In light of these trends and with the aim of fully enhancing both its artistic and real estate assets, Intesa Sanpaolo has defined

a ten-year strategy which includes:

— increasing the Group’s museum and cultural activities, continuing the path already taken with the creation of Gallerie
d'ltalia and with the cooperation, in Italy and abroad, of museums and foundations, progressively adding conference and
reception activities, with the aim of maximising the background value;

— encouraging the evolution from simple and occasional home/office flexible working to a stable and widespread Smart
Working, with the gradual abandonment of the physical workstations assigned to employees, in favour of distance
working and the progressive consolidation of the various structures located in the main cities into business hubs with
shared workstations;

— rationalising and consolidating physical branches into centres geared towards customer consultancy activities, leveraging
the points of sale of the former Banca dei Tabaccai and the remote channels for the transactional activities.

This strategic evolution was reflected with in detail also in the 2018-2021 Intesa Sanpaolo Business Plan.

In preparation of the 2018-2021 Business Plan, Intesa Sanpaolo decided to launch the revaluation for accounting purposes of

its valuable art assets and properties (both operating and held for investment purposes), with the purpose of aligning their

carrying amount to the current market values thus providing more meaningful information for the users of the financial

statements.

It is deemed that in this way, in line with the provisions of IAS 8 concerning the changes of accounting policies, it is possible

to provide reliable and more meaningful information on the effects of the company operations and, ultimately, on the overall

financial position and results of the Group.

Recognition at the present value of valuable art assets and owner-occupied properties, according to the “revaluation model”

envisaged by IAS 16, and of the investment properties, according to the fair value method envisaged by IAS 40, will actually

result in:

— a better alignment of financial disclosure with the future strategies for the management of the artistic and real estate
assets of the group;

— a more straightforward understanding of the effects of the actions envisaged by the business plan on the financial
position and results;

— a constant alignment of the accounting values of the substantial property and art assets to the values available on the
market.
As already shown, the above-mentioned change, applied starting from these financial statements, resulted in particular in:

— the transition from the cost model to the revaluation model for the measurement after the initial recognition of non-
investment properties and valuable art assets;

— the transition from the recognition at cost to the recognition at fair value, for the properties held for investment.

IAS 8 requires, as a general rule, that the voluntary accounting policy changes be represented retrospectively starting from
the date furthest back that is feasible.

This means that, based on the general principle, at the time when the change takes place, also the opening balances of the
furthest back comparison year and the data of the comparison years must be restated.

However, the general rule permits exceptions. In particular, IAS 8, § 17, establishes that for the purpose of measuring
property, plant and equipment, regulated by IAS 16, and intangible assets, regulated by IAS 38, the passage from the “cost
criterion” to the “revaluation model” must be represented as if it were a normal consistent application of the “revaluation
model”. This means that the initial application of the “revaluation model” must take place prospectively and not retrospectively
as required by the general principle reported in IAS 8.

As a consequence, the change of accounting policy in the context of IAS 16 and IAS 38 does not lead to any adjustment of
the opening balances and comparison figures, or of the financial statements of the interim years which precede the date of
the change.

On the other hand, for investment property, neither IAS 40 or IAS 8 dictate special provisions with regard to the accounting
effects of the policy change (from cost to fair value or vice versa).

It was assumed that the most appropriate criterion to represent the change of the accounting criterion pertaining to investment
property must be assimilated to the criterion specifically laid down by IAS 16 and IAS 38 for property, equipment and
intangible assets regulated by them.

In light of the above, the revaluation at present values produced, at the time of changing the accounting policy, equity effects,
which are attributable to the positive revaluation portion to be recognised in equity, and economic effects, which are
attributable to the negative revaluation component.

Taking into account that the change of the measurement criterion took place at the end of the year, the calculation of the
depreciation for the year 2017 was made with the previous cost criterion; as a consequence, the properties, both non-
investment properties and those held for investment, were subject to the depreciation until 31 December 2017. Starting from
2018, the properties used in operations, measured under the revaluation model pursuant to IAS 16, will continue to be
depreciated over their useful life, while the investment properties under IAS 40 will no longer be subject to depreciation as
they are measured at fair value through profit and loss. The valuable art assets, in line with what is currently done, will
continue not to be depreciated, since it is deemed that the useful life of a work of art may not be estimated and its value is
normally destined to increase over time.

The determination of the fair value of the properties and the valuable art assets was carried out through the preparation of
specific appraisals by qualified and independent companies. Lease rentals, selling prices, discount rates and capitalisation
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rates were estimated in order to conduct the appraisals of the properties, while to conduct the appraisals on the valuable art
assets, the estimate of the value was gathered from the performance of the exchanges of similar works (in terms of technique,
size, subject) by the same author or regional movements and schools that are close with regard to style and technique.

As regards the consolidated financial statements, as reported in greater detail in Section 12 — Property and equipment of Part
B, the change in question led to the recognition of a revaluation of 1,767 million euro gross of tax (of which 215 million euro,
gross of tax, refers to valuable art assets). This value, net of the deferred tax assets carried, equal to 515 million euro, was
attributed to a specific valuation reserve as part of shareholders’ equity. In addition to this capital gain, losses were
recognised in profit or loss for an amount of 30 million euro gross of tax, as the net effect of losses of 57 million euro and
write-backs of previous write-downs of 27 million euro.

Indeed, you are reminded that, at the time of the revaluation, if write-downs have been recognised through profit or loss in
previous years, any gain may be recognised through profit or loss up to the total amount of the previous write-downs. Only the
excess amount is allocated to a specific reserve, as required by IAS 16.

IFRS 9: the new financial reporting standard on financial instruments

In accordance with the instructions of the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) and the requirements of IAS 8,
paragraphs 30 and 31, in this section Intesa Sanpaolo provides its disclosure regarding the implementation of IFRS 9 —
Financial Instruments.

The regulations

As is by now common knowledge and as already discussed in the 2016 Financial Statements, the new financial reporting
standard IFRS 9, issued by the IASB in July 2014 and endorsed by the European Commission through Regulation
2067/2016, has replaced IAS 39, which until 31 December 2017 had governed the classification and measurement of
financial instruments, with effect from 1 January 2018.

IFRS 9 is structured into the three different areas of classification and measurement of financial instruments, impairment and
hedge accounting.

In the first area, IFRS 9 requires the classification of financial assets to be guided, on the one hand, by the characteristics of
the related contractual cash flows and, on the other hand, by the business model for which the assets are held. In
replacement of the current four accounting categories, under IFRS 9 financial assets may be classified into three categories,
according to the drivers indicated above: Financial assets measured at amortised cost, Financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (for debt instruments, the reserve is transferred to profit or loss in the event of
disposal of the instrument) and, lastly, Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. The financial assets can
be recognised in the first two categories and can, therefore, be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, only if it is demonstrated that they give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and
interest” (SPPI Test). Equity instruments are always recognised in the third category and measured at fair value through profit
or loss unless the entity elects (irrevocably, upon initial recognition), for equities not held for trading, to present changes in
value in other comprehensive income, never to be transferred to profit or loss, even in the event of the disposal of the
financial instrument (Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income without “recycling”).

There are no major changes with respect to the classification and measurement of financial liabilities under the current
standard. The sole change relates to the accounting treatment of own credit risk: for financial liabilities designated at fair value
(fair value option liabilities), the standard requires that changes in fair value attributable to the change in own credit risk be
recognised through other comprehensive income, unless this treatment creates or increases an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss, whereas the remaining amount of changes in the fair value of the liabilities must be recognised in profit or loss.

With respect to impairment, a model has been introduced for instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value through
other comprehensive income (other than equity instruments) based on the concept of "expected loss" instead of the current
"incurred loss", with the aim of recognising losses in a more timely manner. IFRS 9 requires that entities recognise expected
losses in the next 12 months (stage one) starting from initial recognition of the financial instrument. The time horizon for
calculating expected losses is the entire residual life of the asset being measured if credit risk has increased "significantly"
since initial recognition (stage 2) or if it is impaired (stage 3). More specifically, the introduction of the new impairment rules
involves the:

— allocation of performing financial assets to different credit risk stages (staging), which correspond to value adjustments
based on 12-month Expected Credit Losses (ECL) (Stage 1), or lifetime ECL over the remaining duration of the
instrument (Stage 2), if there is a significant increase in the credit risk (SICR) determined by comparing the Probabilities
of Default at the initial recognition date and at the reporting date;

— allocation of the non-performing financial assets to Stage 3, again with value adjustments based on the lifetime ECL;

— inclusion of forward-looking information in the calculation of the ECL, also consisting of information on the evolution of
the macroeconomic scenario.

Finally, with regard to hedge accounting, the new model for hedging - which, however, does not apply to macro-hedging -

aims to ensure that accounting treatment is consistent with risk management activity and to enhance disclosure of risk

management activity by the reporting entity.

The implementation project

Given the pervasive impacts of the new features introduced by IFRS 9, both on business and from an organisational and
reporting point of view, from September 2015 the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has launched a specific project aimed at further
studying the various areas of influence of the standard, determining its impact in qualitative and quantitative terms, and
identifying and implementing the practical and organisational measures required for consistent, systematic and effective
adoption within the Group as a whole and for each of the subsidiaries of which it is composed.

In the CFO and CRO Areas, and under the joint responsibility of the Administration and Tax Department, Credit Risk
Management Department and Financial and Market Risks Department, and, with the active involvement of numerous Group
Departments, themed working groups were formed on the basis of the areas into which the standard is divided.
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In order to ensure the operational implementation of the standard in line with its instructions and international best practices
(also on the basis of indications from international authorities, where relevant), a specific working table was created to aid the
themed working groups in analysing and steering the decisions based on which the implementation activities will be
organised.

In addition to the involvement of the operating divisions in the analysis of the impacts of the standard on the business areas,
to develop the changes to IT systems it was necessary to create a Coordination Table with the other projects in progress, so
as to design consistent IT solutions capable of building potential synergies.

This phase of the project, which is approaching the final stages, is aimed at supporting and monitoring the work related to the
First Time Adoption (FTA) of the new standard and implementing the final application and organisational measures, designed
to ensure consistent “fully loaded” application of the new rules.

Before analysing the main activities carried out by the project in relation to the aforementioned IFRS 9 impact areas, it is
worth noting the choices of a “general” nature made by the Intesa Sanpaolo Group regarding the scope of companies subject
to application of the new standard, the presentation of the impacts on own funds resulting from the application of the new
impairment rules, according to the recent amendments made to the prudential regulations, and the presentation of the
comparative figures in the year of first time adoption of the standard. In particular:

— the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, as a financial conglomerate primarily engaged in banking activities, has decided to exercise
the option of adopting the Deferral Approach (or Temporary Exemption), according to which the financial assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary insurance companies will continue to be recognised in accordance with the provisions of I1AS
39, while awaiting the entry into force of the new international accounting standard on insurance contracts (IFRS 17),
scheduled for 2021. The deferral of the adoption of IFRS 9 by the companies of the Insurance Division means that,
starting from 1 January 2018, different accounting standards will need to be applied for the financial assets and liabilities
within the Group’s consolidated financial statements. In view of the discretion given by the Bank of Italy regarding how
this choice and its effects should be presented in the financial statements, the Group has decided to add specific
captions to the official consolidated financial statements layouts provided by the 5" update to Circular 262 (effective from
2018) and provide the related disclosures in the Notes to the 2018 Financial Statements, in compliance with the
requirements of IFRS 7, and the Amendment to IFRS 4, which are aimed at understanding how the insurer meets the
requirements for benefiting from the temporary exemption and ensuring comparability between the insurers that apply the
temporary exemption and the entities that apply IFRS 9;

— on 12 December 2017, the European Parliament and the Council issued Regulation (EU) 2017/2395 "Transitional
arrangements for mitigating the impact of the introduction of IFRS 9 on own funds", which updates Regulation 575/2013
CRR, adding the new article 473a "Introduction of IFRS 9", which gives banks the possibility of mitigating the impact on
their own funds resulting from the introduction of IFRS 9 over a transitional period of 5 years (from March 2018 to
December 2022) by neutralising the impact on CET1 through the application of decreasing percentages over time. The
Intesa Sanpaolo Group has decided to adopt the “static approach”, to be applied to the impact resulting from the
comparison between the IAS 39 value adjustments as at 31/12/2017 and IFRS 9 value adjustments as at 1/1/2018. From
2018, banks that opt for the transitional arrangements will, however, be required to provide market disclosure regarding
the “fully loaded” Available Capital, RWA, Capital Ratio and Leverage Ratio, in accordance with the Guidelines issued on
12 January 2018;

— lastly, with regard to the methods of presentation of the effects of first-time adoption of the standard, the Group will
exercise the option established in paragraph 7.2.15 of IFRS 9 and paragraphs E1 and E2 of IFRS 1 “First-Time Adoption
of International Financial Reporting Standards”, according to which — subject to the retrospective application of the new
measurement and presentation rules required by the standard — there is no requirement for the compulsory restatement
on a like-for-like basis of the comparative information in the financial statements of first-time adoption of the new
standard. According to the instructions contained in the document issuing the 5" update of Circular 262 “Bank financial
statements: layouts and preparation” (published in December 2017), banks that make use of the exemption from the
requirement to restate the comparative information must nonetheless include a reconciliation statement in the first
financial statements prepared based on the new Circular 262. This statement must show the method used and provide a
reconciliation between the information from the last approved financial statements and the first financial statements
prepared according to the new provisions. The form and content of this disclosure is left to the independent discretion of
the competent company bodies.

Moving on to the analysis of the progress of the IFRS 9 project, a brief outline is provided below of the work carried out and
being completed in relation to the main areas of impact identified above.

Classification and Measurement

To be able to comply with the requirements of IFRS 9 — which introduces a model through which the classification of financial
assets is guided, on one hand, by the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments and, on the other hand, by the
business model within which they are held - methods were identified for testing the contractual cash flow characteristics (SPPI
test), while the business models adopted by the various structures through which the Group operates have been formalised.
For the SPPI testing of financial assets, the method to be used has been established and, at the same time, an analysis of the
composition of the existing securities and loans portfolios has been performed to identify the correct classification upon First
Time Adoption (FTA) of the new standard.

With regard to debt securities, a detailed examination has been conducted on the cash flow characteristics of the instruments
classified at amortised cost and in the Financial assets available for sale category according to IAS 39, in order to identify the
assets which do not pass the SPPI test and must therefore be measured at fair value through profit or loss according to IFRS
9. The analyses conducted confirmed the outcomes reported in the 2016 Financial Statements: only an insignificant
percentage of debt securities out of the overall Group portfolio do not pass the SPPI test, mainly instruments that create
concentrations of credit risk (tranches) and structured securities. Furthermore, based on analyses conducted and the
interpretations provided by the IFRS Interpretation Committee, investment funds (open funds and closed-end funds) must be
measured on a mandatory basis at their fair value through profit or loss, leading to a future increase in the income statement
volatility for these types of instruments classified, in accordance with IAS 39, as Financial assets available for sale.
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For the loans segment, the project has carried out modular analyses that take account of the significance of the portfolios, of
their homogeneity and of the business Division. The analyses used different approaches for the retail loan and corporate loan
portfolios. As a result, only marginal cases were found which, due to their specific contractual clauses or the nature of the
loan fail the SPPI test. Accordingly, there are no significant impacts also for the loans segment upon FTA.
With regard to the second classification driver for the financial assets (business model), the definition has been completed of
the business models to be adopted under IFRS 9 (which are organised at the level of single Division). For the Hold to Collect
portfolios, the limits have been set for frequent but not significant sales to be considered eligible (individually or in aggregate),
or for infrequent sales even if their amount is significant, and the parameters have also been established for identifying sales
as being consistent with that business model because they relate to an increase in credit risk. Based on the analyses
conducted, the securities portfolios currently classified at amortised cost generally have litle movement, consistent with the
management strategy of a Hold to Collect business model. With regard to the debt securities currently classified as Financial
assets available for sale, a Hold to Collect and Sell business model has been defined for most portfolios; solely in a limited
number of cases, in relation to small-sized portfolios, several portfolio reclassifications have been carried out upon FTA to
take account of the underlying business model on the IFRS 9 first-time adoption date.

In addition, in principle, the current procedures for managing loans, both with retail and corporate counterparties, are

essentially consistent with the Hold to Collect business model.

Lastly, in more general terms, with regard to the business models under which the financial assets are held, a specific set of

Rules has been produced, approved by the competent governance levels, aimed at defining and setting out the components

of the business model, specifying its role in relation to the classification model governed by IFRS 9.

With regard to equity instruments, the instruments have been identified (classified in the financial assets available for sale

category in accordance with IAS 39) for which to exercise the option of classification at fair value through other

comprehensive income (without recycling to profit or loss) upon FTA. The general criteria have also been established that will
guide this choice when the standard is “fully loaded” and the related organisational process has been formalised.

Lastly, it is noted that on conclusion of a specific valuation process, it was decided not to use the fair value option (with

separate recognition through other comprehensive income of the fair value changes attributable to the changes in the Group’s

credit rating) for the stock of financial liabilities as at 1 January 2018.

In view of the above, the transition to the new standard will essentially mean the reclassification of:

— available for sale debt securities in accordance with IAS 39 (60.1 billion euro), of which an estimated 3.5 billion euro will
be transferred to financial assets measured at amortised cost and 0.6 billion euro to financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss;

— units of investment funds, for an amount of around 1.2 billion euro, which will be classified to assets mandatorily
measured at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9, whereas under IAS 39 they were recognised
under available for sale financial instruments (AFS);

— equity instruments, of around 3.7 billion euro, classified under AFS in accordance with IAS 39, of which, on FTA, an
estimated 3.3 billion euro will be transferred to the financial assets for which the optional designation at fair value through
other comprehensive income (without recycling to profit or loss) has been irrevocably exercised and 0.4 billion euro to
financial assets mandatorily measured - at fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment

In the Impairment area (in relation to which specific projects have been developed for both loan and debt securities

operations):

— the methods have been established for the tracking of the credit quality of the positions included in the portfolios of
financial assets measured at amortised cost and at fair value through other comprehensive income;

— the parameters for determining the significant increase in credit risk have been defined, for the correct allocation of
performing exposures to stage 1 or stage 2. With regard to impaired exposures, on the other hand, the alignment of the
definitions of accounting and regulatory default — already currently present — means that the current criteria for the
classification of exposures as “non-performing”/’impaired” can be considered the same as the classification criteria for
exposures within stage 3.

— the models have been produced — which include the forward-looking information — to be used for the stage allocation
(based on the lifetime PD) and for the calculation of the 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) (to be applied to exposures
in stage 1) and the lifetime ECL (to be applied to stage 2 and stage 3 exposures). To take into account forward-looking
information and the macroeconomic scenarios in which the Group may have to operate, it was decided to adopt, as
reported in greater detail below, the so-called “most likely scenario+Add-on” approach.

With regard to the tracking of credit quality, in line with the regulatory content of the standard and the guidelines from the

Supervisory Authorities regarding the methods for applying the reporting standard for larger sized banks, a specific review of

the credit quality of each individual relationship (both in the form of securitised exposure and the form of loans) has been

conducted — within specific project streams and as a policy choice to be applied uniformly to all the types of exposures after

IFRS 9 enters into force — in order to identify any “significant deterioration” in the credit quality on the initial recognition date

and the consequent need for classification as stage 3 and, vice versa, the conditions for returning to stage 1 from stage 2. In

other words, this operational choice involves, case-by-case and at each reporting date, the comparison — for the purposes of
staging — between the credit quality of the financial instrument at the time of measurement and at the time of initial
disbursement or purchase.

With regard to the above, the factors that will constitute the main drivers to be taken into consideration for the assessments

regarding the “transfers” between the different stages are the following:

— the variation of the lifetime probabilities of default compared to the time of initial recognition of the financial instrument.
This is therefore an assessment made on a “relative” basis, which constitutes the main driver;

— the presence of a past due position that — subject to the materiality thresholds identified by the regulations — has been in
that status for at least 30 days. If these circumstances apply, the credit risk of the exposure is considered to have
“significantly increased” and the exposure is therefore transferred to stage 2 (when the exposure was previously included
in stage 1);
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— the presence of forbearance measures, which — again on a presumption basis — result in the classification of the
exposures under those whose credit risk has “significantly increased” since initial recognition;

— lastly, for banks belonging to the international scope, some of the indicators from the credit monitoring systems
specifically used by each bank will be considered for the purposes of the transfer between “stages” and where
appropriate.

Some specific considerations apply for the “staging” of the debt securities. Unlike loans, for this type of exposure, sales and
purchases after initial recognition (made using the same ISIN) may form part of the ordinary management of the positions
(with the consequent need to identify methods to be adopted for identifying the sales and repayments in order to determine
the remaining quantities of the individual transactions that need to be allocated a credit quality/rating upon origination to be
compared with that parameter at the reporting date). In this regard, the use of the “first-in-first-out” or “FIFO” method (for the
recognition of the recorded ECL in the income statement, in the event of sales or repayments) was considered to help in
providing a more transparent management of the portfolio, also for the front office operators, while also enabling the
continued updating of the credit rating based on new purchases.

Lastly, solely with regard to the first-time adoption of the standard, for certain categories of exposures (specifically identified

and mainly related to performing debt securities designated at fair value through other comprehensive income, held by the

Parent Company and ltalian bank subsidiaries), the low credit risk exemption established by IFRS 9 will be used. Based on

the exemption, exposures which, at the date of transition to the new standard, have a credit rating equivalent to “investment

grade” or above will be considered to have a low credit risk and therefore in stage 1.

As noted earlier above, the inclusion of forward-looking factors, and macroeconomic scenarios in particular, is a crucial

element for the estimates of the expected losses. In terms of method, various possible alternative approaches designed to

take account of these elements have been analysed. Of the various alternatives considered, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has
decided to adopt the “Most likely scenario+Add-on” approach, which, for the calculation of the expected credit losses (ECL)
and the “stage assignment”, involves considering the credit losses generated by the base scenario believed to be most likely
and used also for other purposes within the Group (for example, for the preparation of the budget and business plan), plus an
add-on adjustment aimed at reflecting the effects from the non-linear nature of the variables used, in relation to determining
the macro-economic parameters. This add-on is determined based on alternative scenarios to the baseline scenario,
identified based on benchmark variables, such as the annual average GDP growth rate of several countries (Italy, United

States, Germany, France, Spain and the United Kingdom), European and US stock exchange indices, and residential real

estate prices in the United States and Italy.

Finally, specific considerations apply to “stage 3” exposures (consisting, as reported above, of the current scope of non-

performing assets). With regard to non-performing loans in particular, it should be noted that, despite the fact that the

definition of credit-impaired financial assets contained in IFRS 9 compared to the previous standard is substantially the same,

the methods of calculation of the lifetime ECL have methodological repercussions also for the purposes of the measurements

to be carried out in this segment, mainly in relation to the following aspects:

— the inclusion of forward looking information such as the information on recovery estimates and times and the likelihood of
migration into worse classes, as well as information that can have an influence on the value of the collateral or the
expected recovery time;

— the consideration of alternative recovery scenarios, such as the sale of the credit assets, in connection with possible
disposals of parts of the non-performing portfolio, in relation to company objectives of reduction of the non-performing
assets, to which a probability of realisation must be assigned, to be considered within the overall measurement.

With regard to the alternative recovery scenarios, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group, in relation to the objectives of reducing the
stock of outstanding bad loans, included in its business plans, and the commitments made to the Supervisory Authorities, with
specific regard to the NPL Strategy, considers the sale of particular portfolios as the strategy that, in certain conditions, can
maximise the cash flow recovery. Consequently, the “ordinary” scenario, which assumes a recovery strategy based on the
collection of credit, typically through legal actions, mandates to credit recovery companies and the realisation of mortgage
collateral, can also be accompanied by scenarios that envisage the sale of the loans as a strategy. As a result, in order to
determine the total expected loss of the exposures, for a defined perimeter of bad loans that have the characteristics of
disposability, the recoverable values based on the ordinary internal recovery process and the amounts recoverable from sale,
estimated based on market valuations carried out by an external expert, are weighted according to the portion of the portfolio
destined for sale, envisaged by the NPL strategy, with respect to the total of the disposable portfolio.

In addition, a specific Impairment Policy has been drawn up in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 and has been
approved by the competent levels of governance.

Hedge accounting

In the area of Hedge Accounting, the changes to the Standard relate solely to general hedging and are closely tied to the
Group's choice to exercise the opt-infopt-out (i.e. the possibility of applying the new IFRS 9 rather than maintaining the old
IAS 39). Based on the investigations conducted on the current management of hedging transactions, it has been decided to
exercise the opt-out option upon FTA of IFRS 9. As a result, all types of hedging operations will continue to be managed in
accordance with the provisions of IAS 39 (carve-out), currently in force. The Group will consider whether or not to confirm this
choice for the reporting periods after 2018.

Impact on the IT systems

The smooth and effective implementation of the changes introduced by IFRS 9 regarding Classification and Management
and, above all, Impairment, resulted in the need to carry out measures that have a big impact in the area of information
technology. To that end, specific analyses have been conducted to identify the main areas of impact and the target
application architectures to be developed have been outlined. The applications and procedures to be adapted have been
identified, as well as the amendments to be made.

The measures implemented on the systems — which are designed to achieve compliance with the new requirements
established by the standard in terms of classification of the portfolios, tracking and measurement of credit risk, accounting and
disclosure — therefore involved both the implementation, within the existing procedures, of the features required for that
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purpose, and the addition of new software applications required for the more efficient and effective management of the issues
concerned.

More specifically, for the Classification and Measurement area, once the methods for conducting the SPPI Test have been
defined, the applications and procedures for its implementation have been identified and, where necessary,
purchased/adjusted, both for securities and for credit exposures in the strict sense.

For the Impairment area, after having made the main choices regarding the parameters to be considered for the assessment
of significant deterioration, as well as for the calculation methods for the ECL (also taking into account forward-looking
information), the risk management applications to be used for tracking the credit risk of the individual exposures and
calculating the ECL have been identified and implemented, together with the necessary adaptations and upgrades. Similar
analyses and measures were also identified and are at advanced stage of implementation for the adaptation of the accounting
applications, in order to ensure suitable disclosure, as required by the new version of the FINREP and the update to Circular
262 of the Bank of Italy applicable from 1 January 2018.

In general, these measures have been defined and developed centrally in Intesa Sanpaolo for all the Group companies that
have IT systems that are shared with or are the same as those of the Parent Company. However, these measures have been
managed independently by the subsidiaries (for example, the international subsidiaries) that have different application
systems, also due to the specific nature of their business, with oversight by the Parent Company, to ensure that the solutions
are aligned to its guidelines.

Organisational impacts and further developments

The IT Implementations have been carried out alongside similar measures of an organisational nature. Specifically, the main

organisational impacts related to the revision and adaptation of existing operating processes, the design and implementation

of new processes and the related controls, as well as the revision of the available resources and expansion of the

competencies available within the various operational and administrative and control departments.

Specifically, the work related to the Classification and Measurement area initially involved business and marketing

departments, with the aim of identifying and defining business models and developing management and monitoring

procedures for the process of performing the SPPI test.

With regard to Impairment, the Group’s objective was the increasingly effective and integrated implementation of the

procedures for ongoing monitoring of credit risk, in line with the requirements of IFRS 9, in order to establish preventive

measures, aimed at monitoring the potential “sliding” of positions into stage 2 and recording fair and timely impairment

adjustments based on the real credit risk.

Lastly, the introduction of IFRS 9 also required analyses in terms of the commercial offering and, consequently, in terms of

the possible revision of the product catalogue and the identification of possible actions aimed at mitigating the risk of

significant impairment.

That said, the main impacts for the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s banking business deriving from the combination of the different

subject areas of the new standard, and taken into account in this area of analysis, include:

—  the possible need/opportunity — at least for some portfolios — to re-examine the credit strategies adopted;

— the amendment of some catalogue products (potentially including both their pricing and duration, based on their
supporting guarantees, and their repayment mechanisms);

— the possible restatement of the mission of certain operating units, with the related implications for the governance of
portfolios, control methods, risk/measurement parameters and the related limits and ceilings.

The process of moving towards First Time Adoption (FTA) of IFRS 9

Starting in the second half of 2017, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group launched the parallel running of the application of the new
standard, which involved a modular approach that will progressively be rendered complete as the necessary information and
support applications become available. The aim of this parallel running is to verify the correct implementation of the
supporting applications for the management of the changes introduced by IFRS 9, in addition to ensuring a more coherent
estimate of the FTA impacts.

In addition, in the first quarter of 2017 the European Central Bank (ECB) conducted a Thematic Review, which also involved
Intesa Sanpaolo, focused on the process of implementing IFRS 9. Intesa Sanpaolo received from the ECB the final version of
its conclusions, according to which the implementation of the new standard is generally in line with the authority’s
expectations. These conclusions also contain several suggestions and findings which have already been included in the
implementation plan for the new standard. The findings substantially relate to the definition of internal policies and regulations
which, as usual, was carried out in the final part of the project. In brief, the findings deal with the need to supplement the
processes and define in detail the internal rules and regulations (especially those regarding review and updating the methods
of determining the SICR and calculating expected loss), which have been in force since the introduction of IFRS 9, and
highlight the importance of the role of Internal Validation and back testing. In this regard, the internal regulations — relating in
particular to the Group Accounting Rules, the new Impairment Policy and the structure of the business model within the Group
— have been duly updated and approved by competent governance levels. For completeness, it is also noted that the Internal
Validation and Audit functions have been involved from the outset in the process of implementation of IFRS 9 and the related
operational activities. The checks conducted by the Internal Validation function concerned the impairment of the loans and
bonds and the criteria for determining the business model and were aimed at assessing the soundness and sustainability of
the methodological solutions proposed and their compliance with IFRS 9. With regard to the impairment of loans,
assessments were conducted on the design of the methodological solutions for the various risk parameters (PD, LGD, and
EAD), also by means of backtesting, and the adequacy of the staging criteria (with a particular focus on the setting of the
limits for the assessment of significant deterioration in the credit rating and the inclusion of forward-looking information). With
regard to the impairment of bonds, sample-based analyses confirmed the correctness of the assignment of the external
ratings (in the absence of internal ratings) and compliance with the rules established for the staging (both for securities and
for securitisations). The Internal Validation function examined the documentation prepared by the Bank regarding the
business model, verifying, on one hand, the completeness and compliance with the requests made by the ECB during the
Thematic Review and, on the other hand, for a sample desk, the adherence to the highlighted principles. Lastly, the analyses
examined the methodology developed for the Benchmark Cash Flow Test. In order to ensure adequate monitoring over the
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process of adoption of the new standard, the Internal Audit function structured its activities throughout 2017 according to the
evolution of the individual project initiatives implemented in this area. The checks were carried out through the continuous
monitoring of the progress of the various project initiatives, dialogue with the relevant specialist structures in the areas
concerned, and in-depth analysis of specific issues and operational choices. In view of their importance for the correct
adoption of the new standard, particular attention was paid to the assessment of the impairment models. The checks in this
area focused on the adequacy of the models in terms of compliance with regulatory requirements and emerging international
best practices.

The effects of First Time Adoption (FTA)

On the basis of the above, an estimate is provided below of the expected impact of the first-time adoption of IFRS 9 on the
consolidated shareholders' equity of the Intesa Sanpaolo Group as at 1 January 2018. These effects, which involve both the
amount and composition of equity, mainly derive from:

— the requirement to recalculate the value adjustments on the financial assets held in the portfolio (both performing and
non-performing) using the expected credit losses model — including the forward-looking components — instead of the
previous incurred credit losses model. Specifically, for the performing exposures, the increase in the value adjustments is
attributable (i) to the allocation of part of the performing portfolio to Stage 2, based on the stage allocation criteria
defined, with the consequent need to calculate the expected loss over the lifetime of the financial assets and (ii) the
inclusion within the expected losses calculation of forward-looking parameters resulting from future macroeconomic
scenarios. With regard to non-performing loans, the impact is essentially due to the inclusion within the expected losses
calculation of forward-looking parameters resulting from the consideration of future macroeconomic scenarios for all the
NPL categories, and the inclusion of the sale scenario envisaged by the company targets of reduction of the non-
performing assets for a part of the bad loans portfolio that has characteristics of disposability. The application of this
criterion results in an estimated impact in terms of additional provisions of 1.3 billion euro (1 billion euro net of the tax
effect) for the performing loans and debt securities and 3.1 billion euro (2.2 billion euro net of the tax effect) for the non-
performing loans;

— the need to reclassify some financial assets held in the portfolio based on the combined result of the two classification
drivers envisaged by the standard: the business model according to which the instruments are managed and the
contractual characteristics of the related cash flows (SPPI test). It is estimated that the reclassification of the financial
assets will have a positive impact of 0.3 billion euro (0.2 billion euro net of tax).

With regard to the prudential ratios, the negative impact of the first-time adoption of IFRS 9 on the CET 1 of the Intesa
Sanpaolo Group is estimated at around 100 bps, taking into account the shortfall, resulting from the prudential expected
losses in excess of the book value adjustments.

To mitigate this effect on the CET 1, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group has decided to adopt the “static approach”, to be applied to
the FTA impact, net of the tax effect, resulting from the comparison between the IAS 39 value adjustments as at 31 December
2017 and the IFRS 9 value adjustments as at 1 January 2018, which therefore does not include the reclassification of the
financial instruments, and after having set to zero the shortfall referred to above. The resulting amount of -2.9 billion euro,
represents the base to which the decreasing factors must be applied during the transitional period to determine the amounts
to be neutralised in the CET 1 (95% in 2018, 85% in 2019, 70% in 2020, 50% in 2021 and 25% in 2022).

As a result, in 2018 the Group will be able to neutralise around 2.7 billion euro in the CET 1, corresponding to 95% of the net
negative impact of the performing loans and debt securities and the non-performing loans, thereby achieving a substantially
nil impact on CET 1 capital.
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SECTION 2 - GENERAL PREPARATION PRINCIPLES

The Consolidated financial statements are made up of the Balance sheet, the Income statement, the Statement of
comprehensive income, the Changes in shareholders’ equity, the Statement of cash flows, the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements and the related comparative information; the Report on operations prepared by the Directors, on the
economic results achieved and on the Intesa Sanpaolo Group’s balance sheet and financial position has also been included.
In compliance with the provisions of Art. 5 of Legislative Decree 38/2005, the financial statements have been drawn up in
euro as functional currency.

The amounts indicated in the Consolidated financial statements and in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements as
well as those in the Report on operations are expressed in millions of euro, unless otherwise specified.

The financial statements are prepared with the application of the general principles set out by IAS 1 and the specific
accounting principles endorsed by the European Commission and illustrated in Part A.2 of these Notes to the consolidated
financial statements financial statements, as well as in compliance with the general assumptions set forth by the Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements issued by IASB.

No exceptions to the application of IAS/IFRS have been made.

The Report on operations and the Notes to the consolidated financial statements contain all information required by the
IAS/IFRS, by current regulations, by the Bank of Italy and by Consob (ltalian Securities and Exchange Commission), in
addition to other information which is not compulsory but is nonetheless deemed to be necessary in order to give a true and
fair presentation of the Group’s situation.

The financial statement forms and the Notes to the consolidated financial statements show, in addition to the figures for the
reference period, the comparative figures as at 31 December 2016.

The Attachments include the reconciliation statements to the balance sheet and income statement originally published in the
2016 financial statements, together with specific reconciliations between the 2016 financial statements and the reclassified
statements included in the Report on operations accompanying these financial statements.

Contents of financial statement forms

Balance sheet and income statement

The compulsory forms of the balance sheet and income statement are made up of captions, subcaptions and further detailed
information (specified as the “of which” items in the captions and subcaptions). For the purposes of completeness with
respect to the compulsory forms defined by the Bank of Italy, captions which do not present amounts for the reference year
and the previous year are in any case included. In the income statement revenues are indicated without sign, whereas costs
are preceded by the minus sign.

Statement of comprehensive income

The Statement of comprehensive income shows, starting from the income/(loss) for the year, the income components
recognised as a balancing entry in valuation reserves, net of the tax effect, in compliance with international financial reporting
standards.

Consolidated comprehensive income is represented by providing separate recognition of the income components that will not
be reversed to the income statement in the future and those which, conversely, could later be reclassified to income/(loss) for
the year under specific conditions. The statement also distinguishes between the portion of income pertaining to the Parent
Company and that pertaining to minority interests. Similarly to the balance sheet and the income statement, with respect to
the compulsory forms defined by the Bank of Italy, captions which do not present amounts for the reference year and the
previous year are in any case included. Negative amounts are preceded by the minus sign.

Changes in shareholders’ equity

Changes in shareholders’ equity are presented by inverting the lines and the columns with respect to the same form provided
for by the updating of Bank of Italy Circular 262/2005. The table presents shareholders’ equity accounts and changes which
occurred in the reference year and in the previous year, broken down in share capital (ordinary and savings shares),
reserves, reserves from retained earnings, valuation reserves and net income. Treasury shares are deducted from
shareholders’ equity.

Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows registered in the reference year and in the previous year is prepared using the indirect method,
on the basis of which cash flows from operating activities are represented by net income adjusted for the effects of non-cash
transactions.

Cash flows are broken down into flows from operating activities, from investing activities and from financing activities.

In the form, cash flows generated in the year are indicated without sign, whereas cash flows absorbed are preceded by the
minus sign.

Contents of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The Notes to the consolidated financial statements include the information provided for by International Financial Reporting
Standards and Circular 262 issued by the Bank of Italy on 22 December 2005 and subsequently amended, applicable for the
preparation of these financial statements.
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SECTION 3 — SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION AND CONSOLIDATION METHODS

Scope of consolidation

The Consolidated financial statements include Intesa Sanpaolo and the companies that it directly and indirectly controls and
consider in the scope of consolidation — as specifically set out by IAS/IFRS — also the companies operating in dissimilar
sectors from the Parent Company as well as private equity investments. Similarly, structured entities are included when the
requisite of effective control recurs, even if there is no stake in the company.

Companies are considered subsidiaries where Intesa Sanpaolo is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with them, and has the ability to affect those returns by exercising its own power over the entity in question.
Control only exists if all of the following conditions are met:

— the power to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiary;

— the exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the involvement with the investee;

— the ability to use the power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

Companies are considered as subject to joint control if control is directly or indirectly contractually shared by the Parent
Company with one or more other parties external to the Group, or where the decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of all the parties sharing control.

Companies are considered associates, that is subject to significant influence, when Intesa Sanpaolo, directly or indirectly,
holds 20% or more of the voting rights (including “potential” voting rights) or when the Parent Company — despite a lower
percentage of voting rights due to specific legal agreements such as the participation of voting syndicates — has the power of
participating in the determination of the financial and operating policies of the company.

Certain companies in which the Parent Company holds an equity stake exceeding 20% of voting share capital, and in any
case of limited absolute amount, are excluded from the scope of consolidation and are classified in the Available-for-Sale
category since Intesa Sanpaolo, directly or indirectly, exclusively holds rights on a portion of the rewards of the investment,
does not have access to management policies and may exercise limited governance rights to safeguard its
economic interests.

Equity investments held, directly or through funds, in companies involved in the venture capital business are also excluded
from the line-by-line scope of consolidation. These equity investments are included in the category of instruments measured
at fair value.

Companies for which the shares have been received as pledges with voting rights exceeding 20% are not consolidated, in
consideration of the substance underlying the pledge, which has the purpose of guaranteeing loans and not of exercising
control and direction over financial and economic policies in order to benefit from the economic return on the shares.

Compared to the situation as at 31 December 2016, worth mentioning is that the scope of consolidation has been expanded
to include Neva Finventures S.p.A. and Intesa Sanpaolo Harbourmaster S.A.

In addition, as part of the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities of Banca Popolare di Vicenza and Veneto Banca, the
contract also envisaged the acquisition of the shareholdings of the two banks, now in liquidation, in Banca Nuova S.p.A,,
Servizi Bancari S.c.p.A., Banca Apulia S.p.A., SEC Servizi S.c.p.A., Veneto Banka d.d.(Croatia), Veneto Banka sh.a.
(Albania) and Eximbank s.a. (Moldova). This last stake was not included in the scope of consolidation for the purposes of the
Financial Statements as at 31 December 2017, since a local legislative provision is being approved, aimed at the transfer of
the bank’s non-performing loans to compulsory administrative liquidation procedure. Without this operation, it will not be
possible to register the change of ownership that, according to local legislation, would allow the new shareholder to exercise
the shareholder prerogatives and therefore the control over the company.

Meanwhile, during the year the following left the scope of consolidation: - Infogroup S.c.p.A, sold; Cib Car Trading LLC- in
voluntary liquidation; Brivon Hungary ZRT. - in voluntary liquidation.

Several extraordinary intragroup transactions were carried out in 2017, which had no effects on the Consolidated financial
statements; they consisted in transfers of business lines between Intesa Sanpaolo Group companies or business
combinations (under common control). Since the transfers were carried out for reorganisation purposes only, in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy, these transactions were simply recorded in the individual financial statements of the
companies involved, using the continuing values method, without recognition of any economic effect.

In this context, the transactions carried out were: the partial demerger of CIB Factor into CIB Bank, the merger by
incorporation of Accedo into Intesa Sanpaolo, the sale by Intesa Sanpaolo to PBZ of 51% of Banka Intesa Sanpaolo d.d.
(Slovenia) and the sale by Intesa Sanpaolo to Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International of the stake held in Intesa Sanpaolo
Bank Luxembourg.
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The following table lists the investments in subsidiaries that are included in the line-by-line scope of consolidation of the
Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2017.

1. Consolidated companies

Companies Place of Registered Type of INVESTMENT Votes
business office relation- Direct ownership % held available
ship (a) (b)
1 Banca 5 S.p.A. (formerly Banca ITB S.p.A.) Milano Milano 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 100.00
Capital 30,000,000.00 euro
2 Banca Apulia S.p.A. (c) San Severo San Severo 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 70.41 69.47
Capital 39,943,987 euro
3 Banca IMI S.p.A. Milano Milano 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 100.00
Capital 962,464,000 euro
4 Banca Imi Securities Corp New York New York 1 Imi Capital Markets USA Corp. 100.00

Capital USD 44.500.000

5 Banca Intesa a.d., Beograd Novi Beograd ~ Novi Beograd 1 Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International 100.00
Capital RSD 21,315,900,000

6 Banca Intesa Joint-Stock Company Moscow Moscow 1 Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International 53.02
Capital RUB 10,820,180,800 Intesa Sanpaolo 46.98
100.00

7 Banca Nuova S.p.A. Palermo Palermo 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 100.00

Capital 256,300,000 euro

8 Banca Prossima S.p.A. (h) Milano Milano 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 80.16
Capital 82,000,000 euro
9 Banco di Napoli S.p.A. Napoli Napoli 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 100.00
Capital 1,000,000,000 euro
10 Bank of Alexandria S.A.E. (e) Cairo Cairo 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 80.00 70.25
Capital EGP 800,000,000
11 Banka Intesa Sanpaolo d.d (formerly Banka Koper d.d.) (f) Koper Koper 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 48.07
Capital 22,173,218.16 euro Privredna Banka Zagreb d.d. 51.00
99.07
12 Cassa dei Risparmi di Forli e della Romagna S.p.A. Forli Forli 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 84.01

Capital 214,428,465 euro

13 Cassa di Risparmio del Friuli Venezia Giulia S.p.A. Udine Gorizia 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 100.00
Capital 210,263,000 euro

14 Cassa di Risparmio del Veneto S.p.A. Padova Padova 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 100.00
Capital 781,169,000 euro

15 Cassa di Risparmio di Firenze S.p.A. Firenze Firenze 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 100.00
Capital 418,230,435 euro

16 Cassa di Risparmio di Pistoia e della Lucchesia S.p.A. Pistoia Pistoia 1 Cassa di Risparmio di Firenze 74.88

Capital Euro 171,846,280 Intesa Sanpaolo 25.01
99.89

17 Cassa di Risparmio in Bologna S.p.A. Bologna Bologna 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 100.00
Capital 703,692,000 euro

18 Cib Bank Ltd Budapest Budapest 1 Intesa Sanpaolo 100.00
Capital HUF 50,000,000,003

19 CIB Factor Financial Services Ltd Budapest Budapest 1 Cib Bank 100.00
Capital HUF 50,000,000

20 CIB Insurance Broker Ltd Budapest Budapest 1 Cib Bank  100.00

Capital HUF 10,000,000

Vub Asset Management

21 CIB Investment Fund Management Ltd Budapest Budapest 1 Spravcovska Spolocnost  100.00
Capital HUF 600,000,000

22 CIB Leasing Ltd Budapest Budapest 1 Cib Bank 100.00
Capital HUF 53,000,000

23 CIB Rent Operative Leasing Ltd Budapest Budapest 1 Cib Bank 100.00

Capital HUF 5,000,000

24 Compagnia ltaliana Finanziaria - CIF S.r.l. Milano Milano 1 IN.FRA - Investire nelle Infrastrutture 61.45
Capital 10,000 euro

25 Consumer Finance Holding a.s. Kezmarok Kezmarok 1 Vseobecna Uverova Banka 100.00
Capital 53,110,277 euro

26 Consumer Finance Holding Ceska Republika a.s. Prague Prague 1 Consumer Finance Holding 100.00
Capital Czk 86,300,000

27 Duomo Funding Plc (g) Dublin Dublin 4 Intesa Sanpaolo -

28 Epsilon SGR S.p.A. Milano Milano 1 Eurizon Capital SGR 51.00
Capital 5,200,000 euro Banca IMI 49.00

100.00

29 Etoile Actualis S.a.r.l. Paris Paris 1 Risanamento Europa 100.00
Capital 29,709,643 euro

30 Etoile Frangois Premier S.a.r.l. Paris Paris 1 Risanamento Europa  100.00
Capital 5,000 euro

31 Etoile Saint Florentin S.a.r.l. Paris Paris 1 Risanamento Europa 100.00

Capital 540,720 euro
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Companies

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

4

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

5

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

Etoile Services S.a.r.l.

Capital 1,000 euro

Eurizon Capital S.A.

Capital 7,557,200 euro

Eurizon Capital SGR S.p.A.

Capital 99,000,000 euro

Eurizon Slj Capital Ltd

Capital GBP 1,001,000

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking S.p.A.
Capital 300,000,000 euro

Fideuram Asset Management (Ireland) DAC
(formerly Fideuram Asset Management (Ireland) Ltd)
Capital 1,000,000 euro

Fideuram Bank Luxembourg S.A.

Capital 40,000,000 euro

Fideuram Fiduciaria S.p.A.

Capital 1,551,000 euro

Fideuram Investimenti S.G.R. S.p.A.

Capital 25,850,000 euro

Fideuram Vita S.p.A.
Capital 357,446,836.42 euro

Financiere Fideuram S.A.

Capital 346,761,600 euro

IMI Capital Markets USA Corp.

Capital USD 5.000

IMI Finance Luxembourg S.A.

Capital 100,000 euro

IMI Fondi Chiusi S.G.R. S.p.A.

Capital 2,000,000 euro

IMI Investimenti S.p.A.

Capital 579,184,200 euro

IMI Investments S.A.

Capital 21,660,000 euro

Immobiliare Cascina Rubina S.r.1.(i)
Capital 1,371,066 euro

IN.FRA - Investire nelle Infrastrutture S.r.l.
(formerly IN.FRA - Investire nelle Infrastrutture S.p.A.)
Capital 10,000 euro

Iniziative Logistiche S.r.I.

Capital 10,000 euro

Intesa Leasing (Closed Joint-Stock Company)
Capital RUB 3,000,000

Intesa Leasing d.o.o. Beograd

Capital RSD 960,374,301

Intesa Sanpaolo Assicura S.p.A.

Capital 27,912,258 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Albania Sh.A.
Capital ALL 5,562,517,674

Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Ireland Plc

Capital 400,500,000 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Luxembourg S.A.
Capital 989,370,720.28 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Banka d.d. Bosna | Hercegovina
Capital BAM 44,782,000

Intesa Sanpaolo Brasil S.A. - Banco Multiplo
Capital BRL 306,065,234.44

Intesa Sanpaolo Funding LLC (formerly Intesa Funding LLC)
Capital USD 25.000

Place of
business

Paris

Luxembourg

Milano

London

Roma

Dublin

Luxembourg

Torino

Milano

Roma

Paris

New York

Luxembourg

Bologna

Bologna

Luxembourg

Milano

Milano

Milano

Moscow

Beograd

Torino

Tirana

Dublin

Luxembourg

Sarajevo

Sao Paulo

New York

Registered
office

Paris

Luxembourg

Milano

London

Torino

London

Luxembourg

Torino

Milano

Roma

Paris

New York

Luxembourg

Bologna

Bologna

Luxembourg

Milano

Milano

Milano

Moscow

Beograd

Torino

Tirana

Dublin

Luxembourg

Sarajevo

Sao Paulo

Wilmington

Type of
relation-
ship (a)

INVESTMENT

Direct ownership

Risanamento Europa

Eurizon Capital SGR

Intesa Sanpaolo

Eurizon Capital SGR

Intesa Sanpaolo

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking

Intesa Sanpaolo

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking

IMI Investments

IMI Investments

IMI Investimenti

Intesa Sanpaolo

Banca IMI

Risanamento

Intesa Sanpaolo

IN.FRA - Investire nelle Infrastrutture

Banca Intesa Joint-Stock Company

Banca Intesa Beograd

Intesa Sanpaolo Vita

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International

Privredna Banka Zagreb

Intesa Sanpaolo
Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International

Intesa Sanpaolo

% held

100.00

100.00

100.00

65.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

99.50

80.01
19.99

100.00
100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

60.02

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

99.99

99.90
0.10

100.00
100.00

Votes
available

(b)

100.00
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Companies

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

7

72

73

74

75

76

7

78

79

80

81

82
83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

Intesa Sanpaolo Group Services S.c.p.A.
Capital 272,586,637 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Harbourmaster Ill S.A.
Capital 5,000,000 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International S.A.
Capital 2,157,957,270 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Immobiliére S.A.

Capital 350,000 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Life DAC (formerly Intesa Sanpaolo Life Ltd)

Capital 625,000 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Private Bank (Suisse) S.A.
Capital CHF 20,000,000

Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking S.p.A.
Capital 105,497,424 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Provis S.p.A.

Capital 5,125,000 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo RE.O.CO. S.p.A.
Capital 13,000,000 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Real Estate S.A.
Capital 2,940,476 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Romania S.A. Commercial Bank

Capital RON 886,639,410

Intesa Sanpaolo Sec S.A.
Capital 31,000 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Securitisation Vehicle S.r.I.

Capital 60,000 euro
Intesa Sanpaolo Servitia S.A.
Capital 1,500,000 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Smart Care S.r.l.
Capital 1,633,000 euro

Intesa Sanpaolo Vita S.p.A.
Capital 320,422,508.16 euro
Intesa Sec. 3 S.r.l.

Capital 70,000 euro

Intesa Sec. Npl S.p.A.
Capital 129,000 euro

Intesa Sec. S.p.A.
Capital 100,000 euro

ISP CB Ipotecario S.r.I.
Capital 120,000 euro

ISP CB Pubbico S.r.l.
Capital 120,000 euro

ISP OBG Sir.l.

Capital 42,038 euro

Lunar Funding V Plc (g)

Lux Gest Asset Management S.A.
Capital 200,000 euro
Mediocredito Italiano S.p.A.
Capital 992,043,495 euro

Milano Santa Giulia S.p.A. (i)
Capital 120,000 euro

MSG Comparto Quarto S.r.l. (i)
Capital 20,000 euro

MSG Comparto Secondo S.r.l. (i)
Capital 50,000 euro

MSG Comparto Terzo S.r.l. (i)
Capital 20,000 euro

MSG Residenze S.r.l. (i)
Capital 50,000 euro

Neva Finventures S.p.A.
Capital 20,000,000 euro

PBZ Card d.o.0.

Capital HRK 43,422,200

Place of
business

Torino

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Dublin

Lugano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Luxembourg

Bucharest

Luxembourg

Milano

Luxembourg

Torino

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Dublin

Luxembourg

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Torino

Zagreb

Registered
office

Torino

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Dublin

Lugano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Luxembourg

Bucharest

Luxembourg

Milano

Luxembourg

Torino

Torino

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Dublin

Luxembourg

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Torino

Zagreb

Type of
relation-
ship (a)

INVESTMENT

Direct ownership

Intesa Sanpaolo

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking
Cassa di Risparmio del Veneto

Cassa di Risparmio di Firenze

Banco di Napoli

Banca Imi

Eurizon Capital SGR

Intesa Sanpaolo Vita
other smaller investments

Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International

Intesa Sanpaolo Vita

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International

Intesa Sanpaolo

Cassa di Risparmio di Firenze
Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International

Intesa Sanpaolo
Intesa Sanpaolo Vita

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo Bank Luxembourg

Intesa Sanpaolo

Risanamento

Milano Santa Giulia

Milano Santa Giulia

Milano Santa Giulia

Risanamento

Intesa Sanpaolo

Privredna Banka Zagreb

% held

99.91
0.01
0.01
0.01
0.01
0.01
0.01
0.01
0.01

100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00

100.00

91.47

8.18
0.35

100.00
100.00
100.00

100.00

51.01
48.99

100.00
99.99
60.00
60.00

100.00
60.00

60.00

60.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Votes
available

(b)
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Companies

92

93

%

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106
107

108

109

110

111

112
113

114

PBZ Invest d.o.o.
Capital HRK 5,000,000

PBZ Leasing d.o.o. za poslove leasinga
Capital HRK 15,000,000

PBZ Nekretnine d.o.o.

Capital HRK 3,000,000

PBZ Stambena Stedionica d.d.

Capital HRK 115,000,000

Pravex Bank Public Joint-Stock Company Commercial Bank

Capital UAH 968,370,561.86

Private Equity International S.A. (d)
Capital 107,000,000 euro

Privredna Banka Zagreb d.d.
Capital HRK 1,907,476,900

Qingdao Yicai Wealth Management Co. Ltd.
Capital CNY 146,000,000

Recovery Property Utilisation and Services ZRT.
Capital HUF 20,000,000

Ri. Estate S.r.l. (i)
Capital 10,000 euro
Ri. Progetti S.p.A. (i)
Capital 510,000 euro

Ri. Rental S.r.l. (i)
Capital 10,000 euro

Risanamento Europa S.r.l. (i)
Capital 100,125,050 euro

Risanamento S.p.A. (i)
Capital 382,301,503.75 euro

Romulus Funding Corporation (g)
Sanpaolo Invest SIM S.p.A.

Capital 15,264,760 euro

Sec Servizi - Societa consortile per azioni
Capital 25,000,000 euro

Servizi bancari S.C.P.A.
Capital 120,000 euro

Societa Italiana di Revisione e Fiduciaria — S.I.RE.F. S.p.A.

Capital 2,600,000 euro

Sviluppo Comparto 3 S.r.I.(i)

Capital 50,000 euro

Trade Receivables Investment Vehicle Sarl
Veneto Banka DD

Capital HRK 597,082,000

Veneto Banka Sh.A.
Capital 72,543,750 euro

Place of
business

Zagreb

Zagreb

Zagreb

Zagreb

Kiev

Luxembourg

Zagreb

Qingdao

Budapest

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

New York

Roma

Padova

Vicenza

Milano

Milano

Luxembourg

Zagreb

Tirana

Registered
office

Zagreb

Zagreb

Zagreb

Zagreb

Kiev

Luxembourg

Zagreb

Qingdao

Budapest

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

Milano

New York

Torino

Padova

Vicenza

Milano

Milano

Luxembourg

Zagreb

Tirana

Type of
relation-
ship (a)

INVESTMENT
Direct ownership

Vub Asset Management
Spravcovska Spolocnost

Privredna Banka Zagreb

Privredna Banka Zagreb

Privredna Banka Zagreb

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo
IMI Investimenti

Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International

Eurizon Capital SGR

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking
Intesa Sanpaolo

Cib Bank

Risanamento

Risanamento

Risanamento

Risanamento

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking

Intesa Sanpaolo
Banca Nuova

Banca Apulia
Banca 5

Intesa Sanpaolo
Banca Nuova

Intesa Sanpaolo Group Services
Sec Servizi - Societa consortile per azioni

Fideuram - Intesa Sanpaolo Private Banking

Milano Santa Giulia

Banca IMI/Duomo Funding

Intesa Sanpaolo

Intesa Sanpaolo

% held

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

85.80
8.59

94.39
97.47

20.00

25.00
55.00

100.00
100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

48.88

100.00

73.61
1.66

0.28
0.06

75.60

95.95
1.00

0.05
1.00

98.00
100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Votes
available

(b)

90.90

9.10

100.00
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Companies Place of Registered Type of INVESTMENT Votes
business office relation- available
ship (a) Direct ownership % held (b)
115 Vseobecna Uverova Banka a.s. Bratislava Bratislava 1 Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International 97.03
Capital 430,819,063.81 euro
116 VUB Asset Management Sprav. Spol a.s. Bratislava Bratislava 1 Eurizon Capital 100.00
Capital 4,093,560 euro
117 VUB Factoring a.s. Bratislava Bratislava 1 Vseobecna Uverova Banka 100.00
Capital 2,232,334 euro
118 VUB Leasing a.s. Bratislava Bratislava 1 Vseobecna Uverova Banka 100.00

Capital 16,600,000 euro

(a)  Type of relationship:
1 - majority of voting rights at Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting;
2 - dominant influence at Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting;
3 - agreements with other shareholders;
4 - other forms of control;
5 - unitary management as defined in Art. 26.1 of "Legislative Decree 87/92";
6 - unitary management as defined in Art. 26.2 of "Legislative Decree 87/92".

Where different from the % portion, the availability of the votes in the Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting is indicated, distinguishing between the effective and potential voting rights, where
applicable

Taking into account the payment for future capital increase not subscried by minority shareholders the stake held would be approximately 96%.

(d) On 23/12/2016, the subsidiary Private Equity International issued a new category of class C shares, equal to 5.6% of the company’s capital. These shares do not carry the right to vote in the
shareholders' meeting and their return is dependent on the financial performance of certain investments held in portfolio by Private Equity International.

In March 2009, 9.75% of the share capital of Bank of Alexandria (BOA) was sold to International Finance Corporation (IFC) with the concurrent signing by the parties of a Put&Call Agreement
@ covering the portion sold by Intesa Sanpaolo. It should be noted that, based on the contractual clauses underlying the transaction and failing to meet IFRS derecognition criteria, the percentage
of equity investment includes the portion sold, while voting rights were transferred to the buyer.
Minority shareholders are subject to a legal commitment to purchase the remaining 0.93% of share capital.
Company controlled pursuant to IFRS 10, although the Group does not hold any equity stake in the company capital.

Please note that there are put options sold to minority shareholders on 19.84% of share capital.

Company not subject to the management and coordination activities pursuant to art. 2497 and following of the Italian Civil Code.

Though the stake in Joint Stock Commercial Bank Eximbank (Moldova), 100%-owned, with registered office in Chisinau,
deriving from the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities of Veneto Banca in compulsory administrative liquidation, was
included in the Aggregate Set transferred to Intesa Sanpaolo, it was not included in the scope of consolidation as at 31
December 2017, since a local legislative provision is being approved, aimed at the transfer of the Moldovan bank’s non-
performing loans to compulsory administrative liquidation procedure. Without this operation, it will not be possible to register
the change of ownership that would allow Intesa Sanpaolo to exercise the shareholder prerogatives and therefore the control
over the company.

2. Significant evaluations and assumptions in determining the scope of consolidation

As stated above, companies are considered subsidiaries where Intesa Sanpaolo is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with them, and has the ability to affect those returns by exercising its own power over the entity in
question.

Control only exists if all of the following conditions are met:

- the power to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiary;

- the exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the involvement with the investee;

- the ability to use the power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

In particular, the Group considers the following factors in evaluating the existence of control:

- the purpose and the structure of the investee in order to identify its aims and relevant activities, or the activities that
significantly affect the investee’s returns, and how those activities are governed;

- power, in order to understand whether the Group has the contractual right to manage the relevant activities;

- the exposure to variable returns from the investee in order to evaluate whether the return recognised by the Group is
subject to variations depending on the investee's returns.

Furthermore, in order to evaluate the existence of control, potential principal-agent relationships are taken into consideration.
In order to evaluate whether the investee is acting as a principal or an agent, the Group takes account of the following factors:
- the decision-making power on the relevant activities of the subsidiary;

- the rights of other parties;

- the payments to which the Group is entitled;

- the Group's exposure to variable returns resulting from any investment in the investee.

IFRS 10 identifies relevant activities as activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee's returns.

In general terms, when the relevant activities are managed through voting rights, the following factors determine evidence

of control:

- direct ownership, or indirect ownership through its subsidiaries, of more than half the voting rights of an entity, unless in
exceptional circumstances it can be clearly demonstrated that such ownership does not constitute control;

- ownership of half, or less, of the votes which can be cast at the shareholders' meeting, and the practical ability
unilaterally to govern the relevant activities through:
o the control of more than half the voting rights as enshrined in an agreement with other investors;
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o the power to determine the financial and operational policies of the entity, as conferred by the Articles of Association
or by contract;

o the power to nominate or remove the majority of the members of the Board of Directors or of the equivalent
corporate governance body;

o the power to cast the majority of the votes at meetings of the Board of Directors or of the equivalent corporate
governance body.

In order to exercise power, it is necessary for the rights that the Group has over the investee to be material; to be material, the
Group must have the ability to use its rights when decisions relating to relevant activities are taken.

The existence and the effect of potential voting rights, where material, are taken into consideration in evaluating whether
power exists to shape the managerial and financial policies of another entity.

Sometimes the Group has "de facto" control over certain entities when it possesses rights to determine unilaterally the
relevant activities of the investee, even though it does not have the majority of the voting rights.

On the contrary, cases may emerge where the Group, though holding more than half of the voting rights, does not control the
investee since, consequently to agreements with other investors, the exposure to variable returns from the involvement with
the investees is not considered significant.

Subsidiaries can also include "structured entities" in which the voting rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who control
the entity; this includes special purpose vehicles (SPEs/SPVs) and investment funds. Structured entities are considered to be
controlled where:

- the Group has powers enshrined in contractual rights allowing it to govern the relevant activities; and

- the Group is exposed to the variable returns deriving from such activities.
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3. Investments in subsidiaries with minority interests

3.1 Minority interests, minority voting rights and dividends distributed to minorities

Companies

-

O © 0o N o a b~ W N

Minority

interests

%

Banca Apulia S.p.A. 29.59
Banca Prossima S.p.A. 19.84
Bank Of Alexandria S.A.E (2) 20.00
Banka Intesa Sanpaolo d.d (formerly Banka Koper d.d.) 0.93
Cassa Dei Risparmi di Forli e della Romagna S.p.A. 15.99
Cassa Di Risparmio di Pistoia e della Lucchesia S.p.A. 0.10
Compagnia ltaliana Finanziaria - CIF S.r.l. 38.56
Eurizon Slj Capital L.t.d. 35.00
Fideuram Investimenti - Societa di Gestione del Risparmio S.p.A. 0.50
Iniziative Logistiche S.r.1. 39.98
Intesa Sanpaolo Banka D.D. Bosna | Hercegovina 0.01
Intesa Sanpaolo Vita S.p.A. 0.02
Intesa Sec 3 S.r.l. 40.00
Intesa Sec Npl S.r.l. 40.00
ISP CB Ipotecario S.r.l. 40.00
ISP CB Pubblico S.r.I. 40.00
ISP OBG S.r.l. 40.00
Private Equity International S.A. 5.61
Privredna Banka Zagreb d.d. 2.53
Risanamento S.p.A. 51.12
Sec Servizi S.c.p.a. 24.40
Servizi Bancari S.c.p.a. 2.00
Vseobecna Uverova Banka a.s. 2.97

Available voting rights at Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting.

Minority
voting
rights
o, (1

30.53
19.84
29.75

0.93
15.99

0.10
38.56
35.00

0.50
39.98

0.02
40.00
40.00
40.00
40.00
40.00

2.53
51.12
24.40

2.00

2.97

Dividends
distributed to
minority
shareholders

In March 2009 the sale of 9.75% of Bank of Alexandria (BOA) share capital to International Finance Corporation was finalised
(IFC); at the same time a Put&Call Agreement was executed between the parties concerning the share sold by Intesa
Sanpaolo. The percent interest includes the portion sold and the voting rights were transferred to the buyer in accordance with
the agreement, in the absence of the requirements for derecognition as dictated by the proper application of international

accounting standards.
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3.2 Investments in companies with significant minority interests: financial highlights
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1 Risanamento S.p.A. 1,056 - 18 45 430 197 -21 -25 -10 -33 -25 - -25 -25
2 Bank Of Alexandria S.A.E 3,713 69 3,507 97 3,031 445 241 288 -108 166 122 - 122 -16 106
3 Vseobecna Uverova Banka A.S. 14,444 127 13,960 182 12,780 1,541 307 442 -216 195 153 - 153 2 155

4. Significant restrictions
The following are significant restrictions on the transfer of resources within the Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

On 23 December 2016, the subsidiary Private Equity International issued a new category of class C shares, e
qual to 5.6% of the company’s capital. These shares do not have voting rights at the shareholders’ meeting and
their yield is related to the economic results of certain investments held by the same Private Equity International.

Moreover, the Intesa Sanpaolo Group is subject to supervisory rules provided by Directive 2013/36/EU (CRD IV) and
Regulation (EU) 575/2013 (CRR) and controls financial institutions subject to the same or similar regulations aiming to
maintain an adequate level of regulatory capital in relation to risks taken; therefore the ability of subsidiary banks or
financial institutions to distribute capital or dividends is dependent on the fulfiment of the regulatory thresholds set in
those regulations. In addition, within the Group, there are insurance companies subject to the Solvency Capital
Requirements of Insurance companies established by the Solvency Il legislation.

5. Other information

In preparing the Intesa Sanpaolo consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of all controlled subsidiaries
have the same financial year-end.

Consolidation methods

Full consolidation

This method involves the “line by line” aggregation of the individual amounts reported in the balance sheets and income
statements of the subsidiary companies concerned. Following the allocation to minority shareholders of their interests, in a
specific caption, in equity and in the result for the period, the residual value is eliminated against the book value of the
subsidiaries concerned.

Any positive differences arising on consolidation, after the allocation to the assets and liabilities of the consolidated
subsidiary, are recorded under Intangible assets as goodwill or other intangible assets. Negative differences are recognised in
the income statement.

Assets, liabilities, income and expenses between consolidated companies are totally eliminated.

Business combinations must be accounted for using the "acquisition method" in accordance with IFRS 3, as modified by
Regulation 495/2009, whereby identifiable assets acquired or liabilities assumed (including contingent liabilities) are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date. Moreover, for each business combination, any minority interest in the
acquired company can be recognised at fair value or in proportion to the minority investment in the net identifiable assets of
the acquired company. Any excess of the consideration transferred (being the fair value of the assets sold, the liabilities
incurred and the equity instruments issued) over the fair value recognition of minority interests with respect to the fair value of
the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed is recognised as goodwill. If the consideration is lower, the difference is taken
to the income statement.

The "acquisition method" is applied starting from the acquisition date, that is from the moment in which control of the acquired
company is obtained. Therefore, the economic results of a subsidiary acquired in the reference period are included in the
Consolidated financial statements starting from the acquisition date. Likewise, economic results of a subsidiary sold are
included in the Consolidated financial statements until the date in which control ceased.

The difference between sale price and book value at the date of disposal (including foreign exchange differences recorded in
shareholders’ equity on consolidation, over time) is accounted for in the income statement.

The financial statements of the Parent Company and of other companies used to prepare the Consolidated financial
statements refer to the same date.

Where necessary — and without prejudice to absolutely marginal cases — the financial statements of companies which are
drawn up using different accounting criteria are restated to be compliant with the standards used by the Group.

Measurement using the equity method

Associates and companies subject to joint control are consolidated with the equity method.

The equity method requires the initial recognition of the equity investment at cost and its subsequent value adjustment based
on the stake in the shareholders’ equity of the company.

Any difference between the value of the equity investment and the shareholders’ equity of the company involved is recorded
in the book value of the company.

The valuation of the portion of shareholders’ equity does not consider any potential voting rights.

The portion of the company’s results for the period pertaining to the Group is recorded in a specific caption of the
consolidated income statement.
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If there is evidence of impairment, the recoverable amount of the investment is estimated, considering the present value of
the future cash flows which may be generated by the investment, including the final disposal value. If the recoverable amount
is under book value the relative difference is recorded in the income statement.

For consolidation of companies subject to joint control and investments in associates, the most recent approved (annual or
interim) figures have been used. In certain marginal cases, the companies do not apply IAS/IFRS and, therefore, for such
companies it was verified that the adoption of IAS/IFRS would not have produced significant effects on the Intesa Sanpaolo
Group’s Consolidated financial statements.

Conversion of financial statements in currencies other than the euro

The financial statements of the companies which do not operate in the eurozone are translated into euro applying to the
assets and liabilities in the balance sheet the spot exchange rate at period-end and to the income statement the average
exchange rate.

Foreign exchange differences from the conversion of the financial statements of such companies, deriving from the
application of different foreign exchange rates to assets and liabilities and the income statement, are recorded in Valuation
reserves under shareholders' equity. Foreign exchange differences on the shareholders' equity of the subsidiaries are also
recorded in Valuation reserves.

All foreign exchange differences are reversed to the income statement of the year in which the foreign operation is sold.
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SECTION 4 — SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT DATE

Subsequent to the financial statement date, no significant events have occurred, except for those referred to in the Report on
operations.

SECTION 5 - OTHER ASPECTS

Option for the national fiscal consolidation provisions

Intesa Sanpaolo and the Group’s Italian companies have adopted the "national fiscal consolidation", set forth by Articles 117-
129 of the Combined Tax Regulations, introduced by Legislative Decree 344/2003. It provides an option, based on which the
total net income or fiscal loss of every controlled subsidiary taking part in the fiscal consolidation procedure — together with
withholding tax, tax deductions and tax credits — is transferred to the parent company, which determines a single taxable income
or loss carried forward (that is the result of the sum of its own income/loss and of the income/loss of the participating
subsidiaries) and, consequently, a sole tax debit/credit. Based on this option, Group companies that opted for the “national fiscal
consolidation” determine the tax charge pertaining to them and the corresponding taxable income is transferred to the Parent
Company. The group companies participating in the Fiscal Consolidation do not include those acquired from the two Venetian
Banks, which will only be able to take part from next year.

Other aspects

KPMG S.p.A. audited the Consolidated financial statements, in execution of the Shareholders' Meeting resolution of 10 May
2011, which appointed the company as independent auditor for the years from 2012 to 2020, included.
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A.2 — MAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENT CAPTIONS

1. Financial assets held for trading

Classification criteria

This category includes financial assets held for trading, essentially represented by debt securities and equities and the
positive value of derivative contracts held for trading. Derivative contracts also include those embedded in combined financial
instruments which are subject to separate accounting when:

— their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the characteristics of the host contract;

— embedded instruments, even though separate, fully meet the definition of derivative;

— combined instruments are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised through profit and loss.
Derivatives are stated as assets if their fair value is positive and as liabilities if their fair value is negative. The positive and
negative current values arising from transactions with the same counterparty may be offset only when the legal right to offset
amounts recognised for accounting purposes currently exists and the net settlement of positions subject to offsetting is carried
out.

The reclassifications to other categories of financial assets are not permitted unless there is an event that is unusual and
highly unlikely to recur in the near term.

In such cases debt securities and equities not held for trading may be reclassified into other categories established by IAS 39
if the conditions for their recognition apply (Investments held to maturity, Financial assets available for sale, Loans). The
transfer value is the fair value at the time of the reclassification. On reclassification, the presence of any embedded derivative
contracts, that have to be separated, is assessed.

Recognition criteria

Initial recognition of financial assets occurs at settlement date, for debt securities and equities and at trade date for
derivative contracts.

On initial recognition, financial assets held for trading are recorded at fair value, without considering transaction costs or
revenues directly attributable to the instrument.

Any embedded derivatives in combined financial instruments not directly connected to the latter and with the characteristics to
meet the definition of derivative are recorded at fair value separately from the host contract, which is recognised at cost.

Measurement criteria

After initial recognition financial assets held for trading are recorded at fair value. The effects of the application of this
measurement criterion are recorded in the income statement.

For the determination of the fair value of financial instruments quoted on active markets, market quotations are used. If the
market for a financial instrument is not active, standard practice estimation methods and valuation techniques are used which
consider all the risk factors correlated to the instruments and that are based on market elements such as: valuation of quoted
instruments with the same characteristics, calculation of discounted cash flows, option pricing models, recent comparable
transactions, etc. Equities, quotas of UCI and derivative instruments which have equities as underlying assets, which are not
quoted on an active market, for which it is not possible to determine a reliable fair value according to the guidelines listed
above, are maintained at cost.

Derecognition criteria

Financial assets are derecognised solely if the sale leads to the substantial transfer of all the risks and rewards connected to
the assets. Conversely, if a significant part of the risks and rewards relative to the sold financial assets is maintained, they
continue to be recorded in assets, even though their title has been transferred.

When it is not possible to ascertain the substantial transfer of risks and rewards, the financial assets are derecognised where
no control over the assets has been maintained. If this is not the case, when control, even partial, is maintained, the assets
continue to be recognised for the entity’s continuing involvement, measured by the exposure to changes in value of assets
sold and to variations in the relevant cash flows.

Lastly, financial assets sold are derecognised if the entity retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the asset
but signs a simultaneous obligation to pay such cash flows, and only such cash flows, to third parties.

2. Financial assets available for sale

Classification criteria

This category includes the financial assets that do not fall within any of the other categories such as Loans, Financial assets
held for trading, Investments held to maturity or Financial assets designated at fair value through profit and loss. In particular,
this caption is made up of i) bonds which are not held for trading and which are not included in Loans and Receivables, in
Investments held to maturity or designated at fair value through profit and loss, ii) equity investments which are not held for
trading and do not qualify as investments in subsidiaries, associates or entities subject to joint control, including private equity
investments and private equity funds as well as iii) the portions of syndicated loans that, from inception, are destined for sale.
In the cases provided for by the accounting standards, reclassifications are only permitted towards the category Investments
held to maturity. Moreover, debt securities may be reclassified into the category Investments held to maturity as well as under
Loans, when there is the intention to hold them in the foreseeable future and when the recognition criteria are met. The
transfer value is the fair value at the time of the reclassification.
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Recognition criteria

Initial recognition of the financial asset occurs at settlement date for debt securities and equities and at disbursement date for
loans.

On initial recognition, assets are recorded at fair value, including transaction costs and revenues directly attributable to
the instrument.

If, in the cases provided for by the accounting standards, recognition occurs following the reclassification from Investments
held to maturity or, in rare circumstances, from Financial assets held for trading, the recognition value is the fair value as at
the time of transfer.

Measurement criteria

After initial recognition, Financial assets available for sale are measured at fair value, through the registration in the income
statement of the value corresponding to amortised cost, while gains or losses deriving from a change in fair value are
recorded in a specific reserve in shareholders’ equity, until the financial asset is derecognised or a permanent loss occurs. On
the total or partial sale of the financial asset or on recognition of a loss, the cumulated profit or loss must be reversed, all or in
part, to the income statement.

Fair value is determined on the basis of the criteria already illustrated for financial assets held for trading.

Equities included in this category and quotas of UCI which have equities as underlying assets, which are not quoted on an
active market, for which it is not possible to determine a reliable fair value, are maintained at cost.

Financial assets available for sale are assessed to identify if they show objective evidence of an impairment loss.

If such evidence exists, the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying value of the asset and its fair value.
Should the reasons for impairment cease to exist, following an event occurred after the registration of the impairment, value
recoveries are posted through the income statement in the case of loans or debt securities, and through shareholders’ equity
in the case of equities. The size of the recovery must not lead the carrying amount of the financial asset to exceed the
amortised cost had no impairment losses been recognised in previous periods.

Derecognition criteria

Financial assets are derecognised solely if the sale leads to the substantial transfer of all the risks and rewards connected to
the assets. Conversely, if a significant part of the risks and rewards relative to the sold financial assets is maintained, they
continue to be recorded in assets, even though their title has been transferred.

When it is not possible to ascertain the substantial transfer of risks and rewards, the financial assets are derecognised where
no control over the assets has been maintained. If this is not the case, when control, even partial, is maintained, the assets
continue to be recognised for the entity’s continuing involvement, measured by the exposure to changes in value of assets
sold and to variations in the relevant cash flows.

Lastly, financial assets sold are derecognised if the entity retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the asset
but signs a simultaneous obligation to pay such cash flows, and only such cash flows, to third parties.

3. Investments held to maturity

Classification criteria

Quoted debt securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, which the entity has the positive intention and

ability to hold to maturity, are classified in this category.

In the cases provided for by the accounting standards, reclassifications are only permitted towards the category Financial

assets available for sale. If during a year, prior to expiry, more than an insignificant amount classified under this category is

sold or reclassified, the remaining investments held to maturity are reclassified as Financial assets available for sale and the

portfolio in question may not be used for the next two years, unless the sales and reclassifications:

— are so close to maturity or the financial asset's call date that changes in the market interest rate would not have a
significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value;

— occur after the entity has collected substantially all of the financial asset’s original principal through scheduled payments
or prepayments; or

— are attributable to an isolated event that is beyond the entity’s control, is non-recurring and could not have been
reasonably anticipated by the entity.

Recognition criteria

Initial recognition of financial assets occurs at settlement date.

On initial recognition, financial assets classified in this category are recorded at fair value, inclusive of any costs and revenues
directly attributable to the asset.

If inclusion in this category occurs following reclassification from Financial assets available for sale or, in rare circumstances,
from Financial assets held for trading, the fair value of the asset as at the date of reclassification is used as the new amortised
cost of the asset.

Measurement criteria

After the initial recognition, Investments held to maturity are valued at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Profits or losses referred to investments held to maturity are recorded in the income statement when assets are derecognised
or impaired, and through the amortisation process of the difference between book value and the value reimbursable at
maturity.

Investments held to maturity are assessed to identify if they show objective evidence of an impairment loss.

If such evidence exists, the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying value of the asset and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The loss is recorded in the income
statement.
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If the reasons for impairment are no longer applicable following an event subsequent to the registration of impairment,
recoveries are recorded in the income statement. The size of the recovery must not lead the carrying value of the financial
asset to exceed the amortised cost had no impairment losses been recognised in previous periods.

Derecognition criteria

Financial assets are derecognised solely if the sale leads to the substantial transfer of all the risks and rewards connected to
the assets. Conversely, if a significant part of the risks and rewards relative to the sold financial assets is maintained, they
continue to be recorded in assets, even though their title has been transferred.

When it is not possible to ascertain the substantial transfer of risks and rewards, the financial assets are derecognised where
no control over the assets has been maintained. If this is not the case, when control, even partial, is maintained, the assets
continue to be recognised for the entity’s continuing involvement, measured by the exposure to changes in value of assets
sold and to variations in the relevant cash flows.

Lastly, financial assets sold are derecognised if the entity retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the asset
but signs a simultaneous obligation to pay such cash flows, and only such cash flows, to third parties.

4. Loans

Classification criteria

Loans include loans to customers and due from banks, both disbursed directly and acquired by third parties, which entail fixed
or in any case determinable payments, which are not quoted on an active market and which are not classified at inception in
Financial assets available for sale.

The caption Loans also includes commercial loans, repurchase agreements with the obligation to resell at a later date, and
securities underwritten at issue or via private placements, with determined or determinable payments, not quoted in active
markets.

Reclassifications to the other categories of financial assets established in IAS 39 are not permitted.

Recognition criteria

Initial recognition of a loan occurs at the date of subscription of the contract that usually coincides with the disbursement date.
Should this not be the case, a commitment to disburse funds is made along the subscription of the contract, which will cease
to exist upon disbursement of the loan. The loan is recognised based on its fair value, equal to the amount disbursed or
subscription price, inclusive of the costs/revenues directly attributable to the single loan and determinable from inception,
even when settled at a later date. Costs that, even with the aforementioned characteristics, are reimbursed by the borrower or
are classifiable as normal internal administrative costs are excluded.

If, in rare circumstances, the inclusion in this category occurs following reclassification from Financial assets available for sale
or from Financial assets held for trading, the fair value of the asset as at the date of reclassification is used as the new
amortised cost of the asset.

Measurement criteria

After initial recognition, loans are measured at amortised cost, equal to initial value increased/decreased by principal
repayments, adjustments/recoveries and amortisation — calculated applying the effective interest method — of the difference
between amount disbursed and amount to be reimbursed at maturity, typically attributable to the costs/revenues directly
connected to the single loan. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments of
the loan, for principal and interest, to the amount disbursed inclusive of the costs/revenues attributable to the loan. This
measurement method uses a financial approach and allows distribution of the economic effect of the costs/revenues through
the expected residual maturity of the loan.

The amortised cost method is not used for loans whose short maturity implies that the application of the discounting approach
leads to immaterial effects. Such loans are recorded at historical cost. An analogous measurement criterion is applied to
loans with unspecified maturity or with notice period.

Loans are reassessed for the purpose of identifying those which, due to events occurred after initial recognition, show
obj